ORIGINAL /13-05

ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

RECEIVED

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT JUNO 1 2012

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATIONC 11 FACILITIES &
SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: DuPage Medical Group, Medical Office Building

Street Address: 430 Warrenville Rd.

City and 2ip Code: Lisle. 60532

County: DuPage Health Service Area HSA'7 Health Planning Area: A-03

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: DuPage Medical Group, Lid.

Address: [100 W. 3[st St.. Suite 300. Downers Grove. IL

Name of Registered Agent: Elizabeth Miller

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Michael Kasper

CEQ Address: 1100 W 31st St., Suite 300, Downers Grove, 1L

Telephone Number: 630-942-7566

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant Applicant: DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.

] Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
[x] For-profit Corporation O Governmental
J Limited Liability Company J Sale Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

; APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-{ IN NUMER!C SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
' APPLICATION FORM. __ o e

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inguiries during the review period]

Name: Monica Hon

Title: Vice President

Company Name: Murer Consultants, Inc

Address: 58 N. Chicago St. 7th Floor, Joliet, IL 60432

Telephone Number; 815-727-3355

E-mail Address: mhon@murer.com

Fax Number: 815-727-3360

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Anne M. Murphy

Title: Sr. VP of Legal Attatrs and General Counset

Company Name: Rush Universitv Medical Center
Address: 1700 W, Van Buren St., Suite 301, Chicago, IL 60612
Telephone Number: 312-942-6886

E-mail Address: Anne_Murphy@rush.edu

Fax Number: 312-942-4233
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project ldentification

Facility Name: DuPage Medical Group, Medical Office Building

Street Address: 430 Warrenville Rd.

City and Zip Code: Lisle. 60532

County: DuPage Health Service Area HSA 7 Health Planning Area: A-05

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Rush University Medical Center

Address: 1725 W. Harrison St.. Suite 364. Chicaco. IL 60612

Name of Registered Agent: Anne M. Murphy, Sr. VP of Legal Affairs and General Counsel

Name of Chief Executive Officer; Larry J. Goodman, M.D.

CEO Address: 1725 W, Harrison St., Suite 364, Chicago. IL 60612

Telephone Number: 312-942-7073

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant Applicant: Rush University Medical Center
[x} Non-profit Corporation ™ Partnership

O For-profit Corporation O Governmental

| Limited Liability Company il Sole Proprietorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illineis certificate of good
standing.

o Parnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

AT =

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERJC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
' APPLICATION FORM. _ _ e e DA i

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all comespondence or inguiries during the review period]

Name: Monica Hon

Title: Vice President

Company Name: Murer Consuhants, Inc

Address: 58 N. Chicapo St. 7th Floor, Joliet, IL 60432

Telephone Number: 815-727-3355

E-mail Address: mhen{@murer.com

Fax Number: 815-727-3360

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit)

Name: Anne M. Murphy

Title: Sr. VP of Lezal Attairs and General Counsel

Company Name: Rush University Medical Center

Address: 1700 W. Van Buren St., Suite 301, Chicago, IL 60612

Telephone Number: 312-942-6886

E-mail Address: Anne_Murphy@rush.edu

Fax Number: 312-942-4233
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Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Michael Kasper

Title: CEQ

Company Name: DuPage Medical Grouo. LTD

Address: 1100 W. 31s1 St. Suite 300, Dewners Grove, [L 60515

Telephone Number: 630-942-7966

E-mail Address: Michael Kasper@DuPagemd.com

Fax Number: 630-790-9135

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site)

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: DMG Real Estate. LLC

Address of Site Owner: 1100 W. 31st St. Suite 300, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 430 Warrenville Rd, Lisle, 1L 60532
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an oplion to lease, a letter of intent to lease ora Iaase.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. .. . imei o o

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: DuPage Medical Group. Lid.

Address: 1100 W, 31st 81.. Suite 300, Downers Grove. LL 60515

O Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
Y| For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company d Sole Proprietorship dJ Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownership.

Te——— —= = =

L '.—
| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. p— .

Organizational Relationships

Provide {for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140}. If the related perscn or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution,

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -4 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL QRDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. .
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Flood Plain Reguirements
[Refer to application instructions. |

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloedmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement atlesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (hitp:/iwww.hfsrb.illinois.qov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPUCATICN FORM. _— e

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
|Refer to application instructions. |

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20{b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one cnly.]

O Substantive [J Part 1120 Not Applicable
g Category A Project
Category B Project

K] Non-substantive
[0 DHS or DVA Project
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2. Narrative Description
Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal

description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. (DMG]) is constructing a Medical Office Building (MOB) at 430 Warrenville Rd, Lisle, IL
60532. This MOB has been wholly financed, through cash and debt, by DMG which will also remain the owner of
the entire building. This is a non-substantive project in that it will, per the CON staff’s interpretation of 77 1ll. Adm,
Code § 1110.40, establish a clinical service area. Rush University Medical Center (RUMC) has been named a co-
applicant based on guidance from senior staff to the Health Facilities and Services Review Board.

This MOB, which will have a total area of 87,075 sq. ft., is intended to house the following:
(1} A linear accelerator which, including build out, will occupy 965 sq. ft. (1.1% of the total building);
{2) Radiation Oncology which will occupy 5,655 sq. ft. (6.5% of the total building};

(3) Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services, a Rush University Medical Center outpatient service, the
space for which shall constitute 12,927 sq. ft. (15% of the total building); and

(4} Other, nonclinical areas, including physician offices for primary, specialty, and immediate care, which shall
constitute 53,390 sg. ft. (61% of the total building).

Rush University Medical Center will lease space for the primary purpose of delivering the Chemotherapy and
Infusion Medical Services listed above. Rush intends to treat this leased space as a Provider-Based Clinic for
Medicare reimbursement purposes. Applicable guidelines for Provider-Based Clinic status allow this classification
for certain outpatient clinics located within 35 miles of a hospital.

As to the space in the MOB not leased to RUMC for Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services (approximately
85% of the total building), DMG will lease solely to physicians within DMG. Physician office space will constitute
approximately 32% of the total building. It is contemplated that, in the future, perhaps 1% to 5% of that physician
office space may be leased to physicians employed by RUMC on a timeshare basis.

The building will also house a linear accelerator. This equipment will be wholly financed, owned, and operated by
DMG.
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, denation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value {refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated

project cost.

If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of

health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.
Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $7.868.54 $12,471.46 $20,340.00
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $23,501.16 $37,248.84 $60,750.00
Site Preparation £198,020.60 $313,858.40 $511,879.00
Off Site Work $0
New Construction Contracts $10.461,790.01 $16,581,711.99 | $27,043,502.00
Modernization Contracts N/A
Contingencies $235,165.59 $372,732.41 $607,898.00
Architectural/Engineering Fees §£722,988.61 $1,145,921.39 $1.368,910.00
Consulting and Other Fees $415,610.84 $658,734.23 $1,074,345.07
gzifabétes;:r Other Equipment {not in construction $2.862,172.00 $0 $2.862.172.00
Bond Issuance Expense {project related) N/A
ey Expense During Consituction (project $85,107.09 $134,892.91 $220,000.00
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment N/A

Cther Costs To Be Capitalized $1,138,457.01 $2,089,725.99 $3.408,183
::ith;isition of Building or Other Property (excluding $696.330.75 $1.103,669.25 $1,800,000
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $16,562,456.31 $21,714,655.76 |  $39,477,979.07

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $6.761,363.48 $10,716,615.59 $17,477,979.07
Pledges N/A

Gifts and Bequests N/A

Bond Issues (project related) N/A
Mortgages $8.510.709.16 $13,489,290.84 | §22,000,000.00
Leases (fair market value) N/A
Governmental Appropriations N/A

Grants N/A

Other Funds and Sources N/A
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $15.272,072.64 $24.205,906.43 $39.477.979.07
NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMEN?J?"&IGUMEI;I‘C SEQ’UE::ITIAL ORDER AFTER :

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

LLand acquisition is related to project [x] Yes ] Ne
Purchase Price:  § 3,267,178
Fair Market Value: $ 3,000.000

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

x] Yes [] No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utitization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ ©

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[[J None or not applicable [ Preliminary

[1 Schematics [x] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): _12/1/2012

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[x] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[ Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

Ij Pro ect obhgatlon will occur after permnl issuance

"

I APPLICATION FORM. . R R

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
] Cancer Registry
(x] APORS
|Z| All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

[x] All reports regarding cutstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being

deemed incompliete.

State Agency submittals questions are not applicable to applicant DMG. They are applicable to co-applicant
Rush University Medical Center, Information pertaining to its submittals is included above,
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements pius the department's or area's portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

Gross Square Feet That Is:

Dept. / Area

Cost

Existing

Proposed

New
Const.

Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE
Medical Surgical

Intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiclogy

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-S, [N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Sce Attachment 9 for details on Cost Space Requirements
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization o1 APPLICABLE

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the inventory wilt result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: CITY:

REPCRTING PERIOD DATES: From: to:

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care

Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ({identify)

TOTALS:
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are;

0 in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

0 inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a parntnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

0 inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a scle proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

/% P~ Ny

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

Michael Kasper Dennis Fine

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarnization: Notarization:

Subscn g,and sw m to before me Subsgeri nd sworn to before me
this day of ?/01 L this ng&\y
b Qs Roda.. Som
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary

Seal Seal

OFFIGIAL SEAL

Q/{/V\_ﬂ,um_

Notary Public - State of lllinois

Notary Public - State of lllinois
My Commisston Expires Dec 26, 2015

My Commitssion Expires Dec 26, 2015

10
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s} are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its rmanagers or members (or the scle
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist),

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor,

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _Rush University Medical Center .
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the illinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

Loy O R

SIGNATURE ¥ SIGNATURE

Larry J. Goodman, M.D. Peter W. Butler

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Chief Executive Officer President, Chief Operating Officer
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarzation: Notarization:
SUKE_EEG and swomn to before me Subscribed and swom to before me
this day of . this day of A« .1 Lot -

e Signature of Notary .

OFFICIAL S ;

Seal CYNTHIA L. IRWIN Seal OFFICIAL SIIEQ;, N
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILUNOIS) m%f«" PTI?LLA; ST7E OF LUNDS
MY GOMMIBSION EXPRES 1117 - COMMISSION EXPIRES 11-17-2042'

*Insert EXACT'1E0al name of the applicant Rt

11
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NOT APPLICABLE
SECTION Il. DISCONTINUATION

This Section is applicable to any project that involves discontinuation of a health care facility or a category
of service. NOTE: If the project is solely for discontinuation and if there is no project cost, the remaining
Sections of the application are not applicable.

Criterion 1110.130 - Discontinuation

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS
1. Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that is to be discontinued.
2. ldentify all of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.
3. Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
4. Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and equipment after the discontinuation accurs.

5. Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical records pentaining to the services
being discontinued, and the length of time the records will be maintained.

6. For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, cerification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
guestionnaires, capital expenditures surveys, etc.) wili be provided through the date of
discontinuation, and that the required information will be submitted no later than 80 days following
the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for the
proposed action. See criterion 1110.130(b) for examples.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

1. Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will not have an adverse
effect upon access to care for residents of the facility’s market area.

2. Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or approved
health care facilities (that provide the same services as those being discontinued) located within
45 minutes travel time of the applicant facitity.

3. Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or health care facilities
located within 45 minutes travel time, that indicate the extent to which the applicant’s workload
will be absorbed without conditions, limitations or discrimination.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-10, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION lll - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

4. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or ocperated by the applicant, including licensing, and cerfification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned andfor operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access (o any decuments necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for pemit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted infermation, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will pravide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need tc be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4 Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previcusly referenced issues, as well as the population's
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects invelving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records,

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Agency Report.

APPEND DOCUNMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

13
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ALTERNATIVES
1) Identity ALL of the alternatives te the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with ane or more providers or

entities to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes, developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the thosen altemative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion} and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE |DENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified cutcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

14
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SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies,

b. The existing facility'’s physical configuration has constraints or impegiments and requires an
architectural design that resulls in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

-r T —— - B ——— —

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utitization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPTJ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
APPLICATION FORM. L
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: NOT APPLICABLE
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into cperation.

— - rp— r———

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-16, [N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

ASSURANCES:

Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardiess of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2, The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

This project does not involve any unfinished or shell space. Therefore, the applicants have not
included an assurance that existing shell space will be used as it is not pertinent.

16
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SECTION V. - MASTER DESIGN AND RELATED PROJECTS NOT APPLICABLE
This Section is applicable only to proposed master design and related projects.
Criterion 1110.235(a) - System impact of Master Design

Read the criterion and provide documentation that addresses the following:

1. The availability of alternative health care facilities within the planning area and the impact that the
proposed project and subsequent related projects will have on the utilization of such facilities;

2. How the services proposed in future projects wili improve access to planning area residents;

3. What the potential impact upon planning area residents would be if the proposed services were
not replaced or developed; and

4. The anticipated role of the facility in the delivery system including anticipated patterns of patient
referral, any contractual or referral agreements between the applicant and other providers that will
result in the transfer of patients to the applicant's facility.

Criterion 1110.235(b) - Master Plan or Related Future Projects

Read the criterion and provide documentation regarding the need for all beds and services to be
developed, and alsc, document the improvement in access for each service proposed. Provide the
following:

1. The anticipated completion date(s) for the future construction or modernization projects; and

2. Evidence that the proposed number of beds and services is consistent with the need assessment
provisions of Part 1100; or documentation that the need for the proposed number of beds and
services is justified due to such factors, but not limited to:

a. limitation on government funded or charity patients that are expected to continue;

b. restrictive admission policies of existing planning area health care facilities that are
expected to continue,

c. the planning area population is projected te exhibit indicators of medical care problems
such as average family income below poverty levels or projected high infant mortality.

3. Evidence that the proposed beds and services will meet or exceed the utilization targets
established in Part 1100 within two years after completion of the future construction of
modernization project(s), based upon:

historical service/beds utilization levels;
projected trends in utilization (include the raticnale and projection assumptions used in such
projections);
anticipated market factors such as referral patterns or changes in population characteristics
(age, density, wellness) that would supponrt utilization projections; and
anticipated changes in delivery of the service due to changes in technology, care delivery
techniques or physician availability that would support the projected utilization levels.

a0
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Criterion 1110.235(c) - Relationship to Previously Approved Master Design Projects

READ THE CRITERION which requires that projects submitted pursuant to a master design permit are
consistent with the approved master design project. Provide the following documentatian:

1.

Schematic architectural plans for all construction or maodification approved in the master design
permit;

The estimated project cost for the proposed projects and alsc for the total
construction/modification projects approved in the master design permit;

An item by item comparison of the construction elements (i.e. site, number of buildings, number
of floors, ete.) in the proposed project to the approved master design project; and

A comparison of proposed beds and services to those approved under the master design permit.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-18, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION VI - MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS/CHANGES OF

OWNERSHIP

NOT APPLICABLE

This Section is applicable to projects involving merger, consclidation or acquisition/change of ownership.

NOTE: For all projects involving a change of ownership THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENT must be
submitted with the application for permit. The transaction document must be signed dated and
contain the appropriate contingency language.

A. Criterion 1110.240{b}), Impact Statement
Read the criterion and provide an impact statement that contains the following information:

PWN -

5.

Any change in the number of beds or services currently offered.

Who the operating entity will be.

The reason for the transaction.

Any anticipated additions or reductions in employaes now and for the {wo years following
completion of the transaction.

A cost-benefit analysis for the proposed transaction.

B. Criterion 1110.240(c), Access
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1.
2.
3

The current admission pelicies for the facilities involved in the proposed transaction.

The proposed admission policies for the facilities.

A letter from the CEDQ certifying that the admission policies of the facilities involved will
not become more restrictive.

C. Criterion 1110.240(d), Health Care System
Read the criterion and address the following:

1.
2.

ok

~No

Explain what the impact of the proposed transaction will be on the other area providers,
List all of the facilities within the applicant's health care system and provide the following
for each facility.

a. the location (town and street address);

b. the number of beds;

c. a list of services; and

d. the utilization figures for each of those services for the last 12 month period.

Provide copies of all present and proposed referral agreements for the facilities involved
in this transaction.

Provide time and distance information for the proposed referrals within the system.
Explain the organization policy regarding the use of the care system providers over area
providers,

Explain how duplication of services within the care system will be resolved.

Indicate what services the proposed project will make available to the community that are
not now available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13, [N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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R. Criterion 1110.3030 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
Categories of Service must submit the following information:
2, Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action{s):
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms
Radiation Therapy 0 1
(] Infusion Therapy N/A N/A
3 READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:
PROJECT TYPE REQUIRED REVIEW CRITERIA
New Services or Facility or Equipment {b) - Need Determination -
Establishment
Service Modernization ()1} - Deteriorated Facilities
and/or
{c}(2) ~ Necessary Expansion
PLUS
(C)(3NA) - Utilization - Major Medical
Equipment
Or
(c)(3)(B) - Utilization - Service or Facility
! APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT—:!T, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s« Section 1120.120 Availabiiity of Funds — Review Criteria
+  Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria
¢ Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection {a)

VIII. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$17.477.979.07 a) Cash and Securities — statements {e.g., audited financal statements, letlers from financial
ST institutions, board resolutions) as fo:

1} the amount of cash and securities availabie for the project, induding the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be eamed on depreciation account funds or to be eamed on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollzr amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time table of receipts:

$272 000,000 d} Debt - a statemeni of the estimated terms and conditions {inciuding the debt time period, variable
i or permanent interest rates over the debt time pericd, and the anticipated repayment schedute) for
any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) Far general obligation bands, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting

anticipated,

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3 For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation

of making the Joar in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipaled
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloen payments, etc;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option ta lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

e) Govemmental Appropriations — 2 copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the govemmental unit. if funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resclution or other action of the governmental
unit attesting to this intent;

j] Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$39.477.979.07 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT=33, 1N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
_APPLICATION FORM. . ' R x Rz

Note: See Attachment 39 for statement describing how co-applicant Rush is not previding any funding for the project.
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I1X. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:
. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources
2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is ingured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent
3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance hond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.,

See Section 1120.130 Financizal Waiver for information to be provided
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or ce-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Provide Data for Proje-cts Classified h Category A or Category B (last three years) B bategory B )
. . .
as: {Projected)
Enter Historical andfor Projected
Years:
i . — See Note Below Referring to Attachment 41
Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hapd

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets ulilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate tabla for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal respensibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE ~
APPLICATION FORM. Co .

Note: See Attachment 41 for viability ratios as well as data and methodology relevant to
determining viability ratios. See Attachment 40 for documentation of Rush University
Medical Center's Bond Rating.
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Note: See Attachment 39 and 40

X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility regarding Rush’s non-

involvement in financing of

This section is applicable tc ail projects subject to Part 1120. project and its Bond Rating.

A. Reascnableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

Y

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in totat with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrawing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and eguivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for ali other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

H

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due te such tenns as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves {in total or in part} the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less castly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C 0 E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Fi. Gross 5q. Ft. Const. § Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Moed. Circ.* {(AxC) (BxE) {(G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs {in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilizatien but no more than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 42, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Xl Safety Net Impact Statement NOT APPLICABLE

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project’s material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system {o cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include afl of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a cerlification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant, The
amount calcufated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reperting requirements for charity ¢are reporting in the
llinois Community Benefits Act. Nan-haspital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodoiogy specified by ihe Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a cerlification of the amourt of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported gach year to the {llinois
Department of Pubtic Health regarding “Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source™ and "inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source" as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annua! Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net senvices, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients} Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient
Cutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Yoar Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total

24




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Medicaid (revenue)

Inpatient
QOutpatient

Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-43, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE QF THE
i APPLICATION FORM.

XL Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2, If the applicant owns or aperates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lllingis. If
charity care costs are reported on a consalidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3 If the applrcant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of ils second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3260/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44,

CHARITY CARE
Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care {charges)
Cuost of Charity Care

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-44, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
I APPLICATION FORM.

MY L T s s T o G - e s o T

Note: Charity information for co-applicant Rush is included in Attachment 44, along with
the relevant documentation.
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SECTION [ — IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

Co-Applicont

Rush University Medical Center is a co-applicant. It is a non-profit corporation.

Certificates of Gaod Standing

Per the requirements listed on page 1 of the application, Illinois Certificates of Good Standing are
included in this Attachment for;

¢ DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.

¢ Rush University Medical Center

Attachment 1
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File Number 4887-921-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

DU PAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED -
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 22, 1968, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE
RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Ilinois, this 3RD

day.of MAY AD.- 2012

NG Ry
o PN ‘
X S ! ’
Authentication #: 1212401668 M

Authenlicals at: hitp:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0200-214-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 21, 1883, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, (S IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINQIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I kereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Minois, this 1STH
dayof  DECEMBER AD. 2011

ecae Wik zts

SECAETARY OF STATE

Avthenticats al; http:iwww.cyberdrivellinols.com
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SECTION 1 - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Site Ownership

The site, 430 Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532 is owned by DMG Real Estate, LLC, which is in turn wholly
owned by DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. (see Attachment 4).

in order to demonstrate ownership of the site, applicant DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. has included a
copy of:

s Attachment 2-Exhibit 1, The Term Sheet for a loan between DMG Real Estate, LLC and a
syndicate of lenders. This loan was arranged and Bank of America, N.A. which is also included in
the syndicate of lenders. DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. is listed as a guarantor of the loan (page 1}
and the site is used as collateral (page 4), thus demonstrating DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.’s
ownership of the site. It has been signed on behalf of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. by Mike
Pacetti, CFO (page 8).

e Attachment 2-Exhibit 2, The [ease between DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Rush University
Medical Center for the leasing of 12,927 sq. ft. of space at DMG's Medical Office Building at 430
Warrenville Road, Lisle, IL 60532 (page 1). This lease is signed by Dennis Fine, COO of DuPage
Medical Group, Ltd. and Dr. Larry Goodman, CEO of Rush University Medical Center (page 22).

It should be noted again that co-applicant Rush University Medical Center does not have any
ownership interest in the site whatsoever, Likewise, it did not assist in financing the acquisition of the
land or construction of the building. Its only interest in the property is as a tenant for a portion of the
space in the building as described above.

Attachment 2
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Attachment 2-Exhibit 1

Term Sheet for Construction Loan

Note: Some portions of this Term Sheet have been redacted. The portions redacted are those
that provide specific terms regarding interest rates or fees. This information is considered
proprietary and confidential. Furthermore, this information is not necessary for the purpose
intended by inclusion of this document in the CON submission, i.e. demonstrating DuPage
Medical Group’s ownership of the property.

.30 Attachment 2- Exhibit 1




Attachment 2-Exhibit 1
Term Sheet for Construction Loan

BankofAmerica 23>
Merrill Lynch
TERM SHEET PROPOSAL
DMG Real Estate, LLC
October 17, 2011

This Term Sheet Proposal is presented for discussion purposes only, and replaces the Proposal
dated August 3, 2011. It is not a commitment to lend by Bank of America or any of its affillates. Bank
of America may withdraw or amend it at any time in its sole discretion. I Bank of America does
extend a loan commitment, the actual terms and conditions (including pricing and financlal
covenants) will be subject to completion of due diligence, Bank of America’s credit and
documentation standards, necessary credit approval, market conditions and other considerations
determined by Bank of America In its sole discretion.

BORROWER: DMG Real Estate, LLC (the "Borrower”).

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT Bank of America, N.A. (the *Administrative Agent,” "Arranger” or “BANA") will

& ARRANGER: act as sole and exclusive administrative agent and arranger.

LENDERS: A syndicate of financial institutions (including BANA), arranged by the
Administrative Agent and acceptable to the Borrower and BANA.

GUARANTOR: Unlimited guaranty of payment of Du Page Medica! Group, Ltd. ("DMG")

CREDIT FACILITY: Construction-to-Permanent Term Loan Facility (“Credit Facility”) consisting of

an initial Construction Loan ("Construction Loan”) and a subsequent
permanent Term Loan (*Term Loan”).

CREDIT FACILITY The lesser of.
AMOUNT: (i) $22,000,000; or
(i) 70% of the Fair Market Value of the Property, as evidenced by a
satisfactory as-completed appraisal performed by the Bank.

BANA SHARE/ BANA will hold up to $11,220,000 or 51% of the Credit Facility.
PARTICIPATION:
On a best efforts basis, BANA will pursue a participation(s) in the facility for up
to $10,780,000 or 49% of the Credit Facility.

“BEST EFFORTS" BANA will use its best efforts to form a syndicate of financial institutions

SYNDICATION (“Lenders”) for the Credit Facility, based on the indicative terms and conditions
contained herein. This Proposal repraesents our current view of where a
transaction such as this would clear the market, but are subject to change.

The Borrower agrees to actively assist BANA in achieving a successful
syndication of the Facility. To assist BANA in its syndication efforts, the
Borrower agrees to: (i) provide, and cause its advisors to provide, BANA and
each other Lender that becomes part of the syndicate of financial institutions
upon reguest with all information reasonably deemed necessary by BANA to
complete the syndicate; (if) assist BANA upon reasonable request in the
preparation of marketing materials to be used in connection with the
syndication of the Fagcility; and (iii) otherwise assist BANA In Its syndication
efforts, including making available officers and advisors of the
Borrower/Guarantor and its affiliates and subsidiaries from time to time to
attend and make presentations regarding the business and prospects of the
Borrower/Guarantor and at a mesting or meetings of prospective syndicate
members.

3\ Attachment 2- Exhibit 1
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MARKET FLEX

CLEAR MARKET
PROVISION:

PURPOSE:

MATURITY:

CLOSING DATE:

INTEREST RATE:

INTEREST
CALCULATION

INTEREST RATE
PROTECTION

UPFRONT FEE:

ARRANGER FEE:

AGENCY FEE:

I tela MAnctnrtian

BankofAmerica %%

Merrill Lynch

The Borrower will cooperate with BANA's recommendations to change the
structure or terms (including pricing} of the Credit Facllity, if BANA determines
that such changes will be necessary in order to ensure a successful
syndication of an optimal credit structure of the Credit Facility. Such change to
structure, terms or amount may occur before or after initial close of the Credit
Facility. If the Borrower withholds consent, BANA or the Borrower may
terminate any commitments that may have been issued and any further
discussions or efforts with respect to the Credit Facility. The Borrower shall
remain liable for all costs actually incurred during the negotiation, preparation,
execution and syndication of the Credit Facility whether or not such Credit
Facility closes.

From the date of acceptance of this Proposal and continuing until execution
and delivery of the Credit Facility, there shall be no competing offering,
placement or arrangement of any debt securities or bank financing by or on
behalf of the Borrower/Guarantor. The Borrower will immediately notify BANA
if any such transaction is contemplated.

The proceeds of the Credit Facility shall be used for the construction and
permanent financing of an approximate 100,000 sq. ft. medical office building
in Lisle, iL {the “Property™).

+ Construction Loan: 12 months from Closing Date
* Term Loan:; 5 years from Term Loan Conversion.

Targeted December 31, 2011

e Term Loan: LIBOR
The I s+ be renewed upon the expiration of the
initial interest period for a like tenor, or other tenor as agreed to by the Bank,
and the rate adjusted to the applicabledin effect at the time
of such renewal.

All calculations of interest and fees shall be made on the basis of actual
number of days elapsed in a 360-day year.

The Borrower shall enter into interest protection agreements acceptable to
BANA for up to 50% of the princlpal amount of the Credit Facility for a term no
less than 3 years, within 60 days of Term Loan Converslon. The terms of such
interest rate swap shall be governed by the standard ISDA Master Agresment
and related documentation.

- payable at closing to Lenders based on their pro rata share.
- payable at closing to Arranger.
- payable annually to Administrative Agent.
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CONSTRUCTION LOAN The Borrower may request disbursements up to the Credit Facility Amount.
DISBURSEMENTS: Conditions to each disbursement will be usual and customary for transactions
of this type, including, without limitation: (i} all representations and warranties
are true and correct as of the date of each loan, and (ii) no event of default has
occurred or is continuing under the Credit Facility or would result from such

loan.

Conditions applicable to construction disbursements include, but are not
limited to, the following:

+ The Credit Facility shall be subject to the receipt, review, and
acceptance of the plans and specs of the proposed project by BANA's
Commercial Banking Construction ("CBC") Division and an outside
consultant hired by the Bank to perform a Front End Plan and Cost
Review. This cost is paid by the Borrower. The Bank shall provide a
checklist of all construction related documents and permits required for
closing.

¢ The Credit Facility shall be further subject to approval of the contractor
and the contract for the proposed project by BANA's CBC Division.

+ Construction costs and disbursements shall be administered by BANA’s
CBC Division during the construction phase.

» Each Construction Loan disbursement will be evidenced by a monthly
inspection plus a cost review by BANA's construction monitoring
consultant, which will be paid for by the Borrower.

« The Borrower's equity in the construction draws shall be determined
based on formation of current equity in the Property and formal credit
approval, and either;

(i} Shared with each draw; or
(i) Lump sum upfront

TERM LOAN The Construction Loan shall convert to a Term Loan (“Term Loan
CONVERSION: Conversion™}, subject to satisfaction of usual and customary conditions for
transactions of this type, including but not limited to:
» Final Construction Loan disbursement
Construction completion on the Property
Confirmation of waiver of all mechanic’s lien claims
Delivery of ALTA Loan policy
Delivery of permanent insurance
Delivery of certificate of o¢cupancy
Execution of all applicable Property leases
Confirmation that no judgments or tax liens exist on either the Property
or the Borrower.

. & 5 2 @

REPAYMENT: The Credit Facility shall be subject to monthly interest payments.

The Term Loan shall be subject to equal monthly installments of principal
based on a 20-year amortization schedule.

PREPAYMENTS: The Borrower may prepay any variable rate loan under the Credit Facility in
whole or in part at any time without penalty, except for reimbursement of
BANA's breakage and redeployment costs in the case of prepayment of
LIBOR based borrowings.
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REAL ESTATE A firgt priority mortgage on real property commonly known as 430 Wamenvillg
COLLATERAL: Road located in Lisle, Du Page County, lllinois. Any existing leases on the real

property shall not contain any right to purchase the property or any right of first
refusal unless such rights are subordinated to BANA's lien in a manner
satisfactory to the Bank. At BANA's request, Borrower shall provide the Bank
with a complete copy of any existing lease on the real property.

Such lien on the real property shall be subject to such terms and conditions as
the Bank may reasonably impose including, but not limited to, a loan to value
ratio not to exceed 70%, an appraisal {to be ordered by Bank of America),
instrument survey, title insurance (with all required endorsements) and
environmental Phase | survey (to be completed by Borrower), all of which shall
be acceptable to Bank of America and its counsel.

The foregoing security shall also secure any liabilities of Borrower to the Bank
arising under any interest rate swap/foreign currency swap or other hedging

arrangement,
CONDITIONS The closing (and the initial funding) of the Credit Facility will be subject to
PRECEDENT: satistaction of the conditions precedent deemed appropriate for transactions of

this type including, but not limited to, the following:

(i) The negotiation, execution and delivery of definitive documentation for
the Credit Facility satisfactory to Bank of America, which shall include,
without being limited to satisfactory opinions of counse! to the Borrower
and Guarantor and such other customary closing decuments as Bank of
Amarica shall reasonably request.

() Therg shall not have occurred a material adverse change in the
business, assets, liabilities (actual or contingent), operations, condition
{financial or otherwise) or prospects of the Borrower and Guarantor
taken as a whole or in the facts and information regarding such entities
as represented to date.

(i) The absence of any action, suit, investigation or proceeding pending or
threatened in any court or before any arbitrator or governmental
authority that purports (a) to materially and adversely afiect the
Borrower or Guarantor, or (b) to affect any transaction contemplated
hereby or the ability of the Borrower or the Guarantor to perforn their
respective obligations under the documentation for the Credit Fagility.

(iv) Additional due diligence on the Property consistent with transactions of
this type, including, but not limited to, as-completed appraisal of the
Property, environmental due diligence, evidence of all required
insurance, satisfactory title insurance, and review of the construction
and architect contracts and documents by BANA's CBC Division and
the outside consultant hired by the Bank.

(v) Payment of all fees and expenses then due and payable.

{vi) Receipt of items as listed on Exhibit A.

RELATIONSHIP: DMG shall maintain BANA as its principal depository bank, including for the

maintenance of business, cash management, operating and administrative
deposit accounts,
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REPRESENTATIONS Usual and customary for transactions of this type, to include, without limitation:
AND WARRANTIES: () due organization, valid existence and good standing (i) due

authorization/enforceability; (iil) correctness of specified financial statements
and no material adverse change; (iv) binding effect and enforceability of loan
documents; (v) no liens or encumbrances other than as disclosed to Bank of
America; (vi) compliance with environmental laws; (vii) no materlal litigation;
(viii) payment of taxes. .

COVENANTS: Usual and customary for transactions of this type, to include, without limitation:
(} due organization, valid existence and good standing (i) duse
authorization/enforceabllity; (iil) correctness of specified financial statements
and no material adverse change; (iv) binding effect and enforceabllity of loan
documesnts; {v) no liens or encumbrances other than as disclosed to Bank of
America; {vi) compliance with environmental laws; (vi) no material litigation;
and (viii) payment of taxes.

The Borrower may be required to obtain a payment and performance bond for
the general contractor, subject to BANA's review of the contractor's AlIA
Statement of Qualifications and financial statements.

FINANCIAL Financial covenants of the Borrower will include:

COVENANTS:
+ Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio {“DSCR™ of 1.20x, measured
quarterly and calculated on a three-months basis.

DSCR shall be defined as the ratio of (@) Cash Flow to {b) the sum of
scheduled principal and interest payments on all long-term debt.

"Cash Flow" is defined as (a) net income, after income tax, {(b) less
income or plus loss from discontinued operations and extraordinary
items, {c) plus depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges,
{d} plus interest expense on all obligations, and (8) minus dividends,
withdrawals, and other distributions.

Financial covenants of the Guarantor will include:

Financial covenants and definitions for the Guarantor will be consistent with
those contained in the Loan Agreement between BANA and DMG dated

12/31/2010, as follows:

e Minimum Tangible Net Worth of $40,000,000 + 50% of net income after
12/31/2009, tested quanterly on a year-to-date basis.

* Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.50x, tested quarterly on a
trailing 12-months basis.

*  Maximum Senior Debt/EBITDA of 3.50x, tested quarterly on LTM basis

¢ Minimum Fixed Charge Coverage of 1.10x, tested quarterly on a trailing
12-months basis.
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* Maximum unfunded capital expenditures in any fiscal year, tested
quarterly on a year-to-date basis, of:
» $15,000,000 for fiscal year ended 12/31/2011
» $20,000,000 for fiscal years ended 12/31/2012 and thereafter

¢ Maximum aggregate rental paymenis under operating leases in any
fiscal year, tasted quarterly on a year-to-date basis, of:
» $25,000,000 for fiscal year ended 12/31/2011
» $30,000,000 for fiscal years ended 12/31/2012 and thereafter

REPORTING Financial reporting from the Borrower will include:
REQUIREMENTS:
Pror to Term Loan Conversion:

¢ Project reporting as required by BANA's CBC Division.

« Copy of any executed lease(s) on the Property, as well as any future
amendments and/or modifications

Alter Term Loan conversion:
» Quarterly financial statements of the Borrower within 45 days of quarter
end (including the fourth fiscal quarter of each year), certified and dated
by the Borrower’s authorized financial officer

* Annual rent roll for the Borrower and the Preperty within 45 days of year
end

Financial reporting from the Guarantor will include:

Financial reporting for the Guarantor will be consistent with that outlined in the
Loan Agreement between BANA and DMG dated 12/31/2010, as follows:

e Annual audited consolidated financial statements within 120 days of
FYE, centified and dated by DMG authorized financial officer

* Quarterly consolidated financial statements within 45 days of quarter end
{including the fourth fiscal quarter of each year), certifled and dated by
DMG authorized financial officer

e Annual consclidated budget within 60 days of commencement of each
fiscal year, certified by CFO

* Quarterly compliance certificate within 45 days of each quarter end,
signed by authorized financial officer showing calculations of financial
covenants

¢ Monthly summary A/R aging by payor class, within 30 days of month end
In addition, reporting will include the following:

* Any other information from the Guarantor and/or Borrower as the Bank
shall reasonably request.
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EVENTS OF DEFAULT: Usual and customary in transactions of this type, to include without limitation:
(i) nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts; (ii) violation of
covenants; (iii) inaccuracy of representations and warranties; (iv) cross-default
to other material agreements and indebtedness; (v} bankruptcy and other
insolvency events; (vi) creditor or forfeiture proceedings; {(vii} actual or
asserted invalidity of any loan documentation or security interests; (viii)
material events affecting guarantor; (ix} change in control and (x) material

adverse change.
GOVERNING State of llinois. Any dispute arising out of or related to this letter or the final
LAW/ARBITRATION: loan documentation shall be dstermined by binding arbitration in accordance

with the Federa! Arbitration Act. All arbitration proceedings shall be conducted
through the American Arbitration Association (an independent, alternative
dispute resolution service).

EXPENSES: Borrower will pay all reasonable costs and expenses associated with the
preparation, due diligence, administration and enforcement of all
documentation executed in connection with the Credit Facllity, whether or not
the fvan closes, including, without limitation:

* BANA's aﬂow {including the allocated cost of internal counssl),
estimated at

s Applicable construction-related administration fees, including but not
limited to: appraisal(s), cost analysis, site inspection, title, environmental
review, flood centification and, if applicable, contractor payment and

performance bond.
CREDIT PROCESS The credit process will take 15 business days from the point at which BANA is
TIMEFRAME: officially awarded the fransaction and has in its possession all materals

necessary to undertake a full credit analysis.

EXPIRATION OF TERMS  Unless rescinded earlier, consideration of a financing based on the terms and
AND CONDITIONS conditions presented in thls term sheet shall automatically expire 30 days from

the date hereof.

BANA reserves the right to terminate, reduce or otherwise amend its
commitment if the subject transaction is not closed within 90 days of the
receipt of a signed term sheet

This Term Sheet Proposal contains confidential and proprietary loan structuring and pricing information.
Except for disclosure on a confidential basis to your accountants, attornays and other professional advisors
retained by you in connection with the credit facilities contained in this Term Shest Proposal or as may be
requirad by law, the contents of the Term Sheet Proposal may not be disclpsed in whole or in part to any
other person or entity without our prior written consent, provided that nothing herein shall restrict disclosure of
information relating to the lax structure or tax treatment of the proposed credit facilities.
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AGREEMENT BY THE
BORROWER:

Lisle Canstruction
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The Borrower hereby agrees to engage BANA to provide the Credit Facility
which s the subject hereof, pursuant to the terms and conditions stated herein.

Please evidence your acceptance of the foregoing by signing and retuming a
copy of the document to BANA.

Accepted and Agreed to:

By:_:%,/ (/ E ": Date: /?//7’/2“’ L/
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Exhiblt A

* Satisfactory ALTA Survey — Signed, sealed and certified to Lender, Title Company and
Borrower

* Detailed project construction cost breakdown from the contractor including an itemization and
schedule of disbursements

® Sets of detailed construction plans and specifications for all architectural, structural, mechanical,
plumbing, electrical, site development (on and off-site) and other work for or in connection with
the Improvements which have been approved by the municipality

e Fully executed copies of Borrowers’ construction, architectural and engineering contracts

regarding the Improvements

Project description of improvements

Construction schedule (provided by the contractor — usually a bar chart)

Architect and/or Engineer list of permits required and site development permit status data

Insurance — Fire, all-risk replacement cost coverage, builder’s risk, Contractor’s liability,

Borrower Liability and flood insurance if project is in a flood zone

Satisfactory Soil Report with recommendations

Satisfactory Environmental information

Zoning and concurrency letter

Utlity availability letters (should also state that capacity is available and appropriate

for this project

Title commitment

¢ True and correct copies of valid building permit for the Improvements and all other
applicable permits, licenses and approvals necessary for construction.

* Performmance and Payment bonds (Unconditional) for each original construction
contractor (and any material subcontractor as required by Lender) naming Lender as an
additional cbligee and in amount, form and content, and issued by sureties, satisfactory to
Lender and in compliance with applicable law.

The above list is provided for informational purposes only.

A more detailed and all inclusive listing of the construction requirements will be included in
the Construction Loan Agreement and related loan documentation.

31 Attachment 2- Exhibit 1

Lisle Construction




Borrower Indemnification Letter

Onthis; 1 day of e oot ~ 20/, DMGRealEstate, ILC __ (the
"Borrower") wishes to induce Bank of America, (the "Bank") to waive its right to retain sole possession
of the appraisal report (the "Appraisal”), prepared by CB Richard Ellis (the "Appraiser”) with
respect to the property consisting of __DuPage Medical MOB as of the date of the Appraisal, and

located at 1807 S. Highland Ave., Lombard, DuPage County, IL. _ (collectively the "Property”).

In consideration of the Bank's agreement to deliver a copy of the Appraisal to the Borrower, the Borrower
hereby agrees with the Bank and acknowledges to the Bank, the following:

(a) As of the date hereof, the Bank
(i)  does not represent that the presumptions or opinions in the Appraisal are relevant or accurate;
(ii) does not represent that the appraisal has been or has not been approved by the Bank;

(ii1) does not represent that the Bank endorses or does not endorse the opinions set forth in the
Appraisal and;
(iv) is transmitting the Appraisal to the Borrower without representation or warranty.

(b) The Borrower will hold the Appraisal in confidence and will not distribute it to any other person or
entity, except its employees, agents, attorneys, consultants, or unless compelled by law or judicial
proceedings, without the Bank’s prior written consent.

(c) The Borrower will indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from and against, and reimburse it for, any
and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, causes of action, judgments, penalties, costs and
expenses of every kind, known or unknown, which may be imposed upon, asserted against, or
incurred or paid by the Bank at any time and from time to time, resulting from, in connection with, or
arising out of any transaction, act, omission, event or circumstance in any way connected with the
content or accuracy of the Appraisal, the Borrower’ use of the Appraisal, and subsequent use of the
Appraisal by any third party to whom the Borrower provides the Appraisal.

(d) The Borrower hereby waives any and all present and future claims, actions, causes of action, defenses
and/or counterclaims which it may now or hereafter assert against the Bank in connection with the
content or accuracy of the Appraisal, the Borrower’ use of the Appraisal, and subsequent use of the
Appraisal by any third party to whom the Borrower provides the Appraisal.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Bank" shall include, without limitation, its present, former and
future officers, directors, associates, agents, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors and assigns.
EXECUTED this {77 day of Cc fobe ~ 120./L.
BORROWER:

=227/

Name: “plichme ! 1/ R ce f~t—
Title: iy
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Lease Between
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and
Rush University Medical Center

Note: Some portions of this lease have been redacted. The portions redacted are those that
provide specific terms regarding monetary compensation {either rental fees or interest rates).
This information is considered proprietary and confidential. Furthermore, this information is
not necessary for the purpose intended by inclusion of this document in the CON submission,
i.e. demonstrating DuPage Medical Group’s ownership of the property on which this project is

located.
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LEASE

This lease (the "Lease”) made and entered into as of October 12, 2011, constitutes an Agreement
by and between DuPage Medical Group, LTD (the "Landlord"), and Rush University Medical
Center, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation located at 1653 West Congress Parkway, Chicago,
IL 60612 {the "Tenant"),

WHEREAS, Landlord, Tenant, Rush System for Health and Rush Health are parties to
that certain Affiliation Agreement dated October 12, 2011, (the “Affiliation Agreement”)
pursuant to which the parties have agrecd to collaborate to provide accessible, high quality, cost-
effective health care services to promote the general public health and improve the health status
of citizens living in the communities serviced by Landlord and Tenant;

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant are parties fo that certain Master Clinical
Collaboration Agreement (the “Master Collaboration Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties
set forth the framework for their various clinical collaborations, and the terms of which are

specifically incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant are parties to a Cancer Center Collaboration
Agreement pursuant to which the parties set forth the framework for collaboration in the
development of a cancer treatment center (the “Cancer Center”), and the terms of which are
specifically incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, Landlord intends to construct and own a building focated at 430 Warrenville
Road in Lisle, Ilinois (the “Medical Office Building” or “M.0.B") in which the Cancer Center

will be located;

WHEREAS, Tenant intends to Jease space in the M.O.B. from Landlord to provide on-
site medical oncologists and surgeons and other health care professionals to support Landlord and
Tenant patients by providing comprehensive cancer treatment, including oncologic infusion
services (the “Infusion Services™); and

WHEREAS, the Infusion Services will be provided in designated space within the Cancer
Center (the “Infusion Center”) and the Infusion Center will be established as a satellite location of
Tenant, pursuant to rules and regulations applicable to Provider Based Clinics.

WHEREAS, Tenant desires to lease from Landlord, and Landlord desires to lease to
Tenant the Infusion Center,

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the partics

hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE I — The Demise

1.1  The Leased Premises: Landlord hereby leases to the Tenant that certain space known as the
Infusion Center being Suite 200 {the "Premises"), comprising approximately 12,927
rentable square feet of the Medical Office Building located at 430 Warrenville Road, Lisle,
llinois 60532. The Medical Office Building and surrounding land are collectively referred
to as the “Real Property.” The floor plan of the Premises is depicted on Exhibit A, attached
hereto and made a part hereof. The Premises comprises 14.55% of the Medical Office

Building,
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1.2 Use of Premises: The Premises shall at all times during the Term be used and occupied by

13

Tenant, its sublessees, assignees, agents and employees only as medical offices for licensed
physicians ("Physicians") to engage in the private practice of medicine solely limited to the
provigion of chemotherapy and infusion medical services and other related activities solely
incidental thereto; except the provision or operation of ancillary medical care services and
facilities described in paragraph 24 of the Rules and Regulations (Exhibit B). Nothing in
this Section 1.2 or elsewhere in this Lease requires or shall require any Physician or any
person associated with a Physician to refer any patient to or order or purchase any item of
service from Tenant, Landlord or any of their affiliates.

The medical practice ("Practice™) conducted upon the Premises shall at all times be
conducted under the supervision and authority of a Physician.

Tenant shall act in accordance with and not violate any restrictions or covenants of record
affecting the Premises or the M.O.B. Landlord shall inform Tenant in writing of any such
restrictions or covenants, Tenant shall not use or occupy the Premises in violabon of law or
of the certificate of occupancy issued to the M.O.B. of which the Premises are a part, and
shall immediately discontiue any use of the Premises which is declared by any
governmental authority having jurisdiction to be a violation of any law, code, governmental
regulation or a violation of said certificate of occupancy. Tenant shall comply with any
direction of any governmental authority having jurisdiction which shall, by reason of the
nature of Tenant's use or occupancy of the Premises, impose any duty upon Tenant with
respect to the use or occupancy thereof.

Tenant shall not do nor permit to be done anything in the Premises which will invalidate or
increase the cost of any casvalty and extended coverage insurance policy covering the
M.O.B. and/or property located therein, and shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations
and requirements of the appropriate Fire Rating Bureau or any other organization
performing a similar function. Tenant shall promptly upon demand reimburse Landlord for
any additional premium charged for such policy by reason of Tenant's failure to comply
with the provisions of this paragraph. Tenant shall not do or permit anything to be done in,
on or about the Premises which would in any way unreasonably obstruct or interfere with
the rights of other tenants or occupants of the M.OB,, or use or allow the Premises to be
used for any unlawful purpose, nor shall Tenant maintain or permit any nuisance or commit
or suffer to be committed any waste in, on or about the Premises.

Exclusivity;

(a) During the Term, as defined herein, Landlord hereby agrees that it shall not lease
any space in the Medical Office Building to (i) a provider of oncologic infusion services,
(ii} a provider of any services which are competitive with those services provided under the
Master Coliaboration Agreement, or (iii) any hospital, health system, academic medical
center or “Affiliate™ thereof, as defined herein,

(b) During the Term Landlord hereby agrees that neither it nor any of its Affiliates
shall develop, acquire, Jease to or from or invest in new or existing oncologic infusion
services within its Service Area except for expansions of oncologic infusion services

developed with Tenant
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{c) Definitions: “Affiliate” shall mean, with respect to any Person, (i} any Person
directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person;
(ii} any Person owning or controlling, directly or indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of
the outstanding voting securities, equity interests, or membership intcrests (including such
interests in a not-for-profit organization), of such Person; (iii) any officer, director,
sharcholder, member, manager or parter of such Person; (iv) any company in which such
Person is an officer, director, member, manager or partner. “Person™ shall mean any
individual, partnership, corporation, trust, limited Lability company, association, joint
venture, investment fund, joint stock company, organization, business, trust or any other
entity or organization, including a government or any department, agency or political
subdivision thereof. “Service Area” shall mean (i) Cook, DuPage and Will Countics in
Illinois and (ii} within a 15 mile radius of any cancer treatment center sites established
between Landlord and Tenant outside of such counties.

(d) If any court of competent jurisdiction shall at any time deem any particular
restrictive covenant contained in this Section 1.3 unreasonable, the other provisions of this
Section 1.3 shall nevertheless stand, the duration of the exclusivity (i.e. the “Term”) shall
be deemed fo be the longest period permissible by law under the circumstances and the
Service Area shall be deemed to comprise the largest territory permissible by law under the
circumstances, as determined by the court in each case,

(e) if the event the Cancer Collaboration Agreement between the Landlord and
Tenant is terminated for any reason, the parties shall, within six (6) months of the
termination of the Cancer Collaboration Agreement, meet and confer in good faith to
determine whether this Lease should also be terminated and the terms of any such
termination. Any decision to terminate the Lease must be agreed to by both Landlord and

Tenant.

Environmental Matters Tenant shall not cause the release or disposal of any hazardous
substances, wastes or materials, or any medical, spccial or infectious wastes, on or about
the Premises or the M.O.B. of which they arc a part if such release or disposal is_in
violation of applicable laws and Tenant shall be solely responsible for and shall promptly
pay the cost of removing all such hazardous substances, wastes and materials and any
medical special and infectious waste from the Premises, which removal shall be in
accordance with all applicable governmental requirements. Hazardous substances, wastes
or materials shall include those which are defined in the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, the Clean Air Act, the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 and; the Toxic Substances Control Act (including
any amendments or extensions thereof and any rules, regulations, standards or guidelines
issucd pursuant to any such laws); and medical, special or infectious wastes, including
those which are defined pursuant to the medical waste regulations which have been
promulgated by the state in which the Premises are located, and as further set forth in any
state or local laws and ordinances, and their comresponding regulations. Tenant shall
comply with all reasonable rules and policies set by Landiord for all tenants in the M.O.B.
and with all federal, state and Jocal laws, regulations and ordinances which govern the use,
storage, handling and disposal of hazardous substances, wastes or materials and medical,
special or infectious wastes. Tenant shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless
from and against any claims or liability arising out of or connected with Tenant’s failure to
comply with the terms of this Section 1.4, which indemnity shall survive the expiration or
earlier tenmination of this Lease.
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1.5 Condition of the Premises: Except as provided in Section 2.4, Tenant’s taking possession
shall be conclusive evidence as against Tenant that the Premises were in good order and
satisfactory condition when Tenant took possession, subject to punch list items and latent
defects. No promise of Landlord to alter, remodel, repair, or improve the Premises or the
M.Q.B. and no representation respecting the condition of the Premises or the M.O.B. have
been made by Landiord to Tenant, other than as contained herein and made a part hereof,
including but not limited to, the Work Letter attached hereto as Exhibit C, This Lease does
not grant any rights to light or air over or about the Land.

1.6 The Term: The Premises hereby are leased for an initial term of five (5) years (“Initial
Term”), commencing on a date not later than thirty (30) days following the date on which a
certificate of occupancy for the Premises (the "C/O") is issued by the Village of Lisle to
permit Tenant to take occupancy of the Premises for its intended use (the "Commencement
Date™). The Initial Term of this Lease (the "Term") shall end with respect to all of the
Premises on the last day of the calendar month that is five (5) years after the
Commencement Date, unfess sooner terminated or extended as provided herein. Tenant
acknowledges that the Landlord will be entering into various agreements, expending funds
and otherwise taking various actions in reliance upon Tenant's covepants, agrecments,
representations, warranties and acknowledgements contained in this Lease, Landlord agrees
to provide Tenant with periodic updates on construction and the projected Commencement
Date. Landlord shall alse provide Tenant with & letter memoriziizing the Commencement
Date and termination date upon receipt of the C/O.  In addition, prior to the
Commencement Date, Landlord shall grant Tenant access to the Premises so that Tenant
may make certain approved improvements to the Premises (“Tenant-Made Improvements™)
so long as such access or work by Tenant does not interfere with Landlord’s Work as
provided in Section 13.9. The timing of Tenant's access shall be addressed in the

construction schedule.

1.7 Option to Extend: Tenant shall have the option to extend the Term of this Lease for two (2)
periods of five (5) years (the “Renewal Terms”) (the Initial Term and each Renewal Term
collectively referred to as the “Term”). Such option shall be exercised i)y Tenant giving
Landlord written notice thereof at least six months prior to the date on which the then
Renewal Term will commence. Tenant may exercise such option only if it is not in defauit
under this Lease beyond the expiration of applicable cure periods at the time of such
exercisc. In the event of such exercise, all of the terms of this Lease (except this Section
1.7) shall continue in effect during such Renewal Terms.

1.8 In the event Landlord shall be unable to give possession of the Premises on or before
December 31, 2012 (the “Delivery Deadline™) because the construction of the M.O.B. or
the Premises has not been sufficiently completed to make the Premises ready for occupancy
as determined by Landlord and Tenant, Landlord shall not be subject to amy claims,
damages, or liability for the failure to give possession on said date. Under such
circumstances, the rent reserved and covenanted to be paid herein shall not commence until
the possession of the Premises is given or the Premises are tendered to Tenant, consistent
with paragraph 1.5, and failure to give possession on or before the Delivery Deadline shall
in no way affect the validity of this Lease or the obligations of Tenant hercunder, If
Landlord fails to deliver posscssion of the Premises to Tenant within 120 days after the
Delivery Deadline through no favlt or delay caused by Tenant, Landlord shall reimburse
Tenant for any reasonable expenses incurred by Tenant due to such delivery delay and if
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Landlord fails to deliver possession of the Premises within 180 days after the Delivery
Deadline through not fault or delay caused by Tenant, Tenant may terminate this Lease by
notifying Landlord in writing within thirty (30) days thereafter, in which event this Lease
shall terminate on the date the notice is deemed to be given as provided herein and any
monies paid to Landlord shall be returned to Tenant.

1.9 Parking: Landlord shall provide parking for the joint use of all of the tenants in the M.O.B.
and the Landlord and their agents, employees, patients, and invitees during the Term
hereof. Parking spaces for Tenant's use are described in the Parking Plan, attached hereto as
Exhibit D. In the event it becomes the prevailing practice to charge a parking fee for
parking elsewhere on the property, Landlord shall not charge Tenant a similar parking fee.

1.10 Rules and Regulations: Tenant shall observe such rules and regulations described in Exhibit
B attached hereto and any amendments or supplements thereto made by Landlord (the
"Rules and Regulations"). The Rules and Regulations shall be made part of any sublease of
the Premises. The Landlord reserves the right from time to time to make reascnable
modifications to the Rules and Regulations which shall be consistent with the terms of this
Lease. Notice of amendments and supplements to the Rules and Regulations, if any, shall
be given to Tenant and Temant shall comply with and observe all the Rules and
Regulations. However, no such amendments or supplements to the Rules and Regulations
shall materially alter Tenant's ability to use the Premises or the cost of Tenant’s obligations
hereunder, or the ability of patients to access or utilize the Premises. Material failure to
keep and observe the Rules and Regulations shall constitute a breach of the terms of this
Lease in the manner as if the same were contained herein as covenants. Any change in the
Rules and Regulations, whether by amendment or supplement, shall not be deemed or
considered as amendments to this Lease.

1.11_Assignment and Subletting:

A,  Without the prior written consent of Landlord which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, Tenant may not sublease, assign, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise
transfer or permit the transfer of this Lease or the interest of Tenant in this Lease, in whole
or in part, by operation of law or otherwise. If Tenant desires to enter into any sublease or
assignment of the Premises, Tenant shall deliver written notice thereof to Landlord,
together with financial and other information sufficient for Landlord to make an informed
judgment with respect to such proposed subtenant or assignee and a copy of the proposed
sublease or assignment agreement at least 60 days prior to the commencement date of the
term of the proposed sublease or assignment. Any approved sublease or assignment shall
be expressly subject to the terms and conditions and use stated in this Lease, and Tenant
shall pay Landlord on the first day of each month during the term of any sublease, one-half
(1/2} of the excess of all rent and other consideration due from the subtenant or assignee
for such month over that portion of the Base Rent and Rent Adjustments due under this
Lease for said month which is allocable to the space sublet or assigned.

B.  Inthe cvent of any approved sublease or assignment, Tenant shall not be released or
discharged from any liability, whether past, present or future, under this Lease. Anything
contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Tenant may assign or sublet all or part of
the Premises for the same Use stipulated in Paragraph 1.2 to an Affiliate without
Landlord’s consent, but with notice to Landlord (“Permitted Transfer”}, For purposes
hereof an Affiliate shall mean an entity which either controls, is controlled by or is under
common control with Tenant.
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C.  Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event the Premises
are sublet or assigned and the subtenant or assignee becomes owned by a health system
competitor, either directly or indirectly, of Landlord, the Sublease or Assignment shall
become null and void 60 days after such event in which case with no liability to Landlord
and Tenant shall be responsible to recapture possession of the Premises from such
subtenant or assignee. Any sublease or assignment shall contain a statement that such
subtenant or assignee acknowledges this Paragraph 1.11EC and agrees to be bound by the
same,

ARTICLE II - The Rental

Base Rent: Commencing on the Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay to Landlord as
“Base Rent” (the “Rent Commencement Date”) the annual sum of
for each rentable square

foot of the W the first year of the Term of this Lease payable in monthly in

the amount of Commencing with the second year of the Term of this Lease,
and each year thereafter throughout the Term of this Lease {including any renewal term) the
Base Rent shall be increased by an amount equal to f the then

prevailing Base Rent.

Manner and Time of Payment: All Base Rent shall be paid, in legal tender at the time of
payment, in monthly installments as above provided, in advance, on the first day of each
month during the Term at the offices of Landlord, Attention: DuPage Medical Group, 1100
31*™ Street, Suite 300, Downers Grove, Illinois 60515 or at such other place as Landlord
may designate in writing, without any set-off or deduction or further demand whatsoever,
except as otherwise provided in this Lease. If the Term shall begin on any day except the
first day or shall end on any day except the last day of a calendar month, the rent for the
initial fractional period shall be paid on the first day of the Term, and the rent for any
fractional period at the end of the Term shall be paid together with the last full month's rent.
The Base Rent due for any period of less than onc calendar month shall be computed and
paid on the basis of a prorated fraction of the monthly installment. This covenant to pay
rent shall be independent of any other covenant set forth in this Lease.

Additional Rent: In addition to end at the time of payment of the Base Rent, Tenant shall
pay to the Landlord Operating Expense Deposits pursuant to Article 1. All other charges,
costs and sums required to be paid by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease shall be deemed
additional reat ("Additional Rent™} and together with Base Rent and Operating Expense
Deposits shall hereinafter be collectively called “Rent.”

Construction of Tenant Improvements: Landlord and Tenant, as applicable, shall cause to
have constructed certain initial tepant improvements to the Premises as sct forth in the
Work Letter attached hereto as Exhibit C and made a part hereof (the “Tenant
Improvements™). Landlord shall arrange and provide all tenant improvements set forth in
Exhibit C. The costs of the tenant improvements set forth in Exhibit C-1 shall be costs of
Landlord. The costs of the tenant improvements set forth in Exhibit C-2 (and for any
additional costs incurred due to changes thereto requested by Tenant) shall be costs of
Tenant. Landlord shall ¢ensure that the tenant improvements set forth on Exhibit C-2 are
delivered in accordance with the construction specifications provided by Tenant, as
reasonably agreed to by Landlord.
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2.5 Covenant of Quiet Enjoyment: Upon payment by Tenant of the rents and all other charges
provided for under this Lease, and upon the observance and performance of all covenants,

terms and conditions on Tenant's part to be observed and performed pursuant to this Lease,
Tenant shall, at all times during the Term hereof, subject to the terms, covenants and
conditions of this Lease, peaceably and quietly hold and enjoy the Premises, without any
interruption or disterbance from Landlord or any other person or persons claiming by,
through or under Landlord, subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease,

ARTICLE ITI — Services and Operating Expenses

3.1 General Services. Landlord shall provide the following services; (a) heat and air
conditioning in the Premises, Monday through Friday from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and
Saturdays from 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m., excluding national holidays, to the extent
necessary for the comfortable occupancy of the Premises (subject to all applicable
voluntary and mandatory regulations and laws) under normal business office operations.
Wherever Tenant requests in writing supplementary air-conditioning units within the
Premises or whencver heat generating machines or equipment are used by Tenant in the
Premises, which heat generating machines or equipment affect the temperature otherwise
maintained by the air-cooling system, as mutually determined by Landlord and Tenant,
Landlord shall install supplementary sir conditioning units in the Premises and any
mutually agreed to expense of such units and the installation thereof shall be paid by
Tenant. The expense resulting from the operations and maintenance of the supplementary
air conditioning system shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord as additional Rent at rates fixed
by Landlord, (b) hot and cold water for use in lavatories Landlord installs for use in
common with other tenants and hot and cold scrvice shall be available to the Premises
supplied from the municipal mains drawn through a [ine, meter and fixtures installed within
the Premises by Tenant or as part of the Tenant Improvements with Landlord's consent,
Tenant shall pay Landlord as additional Monthly Base Rent, at rates fixed by Landlord,
charges for all water fumished to the Premises. (c) customary cleaning and janitorial
services in the Premises consistent with the cleaning specifications set forth in Exhibit B—,
Monday through Friday, excluding national holidays. (d) automatic passenger elevator
service in common with other tenants of the Building and freight elevator service subject to
scheduling by Landlord. (e) window washing a minimum of two times per year. The term
national holidays as used herein shall also include other holidays recognized by the
Landlord and the janitor and other unions servicing the Building in accordance with their

contracts.

3.2 Electricity: Landlord shall fumnish electricity to the entire M\O.B and to the Premises
through separate meters. Landlord shall provide a demarcation point on the same floor as
the Premiscs and Tenant shall have a control panel sufficient for data and telephone access.
Landlord shall select, furnish and install all lamps, bulbs, ballast and starters used in the
Premises unless Landlord is unable to respond in a timely manner to Tenant’s request for
replacement lamps, bulbs, ballasts and starters. Landlord shall not charge Tenant for lamps,
bulbs, ballast and starters, or installation thereof, in excess of Landlord's cost thereof.

3.3 Termination of Additional Services for Non-Payment: In the cvent that by agreement with
Tenant, [andiord fumishes extra or additional services to be paid for by Tenant, Tenant's
failure to pay for such services within forty-five (45) days without further notice from
Landlord, shall constitute a default hereunder and allow Landlord to discontinue such
services and terminate any agreement fov such services. The money due for such extra or
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additional services shall be deemed additional rental due hereunder and the same shall be
subject to all of the provisions pertaining to the payment of rental.

Interruption of Service: No interruption in, or temporary stoppage of, any of the aforesaid
services caused by strikes, lockouts, labor controversies, accidents, inability to obtain fuel,
supplies, materials, parts, or equipment or other causes beyond the reasonable control of
Landlord shall be deemed an eviction or disturbance of Tenant's use and possession, or
render Landlord liable for damages, by abatement of rent or otherwise, or relieve Tenant
from any obligation herein set forth unless the same makes the Premises unusable for more
than two consecutive days in which case all Rents shall abate for each day after the two
days that the Premises is unusable. Tenant hereby releases all claims against Landlord for
damages for interruption or stoppage of any of said services caused by the events or
circumstances above unless caused by Landlord's failure to remedy a known problem, gross
negligence or willful conduct. Landlord shall make all reasonable efforts to minimize the
time of interruptions of any of the services provided to Tenant under the terms of this Lease
and shall, in the event such interruption of services shall tend to make the Premises
unusable for the ordinary purposes for which they are intended, use the utmost diligence
including, without limitation, the use of overtime labor services so as to minimize such
interruptions, provided that Landlord shall not be required to use or cause to be used
overtime labor services in connection with the initial construction of the M.O.B. and
improvements thereto. In the event Landlord is unable to cure the interruption of services
which interruption is due to circumstances over which Landlord has control as opposed to
circumstances over which Landlord has no ability to control, within thirty (30) days of
initial interruption of services, Tenant may terminate this Lease upon written notice to
Landlord within 10 days after the end of said thirty (30) day period.

Maintenance of Structural and Common Areas: Landlord shall keep the structural and
common areas of the M.O.B. including Without limitation, the heating and air conditioning
systems and equipment, ¢levators, exterior, roof, entrances, hallways, stairways, corridors
and parking areas in a& pood, safe, clean and well-maintained condition and in material
compliance with all applicable laws, codes and ordinances, and shall furnish reasonable
security to the common areas of the M.O.B. during non-office hours.

Right of Self-Help. If Landlord fails to provide any of the services that Landlord has
agrecd to provide to Tenant pursuant to this Lease and such failure continues for a period
of five (5) business days following Tenant’s written notice to Landlord of such failure, then
Tenant shall have the right to unilaterally arrange for such services and shall withhold from
reatal payments due to Landlord an amount equal to the Tenant’s cost of such services.

For the purposes of this Article III, the following words and phrases shall have the
following meanings:

A. “Operating Expense Deposit” means that sum estimated from time to time by the
Landlord to be Tenant’s proportionate share of the operating expenses attributed to any
calendar year.

B. “Operating Expenses” shall mean all costs, expenses and disbursements of every
kind and nature which Landlord shall pay or become obligated to pay in connection with
the managememn, operation, maintenance, and repair of the Real Property and of the
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personal property, fixtures, machinery, equipment, systems and apparatus located in or
used in connection with the Real Property, including without limitation:

The costs of common area electricity; water; fuel, heating; lighting; air conditioning;
window cleaning; interior and exterior landscaping; snow removal; janitorial services;
insurance (including firc, extended coverage, liability, workman's compensation, elevator
or any other insurance) carried in good faith by the Landlord and applicable to the Real
Property; painting; uniforms; customary management fees; supplies; sundries; sale or use
tax on supplics or services; cost of wages and salaries of all persons engaged in the
operation, maintenance and repair of the Real Property and so called "fringe benefits"
(including but not limited to social security taxes, unemployment insurance taxes, cost for
providing coverage for disability benefits, costs for any pensions, hospitalization, welfare
and retirement plans, vacation or severance pay, or other similar or like expense incumed
under the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, or any costs or expenses
which the Landlord pays or incurs to provide benefits to employees so engaged in the
operation maintenance and repair of the Real Property); current amortization of capital
improvements reasonably necessary for the operation and maintenance of the M.O.B,;
replacements that do not constitute a capital expense under generally accepted accounting
principles and current amortization of replacements that would constitute a capital expense
under generally accepted accounting principles; the charges of any independent contractor,
who under a contract with the Landlord, or its representatives, does any of the work of
operating, maintaining or repairing of the Real Property; legal and accounting expenses or
any other expense or charge, similar or dissimilar, whether or not heretofore mentioned,
which in accordance with generally accepted management principles would be considered
as an expense of maintaining, operating or repairing the Real Property or any personal
property therein and Taxes as hereinafter defined.

Operating expenses shall not include the following: costs of improvement of the Premises
and the premises of other tenants of the M.O.B.; charges for depreciation of the M.O.B.;
interest and principal payments on mortgages and other financing costs; ground leasc
related payments; real estate brokerage and leasing commissions; expenses incurred in
enforcing obligations of other tenants of the M.O.B.; any cxpenditures for which Landlord
has been reimbursed (other than pursuant to rent adjustment and escalation provisions
provided in leases); costs (including legal and other professional fees)_of negotiating leases
and capital improvements to the M.O.B. (except as provided above); costs of repairs or
restoration necessitated by fire or other casualty or any condemnation; costs of any electric
current furnished to areas of the M.O.B. occupied by tenants or purposes other than
operation of M.O.B. equipment or machinery or the lighting of toilets, shaftways or M.O.B.
machinery or fan rooms; compensation paid in respect of officers and executives of
Landlord above the level of building manager; any cost stated in Operating Expense
representing an amount paid to 2 Landlord-related corporation or entity which is in excess
of the amount which would be paid in absence of such relationship; advertising and
promotional expenses of the Building and any artwork or similar decoration in common
areas; costs of correcting defects in the construction of the M.O.B. or in the M.O.B.
equipment, except for conditions (not occasioned by construction or equipment defects)
resulting from ordinary wear and tear shall not be deemed defects for the purpose of this
category; costs of any repair made by Landlord to remedy damage caused by, or resulting
from, the negligence or willful act or omissions of Landlord, its agents, servants,
contractors or employees; costs of any additions to the Building; expenses incurred by
Landlord in connection with the transfer or disposition of the Real Property or Building or
any ground, underlying or overriding lease, including, witkout limitation, transfer. deed and
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gains taxes, If any Real Property expense, though paid in one year relates to more than one
calendar year, at the option of the Landlord, such expense may be proportionately allocated
among such calendar years. Additionally, there shall be deducted from Operating Expenses
all amounts received by Landlord through proceeds of insurance or condemnation awards
to the extent they are compensation for, or reimbursement of, sums previously included in
Operating Expenses hereunder.

"Taxes” shall mean all federal, state and local governmental taxes, assessments and charges
(including transit or transit district taxes or assessments and the [llinois Personal Property
Replacement Income Tax), of every kind or nature, whether general, special, ordinary or
extraordinary, which Landlord shall pay or become obligated to pay because of or in
connection with the ownership, leasing, management, control or operation of the Real
Property, or of the personal property, fixtures, machinery, equipment, systems and
apparatus located therein or used in connection therewith (including any rental or similar
taxes levied in lieu of or in addition to genera real and/or personal property taxes). For
purposes hereof, Taxes for any year shall be Taxes which are due for payment or paid in
that year, rather than Taxes which are assessed or become a lien during such year. There
shall be included in Taxes for any year the amount of all fees, costs and expenses
(including reasonable attomeys' fees) paid by Landlord during such year in seeking or
obtaining any refund or reduction of Taxes. Taxes in any year shall be reduced by the net
amount of any tax refund received by Landlord during such year. If a special assessment
payable in installments is levied against the Real Property, Taxes for any year shall include
only the installment of such assessment and any interest payable or paid during such year.
Taxes shall not include any federal or state inheritance, general income, gift or estate taxes,
franchise taxes, except that if a change occurs in the method of taxation resulting in whole
or in part in the substitution of any such taxes, or any other assessment, for any Taxes as
above defined, such substituted taxes or assessments shall be included in the Taxes and
provided further, that the lllinois Personal Property Replacement Income Tax shall be
included in Taxes. )

3.8 Payment of Operating Expenses. Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as additional rent, Tenant's
Proportionate Share of the Operating Expenses attributable to each calendar year during the
Term as a Rent Adjustment for such calendar year. Tenant shall deposit with Landlord on
the first day of each month during the Lease Term commencing with the first month in
which the payment of rent commences as an Operating Expense Deposit, the sum o
of Tenant's estimated share of the Operating Expenses attributable to the current calendar
year. The Operating Expense Deposit shall be credited against Tenant's share of the
Operating Expenses due for that calendar year. During the last complete calendar year or
during any partial calendar year in which the Lease terminates, Landlord may include in the
Operating Expense Deposit its best estimate of Operating Expenses which may not be
finally determined until after the termination of this Lease.

3.0 Statement of Landlord.

As soon as feasible after the expiration of each calendar year of this Lease, but in no
event more than 365 days after the end of the applicable calendar year, Landlord will furnish

Tenant a statement showing the following:

(1) Operating Expenses for the then comnpleted Calendar Year;
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(in) Tenant's Proportionate Share of said Operating Expenses, less credit for the
Opcrating Expense Deposits if any; and

(i)  The amount of the new Operating Expense Deposit.

Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount due in accordance with said statement
within thirty (30) days after receipt of such statement, and the new Operating Expense Deposits
shall be paid as provided in Section 3.7. No interest or penalties shall accrue on any amounts
which Landlord is obligated to credit to Tenant by reason of any overdeposit. Any credit due
Tenant shall be applied to Tenant’s Operating Expense Deposits for the new calendar year,

310  Books and Records. Landlord shall maintain books and records showing Operating
Expenses in accordance with sound accounting and management practices. The Tenant or its
representative shall have the right to examine the Landlord's books and records on site or request
copies of such books and records with respect to the items in the foregoing statement of
Operating Expenses during normal business hours at any time within thirty (30) days following
the furnishing by the Landlord to the Tenant of such statement. Unless the Tenant shall take
written exception to any item within thirty (30) days after the furnishing of the foregoing
statement, such statement shall be considered as final and accepted by the Tenant. Any amount
duc to the Landlord as shown on any such statement, whether or not written exception is taken
thereto, shall be paid by the Tenant within thirty (30) days after the Landlord shall have submitted
the statement, without prejudice to any such written exception.

ARTICLE YV - Rights Reserved by Landlord

4.1 Specific Rights Reserved by Landlord: Landlord reserves the following rights, exercisable
without notice (except as provided below) and without liability to Tenant for damage or

injury to property, person or business and without effecting an eviction, constructive or
actual, or disturbance of Tenant's use or possession or giving rise to any claim for setoff or
abatement of rent;

() Name: To change the M.O.B.'s name. In the event of a change in the M.O.B.'s name,
Landlord shall notify Tepant in writing of such change not less than 60 days prior to
such change; provided, however, that Landlord shall not change the name of M.O.B
to include the name of any hospital or health system other than Rush University
Medical Center, without the consent of Tenant,

(b) Signs: To install, affix and maintain any and all signs and directories on the exterior
and interior of thc M.O.B. other than Tenant’s exterior and interior signs. Anything
contained in the Rules and Regulations to the contrary notwithstanding, Landlord
hereby agrees that any Tenant signage, other than signage on the Building interior
Directory, for which Landlord must first give prior written approval, which approval
shal} not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, as to size, location and instatlation
method may include the Rush University Medical Center name and logo. Tenant
shall submit drawings for the proposed signs and such other documentation as
Landiord may request showing the proposed sign, sign materials, locations and
means of installation for Landlord’s review as part of the approval process. Landlord
shall review such submission and provide notice to Tenant within ten (10) days of
Tenant’s submission (the “Notice Deadline”). Landlord’s failure to object to the
proposed signage on or prior to the Notice Deadline shall be deemed Landlord’s
approval thereof. Any exterior signage must also conform with all applicable
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(c)

(d)

(e)

®

()

municipal laws. Tenant shall pay the cost of any signage for the Premises. Landlord
hereby agrees that there will be no external signage or branding on the M.O.B for any
tenant other than Landiord and Tenant, without Tenant’s written consent.

Window Coverage: To designate and approve, prior to installation, all types of
window shades, blinds, drapes, awnings, window ventilators and other similar

equipment, and to contro! all internal lighting that may be visible from the exterior of
the M.O.B.

Access: To show the Premises at reasonable hours, provided that Landlord shall
provide Tenant with not less than 24 hour advance written notice to show the
Premises and provided such showing does not interrupt or interfere with Tenant’s
business in the Premises.

Keys: At the commencement of the Lease, Landlord shall provide a set of keys to
Tenant for the M.O.B. and the Premises. If additional sets are required, Landlord
shall provide the same to Tenant, at Tenant's cost. Landlord shall retain at all times
(except for keys to Tenant's safe and drug closets), and to use in appropriate
instances, keys to all doors within and into the Premises. No locks shall be changed,
except by Landlord and at Tenant's cost, and in the event of such change, Landlord
shall retain a key to each lock so changed.

Alterationg: To decorate or to make repairs, alterations, additions, or improvements,
whether structural or otherwise, in or about the M.O.B., or any part thereof other than
in the Premises, and for such purposes to enter upon the Premises, and, during the
continuance of any of said work, to temporarily close doors, entryways, public spaces
and corridors in the M.O.B. and to interrupt or temporarily suspend M.O.B. services
and facilities, provided that Landlord shall diligently avoid interruption in Tenantls
enjoyment of and access to the Premises to the extent reasonably possible. If such
alterations do make the Premises unusable. Tenant’s rent shall abate for each day the

Premises is unusable.

Title: To have and retain a paramount title to the Premises free and clear of any act of
Tenant

42 Tenant Shall Not Interfere With R ed Rights: Tenant shall not attempt to exercise any
of the rights specifically reserved by Landlord or interfere in any way with the exercise of
those rights by Landlord.

5.1

ARTICLE V - Landlord's Security

Security Deposit. As security for the full and prompt performance by Tenant of all of
Tenant's obligations hercunder, Tenant has previously paid to Landlord the sum of

(the "Security Deposit”). Said sum maybe applied by Landlord for the purpose

of curing any defaults of Tenant under this Lease in addition to any other rights and

remedies available to Landlord. If Tenant has not defaulted hereunder or if Landlord has
not applied the Security Deposit to said default during the first twelve (12} months after the
payment of Rent commences, then the Security Deposit or any portion thereof not so
applied by Landlord shall be refunded to Tenant . The Security Deposit cannot be applied
against any monthly installment of rent unless expressly so elected by Landlord. The
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Landlord may commingle the Sccurity Deposit with any of its other funds. Upon request by
Landlord, Tenant shall provide Landlord with a letter of net worth signed by an officer of

Rush.

ARTICLE V1 - Damages or Losses

Waiver of Claims Apainst Landlord: Except for the negligent or willful acts or omissions
by Landlord or its agents, contractors or employees or from Landlord's failure to satisfy its
obligations under this Lease, Tenant agrees, to the extent not expressly probibited by law,
that Eandlord, its agents, employees and servants shall not be liable for, and Tenant waives
all claims for, injury to person or damage to property sustained by Tenant in or on the
M.O.B. or the Premises, resulting directly or indirectly from any existing or future
condition, defect, matier or thing in the Premises, the M.O.B. or any part thereof or from
equipment or appurtenances becoming out of repair or from accident, or from any
occutrence or act, or omission of any tenant or occupant of the M.O.B,, or of any other
person, This Section 6.1 shall apply especially, but not exclusively, to damage caused as
aforesaid or by the flooding of basements or other areas or by refrigerators, sprinkling
devices, air conditioning apparatus, water, snow, frost, steam, excessive heat or cold,
falling plaster, broken glass, scwage, gas, odors, or noise, or the bursting or leaking of
pipes, plumbing fixtures, windows, walls or ceilings and shall apply equally whether any
such damage results from the act or omission of other tenants or occupants in the M.C.B. or
any other persons other than Landlord or its agents or employees, and whether such damage
be caused by or result from any thing or circumstance whether of a like or wholly different
nature. Tenant shall be solely responsible to Landlord and to other tenants in the M.O.B. to
the extent proceeds are not available under Landlord’s insurance coverage for any claims
for injury to person or damage to property caused by the gross negligent or willful act or
omission of Tenant, its agents, employees or servants provided that in no event shall Tenant
be liable for any amount in excess of the insurance proceeds available to Tenant,

Repair of Damages by Landlord: If any damage to the Premises or the M.O.B. or any part
thereof results from any negligent or willful act or omission of Tenant, its agents,

employees or invitees, Landlord may, at Landlord's option, repair such damage and to the
extent proceeds are not available under Landlord's insurance coverage. Tenant shall, upon
demand by Landlord, reimburse Landlord forthwith for all costs of making such repairs,
and the amount of such costs shall be deemed additional rent hereunder provided that in no
event shall Tenant be liable for any amount in excess of the insurance proceeds available to

Tenant,

Tenant is Responsible for Tenant's Property: Except for the negligent or willful acts or
omissions by Landlord or its agents, contractors, or employees, all property in the M.O.B.
or on the Premises belonging to Tenant, its agents, employees or invitegs, or to any
occupant of the Premises shall be at the risk of Tenant or such other person only, and
Landlord shall not be liable for damage thereto or theft, misappropriation or loss thereof.

Hold Barmless: Except for the negligent or willful acts or omissions by Landlord or its
agents, contractor or employees, from Landlord's failure to satisfy its obligations under this
Lease, Tenant shall be liable for injuries to all persons and for damage to, or theft,
misappropriation or loss of all property occurring in or about the Premises, (including,
without [imitation, medical malpractice claims relating thereto} due to any negligent or
willful act or omission of Tenant, its agents, employees gr invitees provided that in no
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6.5

6.6

6.7

event shall Tenant be liable for any amount in excess of the insurance proceeds available to
Tenant.

Damage by Fire or Other Casualty: If any part of the Premises or the M.O.B. is rendered

untenantable by fire or other casualty Landlord may elect within sixty (60) days {the
“Notice Date™) of the date of the fire or casuvalty (the “Casualty Date”) by notice to Tenant
(a) to terminate this Lease as of the Casualty Date or (b) to repair, restore or rehabilitate the
M.O.B. or the Premises at Landlord's expense, which repairs must commence within thirty
(30) days of the Notice Date and wbich must be completed within no more than one
hundred and eighty (180) days from the Casualty Date (the “Repair Deadline”), in which
event this Lease shall not terminate but rent shall be abated on a per diem basis while the
Premises are untenantable, If Landlord elects to repair, restore or rehabtlitate the M.O.B. or
the Premiscs, said work shall be undertaken and prosecuted with all due diligence and
speed. If Landlord elects to repair, restore or rehabilitate the M.O.B or the Premises and, in
cases not due to act or neglect of the Tenant, does not substantially complete the wotk by
the Repair Deadline, except as to Tenant so long as such delay is due to no action of
Tenant, either party can terminate this Lease as of the date of such fire or casualty by notice
to the other party not later than thirty (30) days after the Repair Deadline. In the event of
termination of the Lease pursvant to this Article, rent shall be apportioned on a per diem
basis and paid to the Casualty Date. Landlord shall elect clause (b) unless the damage is
substantial or there is less than 1 ycar remaining in the term of this Lease.

Insyrance:

(a) Tenant shall, throughout the term of this Lease and at Tenant's expense, carry and
keep in full force and effect through its self-insurance policy (i) malpractice
insurance for Tenant and all professional staff employed or contracted by Tenant, in
such amounts as required by Tenant for staff privileges from time to time; (ii)
commercial generzl Liability insurance, including contractual liability coverape, with
respect to the Premises, which policy or policics (A} shall have limits of
per occurrence Personal Injury and &E’mpcrty Damage, or per
occurrence Personal Injury and Property Damage Combined Single Limit; {B) name
Landlord as additional insured when permissible; (C) shall contain a clause that the
insurance carrier will not cancel or materially change the insurance without first
giving the Landlord thirty (30) days prior written notice; and (iii) fire, theft, and
extended perils insurance covering Tenant's own property.

(b) Tenant shall obtain and deliver to Landlord prior to commencement of the Term
hereof, and shall maintain with Landlord at all times during such Term, cusrent
certificates evidencing full compliance with the provisions of this Section 6.6.

{¢) Landlord sha!l maintain at all times during the Term, insurance protecting the M.O.B.
against risks of fire and extended coverage and shall carry public liability insurance
in amounts then reasonable and customary for owners of multi-story office buildings
similar to the M.O.B.

Waiver of Subrogation: Landlord and Tenant hereto waive any right of subrogation against

the other under any insurance policy insofar as they are able under such policies issued by
their respective carriers.
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7.1

7.2

73

ARTICLE VI - Access to the Premises
Surrender Upon Termination of Lease: Upon any termination of this Lease, by expiration,

lapse of time or otherwise, or upon any termination of Tenant's right to possession of the
Premises:

(a) Vacate Immediately: Tenant shall immediately vacate the Premises and survender the
Premises in good order, condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted.

(b) Keys: Tenant shall surrender all keys of the Premises to Landlord.

(c) License to Enter: Tenant grants to Landlord full authority and license to enter the
Premises and take possession thereof.

(d) Ownership of Certain Items: All non-removable additions, partitions, hardware, light
fixtures, fixtures and improvements, specifically excluding moveable furniture, trade
fixtures, medical/other equipment and personal property belonging to Tenant, in or
upon the Premises, whether placed there by Tenant or Landlord, shall be Landlord's
property and shall remain upon the Premises, all without compensation, allowance or

credit to Tenant.

(e} Property Abandoned: All trade fixtures, movable furniture, equipment and other
personal property not removed from the Premises prior to the expiration of the Term
shall be conclusively presumed to have been abandoned by Tenant, and title thereto
shall pass to Landlord under this Lease as by a bill of sale, without further payment
or credit by Landlord to Tenant, and Landlord may remove the same, and Tenant
shall pay the cost of such removal to Landlord upon demand, provided that Tenant
shall not be obligated to pay such cost of removal unless Landlord has notified
Tenant of Landlord's intention to remove at Tenant's expense no later than the last of
(i) five business days after Tenant requests this information from Landlord, or (ii)
five business days after the termination of Tenant's right to possession of the
Premises,

Payment During Hold-Over: Tenant shall pay Landlord for each day Tenant retains
possession of the Preggi r any part thereof, after termination of the Term by expiration
of time or otherwise,Wof the amount of the daily Rent for the last period prior to the
date of such termination and also pay all out of pocket damages sustained by Landlord by
reason of such retention. Nothing in this Article contained, however, shall be construed as a
waiver of Landlord's right of re-entry or any other right nor give Tenant any right to

holdover.

Access to the Premises During Lease: Tenant shall permit Landlord at any time to inspect,
erect, use and maintain, pipes, ducts, conduits and similar devices in and through the
Premises, and to make any necessary repairs or alterations. Landlord shall be allowed to
take all material into and upon the Premises that may be required therefor without the same
constituting an eviction of Tenant in whole or in part and the rent reserved shall in no way
abate while said repairs and maintenance are being made by reason of loss or interruption
of business of Tenant or otherwise. [f Tenant shall not be personally present to open and
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permit an entry into the Premises, at any time, when for any reason an entry therein shall be
necessary or permissible, Landlord or Landlord's agents may enter the same by a master
key, or may forcibly enter the same, without rendering Landlord or such agents liable
therefor (if during such entry Landlord or Landlord's agents shall accord reasonable care to
Tenant's property), and without in any manner affecting the obligations and covenants of
this Lease. Nothing contained in this Section, however, shall be deemed or construed to
impose upon Landlord any obligations, responsibility or Hability whatsoever, for the care,
supervision or repair of the M.Q.B. or any part thereof. Landlord shall also have the right at
any time, without the same constituting an actual or constructive eviction and without
incurring any liability to Tenant therefor, to change the arrangement and location of
entrances, passageways, doors, doorways, elevators, stairs, toilets or other public parts of
the M.O.B. Landlord agrees to diligently perform any such work so as to minimize any
interference with Tenant’s operations. Other than instances of an emergency nature,
Landlord agrees to give Tenant not less than 48 hours notice of any work to be performed
with the Premises.

ARTICLE VIII - Eminent Domain

8.1 Taking of the Premises: In the event that the whole or any substantial part of the Premises
shall be lawfully condemned or taken in any manner for any public or quasi-public use, this
Lease shall forthwith cease and termipatc on the date of the taking of possession by the
condemning authority and Landlord shall be entitled to receive the entire award for the
Premises without any payment to Tenant, provided that Tenant shall be entitled to pursue
and receive any award granted specifically to Tenant by the court for the taking of Tenant's
leasehold estate and/or property not in derogation of the award Landlord would otherwisc

receive.

8.2 Taking of the M.O.B.: In the event that a part of the M.O.B. other than the Premises shall
be so condemned or taken and, if in the opinion of the Landlord or Tenant, the M.O.B.
should be restored in such a way as to alter the Premises materially, Landlord or Tenant,
may terminate this lease without compensation to lessee by notifying the other party of
such termination within sixty (60) days following the date of the taking of possession by
the condemning authority, such termination to be effective on the date specified in the
notice of termination which in no event shall be less than sixty {(60) days of such notice,
and after the giving the Base Rent and any other amounts payable hereunder shall be
apportioned as of such termination date.

8.3 Waiver of Claim Against Landlord: In the event this Lease shall be terminated under the
provisions of this Article, Tenant shall have no claim against Landlord for the value of any

unexpired term.

ARTICLE IX - Estoppel Certificate

Tenant agrees that from time to time, upon not less than ter (10) business days prior written
request by Landlord, Tenant will deliver to Landlord a statement in writing certifying (a) that this
Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there have been modifications that the
Lease as modified is in full force and effect and stating the modifications); (b) the dates to which
the rent and other charges have been paid; and (¢) that to the knowledge of the persen signing the
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statement on Tenant's behalf, Landlord is not in default under any provision of this Lease or, if in
default, the nature thereof in detail,

TICLE X - Rights and Remedies of Landlord

10.1 In Addition to Other Rights: All rights and remedics given to Landlord in this Lease shall
be cumulative and shall be in addition to all other rights and remedies allowed Landlord by

law or equity.

10.2 Bankruptcy: If any voluntary or involuntary petition or similar pleading under any section
or sections of any bankruptcy act shall be filed by or against Tenant (and if involuntary, is
not dismissed within 90 days), or any voluntary or involuntary proceeding in any court or
tribunal shall be instituted to declare Tenant insolvent or unable to pay Tenant's debts (and
if involuntary, is not dismissed within 90 days), or Tenant makes an assignment for the
benefit of its creditors, or a trustee or receiver is appointed for Tenant or for any substantial
part of Tenant’s property, then and in any such event, Landlord may, if lessor so elects but
not otherwise, and with thirty (30) days notice of such election, and with or without cntry
or other action by Landlord, forthwith terminate this Lease, and, notwithstanding any other
provision of this Lease, Landlord shall upon such termination be entitled to recover such
damages as Landlord may have or will suffer as a result of such termination.

10.3 Default in Payment or Performance: If (i) Tenant defaults in the payment when due of Base
Rent, Additional Rent or any other payment to be made by Tenant hercunder and Tenant
fails to cure such default within ten (10) business days following Tenant's receipt of written
notice thereof from Landlord (all of such payments to be treated as Additional Rent
hereunder); or (it) Tenant defaults in the performance or observance of any other provision
of this Lease and Tenant fails to cure such default within thirty (30) days following
Tenant's receipt of written notice thereof from Landlord; provided that if such default can
be cured, and Tenant has commenced cure within such 30 day period, Tenant may have up
to an additional 60 days to fully cure such default so long as Tenant diligently pursues such
cure; or (iii) the leasehold interest of Tenant be levied upon under execution or attached by
process of law; then and in any such event, Landlord if it so elects, with notice or demand,
forthwith, either may terminate Tenant's right to possession without terminating this Lease,
or may terminate this Lease and exercise all rights and remedies of Landlord to collect
amounts due from Tenant as permitted by Law.

10.4 License to Enter: Upon any termination of this Lease, whether by lapse of time or
otherwise, or upon any termination of Tenrant's right of possession without termination of
the Lease, Tenant shall surrender possession and vacate the Premises immediately, and
deliver possession thereof to Landlord, and hereby grants to Landltord full and free license
to enter into and upon the Premises in such event with process of law and to repossess the
Premises and to expel or remove from possession Tenant and any others who may be
occupying or within the Premises and to remove any and all property therefrom, without
being deemed in any manner guilty of trespass, eviction, forcible entry or detainer, or
conversion of property, and without relinquishing Landlord's rights to rent or any other
right given to Landlord herennder or by operation of law.

10.5 Termination of Right to Possession Only: if Tenant abandons or vacates the Premises or if
Landlord has the right to elect, and does elect. under the foregoing provisions to terminate

5 r Attachment 2- Exhibit 2




Tenant's right to possession only, Landlord may enter into the Premises, remove Tenant's
signs and other evidences of tenancy, and take and hold possession thereof as in Section
10.4 provided, without such entry and possession terminating the Lease or releasing
Tenant. Landlord shall not be required to accept any tenant offered by Tenant or to observe
any instructions given by Tenant about such reletting. In any such case, Landlord may
make repairs, alterations and additions in or to the Premises, and redecorate the same to the
extent rcasonably necessary or desirable, and Tenant shall, upon demand, pay the cost
thereof, together with Landlord's expenses of the reletting. If the consideration collected by
Landlord upon any such reletting for Tenant's account is not sufficient to pay the full
amount of the Base Rent for the Term, togcther with the cost of repairs, alterations,
additions, redecorating and Landlord's expenses, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount
of each deficiency upon demand and, if the consideration so collected from any such
reletting is more than sufficient to pay said full amount of the Base Rent and any
Additional Rent, together with the costs and expenses of Landlord, Landiord, at the end of
the Term, shall account for the surplus to Tenant. Notwithstanding anything contained
herein to the contrary, if Tenant abandons the Premises Landlord shall be obligated to
mitigate Landlord's damages by exercising reasonable diligence to procure a new tenant for
the Premises; provided, however, that such obligation to mitigate shall not toll or otherwise
limit Landlord's right to exercise its rights and remedies under this Lease,

10.6 Costs of Enforcement and Litigation. In the event that either party shall file suit to enforce
any of the provisions of this Lease, cach party shall pay its own costs, charges and
expenses, including attorneys’ fees and court costs and experts .

10.7 Injunctive Relief. If Tenant violates any of the terms and provisions of this Lease, or
defauits in any of its obligations hercunder, other than the payment of Base Rent or other
sums payable hereunder, such violation may be restrained or such obligation enforced by
injunction, which remedy shall be in addition to all other rights and remedies available to

Landlord.

ARTICLE XI — Subordination

11.1 Mortgage: Landlord may encumber the Land or the M.Q.B. with a mortgage or mortgages
or otherwise bind the M.O.B. as security for the payment of existing or future obligations
of Landlord. At the option of Landlord, Tenant's tenancy hereunder is and shall always be
subject and subordinate to any such mortgage, trust deed, deed of trust or other lien
voluntarily created or granted by Landlord, provided that Tenant's possession of the
Premises shall not be disturbed uniess Tenant is in default under any of the terms of this
Lease beyond the expiration of all applicable cure periods under this Lease, or Landiord
would otherwise have the right to dispossess Tenant. Tenant agrees to execute and deliver
upon demand such further instrument or instruments in a form reasonably acceptable to
Tenant so subordinating this Lease to any such liens or encumbrances as shall be desired by
Landlord, Landlord's mortgagee, or their respective successors and assigns. Landlord
agrees that upon the written request of Tenant, Landlord shall request the holder of any
such mortgage to grant Tenant a "nondisturbance agreement” in the form usually provided
by such holder and reasonably acceptable to Tenant.

11.2 Attomment: In the event of a foreclosure of any such mortgage or other lien, or other

transfer of the M.O.B. in lieu thereof, Tenant shall attorn to the mortgagee or lien holder or
their respective successors in interest upon demand.
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11.3 Modification of This Lease: Intentionally deleted,

ARTICLE X11 — Notices

12.1 Notices to Tenant: All notices shall be in writing. They shall be effectively served by to the
following address or such other address as a party may so direct:

If to Tenant: Rush University Medical Center
1725 West Hamrison Street
Suite 364
Chicago, IL 60612
Attn: CEO

With a copies to: Office of Legal Affairs
Rush University Medical Center
1700 West Van Buren Street, Suite 301
Chicago, IL 60612
Attn: General Counsef

and

Leasing and Tenant Relations
Rush University Medical Center
1725 West Harrison, Suite 229
Chicago, IL 60612

If to Landlord;
Chief Operating Officer
DuPage Medical Group
1100 3 1st Street — Suite 300
Downers Grove, IL 60515

With copy to: Murray J. Lewison
Johnson and Colmar
2201 Waukegan Road — Suite 260

Bannockbumn, TL 60015

in any one of the following manners:

(@) By hand delivery to Tenant (including without limitation delivery by messenger or
courier, with evidence of receipt) ,

(b) When delivered by ovemight carrier; or
(c) By forwarding through Certified or Registered Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt -

requested, in which case two business days after the time of mailing shall be the time
of notice.
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ARTICLE XIIT Miscellaneous

13.1 Receipt of Money: No receipt of money by Landlord from Tenant after the termination of
this Lease or after the commencement of any suit, or after final judgment for possession of
the Premises shall reinstate, continue or extend the Term or affect any such notice, demand

Or suit.

13.2 Real Estate Broker: Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that Tenant has dealt
directly with Landlord (and only with Landlord) in connection with this Lease, and that no
broker has negotiated or participated in the negotiations of this Lease or submitted or
showed the Premises or is entitled to any commission in connection therewith. No
recognition of such brokerage herein shall in anywise be construed by any judge or court as
in anywise vesting in said broker any right to participate in the rents as such or give said
broker any lien or charge upon the rents growing due hereunder at any time.

13.3 No Waivers By Implication: No waiver of any default of Tenant hereunder shall be implied
from any omission by Landlord to take any action on account of such default if such default
persists or be repeated, and no express waiver shall affect any default other than the default
specified in the express waiver and that only for the time and to the extent therein stated.

13.4 Scverability: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision hereof shall not affect or
impair any other provision.

13.5 No Options to Lease: Submission of this instrument for examination does not constitute a
reservation of or option for the Premises. The instrument becomes effective as a Lease
upon execution and delivery by both Landlord and Tenant.

13.6 Interest on Unpaid Amounts: All amounts, other than Base Rent and Additional Rent
payable as provided for herein, owed by Tenant to Landlord hereunder shall be paid no

later than thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of Landlord’s statements of account

therefor and such amounts of Base Rent, Additio r Tenant
Chargeable Services shall bear interest at the rate of computed

daily from the due date of each obligation.

13.7 Captions: The captions contained in this Lease are for convenience only and are not
intended to limit or define the scope or effect of any provisions of this Leese.

13.8 Binding on Successors: Subject to Section 1.11 of this Lease, each provision hereof shall
extend to and shall, as the case may require, bind and inure to the benefit of Landlord and

Tenant and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns,

13.9 Occupancy Other Than During Term: It is hereby agreed that, except for the access granted
to Tenant under this Lease or as expressly agreed otherwise in writing, any use or
occupancy of the Premises by Tenant other than during the Term hereof shall be subject to
all of the provisions of this Lease, provided, however, that Tenant shall not be required to
pay Base Rent and Additional Rent during such non-term use ot occupancy. In the event
Landlord in delivering possession of the Premises on a turnkey basis, Landlord shall give
Tenant access to the Premises at least 30 days prior to the Commencement Date so that
Tenant may compete Tenant Made [mprovements so long as Tenant's instaflations do not
interfere with Landlerd’s Work.
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13.10 Entire Agreement; This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are,
and were, no verbal representations, understandings, stipulations, agreements or promises
pertaining to this Lease that arc not incorporated in this Lease. This Lease supersedes and
replaces the Letter of Intent, if any, previously entered into between Landlord and Tenant
which apreement shall be of no further force and effect after full execution and delivery
hereof, This Lease may not be altered, waived, amended or extended except by an
instrument in writing, signed by both Landlord and Tenant.

[Signature page follows.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have hereunto executed this lease as of the day

and year first above written.
LANDLORD:

DuPage Medical Group, Lid.
By: _ U oo
Name: Dennis Fing

Title: _ Chief Operating Officer
Date; \o \\ 1_\ A\

63

TENANT:

Rush University ical Center
e A0l _
By: ¢~
/

\//
Name: L Goodman, M.D

Title: Chief Execative r
Date: /O").Z-/[
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SECTION | — IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
Operating Identity/Licensee

This particular subsection of the application is not applicable as the Medical Office Building itself is not
subject to licensure, nor are any of the services provided at the location. The various medical services
will either be provided by licensed physicians or, in the case of the Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical
Services provided by Rush University Medical Center, a hospital off-site location, is outside of lllinois
Hospital licensure jurisdiction. According to the Hospital Licensing Act {210 ILCS 85) off-campus locations
do not fall within the definition of “hospital.” Therefore, there is no licensee for this project.

Upon advice of the |IHFSRB staff, however, the applicants have included the relevant information. As
such, this Attachment includes:

» |llinois Certificate of Good Standing for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.
e lllinois Certificate of Good Standing for Rush University Medical Center

The shares of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. are held in equal amounts by over 200 Physician
shareholders. Therefare, there is no person with 5% interest or greater in that corporation.
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File Numbey 4887-921-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

DU PAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED -
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 22, 1968, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE
RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Ilinois, this 3RD

day of MAY AD.. 2012

b '."’ f _,,’ EA 5:-.:3.:::'}:.'
q AL ’
s & Witz
Authenlication # 1212401688 M

Authenticals at: hittp:/fwww.cyberdriveillinots.com SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0200-214-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinais, do
hereby certify that

RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATICN, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 21, 1883, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of lllinois, this 15TH
dayof  DECEMBER  AD. 201

A ! ”
Authentication #: 1134500458 Q M W

Aythenticote at: hitp:fwww.crberdrivailinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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SECTION | — IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Organizational Relationships

Organizational Chart for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.

DuRagelViedicallGroupylitdl

DMG Real Estate, LLC

B

DMG Real Estate Holdings,
LLC

T

Surgical Center of DuPage
Medical Group, LLC

DMG Pain Management
Surgery Center, LLC

Midwest Physician
Administrative Services, LLC
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Explanation of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. Organizational Chart

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. wholly owns all subsidiary LLCs listed above. Those of particular note
include:

e DMG Real Estate, LLC is the owner of the site at 430 Warrenville Rd., Lisle, IL 60532,

Surgical Center of DuPage Medical Group, LLC is the legal name for the applicant that received a
CON to open an Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center in Lombard. (See Attachment 11).

DMG Pain Management Surgery Center, LLL is the legal name for the applicant that received a
CON to open an Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Center in Naperville. (See Attachment 11).

; t Attachment 4




Organizational Chart for Rush System for Health

Rush System for Health Organizational Chart

Rush Systamr
for Health

| ' ]

Riversice
Rush thuvenindy HLSh-Copies Rush C¥ak Park
Wedical Crates Madteo' gzu{u Hospiat Haalihcare
WA 3y et Ty PUREC) me&hm
- Hosphal
_| Futh Univfisly
Ml (e
|| Push Jndeecaity Rush-Copley Medical Center is nat a
co-applicant for this CON
| Resaarch application, Furthermorce, neither
Raush University Medical Center nor
[wees any memher of the Rush System for
mhi::swhwmnm § : Ith .'u fin: th'- . . |
{ . Vyreman Reveree lomaoemont 1calth will finance this project,
— EnEm
| Ry Surgicerver LL3, Gl Srwaing
!P:m

Dark boaes indicate niembers of —_— .

the obligated group.
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Explanation of Rush University Medical Center Organizational Chart

The organizational chart above is for Rush System for Health, a not-for-profit Illinois corporation and
includes Rush University Medical Center, which is the co-applicant. Rush System for Heaith does not
have any of the following rights or powers with respect to RUMC:

e approve and remove a controlling portion of an organization
e approve the use of funds or assets
¢ approve, amend, or modify the by-laws or other rules of governance

Furthermore, it should be noted that:

Rush Oak Park Hospital is operated by RUMC.
Riverside Healthcare has an affiliation with RUMC.

+ Neither Rush System for Health, Rush-Copley Medical Center, Rush Oak Park Hospital, or
Riverside Healthcare meets the test for co-applicancy.

Structure of Relationship between DMG and Rush

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Rush University Medical Center have entered into a landlord-tenant
relationship with respect to a portion of DMG Medical Office Building in Lisle. {(See Attachment 2 for a
copy of the lease). They have also entered into a Clinical Collaboration Agreement, which is designed to
break down operational and clinical barriers between DMG and Rush physicians in order to maximize
beneficial patient outcomes. This agreement is entirely separate from the DuPage Medical Group MOB.

DuPage Medical ‘\ Monthly Lease

Group, Ltd. — Payments
Use of 12,927 sq.
' ft. at MOB
Clinical Collaboration Rush University Medical
Agreement Center
Attachment 4
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SECTION I - IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Flood Plain Requirements

This project complies with lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 in that the building under construction is not
located in a flood plain.

Please find included with this Attachment:

e A statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive
Order #2005-5

¢ A Flood Plain map generated using FEMA'’s flood map generator for 430 Warrenville Rd.
Lisle, IL 60532
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DuPage Medical Group

I ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 1100 W, 31t Server. Snite 300, Doveners Growe, fL 60515 + 5 630 4659200

May 25, 2012

PR TSNS

Dale Galassie, Chairman

Illinois Health Facilities and Service Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Iilinois 62761

E T,

Sl Ly

Dear Chairman Galasste,

I hereby certify and attest that the Medical Office Building owned by DuPage Medical Group at
430 Warrenville Rd. in Lisle, IL is not located in a special flood hazard area.

Sincerely,

L YUV S
Dennis Fine, COO
DuPage Medical Group
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SECTION | — IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Historic Resources Act Preservation Requirements

Please find included here a copy of a fetter from Anne Haaker, Deputy State Historic Preservation
Officer, that no significant historical, architectural, or archeological resources are located within the
project area. '

Attachment 6
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Illinois Historic
=== Preservation Agency

¥ .
A 1 Oid State Capitol Plaza + Springfield, lllinois 62701-1612 + www.illinois-history.gov

DuPage County PLEASE REFER TO: IHPA LOG #003050412
Lisle

430 Warrenville Road

Section:2-Townehip:1B8N-Range:10E

THFSRB

New construction, DM3 Medical Office Building

May 10, 2012

Macthew Dunne

Murer Consultants, Inc.

58 North Chicage S5treet, 7th Floor
Joliet, IL 60432

Dear Mr, Dunne:

The Illipois Historic Preservation Agency is regquired by the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources
Preservation Act {20 ILCS 3420, as amended, 17 IAC 4180) to review all state funded, pexrmitted or
licensed undertakings for their effect on cultural rescurces. Pursuant to this, we have received
information regarding the referenced project for cur comment.

Qur staff has reviewed the specifications under the state law and assessed the impact of Che project as
submitted by your office. We have determined, based on the available information, that no significant
historic, architectural or archaeclogical resources are located within the proposed project area.

According to the information you have provided concerning your propesed project, apparently there is no
federal involvement in your project. However, please note that the state law is lesa restrictive than
the federal cultural resource laws concerning archaeclegy. If your project will use fedexal leans ox
grantse, need federal agency permits, use federal property, or invelve assistance from e federal agency,
then your project must be reviewed under the Naticonal Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended.
Please notify us immediately if such ie the case.

This clearance remains in effect for twe (2) years from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any
discovery during censtruction, nor is it a clearance for purposes of the IL Human Skeletal Remains

Protection Act {20 ILCS 3440).

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with the Illinois State Rgency
Historic Resocurces Preservation Act,

Coore € “Hloabase

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A teletypowrniter for the speechihearing impaired s available at 217.524-7 128, it is not & voice or fax fine. h t6
men

_1 S Attac




SECTION | — IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION AND CERTIFICATION

Project Cost and Source of Funds

USE OF FUNDS
Table 1: Use of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLNICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Preplanning Costs $7,868.54 512,471.46 $20,340.00
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $23,501.16 $37,248.84 $60,750.00
Site Preparation $198,020.60 $313,858.40 $511,879.00
Off Site Work 50
New Construction Contracts $10,461,790.01 516,581,711.99 $27,043,502,00
{Includes linac butld-out)
Maodernization Contracts N/A
Contingencies $235,165.59 $372,732.41 $607,898.00
Architectural/Engineering Fees $722,988.61 $1,145,921.39 $1,868,910.00
Consu'ting and Other Fees $415,610.84 $658,734.23 $1,074,345.07
Movable or Other Equipment {not in 52,862,172.00 $0.00 $2,862,172.00
construction contracts)
Bond Issuance Expense {project N/A
related)
Net Interest Expense During $85,107.09 $134,89291 $220,000.00
Construction {project refated)] {Interest Reserve)
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or N/A
Equipment
Other Costs to Be Capitalized £1,138,457.01 $2,089,725.9% $3,408,183.00
Acquisition of Building or Other $696,330.75 $1,103,669.25 $1,800,000.00
Propenty {excluding land)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 516,562,456.31 $21,714,655.76 $39,477,979.07
Table 2: Preplanning Costs [temized
Item Total Cost
Feasibility and Planning Work $15,440
Other Engineering Due Diligence $4,900
TOTAL $20,340
Tahle 3: Site Survey and Soil Investigation ltemized
item Total Cost
Soils Report {Architect and Engineer) $7,250
Alta Survey (Architect and Engineer) $3,500
Survey and Layout {Leopardo Construction) $50,000
TOTAL 460,750
Attachment 7




Table 4: Consulting and Other Fees [temized

Item Total Cost
Construction Management Fee $300,000
Permits and Other Fees $750,000
Construction Consultant Front End $4,000
Construction Consultant Monthly 59,600
Bank of America Appraisal Fee $6,500
Wheaton Bank and Trust Co. Appraisal Fee $350
Bank of America Environmental Review Fee $360
Survey $3,535.07
TOTAL $1,074,345.07
Table 5: Movable or Other Equipment itemized
item Tota! Cost
Linear Accelerator {Purchase Price) 52,862,172
TOTAL $2,862,172
Table 6: Acquisition of Building or Other Property Itemized
Item Total Cost
Furniture and Fixtures 51,500,000
(T, Phones & Infrastructure $300,000
TOTAL $1,800,000
Table 7: Other Costs to be Capitalized Itemized
Item Total Cost
Land Acquisition $3,267,178
Loan Fee $77,000
Bank Attorney $40,000
Title Company and Recording $15,905
Escrow Agent Draw and Wire Fee {12 months) $8,100
TOTAL $3,408,183
Attachment 7
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Table 8&: Source of Funds

SOURCE OF FUNDS

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $6,761,363.48 $10,716,615.59 $17,477,979.07
Pledges N/A

Gifts and Bequests N/A

Bond Issues {project related) N/A
Mortgages $8,510,709.16 $13,489,290.84 $22,000,000.00
Leases (Fair market value) N/A
Governmental Appropriations N/A

Grants N/A

Other Funds and Sources N/A

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $15,272,072.64 $24,205,906.43 $39,477,979.07

Attachment 7




SECTION I — IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Project Status and Completion Schedules

Please find included with this attachment a copy of the final working architectural drawings for the
DuPage Medical Group’s Medical Office Building at 430 Warrenville Rd. Lisle, I. 60532.

7 q Attachment 8
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SECTION | = IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

Cost Space Reguirements

Gross 5q. Ft.

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Sq.
Ft. That Is

Dept./Area

Cost

Existing

Proposed

New
Const.

Modernized

As | Vacated
Is Space

REVIEWABLE

Imaging

$5,908,569.86

N/A 14,138

14,138

N/A

N/A N/A

Chemo and
Infusion
Medical
Services
{Rush Univ.
Med. Center)

$5,402,467.29

N/A | 12,927

12,927

N/A

N/A N/A

Radiation
Oncology
{excluding
linear
accelerator)

$2,363,344.36

N/A | 5,655

5,655

N/A

N/A | N/A

Linear
Accelerator

$3,490,784.95%

N/A | 965

965

N/A

N/A N/A

Total Clinical

$17,165,166.46

N/A | 33,685

33,685

N/A

N/A | N/A

NON
REVIEWABLE

Caemmon
Space, Atrium

$5,324,316.03

N/A 12,740

12,740

N/A

N/A N/A

Primary Care,
Immediate
Care, Retail
Pharmacy, and
Lab

$5,570,471.61

N/A 13,329

13,329

N/A

N/A N/A

Physician
Office
(General)

$6,516,645.20

N/A 15,593

15,593

N/A

N/A N/A

Physician
Offices
{Oncology)

$4,901,379.78

N/A 11,728

11,728

N/A

N/A | N/A

Total Non-
clinical

$22,312,812.61

N/A 53,3%0

53,390

N/A

N/A | N/A

TOTAL

$39,477,979.07

N/A 87,075

87,075

N/A

N/A N/A

*The cost for the 965 sq. ft. devoted to the linear accelerator includes (1) the premium build-out cost of
$225,319 and (2) the purchase price of $2,862,172.
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SECTION Il — BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES — INFORMATION
REQUIREMENTS

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives
BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and
certification if applicable.

DMG Medical Group, Ltd. owns and operates the following health care facilities, both of which
are Ambulatory Surgical Treatment Centers:

® DMG Surgical Center in Lombard

e DMG Center for Pain Management in Naperville

See Attachment 11-Exhibit 1 for all refevant licensing and/or certification for these facilities

Rush University Medical Center owns and operates the following health care facilities:
* Rush University Medical Center in Chicago
« Rush Oak Park Hospital in Oak Park

See Attachment 11-Exhibit 2 for all relevant licensing and/or certification for these facilities

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

There have been no adverse actions taken against any facility owned or operated by DuPage
Medical Group, Ltd. during the three years prior to the filing of this application. See Attachment
11-Exhibit 3 for a statement of certification.

There have been no adverse actions taken against any facility owned or operated by Rush
University Medical Center during the three years prior to the filing of this application. See
Attachment 11-Exhibit 4 for a statement of certification.

3, Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized
accreditation organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or
withdrawal of the application without any further action by HFSRB,

Attachment 11-Exhibit 3 includes authorization from DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. certifying that there
have been no adverse actions against its facilities listed above and permitting HFSRB and IDPH access to
any documents necessary to verify the information submitted in this application. Attachment 11-Exhibit
4 also includes authorization from Rush University Medical Center to the same effect.

ATTACHMENT 11
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Note: Rush University Medical Center had previously filed a CON application on fanuary 31, 2012
{Project 12-011) to modernize the atrium and Kellogg buildings as its location on 1650 West Harrison
and 1753 West Congress Parkway. Per 77 Ill. Adm. Code §1110.230(a}{4), RUMC has used information
included in that application to fulfill the relevant information requirements. RUMC has also included an
attestation certifying that no changes have occurred regarding the information previously provided. See

Attachment 11-Exhibit 5.

ATTACHMENT 11
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Attachment 11-Exhibit 1
Accreditation and Licensure for DMG's
Health Care Facilities

CU S A 53 S LIV Y A TR
ForANTRLUT LY SIEAD ds PR Dt

AMay 8.7012

Chrganization of; 68951 Acereditation Expires: May 1, 2015

Orgamization: ibage Medical Group Surgical Center. LLC dbu Surgica) Cenfer of DuPage Medicai
Group

Address: 1725 South Techuology Drive

City. Sune, Zip: Lombard, 11, 60148-3673

Decision Recipient; Dawn Dormitorio Survey Chair:  Janies Hansen. BS. MA

Survey Contacl; Nawn Dormitorio Survey Team Members: Kausia Rossi. RN, DSN,

MBA-HCA. LHRM, CASC
[.eah Pefers

Survey Dates: April 16-17, 2012 Accreditation Renewnt Coder efd2icicbB951
Complimentary Study Participation code: GROSIFREELQI]

It is a pleasure 10 inform vou that the Accreditation Assoeiation for Ambulaiory Health Care, Inc. (AAAHC)
Accreditation Comimitice has awarded DuPage Medieal Group Surgical Center, LLC dba Surgicsl Center of
Dulage Metical Group, # three-yenr term of necreditation.

Granting acereditation refiects confdence, based on evidence from this recent survey that vou meet, and will continue
1o demonstrate thiaughout the acereditation term, the attributes of an accredilable orsanization us reflecied in the
standards found in the Accreditation Handbook for Ambulatory Health Care. The dedication and effort necessary for
an organizaiion to be aceredited is substantial and the compliance with those standards implics a commitment to
cattinua! seli~evaluation and continuous improvement,

Members of vour organizatinn should take time w review vour Survey Repert, which may arrive separarely:

*  Any standard marked “PC” (Partially Compliant) or “NC~ (Non-Compliant) must be correcled promptly.
Subseyuent survevs by ihe AAAHRC will seek evidence that deficiencies from this survey were addresscd
without delay,

»  The Summary Tablg provides an overview of compliance [or cach chapter applicable 1o the organization.
Emphasis for atiention shouid be miven to chapters marked “PC™ (Partiolly Compliant) or “NC” (Non-
Conpiiant).

¢ Asa goide to the onynhtg process of self-evaluation, periodically review the Swrvey Report Lo ensure the
organization’s ongoing compliance with the standards throughout the term of accreditation.

¢ Swiements in the "Consuhative Commeyts” sections ol the yeport represem the educational compoenent of the
survey, Such comrments may provide supgested approaches for correcting identified deficiencivs,

AAAHC policies and procedures ang stamlards are revised on an annual bazis, such revisions become effective
March | each vear. Accredited orzanizations ate required to mainiain their operations in compliance with the cuirent
AAANC standards and policies Therefore, the organization is enconraged to visit the AAAHC website,

waww gaalewry, for information periaining Lo any revisions to AAAHC polivies and procedures and standeards.

We hope the survey has been beaeficial to vour organization in identifying its strengths and opportmitres (o improve.
AAANC trusts that you will continite 10 find the accteditativn experience meaningful, tot only from thi benefit of
naving carelufly reviewad your own operation. but alse from the recognition brought lortit by your panicipation in
1his SUrvCy process.

fn order fo ensure continuation of accreditation, your oreanization should submit & application for survey

approximately five months prior to vour accreditation expiration. According ic cur Accreditation !Handbook,
Crrrently-aeeredited ereanizations mst complete and subant the Application for Survey, supporiing
docimenation, amd appilcanon fre for their subsequert fill accreditation sirvev (referred 1o as a re-acereditation
survey) Plause visit wwaypuudt e tu complete the Apphcetion jor Surver. and for furiher informaton, After
review of an vrgaszasion s comolered Applicanon for Survey and suppocting documeniation, the 14ARC will

é © 't Attachment 'Li- Exhibiit 1
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Organizasion ¥ 61951 Acereditation Expires: May 1, 2015
Oroanization: DuPage Medieat Groap Surgical Center, LLC tba Surgical Ceoter of DuPage
Medical Group
My 8. 202
Page 2
comact the organizarion o estoblish survey dures To provent a lapse in avereduation, en organizaion should
ensure that aif documentation is submitted 10 the A4AHC at least five (3) months prior 1 its acerediiation
expirativi date. In stares where acereditanen is mandated by kv, en arganization should submit the compleied
Application for Survey and other requived documemation a minimwn of siv (6) months prior te its accreditetion
expiraiion date,
For submission of an application for survey, vour organization will nced 1he “accreditation renewal code’ located
andementh the accreditation expiration date,

You will notice that you have a “complinenrary sindy participarion code™ a1 the 10p of this letter. You may use 1his
10 regisier for one of the AAAHC Institute Tor Quality Tmprovemens's studics, Please visit www.aaahe orpfinstitute
for additional infurmation ar contact Michelle Chappell. at 547-324-7747 or mehappelifaaahe.org.

If you have any guestions or comments abow any partien of the accredilation pracess, please contact the AAAHC
Accreditation Services depanment a1 (847) 853-60460.

A

AL EDINTATTIONN ASSMICIATH
AA O AMNULATORY HEALTH ¢ AR, 1N, -
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‘ i ACCREDITATION ASSQCIATION
]’E}‘?'AMBULA'I'DRY HUALTIL CARE, INC.

November 23, 2011
Accreditation Effective Date: November 22, 2011
Recommended Medicare Deemed Status: Yes

Orpanization 4: 45139 Accreditation Expiration Date: November 22, 2012
Organization: DMG Pain Management Surgery Center
Address: 2940 Rollingridge Road, Suite 200
City, State, Zip: Napcerville, IL 60564-4226
Decision Recipient: Kristina Sharkey Survey Chair; Paiti Spears, RN
Survey Contact; Kristina Sharkey Survey Team Member Mary Shea, RN, BS, CNOR, CRNFA
Special co: CMS CO - Baltimore
CMS RO ¥ - Chicago
CMS Certification Type of Survey: Early Option Survey/Initial Medicare
Number (CCN): Initial Deemed Status
Survey Dates: November 14-15, 2011 Correction Method:  Plan of Correction

Self-Attestation
Document Review

Correction Timeframe:  November 2011 to November 2011

It is & pleasure to inform you thal the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care, Inc, (AAA1IC) Accreditation
Committee has awarded DMG Pain Management Surgery Center a one-year term of full ncereditation, based on
participation in the Early Oplion Survey Program.

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) requires that ambulatory surgery centers (ASC) demonstrate
compliance with the Medicare Conditions for Coverage (CfC) to be eligible for Medicare deemed status, As an ASC that
had an AAAHC/Medicare deemed status survey, your ASC has demonstrated its compliance with the AAAHC standards
and all CfCs; however, standard-level deficiencies were identified. Your ASC has submitted an acceptable Plan of
Correction {FOC) and is recommended for participation in the Medicare deemed status program at the accreditation
effective date referenced above. CMS has the authority 1o determine the effective date for participation in Medicare
deemed status. CMS will identify the effective date for Medicare certification and participation in deemed status based on
its fina] deterrnination of your 8558 application for Medicare certification.

Granting accreditation reflects confidence, based on evidence from this recent survey that you meet, and will continue to
demonstrate throughout the accreditation term, the attributes of an accreditable organization as reflected in the standards
found in the Accreditation Handbook for Ambulatory Health Care. The dedication and effort necessary for an
organization to be accredited is substantial and the compliance with those standards implies a commitment to continual
seif-evaluation and continuous improvement,

Members of your organization should take time to review the enclosed Survey Report:

»  Any standard marked “PC” (Partially Compliant) or "NC” {(Non-Compliant) must be corrected promptly,
Subscquent surveys by the AAAHC will seck gvidence that deficiencics from this survey were addressed
without delay.

¢  The Summary Table provides an overview of compliance for each chapter applicable 1o the organization,
Emphasis for attention should be given tc chapters marked “PC” (Partially Compliant} or “NC" (Nen-
Compliant}.

»  As a guide to the ongoing process of self-cvaluation, periodically review the Survey Report to ensure the
organization’s ongoing compliance with the standards throughout the term ol accreditation.

AAAHC policies and procedures and standards are revised on an annual basis, such revisions become cffective March |
each year. Aceredited organizations are required to maintain their operations in compliance with the current AAAHC
standards and policies. Therefore, the organization is encouraged to visit the AAAHC website, www aaahc.org, for
information pertaining to any revisions toe AAAHC policies and procedures and standards,

Impeaving Healeh Care Quality Through Accreditacion s252 Old Grehard Road, survs 200 TEL (847) 353 Gado wwnwaazhe.org
Skaolue, Hlinais Goo77 rax (8q7) 853 yo2l info@agabe.org
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Organization #: 95139 Accreditation Expiration Date: November 22, 2012
Organization: DMG Pain Management Surgery Center

November 23, 2011

Page 2

We hope the survey has been beneficial to your organization in identifying its strengihs and opportunities to improve.
AAAHC trusts that you will continue to find the acereditation experience meaningful, not only from the benefit of having
carefully reviewed your own operation, but also fom the recognition brought forth by your participation in this survey
process,

If you have any questions or comments about any portion of the accreditalion process, pleasc contact the AAAHC
Accreditation Services department at (847) 853-6060.

A ACCREDITATION ASSOCIATION
for AMBULATORY HEALTII CARE, INC.

tq ] L Attaghmgnt 11- Exhibit 1
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T State of lllinl:lis LHOLTET
s ‘Ilepartment of Public Health

( LICENSE, PEHMIT, CERTIFICATION, REGISTRATION )

The person, fiem or corpertion whose name appears an this cerlificate has complled with the
provigions of fhe lliinois Etatulas arckir rulas and - regulations apd ic beleby authnsized ta
angage in the adivily as indicated belpe,

DANMDOE T. ARNOLD ¥ H.n. Izswend antter the asdbuily ol
4 I o i
NTRECTOR ’ (IJ::- f‘h.‘!'n:rﬂ : sr’f;,shc_ Heatth

EXPRATKIN DAl ChATEGUHY . LI HUMDE:

.
:
c
£
g 08f06/12 BGBD 7003162
£

FULL LICENSE
AMBULATORY SYRCICAL TRMT CTh

EPEECTIVE: Q9/07/11

BUSINESS ADDRESS
DMG Tain Manpperment Surgery Center, LLC

2480 Pollingridge Ste 200
Manetville, 1L G0LA4

QFFICE COPY

The face nl thh Ilcun haua cu!md hasluruund annd l'.u.‘ nllhnr{ly nl lhn smn ol |l[|nms . 4!!1' ..

~g-— DISPLAY THIS PART IN X
CONSPICYOUS PLACGE

REMOVE THIS CARD TD CARRY AS AN
IDENTIFICATIN

!

State of Minals 406784
Oepartment of Public Health
LICENSE PERMlT CEF!TIFICAT]ON REGISTRATION

mea ?a&ﬁ Hanag@mnnt Surgery Center, LILC

- SHPIREFICH GRIL CATEGORY 10, MMEET
08/06/12 RGEO FO031L6Y
FOLLILICENSE

AMRULATORY STURGICAT. TRMT CTR

EPFECTIVE: 09/07/11

DMG Pain ¥onagement Surperyy Conter, 118
2490 Pollingridae Ste 21
Maperwflle, 11, GOSE4

FEE RECEIPT NQ.
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Attachment 11-Exhibit 2
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Rush University
Medical Center
Chicago, IL
has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organtmation amd faund ft tn ineet the requiremens for the

Hospital Accreditation Program

November 14, 2009

Accreditation is customarily valid for up to 39 months.

Qott ottt v (P a5

Dt L. $ahrwnld, M. [y - Dare: 1710715 otk Charito, .10
Chairmen ofhe Basrd print Presidens

The Joint Commission is an Independent, natfor-prafie, netionsal bady that ovarzees the safery and qunlicy of health carc end
arher services provided In accredited oepanlaatiane  [nformation: about nceredited osganizatlens may be pravided direetly
w The Jolne Commbssion w 1-800-994-661C.  Informatiun reganding accruditation und dhe weereditadon pedfuommance of
mdividnl organicans can be obeained through The Jaine Commlslon's web site 8 wwnw.jolnicommizsion.org.

s
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44
PV The Joint Commission

November 18, 2010

Lary J. Goodman Jaint Commisslon ID¥: 7297
President and Chiel Bxecutive Officer Certiflcation Activity: Intro-Cye¢le
Rush Univernity Medical Center Certificotion Activity Due: 1140172010
1653 West Congress Porkway Program: Discase-Specific Core
Chicago, {llinois 60612 Cartifiestion-Pnmary Stroke Contor

Dear Dr. Goodmen:

The Joint Commission would like to thank your orgenization for purticipating in the Joint Commission's
certifieation process. This process is designed 1o help your arganization continuousty provide sale, high-quality care,
treatment, and services by idertifying epportusities for impravement in your processes and helping you follow
through on and implement these impravements. We encourage you to use the certification process s » contimuovs
standards compliance and operntioml improvemen tool.

The Joinl Commission is continuing Lo grant your orgnnizatian e Passed Cenification decision for oll services
reviewed under the applicable menua) noted below:

+ Dissase-Speaifio Care Certificat ]
Plegse viait wany iointcommission.om for information related to your certified sites.

We enoourage you to share this certifiestion decision with your erganization's oppropriate saff, keadership, and
geverming body, You muy nlso wimnt to inform the Center for Medicare and tedicaid Services (CM3), state or
regional regulatory services, md the public you serve of your organizstion’s certificetion decision,

Please be assured Lhat the Joint Commission will keep the report confidentinl, except B3 required by lew. To ensure
that e Joint Commission’s infermetion sboul your organization is shways securstc and current, our policy requirss
thot you inform wa of any changes in the nme or ewnership of your orgardzation or the henltheere pervices you
provide.

Sincerely,

74»—«- Smrf'bq_.,.___ M' P d

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, PR D.
Executive Vice Presidem
Acereditation and Certification Operations

www.jolnlcommlssion.org Headquarters
Onec Remalsanee Boulevard
Oatbmok Termce, 1L 60041
630 707 5000 Voice
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Rush Oak Park Hospital, Inc.
Qak Park, IL

has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission
Which has surveyed this organization and found it to mect the requirements for the

Hospital Accreditation Ptogtam

This award excludes skilled nursing and nursing home services.

August 14, 2010

Acceeditagon is customadly valid for up o 39 months.

David A. Whitten, DS, Peint/Reprint Date: Mark Chassln, M.D.
Chnfyman of the Board Frezident

The Join: Coenmission is an independent, nor-for-profit, national body dhat oversess the safery and qualiry of headth eare and
other services provided in zccredited organizstions. Information abaut accredited otganizatiens may be provided directly te
The Joint Commission st 1-800-994-6610, Information regarding accredirarinn and the sear {itation pecformance of individus
organizations can be obrained through The Joint Commission’s web site at www jointeommlssion.org,

v N
pf M A% {y} iaﬁi

I
¥

This reproduciian of the original sccrodiadon cartficats hap been issurd tor uss In regulatonyptyer agency varfication of
scereditation by Tha Joint Commimlon. Ploass cansult Guality Chack on The Jolm c lgalon's ta confirm the
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Acc# 3188 tnspection: Sign/fawning
Rush Qak Park Hospital Inspection; Slgn/awning {addiional)
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Oak Park. IL 60304 Merchandise: Newspaper Stands

October 12, 2011 December 31, 2012
Date lssued ) Explration Date
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DuPage Medical Group

[ aominssTraTIVE OFFICE 1100 . 343t Stree. Suite 300, Downers Grove, IL GOSIS + p 630 465 9200

May 25, 2012

Mr. Dale Galassic, Chairman

1llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2 Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Chairman Galassie,

In keeping with 77 Ill. Adm. Code §1110.230(a) (Background of Applicant - Information Requirements),
please find this letter of certification and authorization.

Specifically, this letter certifies that none of the health care facilities owned or operated by DuPage
Medical Group, Lid., to wit DMG Surgical Center in Lombard and DMG Center for Pain Management in
Naperville, have had any adverse actions taken against them in the three (3) years prior to the filing of this

application.

Furthermore, DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. authorizes, on behalf of DMG Surgical Center and DMG
Center for Pain Management, the Health Facilities and Services Review Board and the {llinois
Department of Public Health to access to any documents necessary to verify the information submitted,
including, but not limited to: official records of IDPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized

accreditation organizations.

Sincerely,
Dennis Fine, COOQ
DuPage Medical Group Ltd.

Aftachment 11- Exhibit 3
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DuPage Medical Group
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; 1;'_—’: Mr. Dale Galassie, Chairman
% : Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
oA 525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Eloor
‘E;% Springfield, Illinois 62761
iy
‘1'5‘; Chairman Galassie,
24
‘}4 ; In keeping with 77 Ill. Adm. Code §1110.230(a) (Background of Applicant - Information Requirements),
E please find this letter of certification and authorization.
i Specifically, this letter certifies that none of the health care facilities owned or operated by DuPage
| 2: Medical Group, Ltd., to wit DMG Surgical Center in Lombard and DMG Center for Pain Management in
v Naperville, have had any adverse actions taken against them in the three (3) years prior to the filing of this
@"‘ application.
E,:f Furthermore, DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. authorizes, on behalf of DMG Surgical Center and DMG
E&é Center for Pain Management, the Health Facilities and Services Review Board and the Illinois
;}:.;"t Department of Public Health to access to any documents necessary to verify the information submitted,
'Ei including, but not limited to: official records of IDPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
-.,}-:s_' certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized
5.: : accreditation organizations.
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0 Dennis Fine, COO
,-* DuPage Medical Group Ltd.
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Professional Building Tel: 312,942,880
1725 W. Harrisan St, Fax: 312.942.2055

Suite 364 peter_butler@rush.edu
Chicago, IL 60512

A Peter W, Butler
RUS H Rush Unlversity Medical Canter
\l} President and Chief Operating Officer
Rush University

Chairman, Department of Health Systems
Management

April 24, 2012

Mr, Dale Galassie, Chair

IMinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Galassic;

In accordance with Criterion 1110.230.a, Background of the Applicant, we are submitting this
letter assuring the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board that:

1. Rush University Medical Center and Rush Oak Park Hospital do not have any adverse
actions against any facility owned or operated by the applicant during the last three (3)
year period prior to the filing of this application, and

2. Rush University Medical Center and Rush Oak Park Hospital authorize the State Board
and Agency access to information in order to verify documentation or information
submitted in response to the requirements of Criterion 1110.230.a or to obtain

documentation or information which the State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this
application.

Sincerely,

e/

Peter W. Butler

cc: Mike Constantino, Supervisor of Project Review

Rush 15 a not-for-prolft heatth care, education and research enterprise comprising Rush University Medical Center, Rush Univessity, Rush Qak Park Hospital and Rush Heafth,

’6 2 Attachment 11- Exhibit 4




Professional Building Tel: 312.942.880 121 5H

1?{25 W. Harrison St. Fax: 312.942.2055
Suite 364 peter_butler@rush.edy
Chicago, IL 60612

ﬁ Peter W, Butler
\II Rush University Medlcal Canter
Fresident and Chief Operating Cfficer

Rush University
Chairman, Department of Health Systems
Management

April 24, 2012

Mr. Dale Galassie, Chairman

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson, 2™ Floor

Springfield, lllinois 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie;

In January 2012, Rush University Medical Center (“Rush” or “RUMC") submitted a
Certificate of Need application for modernization of selected portions of the Atrium and
Kellogg buildings. With an expedited review, Rush received approval for

Permit #12-011 on April 17, 2012.

In accordence with 77 Ill. Admin Code 1110.230{a)(4), Rush is submitting this letter
attesting that the information previously provided in the January 2012 application
(#12-011), will be used in this application and that, except for the immediate corrections
and update listed below, there are currently no changes to this information.

- State Staff requested clarification of numbers of recovery stations on pages 81
and 88, copies enclosed dated February 9, 2012; and

- Moody’s rating update of Rush dated February 28, 2012.

Rush will submit amendments to the information submitted in application #12-011, as
needed, to update and/or clarify data.

Sincerely,

%wlgﬂ;

Peter W. Butler

cc: Couriney Avery, Administrator, IHFSRB
Mike Constantino, Supervisor of Project Review
Anne Murphy, General Counsel, Rush University Medical Center

Rush is a nat-for-prolit health care, sducation and sesearch enterprise comprising Rush Universiy Medical Center, Rush Unlversity, Rush Dak Park Hospital and Fush Health.

( .: Attachment 11- Exhibit 5




SECTION Ill = BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES — INFORMATION
REQUIREMENTS

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

Improving Health Care in DuPage County
The Need for Complex, Specialized Care in the Western Suburbs

DuPage Medical Group (DMG) serves the residents of DuPage County, llincis, which is co-terminous
with Health Planning Area 05. It does have several locations outside that area, but this project is
intended primarily to serve patients in DuPage County.

Incidences of cancer are on the rise in the United States as the population ages. Sixty-five (65) is the age
at which one’s risk of cancer increases, and 10,000 people are turning 65 every day.! According to the
calculations of the applicants, demand for cancer treatment in DuPage County will grow by roughly 3%
per year for the foreseeable future, when overall growth and the aging of the population are taken into
consideration.

As is detailed in Attachment 37 of this submission, the applicants expect roughly 4,900 new cancer cases
in 2013. Therefore, there is a high demand for the type of services that will be provided at this MOB.
Furthermore, this demand will only increase in the coming years.

The purpose of this project is to provide the community with high-level, standardized, comprehensive,
and coordinated care. In providing these services, the co-applicants will bring a higher level of care to
the community than is presently available. It will do so by providing the following:

* Integrated and coordinated approach to treatment

* Comprehensive care in a central location within the community

» Patient-centered, personalized care, including support and guidance

s The latest radiation therapy equipment, which will minimize side-effects, reduce treatment
times, and lower costs

Case Studies: The Scope and Purpose of the Clinical Collaboration Agreement

DMG and Rush University Medical Center {Rush) entered into a clinical collaboration agreement in
October 2011 after years of discussion and planning.” The primary purpose of this agreement is to break
down operational and clinical barriers in order to maximize beneficial patient outcomes and patient
access. Both DMG and Rush have provided demonstrative cases studies illustrating how the clinical
collaboration agreement currently operates and is intended to operate in the future. These case studies

! Boomers Hit New Self-Absorption Milestone: Age 65, New York Times, December 10, 2010.

? See Attachment 12-Exhibit 1.
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were formulated with the assistance of physicians from both organizations and incorporate the
experiences and understandings of those physicians.®

From the perspective of these physicians, this agreement is, first and foremost, a relationship that was
conceptualized prior to the construction of DMG’s Medical Office Building, the subject of this Certificate
of Need application. As discussed by the physicians, the clinical collaboration between DMG and Rush
has been undertaken, at its core, in the spirit of cooperation and coordination between and among
physicians. The agreement is intended to open more direct lines of communication between physicians
in order to streamline operations and improve the patient care process. Furthermore, this agreement
will bring high level, specialized services to the area, thus improving patient outcomes. All of the
physicians interviewed for this case study offered examples from their own practices of how the
agreement is accomplishing this goal:

First, this clinical collaboration agreement allows DMG patients, through increased communication with
Rush University Medical Center physicians, access to specialized and high-level tertiary services provided
by academic physicians. For instance, the streamlining of communication has already enabled Dr.
Nemivant (DMG) to send some of his patients to an “outstanding” thoracic surgeon at Rush. This access
would be more difficult without the facilitation process provided by the clinical collaboration
agreement.

Dr. Merrick (DMG) explained that patients sometimes need a university level of care not available in the
community. This is especially important in instances where, as is the case with Dr. Hoscheit's (DMG)
pancreatic cancer patients, it is not uncommon to have a diagnostic option in the community but no
therapeutic option. In fact, this lack of a therapeutic option in the community forces many patients who
live in the suburbs to go to Rush or other facilities in the City of Chicago for treatment. Indeed, there is a
substantial outmigration of cancer patients from DuPage County to receive treatment in Chicago.

This access to specialized care is in keeping with the philosophy and culture shared by DMG and Rush. As
explained by Dr. Bonomi {Rush}), both organizations want to provide super-specialized and
comprehensive patient care. This collaboration agreement is a vehicle for doing so.

Second, this agreement allows easier dialogue among specialists, for example, between Dr. Nemivant
and an oncologist from Rush to whom he often refers lung cancer patients. Thus not only does this
agreement allow patients easier access to specialized academic medicine, it also allows the primary care
or attending physician from DMG expedited interface with Rush specialists which can then be integrated
into the patient’s plan of treatment.

It is necessary to minimize the barriers to communication where patients receive initial treatment at a
university-level facility in Chicago but then receive most of their follow up treatments closer to their
home in the suburbs. This is common in the practices of the physicians interviewed. This collaboration
agreement is intended to foster communication in these situations. Per Dr. Merrick, complex cases
require direct communication between physicians and this agreement is a vehicle bringing that about,

Shared medical records are an example of how this agreement will enhance communication between
physicians. As explained by Dr. Merrick, unified medical records are of an enormous value to patients

? Please see Attachment 12-Exhibit 2 for the biographical information of the physicians interviewed for these case
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given the many subtleties of complex care. This ability to share clinical information will also allow
physicians to make better decisions that are based on structured and coherent medical records, rather
than on the memory of patients.

Third, the agreement will also facilitate access for DMG patients to clinical trials conducted by Rush.
Sometimes patients need access to clinical trials when other therapies have proved insufficient. This
agreement creates an entry point for patients to participate in these trials and allows Rush to more
easily identify patients appropriate for the clinical trials. Also, as explained by Dr. Bonomi, Rush will
establish the infrastructure for patients living in DuPage County to participate in the clinical trials in their
gwn community, rather than requiring them to travel into Chicago.

According to Dr. Bonomi {Rush), the preponderance of patients served under this collaboration
agreement are those being, and who will be, referred from DMG. Some patients will be seeking a
tertiary opinion from Rush. Others will not be referred from either organization but will enter into
treatment because of the quality of care provided under the framework of this agreement. Some of this
is happening already, and the applicants anticipate seeing growth because of the improved access to
specialized, expert care.

As these case studies demonstrate, the clinical collaboration agreement has a broad-ranging purpose
that is not inherently linked with the DuPage Medical Office Building. Indeed, it is building on pre-
existing relationships between physicians from both groups and would or could have occurred
regardless of the construction of DuPage Medical Group’s MOB in Lisle,

Market Area

As stated above, this project is intended to serve primarily the residents of DuPage County ({the Primary
Market Service Area). However, it is expected that patients living in Cook, Will, and Kane County will also
visit this location. This is for two reasons, First, most patients at this MOB will be referred from
physicians located at other DMG locations, and DMG has locations in DuPage, Cook, Will, and Kane
County. Second, it is anticipated that patients will also be referred by Rush or by other providers as word
spreads of the high quality services provided at the MOB. It is likely that some of these will come from
outside of DuPage County {the Secondary Market Service Area).

The MOB will be located at 430 Warrenville Rd. in Lisle, IL. Given where DMG locations are
concentrated, the most appropriate border for the service area encompasses the following cities/towns:

¢ to the North: Bloomingdale

e tothe West: Warrenville

¢ to the South: Naperville/Woodridge
s to the East: Hinsdale

See Attachment 12-Exhibit 3 for a map showing DMG’s locations as well as the planned Market Service
Area.
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Existing Problems

DuPage Medical Group is undertaking this project because it has identified several issues that, in the
aggregate, make it difficult to provide its patients with the highest quality care. They are as follows:

Fragmentation of Care

In DuPage County, cancer care is, for the most part, fragmented, meaning patients receiving treatment
tend to go to several different providers who often have trouble coordinating with one another. Often,
physicians have to rely on patients as a source of information regarding treatments they have received
from other providers. This is [ess than optimal. Furthermore, lack of a standardized medical record
means that even when physicians are able to coordinate on a patient’s course of treatment they are
often relying on incomplete information.

Care is at its best when delivered by highly specialized professionals working in close cooperation.
Therefore, this piecemeal delivery of care inevitably affects quality, Also, DMG physicians are forced to
outsource many of their treatments and are therefore not in a position to provide the necessary
oversight so as to ensure the highest standard of care.

Lack of a Treatment Option

If DMG wishes to ensure that its patients receive coordinated and comprehensive care of the highest
quality, it must have the ability to provide radiation therapy. Indeed, without such capability DMG could
not provide care that is either coardinated or comprehensive since radiation therapy is such an integral
part of cancer treatment.

Currently, DMG has no such treatment option, as it does not own or operate a linear accelerator. [thas a
diagnostic capability but must outsource nearly all treatments. This is particuiarly problematic because
radiation therapy is involved in the vast majority of cancer treatments. Also, because DMG does.not
operate any linear accelerators, it is not in a position to oversee and ensure the proper administration of
doses of radiation. Misadministration of radiation therapy, which does occur if the therapy is not done
properly, can have serious side-effects.

Convenience

Due to the fragmentation of cancer care in DuPage County and the lack of a reliable treatment option,
many DMG patients travel to Chicago for care. This is very inconvenient, as it forces patients to shuttle
between the city and their community (where their support network is located) for follow-up
appointments and further treatment.

Lack of University-Level Care

For some patients, a higher level of care is necessary to treat their cancer. It is also common for patients
to seek a second opinion, often at a university-level facility. Furthermore, university medical centers are
where the most accomplished specialists are and where most clinical trials are conducted. This helps
explain why s0 many patients from the community feel compelied to travel into Chicago for diagnosis
and treatment, despite the obvious inconvenience.

10
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Addressing the Existing Problems

Fragmentation of Care

This project addresses the fragmentation of care by bringing all cancer diagnoses and treatments under
one roof. The use of a single location, along with the fact that physicians are from the same group will
minimize barriers to communication and help patients receive more coordinated care. This will be
especially beneficial for the more complicated cases, where physician coordination is at a premium. For
example, patients will have a unified electronic medical record to which all DMG physicians will, as
necessary, have access. This will help ensure that physicians have all the information they need and that
nothing is missed. This problem will also be addressed through the clinical collaboration agreements as
explained above, although that agreement is independent of this project.

The clinical collaboration also addresses the fragmentation of care. It should be noted, however, that
the agreement is wholly independent of this project.

Lack of a Treatment Option

Through the purchase of a linear accelerator, this project will provide patients a readily available
treatment option that will allow DMG to offer more comprehensive and coordinated care. It will also
enable DMG to ensure treatment is of the highest quality as it will no longer have to cutsource
treatments.

The applicants prepared a case study as to the role of linear accelerators in the provision of radiation
therapy. This case study was prepared with the assistance of Dr. Brian Moran of DMG, a renowned
specialist in radiation therapy.® As explained by Dr. Moran, linear accelerators are an integral part of the
current standard of care for radiation therapy. This particular type of equipment uses microwave
technology to accelerate electrons, which are in turn used to generate high energy x-rays. These beams
are then shaped to conform to the patient’s tumor so as to concentrate high doses on that tumor and
minimize radiation on other parts of the body.

Linear accelerators are by far the most commonly used device for external beam radiation treatments.
Dr. Moran estimates that around 95% of all radiation therapy done in the United States utilizes a linear
accelerator. There are several reasons for this, the principal one being that it is as effective in shrinking
tumors as any other method of treatment.

The specific type of linear accelerator proposed is the RapidArc, the newest version of the most
commonly accepted standard of care modality for radiation therapy able to perform treatments much
more efficiently than earlier models. Per Dr. Moran, it is able to generate four times the radiation per
unit time compared with earlier models. It also allows a greater focus of radiation on the tumor, thus
minimizing radiation to healthy tissue. Indeed, it is on par with proton-beam therapy in this regard but
at a significantly reduced cost.

This linear accelerator is part of DuPage Medical Groups’ MOB project in order to improve the quality of
care. Having a linear accelerator means that DMG physicians will no longer have to outsource
treatments, but will instead be in a position to ensure the necessary guality of care. It will also benefit

* Dr. Moran’s biographical sketch is inctuded in Attachment 12-Exhibit 2.
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patients and third-party payers as it will help deliver better care more efficiently and thus more cost-
effectively. In this regard, it should be noted that the applicants project at least 7,688 treatments in the
first year of utilization; this is well above the established standards.

Dr. Moran is firmly supportive of this goal and endorses the acquisition of the linear accelerator. This
support should be given great weight not only because of his professional credentials, but also because
he is himself a cancer survivor, and thus has a personal commitment to delivering the highest quality of

care.
Convenience

By building this MOB in DuPage County, patients in the community will have easier access to
comprehensive, high-quality diagnosis and treatment provided in a coordinated manner. This will mean
fewer trips into Chicago for patients. It also means that treatment will be provided in one location within
the community rather than at various physician offices located throughout the area. Also, the planned
site for this MOB is conveniently located, with easy access via 1-88, 1-355, and US Route 34.

Lack of University-Leve! Care

The level of coordination and comprehensiveness is usually only available at university-level institutions.
This project will bring that higher standard of care into the community. It will provide a facility for
diagnosis and treatment and will also enable physicians to more easily coordinate their efforts, thus
improving patient outcomes.

As previously described in the section on Improving Health Care in DuPage County, DMG has entered
into a clinical collaboration agreement with Rush University Medical Center. This agreement will
enhance access to university-level care for patients in the community but is not dependent on the MOB
to exist. The MOB will, however, facilitate and enhance optimal utilization under the agreement.
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Attachment 12-Exhibit 1

Clinical Collaboration Agreement
Between DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and
Rush University Medical Center

Note: Some portions of this clinical collaboration agreement have been redacted. The portions
redacted are those that provide specific terms regarding monetary compensation. This
information is considered proprietary and confidential. Furthermore, this information is not
necessary for the purpose intended by inclusion of this document in the CON submission, i.e.
understanding the scope and character of the clinical collaboration agreement.
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Attachment 12-Exhibit 1
Clinical Collaboration Agreement Between
DMG and RUMC

AFFILIATION AGREEMENT

THIS AFFILIATION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective the 12th day of
October, 2011 (“Effective Date”), by and between Rush University Medical Center, a tax-
exempt, Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“RUMC"), Rush Health, a taxable Illinois not-for-
profit corporation (“Rush Heaith” and together with RUMC, “Rush™) and DuPage Medical
Group, Ltd., an Illinois corporation (“DMG”), Rush and DMG may each be referred to as a
“party” and collectively as “parties” to this Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the health care industry has experienced significant growth in revenues and
expenses, changes in federal and state government regulatory and reimbursement programs,
shifis in demographics and demand, rapid technological enhancements, and other economic
changes which have encouraged collaboration between and among health care providers to share
resources and provide additional and cost-¢ffective services and facilities to the communities

they serve;

WHEREAS, RUMC is a tax-exempt, not-for-profit medical center engaged in research,
education, and patient care, which also owns and operates a University with four colleges, a
hospital and various clinical sites in the greater metropolitan Chicago, Illinois area to provide a
full spectrum of health care services;

WHEREAS, Rush Health is a clinically integrated network of physicians and hospitals
working together to improve health through high quality, efficient health care services covering
the spectrum of patient care;

WHEREAS, DMG is a multi-specialty medical group comprised of approximately 300
physicians who provide a broad range of physician services to patients in the Western suburbs of
Chicago, Illinois; .

WHEREAS, DMG and Rush desire to collaborate to provide accessible, high quality,
cost-effective health care services to promote the general public health and improve the health
status of citizens living in the communities serviced by DMG and Rush;

WHEREAS, DMG and Rush desire to enter into this Agreement that will, to a
significant and meaningful extent, allow each party to retain their separate identities and
independence while collaborating in appropriate ways to foster a provision of a broad spectrum
of health care services; and

WHEREAS, DMG and Rush consider it to be in their best interests to enter into a formal
affiliation on the terms and conditions set forth in this Affiliation Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein
contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:
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1. Affiliation.

1.1,  Affiliation Goals. DMG and Rush desire to affiliate in order to provide
accessible, high quality, cost-effective health care services to promote general public health
and improve the health status of citizens living in the communities serviced by DMG and
Rush pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

"1.2.  New Clinical Services. For any clinical services which require a model of care
similar those which have been developed by DMG and Rush under this Agreement, DMG or
its Affiliates, as defined herein, will not seek to develop any such clinical services or models
of care outside this Agreement without the express prior written consent of Rush.

1.3.  Definitions.

1.3.1. “Affiliate” shall mean, with respect to any Person, (i) any Person directly
or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with such
Person; (if) any Person owning or controlling, directly or
indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding voting securities,
equity interests, or membership interests (including such interests inr a not-
for-profit organization), of such Person; (iii} any officer, director,
sharcholder, member, manager or partmer of such Person; (iv) any
company in which such Person is an officer, director, member, manager or
partner.

1.3.2, “Person” shall mean any individual, partnership, corporation, trust,
limited liability company, association, joint venture, investment fund, joint
stock company, organization, business, trust or any other entity or
organization, including a govemment or any department, agency or
political subdivision thereof.

2, Clinical Collaboration. Rush and DMG have determined that it is in the best interest of
their patients to offer medical services in a coordinated fashion. In furtherance of this goal, Rush
and DMG shall enter into a Master Clinical Collaboration Agreement, attached hereto as
Schedule 2, which shall be amended from time to time to include sub-agreements, attached as
exhibits thereto, which will expand the clinical collaboration to include additional service lines.

3 Academic Relationship. RUMC and DMG shall jointly seek to develop mutually
beneficial opportunities for DMG physicians to work collaboratively with RUMC physicians and
participate in RUMC academic activities. Such activities may include faculty appointrents,
training of medical residents and fellows, clinical trials, continuing medical education and
physician and nursing recruitment. RUMC and DMG shall enter into an Academic Agreement
setting forth the terms of this relationship, attached hereto as Schedule 3.

4, linical Integration and Managed Care.

4.1.  Rush and DMG hereby agree that the collaboration set forth in this Agreement
is intended to create clinical integration.
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42.  As clinically integrated entities, Rush Health shall, on behalf of themselves and
RUMC and DMG, explore the feasibility of pursuing opportunities to negotiate reimbursement
methodologies and rates with third party payors for the provision of inpatient, outpatient or
professional health services to the payors’ beneficiarics,

S. Term.

5.1. Initial Tenn. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of ten (10) years (“Initial Term™), unless earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms hereof,

. 5.2, Renewal Terms. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW
FOR ADDITIONAL five (5) year PERIODS (each a “Renewal Term”) (the Initial Term and
each Renewal Term collectively referred to as the “Term™) ON THE SAME TERMS AND
CONDITIONS AS ARE THEN IN EFFECT UNTIL AND UNLESS TERMINATED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF.

0. Termination.

6.1. Termination by Mutual Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated, in
whole or in part, at any time upon the mutual agreement of the parties.

6.2, Termination Without Cause. At the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal
Term hereof, either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon one hundred
eighty (180) days written notice to the other party prior to the end of the applicable Term.

6.3. Termination for Canse. RUMC or DMG may terminate this Agrecment
immediately upon written notice to the other party, if:

6.3.1. The other party has materially breached this Agreement. However, if the
breach is capable of being cured within sixty (60) days, then this right
shall not be exercised unless the breaching party has been given written
notice of the breach and has failed to cure such breach within sixty (60)
days of receiving notice. This cure period shall be shortened if a shorter
period is needed to protect patients’ health or safety or if required by the
Illinois Department of Public Health, the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, the Joint Commission, or any other entity by which
RUMC or DMG must be licensed or certified in order to conduct regular
operations;

6.3.2. The other party fails to maintain insurance as required by this Agreement;

6.3.3. The other party’s license or certification required for its continued
operation is suspended or terminated,

6.3.4. The other party is convicted of a crime, or is suspended or excluded from
any federal health care program, including the Medicare and/or Medicaid
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programs, or State of Illinois health care program, or is debarred by the
federal or State government; or

6.3.5. The other party voluntarily initiates bankruptcy proceedings or becomes
unable to pay its liabilities as and when they become due, or involuntary
bankruptcy proceedings are commenced against the other party and are not
dismissed within ninety (90) days.

6.4. Termination for Sale of Practice. If DMG merges with, is subject to a change
in control whereby fifty percent (50%) or more of its capital stock is sold or otherwise
transferred in any twelve (12) month period, fifty percent (50%) or more of its physician
employees terminate their employment within any twelve (12) month period, or all or
substantially all of its fixed assets and equipment are acquired by a hospital, health system,
academic medical center or any Affiliate thereof, Rush shall have the right to immediately
terminate this Agreement and any of the agreements attached as Schedules hereto upon written

notice.

6.5. Temmination for Sale of RUMC. If RUMC merges with or its assets are
acquired by a hospital, health system, academic medical center or any Affiliate thereof, DMG
shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement and any of the agreements
attached as Schedules hereto upon written notice.

6.6. Termination Due to Legislative or Administrative Changes. In the event that

there shall be a change in applicable health care law or the interpretation thereof, including,
without limitation, Medicare or Medicaid, statutes, regulations, court decisions or general
instructions, (or the application therecf), the adoption of mew legislation or regulations
applicable to this Agreement, the implementation of a change in payment methodology in any
material third party payor reimbursement system, or the initiation of an enforcement action
with respect to any applicable health care law (each of which are referred to herein as a
“Regulatory Risk”), the Agreement and any of the agreements attached as Schedules hereto
may be terminated as set forth herein. The existence of a Regulatory Risk shall be determined
by a nationally recognized health care regulatory or tax counsel (for purposes of this Section,
hercinafter referred to as “Counsel”) and should be set forth in writing and presented to the
other party, who then shall retain its own Counsel to (a) review the written opinion, (2}
perform its own independent analysis, and (3) issue its own written opinion concerning the
alleged Regulatory Risk. If Counsel for each party agrees that a Regulatory Risk is present,
then both parties shall diligently and in good faith attempt to negotiate a restructuring of the
Agreement and any of the agreements attached as Schedules hereto so as to alleviate such
Regulatory Risk. If respective Counsel diverges on the presence of a Regulatory Rigk, they
shall then select a third, independent Counsel to (1) review the divergent written opiniens; (2)
perform its own independent analysis; and (3) issue a written opinion concemning the alleged
Regulatory Risk. If the third, independent Counsel determines that no Regulatory Risk is
present, then the Agreement shall continue to remain in full force and effect. If, however, a
Regulatory Risk is deemed present by the third, independent Counsel, then both parties shall
diligently and in good faith attempt to negotiate a restructuring of the Agreement and any of
the agreements attached as Schedules hereto so as to alleviate such Regulatory Risk.
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7.

Coordination of Care.

7.1.  Independent Professionat Judgment. Rush and DMG hereby acknowledge that
no party hereto has, nor do they exercise any, control or direction over the specific methods by
which the other party provides professional services and practices medicine, Nothing
contained in this Agreement requires referrals to particular health care facilities, interferes
with patients’ choice for medical treatment, or interferes with any physicians’ independent
medical judgment. Each party shall retain the right to refer patients to appropriate physicians
and providers based on the independent medical judgment of the referring physician and any
restrictions imposed by such patient’s managed care plan. Each party’s patients will retain the
right to select a bealth care provider of their choice, subject to any restrictions imposed by
managed care plans in which they may participate.

7.2. Right to Bill and Collect for Services. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties,

each party or its designee, solely, shall bill for all professional services rendered by its
physicians and its other healthcare professionals. Any and all fees received in connection with
such billed services shall belong to the billing party and, if erroneously received by another
party to this Agreement, shall immediately be assigned to or endorsed promptly to the

appropriate party.

7.3. Health Information Technology. RUMC and DMG shall develop electronic
health and related information exchanges, including the development of an integrated patient
medical record system and shall enter into a Health Information Technology Agreement,
which is attached hereto as Schedule 7.3.

7.4. Managed Care. The parties recognize the importance of working with payors of
health care services in care coordination, quality improvement, and cost containment efforts
and will enter into a managed care agreement, which is attached hereto as Schedule 7.4.

7.5. Ancillary Arrangements. The parties anticipate that additional agreements
between the parties may become necessary to further the goals of collaboration, outreach and
clinical integration and to deliver necessary medical services to their patients. The parties
shall record the terms of any such ancillary arrangements and attach them hereto as Schedule

75.
Covenants.

8.1.  Confidentiality. Except as necessary in this Agreement’s performance, or as
authorized in writing by a party or by law, the parties (and their employees, agents, and
contractors) shall not disclose to any Person, institution, entity, company, or any other party,
any proprietary business information directly or indirectly related to a party that another party
{or its employees, agents, and contractors) receives under this Agreement, or about which it
otherwise is aware. The parties (and their employees, agents, and contractors) also agrce not
to disclose, except to each other, another party’s proprietary information, professional secrets
or other information obtained under this Agreement, unless a party receives prior written
authorization to do so from another party or as authorized by law. Nothing contained herein
shall be construed to prohibit any Department of Health and Human Services (“"DHHS") or
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other appropriate government official from obtaining, reviewing, and auditing any
information, record, data, and data elements to which he/she or hisher agency lawfully is
entitled. In addition, nothing contained herein shall restrict a party from disclosing any
information to its attorneys, accountants and other third party advisors and consultants, or
pursuant to any subpoena or order of a court or an administrative or govemmental agency, or
in connection with any litigation relating to this Agreement. Unless otherwise prohibited by
law, if a party receives a request from a third party (including, but not limited to DHHS) to
disclose the confidential information of the other party, the disclosing party shall, as soon as
practical, provide the other party with notice of such request in order to provide the other party
with an opportunity to review and/or challenge such disclosure.

8.2. Non-Solicitation. RUMC and DMG hereby acknowledge that each party has
invested valuable and significant resources in the development of its employees, including
recruitment, training, supervision and management. In recognition thereof, neither party, nor
any Affiliates of such party, shall, during the term of this Agreement and for one (1) year
thereafter, employ, recruit, affiliate or in any way contract, directly or indirectly or in any
manner whatsoever, with an employee of the other party, or such party’s Affiliates, who
provides services pursuant to this Agreement and any attachments hereto, without such other
party’s express written consent, provided, however, that no party will be precluded from hiring
any employee of the other party who responds to any public notice or advertisement of an

employment opportunity.

8.3. Remedies and Enforcement. RUMC and DMG each acknowledge that the
other party has expended considerable time, effort, and cost in relation to this Agreement and
that a violation of the provisions set forth in this Section 8 will result in irreparable damage,
and that the dollar amount of such damage is difficult to ascertain with any degree of certainty.
Thus, the parties agree that injunctive or other equitable relief (including injunctions pending
trial on the merits) shall be available, without the necessity of anty party posting a bond.

8.4. Notification of Oblipations, The parties shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to ensure that their respective employees, agents, and contractors are aware of and shall
comply with the aforementioned obligations.

Dispute Resolution.

9.1. The parties shall first attempt to resolve any dispute arising under this
Agreement by informal discussions between the parties’ chief executive officers or their
designees, subject to good cause exceptions, including, but not limited to, disputes determined
by either party to require immediate relief (i.e. the health, welfare, and/or safety of patients is
threatened). Any dispute which has failed to be resolved by informal discussions between the
parties within a reasonable pericd of time after the commencement of such discussions (not to
exceed thirty (30) days) and which does not require immediate relief may, at the request of
either party, be referred to mediation.

9.2. The mediator will be selected jointly by the parties, or, if the parties are unable
to agree on a mediator, in accordance with the Alternative Dispute Resolution procedures of
the American Health Lawyers Association, Washington, D.C. (“"AHLA™). The goal of the
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mediation generally, and the specific task of the mediator, will be to preserve the substance of
the collaboration to the extent reasonably possible.

9.3. The parties will work in good faith with the mediator for a period of thirty (30)
days (which may be extended by the mediator for an additional thirty (30) days if the mediator
believes such an extension would be desirable) in an effort to reach a mutually satisfactory
solution. If the mediation is unsuccessful, the dispute may be resolved through any other
means available. Each party will bear its own fees, costs and expenses in mediation, including
attorney costs. The general costs and expenses of the mediation, such as facility rental fees
and the costs and expenses of the mediator and the AHLA, will be borne equally by the

parties.

10.  Inswrance. Rush and DMG shall each ensure that it, and any physician providing
services on its behalf, shall be afforded profound liability protection, at such party’s expense

through a self-insurance pro or a commercial insurer with limits of not less than
per occurrence_and [ -
aggregate. Any party may request proof of insurance from one or more of the other parties.

Parties requested to provide proof of insurance shall comply with the request within ten (10)
business days of their receipt of the request. The insurance obligations contained herein shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

11.  Patient Referrals. RUMC and DMG agree that (i) each party may be considered a
current or potential source of patient referrals to the other; (i) any remuneration exchanged
between the parties is consistent with fair market value; and (iii) any remuneration exchanged
between the parties reflects fair market value and does not take into account the volume or value
of referrals or business that may otherwise be generated between the parties for which payment
may be made in whole or in part under Medicare, Medicaid or other federal health care
programs. RUMC and DMG hereby acknowledge and agree that it is not a purpose of this
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated herein to exert influence in ary manner over
the reason or judgment of any party with respect to the referral of patients or business of any
nature whatsoever. It is the intent of the parties hereto that any referrals that may be made
directly or indirectly by either party to the other, shall be based solely upon the medical
judgment and discretion of a patient's physician while acting in the best interests of the patient.

12, Regulatory Compliance.

12.1. Exclusions. During the term of this Agreement, each party shall notify the
other party of any exclusion of either party or its Affiliates from participation in any federal
health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b (f), for the provision of items or
services for which payment may be made under such federal health care programs
("Exclusion”) within five (5) business days of learning of any such Exclusion or any basis
therefore,. The non-excluded party shall have the right to immediately terminate this
Agreement and any and all other agreements between the parties, upon learning of any
Exclusion or any reasonable basis thercfore against the other, its Affiliates and/or any
employee, contractor or agent engaged by any of them to provide items or services.

‘\7 Attachment 12- Exhibit 1

=
BN



12.2. Medicare Access to Books and Records. In the event, and only in the event,
that Section 952 of P.L. 96499 (42 U.S.C. Sectionl3 95x(v)}(1){I)) is applicable to this

Agreement, the parties agree as follows: (i) until the expiration of four (4) years after the
termination of this Agreement, the parties shall make avaitable, upon written request by the
Secretary of the DHHS or upon request by the Comptroller General of the United States, or
any of their duly authorized representatives, this Agreement, and books, documents and
records of either party that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the costs incurred
pursuant to this Agreement; (ii) if either party carries out any of the duties of this Agreement
or other contract between the parties through a subcontract, with a value or cost of $10,000 or
more over a twelve-month period, with a rclated organization, such subcontract shall contain a
clause to the effect that until the expiration of four (4) years after the furnishing of such
services pursuant to such subcontract, the related organization shall make available, upon
written request to the Secretary of the DHHS or upon request to the Comptroller General of
the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, the subcontract, and books,
documents and records of such organization that are necessary to verify the pature and extent
of the costs incurred pursuant to such subcontract; and (iif) unless prohibited by the party
making such request cach party shall notify the other party immediately of the nature and
scope of any request for access to books and records described above and shall provide copies
of any books, records or documents to the other party prior to the provision of same to any
governmental agent to give such party an opportunity to lawfully oppose such production of
documents if such party believes such opposition is warranted. In addition, each party shall
indemnify and hold the other party harmless from any liability arising out of any refusal by
such party to grant access to books and records as required above. Nothing herein shall be
deemed to be a waiver of any applicable privilege (such as attorney client privilege) by either
party as the case may be.

13. Compliance with Applicable Law.

13.1. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws
of the State of Illinois, as well as all applicable Federal laws, regulations, and pelicies,
including, but not limited to all applicable State and local laws, ordinances, and codes,
including all licensing standards and applicable accreditation standards.

13.2. DMG and RUMC hereby each certify that it has not been debarred or
suspended from participation in the Medicaid and/or Medicare programs or any other
Federally-funded contracts.

13.3. Simultancously with the execution hereof, the parties agree to execute and
abide by the Business Associate Agreement, attached hereto as Schedule 13.3.

14.  Marketing and Co-Branding. The parties agree to work cooperatively in marketing and
co-branding the affiliation between the parties and to perform the marketing and co-branding
activities. Within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, which period may be extended upon
mutual agreement of Rush and DMG, the parties shall determine the marketing and cobranding
activities to be performed and shall include same set forth on Schedule 14, attached hereto.
DMG acknowledges and agrees that it shall not use the name or logo of or make reference in any
way to “Rush University Medical Center,” “Rush” or any of its Affiliates or subsidiaries thereof
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(including but not limited to the Rush System for Health and Rush Health) or employees, without
the express prior written authorized approval of RUMC. Rush acknowledges and agrees that it
shall not use the name or logo of or make reference in any way to “DuPage Medical Group”,
without the express written authorized approval of DMG.

15. The Parties’ Relationshjp. Rush and DMG shall remain separate and independent
entities. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor shall be deemed or

construed to create, any relationship between or among the parties other than that of independent
contractors. Except as otherwise provided, neither of the parties shall be construed to be the
agent, partner, co-venturer, employee or representative of the other party or make a party liable
for another party’s expenses or obligations except as herein described. Each party in performing
its respective duties and obligations hereunder at all times is acting and performing as an
independent contractor with respect to each other and at no time shall one party’s trustees,
members, employees, directors, managers, partners, representatives or agents hold themselves
out as or be considered another party’s members, employees, partners, managers, trustees,
directors, representatives or agents.

16. Consequen f Termination or Expiration of ement. Upon any termination of
this Agreement in accordance with any provision hereof, or upon expiration of this Agreement at
the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term, the obligations provided for under Sections 8
and 9 are intended to survive and shall survive any termination or expiration of this
Agreement. The parties hereto shall work collaboratively to terminate all anciliary agreements
and to provide for an effective transition of any services provided thereunder.

17.  Notices. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and
delivered in person or sent by telecopy, overnight courier or certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, to the following addresses:

For RUMC: President and Chief Executive Officer
Rush University Medical Center
1725 W. Harrison, Suite 364
Chicago, IL 60612

and

General Counsel

Rush University Medical Center
170¢ W. Van Buren, Suite 301
Chicago, IL 60612

With a copy to:
McGuireWoods LLP
77 W. Wacker Drive Suite 4100

Chicago, IL 60601
Attn: James B. Riley, Jr.
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For Rush Health: Brent J. Estes
President and Chief Executive Officer, Rush Health

1645 West Jackson Blvd.
Suite 501
Chicago, IL 60612

For DMG: DuPage Medical Group
Aftention: COO
1100 W. 31* Street, Suite 300
Downers Grove, IL 60515

The foregoing addresses may be changed and/or additional persons may be added thereto by
notifying the other party hereto in writing and in the manner hereinafter set forth.

18.  Wiivers. The waiver by any party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition
contained herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any
other term, covenant or condition contained herein. The subsequent acceptance of performance
or payment of compensation hereunder by a party shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
preceding breach by the other party of any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement
regardless of such party’s knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of acceptance of such

performance.

19. No Inducement to Refer. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require DMG or
any DMG physician owner or employee to admit or refer any patients to Rush, The parties enter
into this Agreement with the intent of conducting their relationship in full compliance with
applicable federal, state and local law, including the Medicare/Medicaid Anti-fraud and Abuse
Amendments and Physician Ownership and Referral Act (commonly known as the Stark Law).
Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any of the provisions herein, peither party will
intentionally conduct itself under the terms of this Agreement in a manner to constitute a
violation of these provisions.

20. Non-Discrimination. All parties hereto will comply with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations and executive orders pertaining to non-discrimination on the basis of race, creed,
color, national origin, age, sex, veteran status, handicapped status and such other classification or
classifications which may from time to time be protected by law.

21.  Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable. If any
provision of this Agreement shall be deeraed invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
such determination shall affect only the specific provision and shall not affect the remaining
terms of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect and binding upon the parties

hereto.

22.  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective transferees, successors and assigns.

23.  No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall create
any right or remedies for any third party.
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24.  Assignment. Neither party shall have the right to assign, delegate or transfer this
Agreement, or its rights and obligations hereunder, without the express prior written consent of

the other party. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, upon the sale of all or substantially all of the fixed assets and equipment of DMG, this

Agreement shall be assigned to the purchaser of such assets and equipment, subject to Rush’s
termination right set forth in Section 6.4,

25. Amendments. Any amendment to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the
parties. Except for the specific provision of this Agreement which thereby may be amended, this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect after such amendment.

26. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the complete understanding of the parties
with regard to the subject matter. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements or
understandings between the parties, whether oral or written, relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement. No such prior agreements or understandings may be enforced by cither party nor
may they be employed for interpretation purposes in any dispute involving this Agreement.

27. Govemning Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with
the laws of Illinois, as well as all applicable Federal, State and local laws, regulations and
policies. The parties agree that all suits, actions or other proceedings primarily arising out of or
from this Agreement shall be subject to litigation in the United States District Court, Northern
District, Eastern Division of Illinois or the Cook County circuit courts.

28. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which when
taken together shall constitute a single original.

[Signature Page Immediately Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by

their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

DUPAGE MEPICAL GROUP, LTD
By: _ O3 e

Name: Dennis Fine
Tiﬂe:_me&%mt{z_mp
Date: AS AV W

RUSH UNIVERSITY DJCAL CENTER

By: Wﬁﬂ
Name: Ldrry J/Goodman, M,

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: [0 tod /T

-

Name Brent E_ﬁ

Title: President and Chief Executive Qfficer
Date: [0~12-1f

12

Attachment 12- Exhibit 1




CHEDULE2 T AFFILIA REEMENT

MASTER CLINICAL COLLABORATION AGREEMENT
(see attached)
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MASTER CLINICAL COLLABORATION AGREEMENT

THIS MASTER CLINICAL COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”)
is effective the 12™ day of October, 2011, by and between Rush University Medical Center, a
tax-exempt, [llinois not-for-profit corporation (“RUMC™) and DuPage Medical Group, Ltd., an
Illinois corporation (“DMG”). RUMC and DMG may each be referred to as a “party” and
collectively as “parties” to this Agreement.

WHEREAS, DMG, RUMC and Rush Health are parties to that certain Affiliation

Agreement dated October 12, 2011 (the “Affiliation Apreement”) pursuant to which the parties
bave agreed to collaborate to provide accessible, high quality, cost-effective health care services
to promote the general public health and improve the health status of citizens living in the

communities serviced by DMG and Rush; and

WHEREAS, DMG and RUMC desire to define specific clinical disciplines and service
fines in which RUMC and DMG will work together to develop and implement new and/or
enhanced service capabilities to serve patients in the western and southwestern suburbs of the

Chicago metropolitan area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covepants herein
contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. Scope of Clinical Collaberation.

1.1. The parties acknowledge and agree that the following clinical disciplines and
service lines constitute the initial listing of clinical areas of mutual interest to the parties:

i. Hematology/Oncology services, including but not limited to, oncologic
infusion services and related professional services provided by RUMC’s
department of hematology/oncology, as well as related surgical subspecialty
areas;

1.2.  The parties agree the above listing of clinical specialties and service lines may be
modified at any time by the mutual agreement of the parties and that indicating mutual interest
does not constitute a binding commitment on any party to commit time or resources to actually
providing related services. The parties will execute a specific sub-agreement, which will be
attached as an Exhibit hereto, for each coltaboration in a specific clinical area the parties desire
to implement.

1.3. Each sub-agreement between the parties shall be specific to the clinical
discipline and/or service line contemplated and will address all applicable considerations,

including:

e Overall intended structure, scope of services to be provided, and roles and
responsibilities of the parties;

e Governance and leadership, including but not limited to establishment of any
necessary advisory committees, clinical protocols and standards of care, and
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operational considerations;

e Necessary infrastructure and personnel, including staff, equipment purchases, and
leasehold improvements;

¢ Operational expectations, including those related to billing and customer service;
¢ Managed care considerations;

» Marketing and branding; and

¢ Term and termination

2. Term.

2.1. Initial Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of ten (10} years (“Initial Tern”), unless earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms hereof.

2.2. Renewal Terms. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW
FOR ADDITIONAL five (5) year PERIODS (each a “Renewal Term”) (the Initial Term and
each Renewal Term collectively referred to as the “Term’) ON THE SAME TERMS AND
CONDITIONS AS ARE THEN IN EFFECT UNTIL AND UNLESS TERMINATED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF.

3. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated for the reasons set forth in Section 6 of
the Affiliation Agreement as though this Agreement is the “Agreement” referenced therein. In
addition, this Agreement will automatically terminate upon termination of the Affiliation
Agreement.

4, Consumer Choice. DMG or its Affiliates will not implement agrecments or processes
which limit or prohibit patients who require clinical services of a nature similar to those outlined
in this Agreement from receiving such services from Rush; nor shall DMG or its physicians or
Affiliates engage in activities which directly or indirectly steer patients who require clinical
services similar to those outlined in this Agreement to receive such services from other non-
DMG providers.

5. Incorporation and Conflict. The terms and conditions of the Affiliation Agreement are
hereby specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference with this Agreement being
deemed the “Agreement” referenced in the Affiliation Agreement. In the event any provision of
this Agreement conflicts with the Affiliation Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to
supersede the Affiliation Agreement with respect to such conflicting provision.

[Signature Page Immediately Follows)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

DUPAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD

By: M’u
Name: Dennis Fine

Title: Chief Oge‘mﬁgg Officer
Date: - AN AN
RUSH UNIVESITY MEDI CENTER

By: j ”7 é &
Name*Larry JGoodman, MD,

Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: (O]
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EXHIBIT A TO THE MASTER CLINICAL COLLABORATION AGREEMENT
CANCER CENTER COLLABORATION

THIS CANCER CENTER COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement™)
is effective the 12th day of October, 2011, by and between Rush University Medical Center, a
tax-exempt, Hlinois not-for-profit corporation (“RUMC”) and DuPage Medical Group, Ltd., an
Hlinois corporation (“DMG”). RUMC and DMG may each be referred to as a “party” and
collectively as “parties” to this Agreement.

WHEREAS, DMG, RUMC and Rush Health are parties to that cerfain Affiliation
Agreement dated October 12, 2011 (the “Affiliation Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties
have agreed to collaborate to provide accessible, high quality, cost-effective health care services
to promote the general public health and improve the health status of citizens living in the
communities serviced by DMG and RUMC;

WHEREAS, DMG and RUMC are parties to that certain Master Clinical Collaberation

Agreement (the “Master Collaboration Agreement™) pursuant to which the parties set forth the
framework for their various clinical collaborations, and the terms of which are specifically

incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, DMG and RUMC desire to collaborate in the development of a cancer
treatment center (the “Cancer Center”} on the terms and conditions contained herein;

WHEREAS, DMG intends fo construct and own a building located at 430 Warrenville
Road in Lisle, Illinois (the “Building™) in which the Cancer Center will be located,;

WHEREAS, RUMC intends to lease space in the Building from DMG.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein
contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. Cancer Center Seryices.

1.1.  RUMC Services. RUMC will provide on-site medical oncologists and surgeons
and other health care professionals to support RUMC and DMG patients by providing
comprehensive cancer treatment, including oncologic infusion services (the “Infusion Services”).
The Infusion Services shall be provided in designated space within the Cancer Center (the
“Infusion Center”). The Infusion Center will be established as a satellite location of RUMC,
pursuant to rules and regulations applicable to Provider Based Clinics.

1.2. DMGQG Services. DMG will provide on-site medical oncologists, physicians, other
health care professionals, radiation oncology, and diagnostic and ancillary services at the Cancer
Center to support RUMC and DMG patients by providing comprehensive cancer treatment.
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1.3. Lease. DMG and RUMC shall enter into a lease agreement, which will be
attached hereto as Attachment 1, pursuant to which RUMC will lease space in the Building to for

physician services and the Infusion Center (the “Lease”).

2. Clinical Collaboration for Cancer Cepter Services,

2.1  Cancer Center Services. The parties shall collaborate to provide services at the
Cancer Center as set forth on Attachment 2.

22  Definitiops.

221

222

223

“Affiliate” shall mean, with respect to any Person, (i) any Person directly
or indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with such
Person; (ii) any Person owning or controlling, directly or

indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding voting securities,
equity interests, or membership interests (including such interests in a not-
for-profit organization), of such Person; (iii) any officer, director,
shareholder, member, manager or partner of such Person; (iv) any
company in which such Person is an officer, director, member, manager or

partner.

“Person” shall mean any individual, partnership, corporation, trust, limited
liability company, association, joint venture, investment fund, joint stock
company, organization, business, trust or any other entity or organization,
including a government or any department, agency or political subdivision
thereof.

“Service Area” shall mean (i} Cock, DuPage and Will Counties in Nlinois
and (ii) within a 15 mile radius of any cancer treatment center sites
established between DMG and Rush outside of such counties.

2.2  Exclusiyity. During the term of this Agreement (the “Exclusivity Period”), DMG
hereby agrees that neither it nor any of its Affiliates shall develop, acquire, lease to or from or
invest in new or existing oncologic infusion services within its Service Area except for
expansions of oncologic infusion services developed with Rush under this Agreement. If any
court of competent jurisdiction shall at any time deem any particular restrictive covenant
contained in this Section 2 unreasonable, the other provisions of this Section 2 shall nevertheless
stand, the Exclusivity Period herein shall be deemed to be the longest period permissible by law
under the circumstances and the Service Area shall be deemed to comprise the largest territory
permissible by law under the circumstances, as determined by the court in each case.

3. Term.

3.1. Initial Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of ten (10) years (“Initial Term”), unless earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms hereof.
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3.2. Renewal Terms. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW
FOR ADDITIONAL five (5) year PERIODS {each a “Renewal Term”) (the Initial Term and
each Renewal Term collectively referred to as the “Term”) ON THE SAME TERMS AND
CONDITIONS AS ARE THEN IN EFFECT UNTIL AND UNLESS TERMINATED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF.

4. Termination. The terms and conditions of the Affiliation Agreement and are hereby
specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference with this Agreement being deemed
the “Agreement” referenced in the Affiliation Agreement and shall automatically termirate upon
termination of the Affiliation Agreement. In addition, this Agreement may aiso be terminated by
RUMC: :

4.1. Upon notice to DMG within thirty (30) days of either of the following events (i)
failure to commence construction (i.e., commence site preparation) of the Building on or before
December 31, 2011 or (ii) failure to complete (i.e., obtain a certificate of occupancy) the
Building within 180 days of the December 31, 2012 delivery deadline set forth in the Lease,

through no fault or delay caused by the Tenant.
4.2.  Upon termination of the Lease for any reason.

5. Incorporation and Conflict. The terms and conditions of the Affiliation Agreement and
the Master Collaboration Agreement are hereby specifically incorporated into this Agreeroent by
reference with this Agreement being deemed the “Agreement” referenced therein.  In the event
any provision of this Agreement conflicts with the Affiliation Agreement or the Master
Collaboration Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to supersede the Affiliation
Agreement and the Master Collaboration Agreement with respect to such conflicting provision,

[Signature Page Immediately Follows] -
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

DUPAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD

By: A WO it 3
Name: Dennis Fine

Title: _Chief Operating Officer
Date: hY - (\ ‘L-\\\
RUSH UNIVESITY MEDICAL /@’I‘ER

By:
Name: Larl_y JL. Gogman, M.D.
Title; _ Chief Executive Officer
Date: JO (]
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chment 1 to the Cancer Center Collaboration

SPACE LEASE AGREEMENT
(see attached)
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Attachment 2 to the Cancer Center Collaboration Agreement

CLINICAL COLLABORATION FOR CANCER CENTER SERVICES

1. RUMC shall provide Infusion Services.
2. DMG shall provide on-site radiation oncology, and diagnostic and ancillary services.

3. The parties shall collaborate in the provision of other cancer treatment-related physician
services as agreed to by the parties in good faith.

4. The parties will mutually select a Medical Director for the Cancer Center, who shall be a

physician employed by RUMC. The cost of the compensation and any benefits) for the
Medical Director of the Cancer Center shall be paid as follows:
]

5. Within sixty (60) days of execution of this Agreement, DMG will select two (2) DMG
physicians to be formally charged to provide additional administrative services which will.
further the mutual intent of the parties under this Agreement related to: (i) developing health
information technology coordination with RUMC and (ii) advancing the quality improvement
agenda/clinical integration activij e affiliation. RUMC shall provide DMG with an
annual, fair market value rate of for each physician’s services. RUMC and DMG will
prepare annual objectives for DMG and the physicians appointed pursuant to this amrangeroent
and the parties will meet at least quarterly to review progress relative to the agreed upon

activities.

6. The parties will mutually select an Administrator for the Cancer Center. The cost of the
Administrator’s compensation (salary and benefits) shail be

7. The parties will work in good faith to further define the scope of the clinical collaboration for
cancer center services and shall amend this Attachment 2 to reflect same. The parties shall make
such amendment on or before the receipt of the Certificate of Occupancy for the Building.
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SCHEDULE 3 TO THE AFFILIATION AGREMEENT

ACADEMIC AGREEMENT

THIS ACADEMIC AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective the 12th day of
October, 2011, by and between Rush University Medical Center, a tax-exempt, Illinois not-for-
profit corporation (“RUMC™) and DuPage Medical Group, Ltd., an Illinois corporation
(“DMG”). RUMC and DMG may each be referred to as a “party” and collectively as “parties” to
this Agreement.

WHEREAS, DMG, RUMC and Rush Health are parties to that certain Affiliation
Agreement dated October 12, 2011 (the “Affiliation Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties
have agreed to collaborate to provide accessible, high quality, cost-effective health care services
to promote the general public bealth and improve the health status of citizens living in the
communities serviced by DMG and Rush; and

WHEREAS, RUMC operates the Rush Medical College, which sponsors and
participates in various clinical educational programs for the training of its students, residents and
health care professionals; and

WHEREAS, RUMC, the Rush Medical College and DMG desires to work
collaboratively to develop mutually beneficial opportunities for DMG physicians to work with
RUMC physicians and participate in RUMC academic activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein
contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. Scope of Academic Relationship. RUMC and DMG hereby agree to utilize best efforts
to develop mutually beneficial opportunities for DMG physicians to work collaboratively with
RUMC physicians and participate in RUMC academic activities. Such activities may include
faculty appointments, training of medical residents and fellows, clinical trials, continuing
medical education and physician and nursing recruitment. The parties shall commence good
faith negotiations on the various components of the academic relationship within one hundred
twenty (120) of the execution hereof and will work diligently and in good faith to define the
scope of their academic relationship and shall, within twelve (12) months of the execution
hereof, amend this Agreement to reflect same.

2. Term.

2.1. Initial Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall cormmence on the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of ten (10) years (“Initial Term™), unless earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms hereof,

2.2. Renewal Terms. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW
FOR ADDITIONAL five (5) year PERIODS (each a “Renewal Term”) (the Initial Term and
each Renewal Term collectively referred to as the “Ternn™) ON THE SAME TERMS AND
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CONDITIONS AS ARE THEN IN EFFECT UNTIL AND UNLESS TERMINATED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF.

3 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated for the reasons set forth in Section 6 of
the Affiliation Agreement as though this Agreement is the “Agreement” referenced therein. In
addition, this Agreement will automatically terminate upon termination of the Affiliation

Agreement.

4, Incorporation and Cenflict. The terms and conditions of the Affiliation Agreement are
hereby specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference with this Agreement being
deemed the *“Agreement” referenced in the Affiliation Agreement. In the event any provision of
this Agreement conflicts with the Affiliation Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to
supersede the Affiliation Agreement with respect to such conflicting provision.

[Signature Page hmmediately Follows)

Schedule 3

|34

Attachment 12- Exhibit 1

o,
AN

:




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by

their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

DUPAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD

By: A\ VUG ey
Name: Dennis Fine

Title: _ Chief Operating O.mgr
Date: AN
RUSH UNIVESITY MEDICA;éENTER

By: %ﬁr/?é//

Name: ﬁgg: !Mman, M.D.

Title: Chief Executive Qfficer
Date: Q’ La ]
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CHE E 7.3 TO THE AFFILIATION AGREEME
HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT

THIS HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT (the
“Agreement™) is effective the 12th day of October, 2011, by and between Rush University
Medical Center, a tax-exempt, Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“RUMC™) and DuPage
Medical Group, Ltd., an Illinois corporation (“DMG”). RUMC and DMG may each be referred
to as a “party” and collectively as “parties” to this Agreement.

WHEREAS, DMG, RUMC and Rush Health are parties to that certain Affiliation
Agreement dated October 12, 2011 (the “Affiliation Agreement”) pursuant to which the parties
have agreed to collaborate to provide accessible, high quality, cost-effective health care services
to promote the general public health and improve the health status of citizens living in the
communities serviced by DMG and Rush; and

WHEREAS, RUMC and DMG desires to work collaboratively to develop mutually
agreeable health information technology utilization strategies, including but not limited to
¢lectronic health and related information exchanges and the development of an integrated patient
medical record system.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants. herein
contained and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. Scope of Relationship. RUMC and DMG hereby agree to utilize best efforts to develop
mutually agreeable health information technology utilization strategies, including but not limited
to electronic health and related information exchanges and the development of an integrated
patient medical record system. The parties shall commence good faith discussions to develop
this strategy within one hundred twenty (120) of the execution hereof and shall work diligently
and in good faith to negotiate the specific terms and conditions of the health and related
information exchange and shall, within twelve (12) months of the execution hereof, amend this
Agrecment to reflect same.

2. Term.

2.1. [Initial Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of ten (10) years (“Initial Term”), unless earlier
terminated in accordance with the terms hereof.

22, enewal Terms. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY RENEW
FOR ADDITIONAL five (5) year PERIODS (each a “Renewal Term™) (the Initial Term and
each Renewal Term collectively referred to as the “Term”) ON THE SAME TERMS AND
CONDITIONS AS ARE THEN IN EFFECT UNTIL. AND UNLESS TERMINATED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS HEREOF.

3. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated for the reasons set forth in Section 6 of
the Affiliation Agreement as though this Agreement is the “Agreement” referenced therein. In
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addition, this Agreement will automatically terminate upon termination of the Affiliation
Agreement.

4, Incorporation and Conflict. The terms and conditions of the Affiliation Agreement are
hereby specifically incorporated into this Agreement by reference with this Agreement being
decmed the “Agreement” referenced in the Affiliation Agreement. In the event any provision of

this Agreement conflicts with the Affiliation Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to
supersede the Affiliation Agreement with respect to such conflicting provision.

[Signature Page Immediately Follows}
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

DUPAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD

By: LN VR WS
Name: Dennis Fin
Title: Chief Qperating Officer

Date: valiz N

RUSH UNIVESITY MEDIC:TR
By: g M\:’Z @”‘

Name: MM.MI)

Title: _Chief Executive Office

Date: fofif v

Schedule 7.3

X

Attachment 12- Exhibit 1




L el

SCHEDULE 7.4 TO THE TION A

MANAGED CARE AGREEMENT
(See Attached)
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S DULE 7.5 AFFI, AGREEME
ANCILLARY AGREEMENTS

(see attached)
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SCHEDULE 13.4 TO THE AFFILIATION AGREEMENT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

THIS BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into by
and between Rush University Medical Center, a tax-exempt, Iilinois not-for-profit corporation
(‘RUMC”), Rush Health, a taxable Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“Rush Health” and
together with RUMC, “Rush”) and DuPage Medical Group, Ltd., an Illinois corporation
(“Company™). Rush and DMG may each be referred to as a “party” and collectively as “parties”
to this Agreement.

WHEREAS, this Agreement establishes the terms of the relationship between Rush and
Company on the use, exchange, and storage of confidential health information;

WHEREAS, each party provides certain services to the other, and in connection with the
provision of said services, each party discloses to the other certain Protected Health Information
(“PHL,”) (as defined in 45 C.F. R. §16 4.501) that is subject to the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191 (the “Act”™), the privacy standards adopted
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“DHHS”) as they may be amended from
time to time, 45 C.F.R. parts 160 and 164, subparts A and E (the “Privacy Rule”), the security
standards adopted by DHHS as they may be amended from time to time, 45 C.F.R. parts 160,
162, and 164, subpart C (the “Security Rule™), and the Privacy provisions (Subtitle D) of the
Health Information Technology for Economic Clinical Health Act, Division A, Title XII1 of Pub.
L. 111-5, and its implementing regulations (the “HITECH Act™). (the Act, Privacy Rule, the
Security Rule, and the HITECH Act are collectively referred to as “HIPAA” for purposes of this
Agreement;

WHEREAS, each party is a “Covered Entity” as that term is defined in the HIPAA
implementing regulations, 45 C.F.R. Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and E, the Standards for
Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (“Privacy Rule™); and as that term is
defined in the HIPAA implementing regulations, 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, the Security
Standards for the Profection of Electronic Protected Health Information (“Security Rule™),

WHEREAS, each party, as a recipient of PHI from the other, is a “Business Associate”
as that term is defined in the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, all Business Associates
of Covered Entities must agree in writing to certain mandatory provisions regarding the use and
disclosure of PHI; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to comply with the requirements of the
Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, including, but not limited to, the Business Associates
contract requirements at 45 C.F.R. 164.314 (a).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained
herein, the parties agree as follows:
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1. Definitions. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, capitalized terms have the
same meanings as set forth in HIPAA.

2. Scope of Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

2.1.  Each party shall be permitted to use and disclose PHI that is disclosed to it (the

“Receiving Party™) by the other (the “Disclosing Party”™) as necessary to perform in
accordance with the Disclosing Party’s established policies, procedures and requircments.

2.2.  Unless otherwise limited herein, in addition to any other uses and/or disclosures
permitted or authorized by this Agreement or required by law, the Receiving Party may:

2.2.1. use the PHI in its possession for its proper management and administration
and to fulfill any of its legal responsibilities;

222, de-identify any and all PHI created or received under this agreement;
provided, that the de-identification conforms to the requirements of

HIPAA.

23. Each party shall implement and maintain the administrative, physical and
technical safeguards required by HIPAA to protect the confidentiality, integrity and
availability of electronic PHY and to ensure that PHI disclosed by and between the parties is
not used or disclosed by a party, or by any subcontractors, affiliates, or associates of the party,
except as provided in this Agreement;

24.  Each party shall promptly report to the other party any use or disclosure of PHI
of which the party becomes aware that is not provided for or permitted by this Agreement or
under HIPAA. Each party agrees to report to the other party the aggregate number of
unsuccessful, unauthorized attempts to RUMC, use, disclose, modify or destroy electronic
versions of the other party’s PHI or interfere with systems operations in an Information
System containing the other party’s PHI, of which the party becomes aware, provided that: (a)
such reports will be provided only as frequently as the parties mutually agree, but no more
than once per month; and, (b) if the definition of “Security Incident” is amended under the
Security Rule to remove the requirement for reporting “unsuccessful” attempts to use,
disclose, modify or destroy electronic PHI, this Section 2.4 shall no longer apply as of the
effective date of such amendment.

3. Obligations of Receiving Party in connection with its use and disclosure of PHI. The

Receiving Party agrees that it will:

3.1.  Use or further disclose PHI only as permitted or required by this Agreement
and as required by law;

3.2. To the extent practicable, mitigate any hannful effect that is koown to
Receiving Party of a use or disclosure of PHI by the Receiving Party in violation of this
Agreement;
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3.3.  Report to the Disclosing Party any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by
this Agreement of which the Receiving Party becomes aware;

3.4. Require contractors or agents to whom the Receiving Party provides PHI to
agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the Receiving Party pursuant to this
Agreement;

3.5. Make available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Recetving
Party’s internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI for
purposes of determining the Disclosing Party’s compliance with HIPAA, subject to any
applicable legal privileges;

3.6, Within fifteen (15) days of receiving a request from the Disclosing Party, make
available the information necessary for the Disclosing Party to make an accounting of
disclosures of PHI about an individual;

3.7. Within ten (10) days of receiving a written request from the Disclosiug Party,
make available PHI necessary for the Disclosing Party to respond to individuals’ requests for
Access to PHI about them that is not in the possession of the Receiving Party, in the event that
the PHI in the Receiving Party’s possession constitutes a Designated Record Set;

3.8.  Within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from the Disclosing
Party incorporate any amendments or corrections to the PHI in accordance with HIPAA in the
event that the PHI in the Receiving Party’s possession congtitutes a Designated Record Set;

39. Not make any disclosure of PHI that the Disclosing Party would be prohibited
from making,

Obligations of the Disclosing Party. The Disclosing Party agrees that it:

4.1. Has included, and will include, in the Disclosing Party’s Notice of Privacy
Practices required by HIPAA that the Disclosing Party may disclose PHI for health care
operations purposes;

42. Has obtained, and will obtain, from Individuals consents, authorizations and
other permissions necessary or required by laws applicable to the Disclosing Party for the
Receiving Party and the Disclosing Party to fulfill their obligations under this Agreement;

4.3, Will promptly notify the Receiving Party in writing of any restrictions on the
use and disclosure of PHI about Individuals that the Disclosing Party has agreed to that may
affect the Receiving Party’s ability to perform its obligations under the underlying Agreement;

44, Will promptly notify the Receiving Party in writing of any changes in, or
revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose PHI, if such changes or
revocation may affect the Receiving Party’s ability to perform its obligations under the
underlying Agreement.
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S. Termination.

5.1.  Termination for Breach. The Disclosing Party may terminate this Agreement if
the Disclosing Party determines that the Receiving Party has breached a material term of this
Agreement. However, if the breach is capable of being cured within thirty (30) days, then this
right shall not be exercised unless the breaching party has been given written notice of the
breach and has failed to cure such breach within thirty {30) days of receiving notice. This cure
period shall be shortened if a shorter period is needed to protect patients’ health or safety or if
required by the Illinois Depariment of Public Health, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, the Joint Commission, or any other entity by which RUMC or DMG must be
licensed or certified in order to conduct regular operations. In the event the Receiving Party
fails to cure the breach to the satisfaction of the Disclosing Party, the Disclosing Party may
immediately thereafter terminate this Agreement.

5.2.  Effect of Termination,

5.2.1. Termination of this Agreement will result in termination of the operations
between the Disclosing Party and the Receiving Party.

5.2.2. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Receiving Party wili retum all
PHI received from the Disclosing Party or created or received by the
Receiving Party on behalf of the Disclosing Party that the Receiving Party
still maintains and retain no copies of such PHI.

6. Amendment. The Receiving Party and the Disclosing Party agree to take such action as
is necessary to amend this Agreement from time to time as is necessary for the Disclosing Party
to comply with the requirements of the Privacy and Security Rule.

7. Survival. The obligations of the Receiving Party under Section 5.2.2 of this Agreement
shall survive any termination of this agreement.

8. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this Agreement is intended

to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than the parties and their
respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever,
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this BUSINESS
ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT as of the day and year first written above.

DUPAGE MEDICAL GROUP, LTD.
By: D s St

Name: Dennis Fine

Titte: _Chief O ing Officer
Date: velu Ny
RUSH UNIVERSITY MF()DIC& GROUP
By: ﬁ w7 é’ d

Name: La}'/ﬂ J. Goodmgn, MDD,
Title; Chief Executive Qfficer

Date: =B

RUSH HEA.}%{I M

By: f
Name: Brent Estés

Title: _President apd Chief Execntive Officer
Date: i 1]

kT,
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S DU 5 TO THE JATION AGREEME

MARKETING AND CO-BRANDING ACTIVITIES

1. Representatives of Rush and DMG will meet no less frequently than annually to develop an
the marketing/co-branding/communications plan for the following year.

2. The plan will address the following marketing strategies:

i.
ii.
1.
iv.
V.
vi.

Rush and DMG websites;

Utilizing social media (e.g., Twitter and Facebook)

Press releases;

Direct to consumer advertising;

Internal marketing efforts; and

Marketing of the new building/cancer center. The campaign to publicize and market
the new building and the cancer center will commence no later than 90 days prior to

opening.

3. As part of the annual marking plan development, the parties will agree on cost-sharing and
funding responsibility for the approved marketing strategies.

\Rush-DMG Affiliation Agreement #29571429 (v.21).doc
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Attachment 12-Exhibit 2

Physician Biographical Sketches

The following physicians were interviewed for the case studies on the clinical collaboration agreement:

From DuPage Medical Group —

Dr. Ravi Nemivant is a board-certified specialist in pulmonary medicine, critical care, andlsleep
medicine. He has received numerous teaching awards and has been published in medical
journals. Dr. Nemivant received his medical degree in 1998 from Rush Medical College in
Chicago where he was elected to the Alpha Omega Honor Society. He has completed a residency
in internal medicine at Chicago’s Rush Presbyterian-5t.Luke’s Medical Center where he was
intern and resident of the year and also named Chief Resident. He went on to complete
fellowship training in Pulmonary & Critical Care Medicine at Loyola University Medical Center
and Hines Veterans Administration Medical Center in Maywood from 2002-2005.

Dr. Paul Merrick is a board-certified urologist in practice at the DuPage Medical Group since
1994. He received his medical degree from Rush Medical College in Chicago where he also
completed his residency. He has a busy practice encompassing all types of urologic disease with
particular focus on care for cancer patients, voiding dysfunction, and kidney stones. Dr. Merrick
performs numerous evaluations and treatments, including surgery, brachytherapy, and other
minimally invasive treatments.

Dr. Donald Hoscheit is a board-certified gastroenterologist specializing in diseases and disorders
of the digestive tract with a particular emphasis on endoscopic surgery, colon cancer detection
and screening, colitis, Crohn's disease, and peptic ulcer disease. He received his medical degree
in 1982 from Loyola University Stritch School of Medicine and completed his internship,
residency and fellowship at the Loyola University Medical Center in Maywood. Dr. Hoscheit has
also been elected a fellow of the American College of Gastroenterology.

From Rush University Medical Center —~

Dr. Phitip Bonomi is a board-certified specialist in internal medicine and medical oncology, with
a particular expertise in lung cancer and mesothelioma. He received his medical degree from the
University of lllinois College of Medicine at Chicago and completed his residency at the Geisinger
Medical Center, which recently received the 2012 Thomson Reuters 100 Top Hospitals:

National Benchmarks Award. Dr. Bonomi went on to complete a fellowship at Rush University
Medical Center, where he now holds a professarship. He is also a prolific writer whose work has
been published in numerous medical journals.

‘4 7 Attachment 12-Exhibit 2




The following physician was interviewed for the case study on the linear accelerator:

From DuPage Medical Group —

Dr. Brian Moran is a renowned specialist in radiation oncology. He is a prolific speaker and
author on the subject and has been certified by the American Board of Radiology. Dr. Moran has
also held numerous positions, both in an academic as well as an administrative capacity, and is
currently the Medical Director of the Prostate Cancer Foundation of Chicago. He received his
medical degree from the Loyola Stritch School of Medicine and completed his residency in
radiation oncology at Loyola-Hines University Medical Center. Over the course of his career, Dr.
Moran has received numerous honors, including the Resident Teaching Award at Lutheran
General Hospital. Based on these qualifications and achievements, DuPage Medical Group had
decided to put Dr. Moran in charge of its radiation therapy program.

Attachment 12-Exhibit 2
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SECTION Ill = BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES — INFORMATION
REQUIREMENTS

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

ALTERNATIVES

As is explained below, DMG decided on the proposed project after considering several alternatives.
These alternatives included: (1) maintain status quo; (2) provide the planned services at existing
facilities; and (3} proceed without leasing space to Rush University Medical Center. Each was rejected
for various reasons.

Alternative #1 — Maintain Status Quo

The status quo was determined to be untenable given DuPage Medical Group’s growth related to
numbers and specialties of physicians. This Medical office Building will provide more than 50,000 sq. ft.
of office space for primary as well as specialty medicine.

Furthermore the 87,000 sq. ft. of medical office space will integrate physicians within a single
environment addressing the growing demand for integrated health care. The MOB wili be utilized to
respond to community need for easier access to complex and tertiary care. As discussed in more detail
in Attachment 37, cancer cases in particular are projected to grow significantly as the population ages.
Furthermore, many patients in the community already travel to Chicago in order to receive treatment.
This is especially true for patients requiring a university level of care.

Therefore, continuing under the status quo would fail to address the remaining needs of patients and
their physicians in several ways:

e  First, it limits DMG’s ability to provide clinical and office space to its group physician multi-
specialty group.

¢ Second, it would mean that area residents would continue to have limited access to integrated,
university-level tertiary care in their community.

e Third, it would perpetuate a situation whereby patients are forced to travel outside of their
community to receive care, which has negative effects on both patient convenience and
coordination of care.

Alternative #2 — Use Space at Existing Facilities

The applicants rejected the idea of using space at existing facilities because it does not meet their goals
for coordinating and ensuring the quality of care. The primary reason that DMG is constructing this
Medical Office Building is to ensure that its patients receive integrated, high-quality care. Presently,
DMG must outsource treatments for many of its patients, including those requiring radiation therapy.
This has several drawbacks.

The main problem is that this outsourcing often causes care to be delivered in a piecemeal way. For
example, when a patient is referred to a specialist, there are often problems in coordination between
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the specialist and the primary care physician. This means that the primary care physician will often not
have all the relevant information regarding a patient, e.g. complete medical records. This fragmentation
also leads to a variation in the quality of care. A uniform and high standard of care is especially
important in radiation therapy where misadministration of therapy can have serious and lasting side
effects.

It is only through the construction of this Medical Office Building that DMG can ensure its patients
receive coordinated care at the highest standard. It will allow DMG physicians to have patients at an
integrated, DMG-directed facility, thus minimizing barriers to communication between physicians tasked
with coordinating care. Furthermore, having a linear accelerator located on the premises will mean that
DMG physicians no longer will be forced to outsource radiation therapy treatments and can ensure that
those treatments are delivered according to their standards and protocols.

This MOB is designed to offer care that is both coordinated and also comprehensive. DMG intends to
provide to patients in the community, a location where they can receive complex as well as primary care
treatments in one, convenient location. It is for this reason that a smaller building, providing a lesser
scope of services was deemed inappropriate. If one of the services, e.g. radiation therapy or physician
office space, was not incorporated into the MOB, the project would not serve the goal of providing
patients in the community with a convenient location for receiving comprehensive, state of the art care.

Another reason, in addition to the benefits described above, that DMG decided to build a centrally-
located MOB is that it is more cost effective in the long run. Providing these services at many different
locations is subject to inherent inefficiencies, e.g. duplication of costs, confusion for patients, and
ineffective communication between physicians. This MOB will help streamline the provision of care to
such an extent that, even after the cost of land acquisition and construction are taken into account, it
has definite financial advantages compared to the status quo.

It should be noted that the benefits of care coordination, a central location, and an on-site radiation
therapy capability are specific to the MOB. These advantages are not to be confused with those
provided by the clinical collaboration agreement, which is separate and distinct from this MOB. [See
Attachment 12 for case studies describing implementation of the clinical collaboration agreement
bhetween DMG and Rush).

For all of the foregoing reasons, DMG decided that construction of a Medical Office Building was the
best option, both from a patient care as well as a financial perspective.

Alternative #3 - Do Not Lease Space to Rush University Medical Center

DuPage Medical Group considered constructing a Medical Office Building in which no space was leased
to other parties. While this option was viable from a clinical and financial perspective, it was not
optimal. Therefore, DMG decided to proceed with the project in its current form, i.e. with a portion of
the building leased to Rush University Medical Center for the purpose of providing Chemotherapy and
Infusion Medical Services.

From a financial perspective, the lease between DMG and Rush is beneficial in that it diversifies the
sources of revenue. However, this has only a minor impact given that Rush will lease only a limited
portion of the building {15% of the total space) and given that DMG is already in a very strong financial
position.
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Regarding the clinical aspects of this project, if DMG was to use the space to be leased by Rush to (1)
provide Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services itself or (2) provide other services, it could do so
and still achieve the project’s intended purpose of providing complex and specialized care in the
western suburbs of Chicago. Furthermore, the clinical collaboration agreement DMG has signed with
Rush has always been considered by both applicants to be wholly independent of the DMG MOB.
Therefore, the benefits in patient care derived from that agreement would not have been affected had
DMG opted not to lease space in the building to Rush.

However, when DMG assessed the existing health care needs in the western suburbs and how to
address those needs, it wanted to find the best solution. Leasing space to Rush to provide
Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services helps optimize the care provided by {1) increasing the
scope of treatment available at the MOB and (2) providing specialization of care from university-
affiliated physicians.

In summation, this project includes, as one of its aspects, a lease by Rush University Medical Center for a
portion of the MOB to provide Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services because such an
arrangement was deemed by DMG to be a means of optimizing the project, both from a financial as well
as a clinical perspective. This was determined to be preferable to an alternative scenario, in which Rush
leased no space at the MOB. While this alternative would have been acceptable, it would not have been
optimal. Therefore, it was not chosen.
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SECTION IV — PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED SHELL SPACE

SIZE OF PROJECT

Upon completion, the DuPage Medical Group Medical Office Building will have a total square footage of
87,075 sq. ft. All of this space is necessary, and the vast majority of it will be for the direct treatment of
patients, either in physician offices or other diagnostic/treatment areas. There is sufficient
common/shared space for the operation of the building. However, there is little non-clinical space such
as a gift shop or a cafeteria as this was deemed not necessary given the location’s use as a Medical
Office Building,

Unlike a hospital, where many spaces can be used by several different departments, some areas of the
building, e.g. waiting rooms, are dedicated to particular services. For example, Radiation Oncology will
have its own waiting area, as will the physician offices. This means more square footage is necessary
than would otherwise be the case.

Each area, along with its location and square footage are included in the table below.

Area Location in Building Square Footage
Radiation Oncology 1% Floor, West Wing 5,655
Note: Excludes linear accelerator
Linear Accelerator 1% Floor, West Wing 965
Chemotherapy and Infusion 2™ Floor, West Wing 12,927

Medical Services
Note; Provided by RUMC

Physician Offices: Oncology 3" Floor, West Wing 11,728

Imaging 1" Floor, East Wing 14,138

Note: No major medical

equipment

Primary, Specialty, and 2" Floor, East Wing 13,329

Immediate Care; Retail

Pharmacy, Lab

Physician Offices 3" Floor, East Wing 15,593

Atrium/Common Space Throughout Building 12,740
TOTAL 87,075

Radiation Therapy (Linear Accelerator)

The only explicit state standard with regard to size is for radiation therapy, specifically the linear
accelerator. This standard is 2,400 dgsf/accelerator.’ So, where there is only one linear accelerator for
the project, as is the case here, the maximum allowed departmental gross square footage to house and
support that linear accelerator is 2,400 dgsf. As is shown in the table above, there are only 965 sq. ft,
devoted to the linear accelerator, thus coming under the maximum allowable space of 2,400 dgsf. The
space for radiation oncology (5,655 sq. ft.) will not be used solely to support the use of the linear

! See Section 1110 Appendix B.
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accelerator. Rather, that space will serve other, additional needs including examinations, conferencing,
and offices. It is therefore not included in the calculation.

Service Proposed DGSG State Standard Difference Met Standard?
Radiation Therapy 965 dgsf 2,400 dgsf 1,435 dgsfunder | Yes
(Linear Accelerator) maximum the maximum

Chemotherapy and infusion Medical Services

Rush University Medical Center [RUMC) plans to lease space on the second floor of the DMG medical
office building to house a provider-based chemotherapy infusion center. The infusion center will be
organized and function as an outpatient location of Rush. RUMC will also timeshare space on the third
floor of the building for clinic space in which Rush physicians will evaluate and manage patients and also
conduct research and engage in education.

In keeping with the precedent of other, comparable CON applications that involved Chemotherapy or
Infusion Medical Services,’ the applicants have not included here an explanation of how the square
footage devoted to those services meets the state standard. As in those previous CON applications by
other providers, there is no established standard for Chemotherapy or Infusion Medical Services. For
this reason, the applicants have included here the total square footage devoted to those services
without reference to any standard.

Service Proposed DGSG State Standard Difference Met Standard?
Infusion Therapy 12,927 bgsf No Standard N/A N/A
(Chemotherapy) and
Oncology Clinic

in order to lease the appropriate amount of space, Rush first determined the current and projected
need for infusion therapy services in the target market {the process for which is detailed in Attachment
15}. Rush then converted the treatment volume into square footage requirements for the infusion
therapy center. Finally, Rush determined the number of non-clinical space {e.g. offices, support space)
that would be needed to support the number of new cancer cases with infusion-treatable cancer and
translated that into square footage. The infusion therapy space and the non-clinical space were added
together to arrive at the total need for square footage for that service.

2 see Application for Project 11-108 {page 45}, Delnor Comprehensive Cancer Center, Received November 23,
2011, Agproved February 8, 2012; Application for Project 10-049 (page 54}, The University of Chicago Cancer
Center at Silver Cross Hospital, Received luly 26, 2010, Approved October 26, 2010.
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SECTION IV ~ PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED SHELL SPACE

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Per the applicable rules {confirmed in conversations with Board staff members}, an application involving
Clinical Service Areas need only include utilization standards for which the IHFSRB has established
targets. This project includes two specific clinical service areas: (1) Radiation Therapy including a linear
accelerator and (2) Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services. The former has established standards
found in Section 1110, Appendix B. The latter, which will be provided by RUMC in the space it is leasing
from DMG does not have any state established utilization targets. Per the request of the Board staff, the
applicants have included the methodology used to determine utilization of the Chemotherapy and
Infusion Medical Services to be provided by RUMC.

Radiation Therapy (Linear Accelerator)

To estimate the number of treatments for the linear accelerator, the applicants first estimated the
number of patients that would receive radiation therapy treatment at the MOB. This figure was.put at
250-300 new cancer patients referred from DMG in the first year, with possibly another 50 from other
places in the community. As a conservative estimate, therefore, the applicants assumed 250 new
patients in Year 1 with an additional 50 by Year 2.

Based on the experience of Dr. Brian Moran, a renowned radiation therapy specialist who will be tasked
with leading DMG's radiation therapy program,’ about 70% of those patients will require curative
therapy and about 30% will require palliative therapy. Curative therapies require 35-40 treatments while
palliative therapies require 10-20 treatments.

Applying these assumptians, DMG used a weighted formula to determine the number of treatments for
the linear accelerator in the first and second years of operation. Even using a conservative estimate of
250 patients in the first year, the linear accelerator will easily exceed the utilization standards.

Table 1. Conservative Estimate (250 Patients in Year 1)

UTILIZATION FOR LINEAR ACCELERATOR
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE AREA | UTILIZATION UTILIZATION STANDARD STANDARD?
YEAR 1 Linear N/A 7,688 7,500 YES
Acceferator Treatments Treatments
YEAR 2* Linear N/A 9,225 7,500 YES
Accelerator Treatments Treatments
*Assumes 50 additional patients in Year 2
! See Attachment 12-Exhibit 1 for Dr. Moran's biographical sketch.
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Table 2: Most Likely Estimate (300 Patients in Year 1)

UTILIZATION FOR LINEAR ACCELERATOR
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE AREA UTILEZATION UTILIZATION STANDARD STANDARD?
YEAR 1 Linear N/A 9,225 7,500 YES
Accelerator Treatments Treatments
YEAR 2* Linear N/A 10,763 7.500 YES
Accelerator Treatments Treatments

Note: DMG perceptions significantly exceed state utilization standards for linear accelerators.

Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services

Unlike other Clinical Service Areas, there are no established utilization standards for Chemotherapy and
Infusion Medical Services. For this reason and in keeping with the instructions of the Board staff, the
applicants have not referenced any specific utilization numbers for these services but have described
below the methodology used to determine what level of Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services
would be provided in the space leased by RUMC.

To determine the level of services for this particular Clinical Service Area, Rush relied on the current
patient populations {served by itself as well as DMG} in the local market, local demographic information,
published incidence rates of new cancer cases in an llfinois population, and the number of new cancer
cases that are treatable with this modality. Based on the number of new cancer cases, Rush determined
the number of treatments that would be generated. Throughout the needs development process, Rush
also drew on its extensive experience in delivering cancer infusion therapy services in other outpatient

settings.

Rush used the following methodology to project the number of infusion therapy treatments that could
be expected at the new center:

1. Rush estimated the potential market size for the proposed infusion therapy center based on two
factors. First, Rush determined the number of new cancer cases that currently travel to Rush’s
Chicago campus from the greater Lisle area and assumed that a portion of these patients would
elect to receive their care at the new MOB because of greater convenience and the assurance
that they would receive the same quality of care that they receive at the downtown campus. To
this already aligned population, RUMC added the number of existing DMG cancer patients that
would be most likely to use the new facility. Together, the already aligned patients from Rush
and DMG represent the initial target population of the infusion therapy service.

2. Rush identified the infusion therapy treatable cancers; these include cancers of the breast, skin
and lungs as well as of the gastrointestinal, gynecological, genitourinary, and hematological
(lymphoma, leukemia, multipte myeloma} systems. By applying Illinois rates of patients treated
by chemotherapy by site,? Rush calculated the current number of chemotherapy-treatable new

? 5ee American College of Surgeons Commission on Cancer, Natianal Cancer Database.
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cancer cases in the target population. Using the Advisory Board Company’s growth rates, Rush
projected the number of new cancer cases out to 2022, or 10 years from the present.

3. Next, Rush determined the annual number of infusion therapy treatments in the target
population. The number of new treatable cancer cases was multiplied by the average number
of treatments per case to arrive at a total number of annual treatments that could be expected
at the new center.

Rush University Medical Center believes that there are a significant number of patients within the health

planning area that would benefit from accessible and reliable delivery of chemotherapy and infusion
services on an outpatient basis.
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SECTION | — PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Unfinished/Shell Space

This project will not involve the use of unfinished/shell space and so this criterion is not applicable.

ﬁ Attachment 16




SECTION [V — PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 — Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space
UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE

This project does not involve any unfinished or shell space. Therefore, the applicants have not included
an assurance that existing shell space will be used as it is not pertinent.
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SECTION VI = SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

Subsection R: Criterion 1110.3030 — Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

Need Determination

The only Clinical Service Areas that will be provided at the DuPage Medical Group MOB which fall within
CON requirements are (1) Radiation Therapy and {2) Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services, both
of which are inherently focused on cancer. Other services provided at the MOB, e.g. primary care, are
not Clinical Service Areas for which need must be demonstrated. As such, this information contained
herein focuses on incidence of cancer and the demand for cancer treatment services, even though that
is not the totality of what will be provided at the MOB.

Service to the Planning Area Residents

Using an average cancer rates from the lllinois State Cancer Registry the applicants were able to project
4,855 new cancer patients in DuPage County in the coming year (2013).

This calculation is based on the following:

¢ Male and Female cancer incidence rates per 100,000 people. These rates were based on the
latest available data from the Illinois State Cancer Registry and represent an average of the
years 2004-2008. The rate for males thus calculated is 537.7. The rate for females thus
calculated is 437.8. Attachment 37-Exhibit 1.

* US Census data regarding the population of DuPage County. The 2010 Census puts this figure at
916,924. Using the County’s total growth rate from 2000-2010 (1.4%), we then applied a
comparable annual growth rate to arrive at a population estimate for the County for 2012 and
2013 respectively.

s The aging US population. It is estimated that 10,000 people turn 65 every day in the United
States.’ As people age they become more susceptible to cancer. Indeed cancer incidence rates
based on age often use 65 years of age as a demarcation. Given this fact, some estimate that the
incidence of cancer may rise by more than 30% by 2020. Attachment 37-Exhibit 2. This required
an increase in the annual growth rate in new cancer cases to 2.75%.

Male Female Total
2012 Population {est.) 449,922 468,286 918,208
2013 Population {est.) 450,552 468,942 919,493

537, 4373
Projected New Cancer Patients (2012) 2,554 2,164 4,719
Projected New Cancer Patients {2013} 2,628 2,227 4,855

* Boomers Hit New Self-Absarption Milestone: Age 65. New York Times, December 10, 2010.
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Also, it should be noted that this project will primarily provide care to the residents of the planning area
in which the proposed service will be located; that is HPA 05 (DuPage County). However, it is anticipated
that many patients will come from Cook, Will, and Kane County. This is due to two factors. First, DMG
has locations in these counties and some of the patients at these locations will naturally be referred for
treatment at the MOB. Second, the applicants plan to offer a higher quality of medical care than is
currently available in the community, and so it is inevitable some patients from outside the community
will also want to take advantage of the quality of care that will be available.

Service Demand

Radiation Therapy {Linear Accelerator]

Based on the experience of radiation oncology specialists from DMG, at least two thirds of all cancer
patients require radiation therapy. Since 95% of all radiation therapy involves a linear accelerator,
these patients will need to be treated using the linear accelerator included as part of this project. This is
particularly true given the fact that the type of linear accelerator being installed, the RapidArc, is the
most up-to-date version of the most commonly accepted standard of care modality for radiation
therapy.

50, based on the estimates of the number of new cancer patients, there will be 3,253 patients requiring
Radiation Therapy in HPA 05 by 2013. DuPage Medical Group projects that it will treat at least 250
cancer patients with radiation therapy in the first year of operation for its MOB. it is anticipated that this
could increase by another 50 cases as word spreads in the community of the high standard of services
offered at the MOB.

Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services

Based on its experience, Rush University Medical Center estimates that at least 45% of all cancer cases
will require chemotherapy infusion. Based on the estimates of the number of new cancer patients, this
means that there will be 2,185 patients requiring Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services in HPA
05 by 2013,

impact on Other Providers

Radiation Therapy (Linear Accelerator}

There are currently seven (7] linear accelerators operating within Health Planning Area 5. See
Attachment 37-Exhibit 3. These machines are located at the following hospitals.

Hospital Number of Linear Accelerators
Edward Hospital 3
Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital 2
Adventist Hinsdale Hospital 1
Elmhurst Memarial Hospital 1
TOTAL 7

A map showing the geographic location of these hospitals is included in Attachment 37-Exhibit 4.
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Methodalogy for Determining Linear Accelerator Utilization by Other Providers

After the number of linear accelerators at each facility had been determined, the applicants then used
different methodologies to determine the utilization of those linear accelerators. The methodology used
was the one that was most appropriate and accurate based on the scope of information available. The
methodologies used were as follows:

Methodology A:

Where more recent utilization information was available, that information was used. If none
was available, the applicants used the figures for therapies/treatments in each hospital’s 2010
Hospital Profile,

Methodology B:

Because the Utilization Standards in Section 1110, Appendix B are based on treatments, the
data for hospitals containing courses of treatment were, when necessary, converted to show the
number of treatments.

There are multiple treatments for each course of treatment for radiation therapy. So, hospitals
with a very low figure in the “Therapies/Treatments” column are clearly reporting courses of
treatment rather than treatments. For example, Edward Hospital listed only 750
“Therapies/Treatments” despite the fact that it has three (3) linear accelerators. 1t is, therefore,
clearly reporting courses of treatment rather than treatments.

For hospitals where the only utilization data available is for courses of treatment, the applicants
applied the following formula:

Number of treatments =
{# of courses of treatment x 37.5 x 0.70) + (# of courses of treatment x 15 x 0.30)

This formula reflects the experience of Dr. Brian Moran, a renowned specialist in radiation
oncology and takes into account the difference between curative care and palliative care. it
assumes that for all courses of treatment 70% will constitute curative care and 30% will
constitute palliative care (hence the weighting of factors). It also assumes, based on Dr. Moran's
experience that:
s  For curative care each course of treatment will involve 35-40 treatments (37.5 is
used in the equation above as it is in the middle of this range].
+ For palliative care each course of treatment will involve 10-20 treatments (15 is
used in the equation above as it is in the middle of this range).

Note: This is the same formula the applicants used to project utilization for the linear
accelerator included in this project.
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Methodology C:
For Hospitals where it was clear that survey data listed number of treatments rather than
courses of treatment, a conservative 1.4% annual growth rate’ was applied to the relevant

figure to generate an estimated number of treatments for each hospital in 2012.

The results of this analysis are as follows:

Hospital Methodology Determined Number of Linear | Number of Linear
Used Number of Accelerators Accelerators in
Treatments (2012) Allowed Use

Edward Hospital B 23,062 4 3
Advocate Good C 7,764 2 2
Samaritan Hospital
Adventist Hinsdale C 5,213 1 1
Hospital
Elmhurst Memorial A 7,607 2 1
Hospital’
TOTAL 9 7

* See Attachment 37-Exhibit §

Analysis of impact on Other Providers with Linear Accelerators

This analysis shows that linear accelerators in Health Planning Area 05 are being used at or near
capacity. Indeed some hospitals would, based on the State standards, be warranted in adding additional
machines. Therefare, this project will not lower the utilization of other area providers below the
utilization standards.

It should also be noted that, although DMG will significantly exceed the utilization standards, it will
provide radiation therapy to a very small percentage of the cancer patients in the Health Planning Area.
Even based on the most conservative estimate of the total cancer patient population and the most
optimistic estimate of the number or patients receiving radiation therapy treatment at the Medical
Office Building, DMG will treat only about 10% of all patients requiring the use of a linear accelerator.

This can hardly affect the utilization of other providers. This is particularly true given that:
« there will be an overall increase in the number of patients requiring radiation therapy; and
* many of the patients to be treated at this MOB currently travel into Chicago for treatment and
therefore will not use the other facilities even if this project does not go forward.

Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services

As there are no established utilization standards for Chemotherapy and Infusion Medical Services, it is
not possible to show that the proposed project will not {A} lower the utilization of other area providers
below the utilization standards specified in Section 1110, Appendix B or (B) lower, to a further extent,

* 1.4% reflects DuPage County’s overall population growth rate from 2000-2010 according to the US Census

Bureau.
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the utilization of other area providers that are currently operating below the utilization standards. As
such, the criterion found in Section 1110.3030(b)(3} is inapplicable.

It should be noted, however, that this project is unlikely to affect the utilization of Chemotherapy and
Infusion Medical Services for other providers. Most of the patients who will receive this service in the
space 10 be leased by RUMC would, in the absence of the new MOB, travel to RUMC’s downtown
facility. This project merely allows them to receive the same service closer to home.
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Background

Methods

Results

Conclusions

Current estimates of the costs of cancer care in the United States are based on data from 2003 and esarlier.
Howaever, incidence, survival, and practice patterns have been changing for the majority of cancars,

Cancer prevalence was estimated and projected by phase of care (initial year following diagnos's, continuing,
and last year of life} and tumor site for 13 cancers in men and 16 cancers in women through 2020. Cancer prev-
alence was calculated from cancer incigence and survival models estimated from Surveillance, Epidemiology,
and End Results {SEER) Program data. Annualized net costs were estimated from recent SEER-Madicare linkage
data, which included claims through 2006 among beneficiaries aged 65 years and older with a cancer diagnosis.
Contrel subjects without cancer were identified from a 5% random sample of all Medicare beneficiaries residing
in the SEER areas to adjust for expenditures not related to cancer. All cost estimates were adjusted to 2010
dollars, Different scenarios for assumptions about future trends in incidence, survival, and cost were assessed
with sensitivity analysis.

Assuming constant incidence, survival, and cost, we projected 13.8 and 18.1 million cancer survivors in 2010
and 2020, respectively, with assaciated costs of cancer care of 124.57 and 157.77 billion 2010 US dollars. This
27% increase in meadical costs reflects US population changes only. The largest increases were in the continuing
phase of care for prostate cancer (42%) and female breast cancer {32%). Projections of current trends in inci-
dence (declining} and survival {increasing) had small effects on 2020 estimates. However, if costs of care
increase annually by 2% in the initial and (ast year of life phases of care, the total cost in 2020 is projected to be
$173 billion, which represents a 39% increase from 2010,

The national cost of cancer care is substantial and expected to increase because of population changes alone.

Qur findings have implications for policy makers in planning and allocation of resources.

J Natl Cancer Inst 2011;103:117-128

Rapid scientific progress in oncology during the 1990s led to new
tools for diagnosis and the development of novel targeted ther-
apies. During the same period, incidence declined and survival
improved for many cancers (1). The average cost of treating the
most comman cancers increased as well (2). With more expensive
wargeted treatments adopted as standards of care, the costs of can-
cer care are expected to escalate more rapidly in the near fucure,
The US Burean of Ccnsus projects that the populaton aged
65 years and clder is expected to increase from 40 million in 2009
to 70 million in 2030 (3). Because cancer incidence is highest in the
clderly, the impact of these population changes an cancer preva-
lence may exceed the impact of declining cancer incidence rates for
some cancers, As a resule, bath the number of cancer survivors and
cancer expenditures are likely to increase in the futre.

Previous estimates of national expenditures for cancer care have
mostly been based on older dama for incidence, patterns of care,
and survival and on inflation adjusted with general medical care

jncl.oxfordjournals.org

b

inflation adjusters (4). For example, the estimate of the direct costs
of “neoplasms” of $99 billion in 2009 is based on broadly defined
sclf-reported discase categories from 1995 and inflated to 2009
dallars (5). This national estimate does not reflect current cancer
incidence, patterns of care, and survival. Furthcrmore, escalaton
in the costs of cancer chemotherapy has been greater than general
medical care infladon (4,6), suggesting that the use of general
medical care inflation adjusters might underestimate the cost of
cancer care.

The purpose of this study was to estimate and project the
national medical cost of cancer care through the year 2020 sepa-
rately for 13 cancers in men and 16 cancers in women using the
mast recent available US population projections and cancer inci-
dence, survival, and cost of care data. We used methods developed
specifically for estimating and projecting cancer prevalence by
phase of care, including the inital phase following diagnosis, the
last year of life phase, 2nd the contimuing phase between the inidal
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CONTEXTS AND CAVEATS

Prior knowledge

The costs of cancer care are expected to rise with increased cancer
incidenca in an aging population, along with advances in diagnos-
tic technology and novel targeted treatments.

Study design

Data onincidence and survival fromthe Surveillance, Epidemiology,
and End Results {SEER) database linked to Medicare records were
used to estimate the costs at initial, continuing, and final phases of
cancer care far 13 cangers in men and 16 in women. Differant
madels of incidence, survival, and cost increases were used ta
project total cost of care through 2020 in the United States.

Contribution

Changes in the US population alone are projected to result in a ¢ost
increasa of 27% by 2020. However, if costs in the initial and final
phases of care increase by 2% annually, the total cost of care in
2020 is projected to be $173 billion an increase of 39% from 2010,

Impfications

Expanding costs of cancer care due to increases in an aging popu-
lation are inevitable, but the costs of new treatments and diagnos-
tic technologies could potentially be managed to ensure access to
quality care far all patients,

Limitations

The estimates of cancer prevalence were based on data from
SEER-9 areas, which do not cover the entire United States. Tha
estimates were also basad on first tumar diagnosed and may not
be applicable to patients with muliple tumors. The presence of
other diseases in addition to cancer was not included in the
analysis.

From the Editars

and last year of life phases (7). We projected the costs of cancer
care through the year 2020 using US population projections and
scenarios with varying assumpdons about trends in incidence,
survival, and cost. To our knowledge, the estimated national cast
of cancer care has not been previously projected dynamically,
These data may be particularly usefut for policy makers in under-
standing and andcipadng the future burden of cancer care in the
United States

Methods

Overview

Esdmates and projecdons of the medical cost of cancer care
through the year 2020 were caleulated by combining cancer prev-
alence with average annual costs of cancer care by phase of carc
and tumeor site for 13 cancers in men and 16 cancers in women, We
also esdmated and projected cost for all cancer sites combined.
Cancer incidence, survival, practice patterns, and costs of care have
changed in the past decades (1,2), but the degree to which these
changes will condnue in the future is unclear. Because of the un-
certainty surrounding future trends in incidence, survival, and
costs of care, we evaluated multiple scenarios with varying assump-
tons, including 1) constant current incidence, survival, and cost,

16}
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the base case scenario; 2) recent incidence trends only; 3) recent
survival trends only; 4) recent incidence and survival trends; and 5}
recent incidence, survival, and cost wends. In all of the sensidvity
analysis scenarios, we assumed a dynamic population increase as
projected by the US Bureau of the Census and used the most
recently available daw to estimate incidence, survival, and cost of
cancer care.

Data Sources

Incidence, survival, all-cause mortality, and population daca
from 1975 chrough 2005 were obtained from the Surveillance,
Epidemiology, and End Results (SEER) program. The SEER reg-
istries collecred every eccurrence of a primary incident cancer,
month and year of diagnosis, cancer site, stage, histology, and vital
status, with cause of death for patients who died in geographically
defined areas. Cancer incidence and survival were obtained by
cancer site, sex, and year and age at diagnosis.

Population projections were obtained from the National
Interim Projections of the US populadon from 2006 chrough 202¢
from the US Census Burcau Web site (3). These populadon
projecdons are based on assumpdons about fucure births, deaths,
and international migration. Other cause mortality in the years
2006-2020 were obrained from the Berkeley Moreality cohort life
tables (8). These life table projecdons incorporate observed trends
in life expeetancy in the past century, Life tables and related doc-
umentaton are available at heep://www.demog beckeley.edu/~bmd
/states.hanl,

The cost of cancer care was estimated from Medicare claims
data linked to the SEER data (SEER-Medicare) among benefi-
claries aged 65 years and older with a cancer diagnosis (). Control
subjects without cancer were idendfied from a 5% random sample
of all Medicare beneficiaries residing in SEER areas. A more
detailed description of the linked SEER-Medicare data is available
at haep://healthservices.cancer.gov/seermedicare/.

Phase of Care Definitions

We defined phase of care using three distinct clinically relevant
periads or phases, including the inital period following diagnosis,
the last year of life, and the period in berween the initial and [ast
year of life. The initial period was defined as the first 12 months
following diagnasis, the last year of life was the final 12 months of
life, and the continuing phase included all the menths in-between.
Howevcr, not all cancer patients contribute months of chservadon
to all phases of care. For patients who survived less than 24 months
after diagnosis, months of survival were assigned to the last year of
life phase, and the remaining months of observation were allocated
to the inida! phase, with no allocadon to the continuing phase of
care. For patients who survived less than 12 months after diagno-
sis, thosc months between diagnosis and death were allocated to
the last year of life.

Estimates and Projections of Cancer Prevalence

Cancer patients were classified by the site of their first diagnasis
berween 1975 and 2005 into one of the following 17 cancer sites:
bladder, brain and other ncrvous system, female breast, cervix,
colorectal, corpus uterd, esophagus, head and neck, kidney and
renal pelvis, leukemia, lymphoma, lung, melanoma of the skin,
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ovary, pancreas, prostate and stemach. Nonmalignant cervical
cancer and benign brain and other nervous system mumors were
excluded; other nonmalignant umors were included. All cancer
sites combined were modeled as a single site and included only the
first primary wmor berween 1975 and 2005,

Cancer prevalence was estiiated using a statisticai methoed that
projects prevalence from cancer incidence, cancer survival, and
mortality for other causes of death (ie, prevalence incidence ap-
proach model [PIAMOD]) (7,10). Prevalence was estimated sepa-
rately by tumor site for 13 cancer sites in men and 16 cancer sites
in women. To estmate the prevalence of the remaining cancer
sites, we calculated the difference between the prevalence of all
cancer sites combined and the sum of the site-specific prevalence
separately far men and women. Because PIAMOD can only pro-
vide results for closed age classes, and populations are reported
with an age class of 85 years or older, prevalence for this age class
was obeained by applying prevalence proportdons of the 80-84 year
age class to the populadon aged 85 years or older. For further
details on the PIAMOD method, refer to Mariotto et al {7).

Cancer prevzlence for years heyond the last year of data, 2005,
was prejected assuming different scenarios of future incidence and
survival trends. In all of the sensidvity analysis scenarios, we as-
sumed dynamic populaton wends, as estimated by the US Bureau
of Census. We evaluated five prevalence scenarios: 1) constant
current incidence, survival, and cost, the base case scenario; 2)
recent incidence trends only; 3) recent survival trends only; 4)
recent incidence and survival wends; and 5) recent incidence, sur-
vival, and cost trends.

The base case scenario assumes that future incidence and sur-
vival raws are constant and were based on rates from the most
recent data period, 2003-2003, for cach cancer site. For the inci-
dence trends scenarin, we projected the tumor and site-specific
incidence trends estimated in years 1996-2005 into the future for
years 2006-2020. In mathemadcal terms, the estimated annual
percent change was calculated for each cancer site and sex by
fitting a regression line to the natural logarithm of the age-adjusted
rates | in years 1996 through 2005, In{D)= a + B y, where « and
B were cocficients to be esdmated and y is calendar year. The
annual percent change was calculated as 100 (e".‘ - 1), where fS is
the cstimate of B. Let 1{2003-2005,4) be the average incidence rate
at age # at years 2003-2005. For each single age 4, the SEER inci-
dence rates were projected to years y = 20086, . . ., 2020 by applying
the esdmate annual percent change to the baseline incidence rate,
that is £(y, 4) = }(2003 — 2005, 2)#* ™. The natonal number
of incident cancer patients by age and year were calculated by
multiplying the SEER age and year incidence rates by the respec-
tive US populations for each tumor site and sex.

For the survival aends scenario, linear survival trends were
estmated by fitting a parametric mixture cure survival model to
the SEER data by mumor site, sex, and age group (11). This type
of model assumes that a hypothetical fraction of the patients will
not die of cancer and will experience the same mortality risk as
the general population, whereas the complementary fraction will
die of cancer, and their survival time follows a Weibull distribution
(12). The cumulative probability of surviving ¢ years from diag-
nosis, for people diagnosed at year y and at the age class a is
given hy

jnci.exfordjournals.org

&8

S,(3t) = (e, + (1= ¢,) exp[<(x, )" )]s,

where ¢, is the cure fraction, the proportion of patients who at
diagnosis will eventually not die of their cancer, X, and ¥, are, re-
spectvely, the scale and shape parameters of the Weibull survival
distribution of paticnts not cured, and exp(8,) represents the rela-
tve risk (RR) of cancer death for being diagnosed | year later than
an arbitrary reference year y, (eg, 1985). Survival parameters were
estimated for cach cancer site, scx, and age group {044, 45-34,
55-64, 65-74, and 75-84 years), The usc of a parametric survival
mode! allows survival extrapolation beyond the range of the empir-
ical data. The consmant survival trend scenario assumes furore
survival as equal to the most recent year of data 2005, whereas the
lincar trend scenario extrapolates survival using the period trend
parameter 8,. The survival model and the prevalence method are
described in greater detail elsewhere (7). The incidence and
survival trends scenario combined both recemt incidence and
recent survival trends.

Estimates and Projections of the Cost of Cancer Care

We updated previously published direct medical cost estimates by
phase of care (13) using the most recendy available linked SEER-
Medicare data from all registries (SEER-17), which included
cancer patents diagnosed through the year 2005, We used all
Medicare claims files and standard methods of esumating mean
annualized net costs of care with chese data {13,14) as deseribed
below. Patients with a cancer diagnosis in SEER between 1975
and 2005 and aged 65 years and older during 2601-2006, the
observation period, were selected for the cohart. Cancer patients
with a prior cancer diagnosis or identified through a deach cerdf-
icat¢ or autopsy were excluded. Months of observation in which
paticnts received coverage through managed eare or were covered
through fec-for-service and without bath Medicare part A and
part B were excluded because these daca would not completely
capture costs of care received during this period. Manths of ob-
servadon and costs were assigned to the initial, continuing, and
last year of life phases of care. A total of 390683 cancer parients
were included in che inital phase of care, 926793 in the con-
tinuing phase of care, and 475 750 in the last year of life phase of
care. Cancer pacients in the last year of life were also classified by
cause of death on the death certificate as cancer vs all other
causes.

Nancancer control subjects were randomly assigned a “pseudo-
diagnosis date” that corresponded to the date of diagnasis of one
of the pool of cancer patients, Cenurol subjects were frequency
matched to cancer patients by sex, 5-year age group {65-69, 70-74,
75-79, and =80 years), and SEER area strata in up to a 5:1 rato.
For the initial and contnuing phases of care, costs for cancer
patients were compared with costs for "contnuing control sub-
jects” that included data from the pscudo-diagnosis date through
1 year before the date of death. To reflect costs associated with
cancer care in the last year of life, cancer patients who died of
cancer were matched to contnuing control subjects, whereas can-
cer patients who died of other causes (eg, accident) were matched
to control subjects in their last year of life. As with cancer padents,
average monthly cstimates of cost of care were calculated for each
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phase of care for control subjects. A total of 1648138 control
subjects were included in the inidal phase of care, 2141794 in the
contnuing phase of care, and 1662 486 in the last year of life phase
of care.

We used payments to reflect costs and ¢stimated Medicare
part A (inpadent services) and part B (cutpagent services) sepa-
rately. Monthly costs were estimated for cancer paticnts and
control subjects by phase of care. Net monthly medical costs
were calculated as differences in costs for cancer patients and
control subjects by rumer site and phase of care. Mean annual-
ized net costs were calculated by muliplying the net mounthly
costs by 12 months by mumor site and phase of care. We added
adjustments for patent deduccbles and coinsurance expenses
scparately for Medicare parts A and B. The Medicare Prospective
Payment System adjuster and the Medicare Economic Index
were used to adjust for inflaion in Medicare part A and part B,
respectively, The Medical Geographic Adjustment Factor and
the Geagraphic Practice Cost Index were used to adjust for cost
difference across different SEER locations for part A and part B
costs, respectively (15).

Patterns of care have been reported to be more aggressive for
younger cancer patients compared with elderly cancer padents in
many health-care settings (18). In addition, because the prevalence
of comorbid condidons and levels of medical care increase with
age, health-care spending also typically increases with age (17). To
extrapolate net cost estimates from the patient population aged
63 years and older to the population aged 65 years and younger,
we used ratios of the relationship between costs in the elderly to
those in younger patients in the inital and last year of lifc phases
of eare from published studies conducted in managed care settings
{18). We used ratios of 1.2 and 1.5 to adjust the annual net medical
cost for those younger than 65 years treated in the inidal and last
year of life, respectively, Costs in the continuing phase of care were
assumed te he the same. All costs are reported in 2010 US dollars.
National estimates of costs of care were calculated by combining
the mean net costs of cancer care with US prevalence estimates by
age, sex, and cancer site,

In the base case scenario, we assumed that recent cancer costs
remained constane through the year 2020, In addidan to evalu-
ating scenarios with varying assumptions zbout incidence and
survival, in the cost trends scenaro, we also evaluated different
assumptions about costs. For example, the intraduction of more
effective, but dramadcally more expensive mreauments (6,19, will
likely affect cancer costs in the future. However, the patterns of
diffusion of these therapies are unknown. To reflect this uncer-
tainty, we evaluated three cost trends scenarios: 1) overall cost
increase of 2% annually, 2) recent tends in which costs increased
by 2% annually in the inidal and last year of life phases, and 3)
escalating costs in which costs increased by 5% annually in the
initial and last year of life phases.

Results

Recent and Projected Incidence

For most of the cancer sites, incidence has been decreasing, and we
estimated a negative annual percent change {T'able 1) during the
period 1996-2005. "T'he largest decreases in men were for lung,
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Table 1. Incidence and survival trends used in the incidence and
survival trend scenario*

RR of cancer death
for being diagnosed
one year latert

APC in age-adjusted
Incidence rates

Site Women Men Women Men
All sites ~0.46 -(.68 0.982 0.859
Bladder ~1.28 -1.36 0.982 0.974
Brain 0.18 -0.89 0.987 0.887
Breast ~1.05 _— 0.935 w—

Cervix ~3.95 — 0.997 —_

Colorectal -~-1.78 ~2.22 0.978 0.974
Esophagus -1.57 0.00 0.980 0971
Head and neck ~1.59 ~1.66 0.995 0,993
Kidney 2.36 1.83 0.974 0.977
Leukemia ~0.64 ~(.69 0.893 0.988
Lung ~-0.81 ~2.72 0.994 0.994
Lymphoma 0.19 ~0.63 0.978 0977
Metanoma 3.09 2.09 0.915 0.905
Ovary -~4.71 —-— 09786 —_

Pancreas ~0.24 0.02 0.888 0.989
Prastate — ~0.70 — 0.889
Stormach ~-1.7% ~2.24 0.985 0.988
Uterus -0.88 — 0.9, —

* Incidence trands were modeled using astimated annual percent changse
(APC) in age-adiusted cancer incidence rates 1986-2005. Surival Urends
were modeled for men and women diagnosed in age groups 044, 45-54,
5564, and 7584 yoars. RR = ralative risk,

Trands were summarizad using estimated relative risk of carcar death for
patients diagnosad in a given year compared with patients dagnesed in the
previous year. Results were similar by age groups, estimates are presentsd
for tha B5-74 age group.

ey

stomach, and colorectal cancers, respectively, —2.72, —2.24, and
—2.22 annual percent change in age-adjusted rates. More dramatic
decreases were observed for women for ovarian and cervical can-
cer, ~4.71 and —3.95, respectively, annual percent change in age-
adjusted rates. Incidence of kidney cancer and melaroma has been
increasing in both men and woimen, and incidence of lymphoraa
and brain cancer has been increasing in women {Table 1). Among
the five major cancer sites, the largest decreases in incidence were
observed for lung and colorectal cancers in men, —2.72 and ~2.22,
respectively, annual percent change in age-adjusted incidence
rates (Figure 1; Similar figures for more cancer sites are available at
hup://costprojections.cancer.gov.).

Recent and Projected Survival

Survival has been improving for almaost all cancer sites. Survival
trends are summarized by the estimated relatve risk, which repre-
sents the risk of dying of cancer for patents diagnosed in a given
year compared with patients diagnosed in the previous year. The
largest improvements in survival were for prostate eancer in men,
where the risk of dying of cancer death for padents diagnosed in a
given year compared with patients diagnosed in the previous year
was 89% smaller {ic, RR = 0.89), followed by melanema (RR = 0.91
in men and RR = .92 in women), and female breast cancer (RR =
0.94) {Table 1}. For bladder, cervix, and uterus, a flat or slighe
decline (younger age groups) in survival trend was estimared (data
not shown). The observed and modeled §-, 10-, and 15-year rela-
tve survival trends for the major cancer sites for people diagnosed
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benween the ages of 65 and 74 years showed the largest increases
in survival for proscace cancer in men and breast cancer in women

(Figure 2).

Cancer Prevalence. [n the year 2010, we estimated that a total of
13772000 cancer survivars will be alive, with 42% younger than
65 years and the remaining 58% aged 65 years and older (Table 2).
Under the base case scenario, holding incidence and survival
constant, the number of cancer survivors in 2020 will increase by
31% to approximately 18071000, The largest increase between
2010 and 2020 (42%) was projected for the populaton aged
65 years and older {Table 2) because of the aging of the US popu-
lation. The largest proportion of cancer survivors were in the
continuing phase of care, representing 86% of all cancer survivors
in 2010 and 2020. Female breast (3461 00), prostate (2 311000),
colorectal (1216000), and melanoma (1225 000) were the sites
with the largest number of survivors in 2010 (Table 2). These sites

jnci.oxfordiournals.org
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were also projected to have the largest number of survivors in the
year 2020. For most of the cancer sites, 2020 cancer prevalence
projections were robust under the different incidence and survival
assumptions {Table 3). For all cancers, the 2020 projections under
the base case, incidence trend, survival trend, and incidence
and survival trend scenarios were very similar, with approximately
18 million sarvivars (Table 3).

Estimates of the Medical Costs Associated With Cancer
Care

The average annualized net costs of care were highest in the last
year of life phase of care for padents dying from cancer for all
cancer sites (Table 4). The average annualized net costs of care
were maore variable in the inidal phase of care. Brain, pancreas,
ovary, esophagus, and stomach cancers had the largest annualized
initial cost, and melanoma, prostate, and breast cancers had the
lowest annualized tnital cost (Table 4).
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Under the base case scenario, the national cost of cancer care
in 2010 was esdmated to be $124.57 billion {Table §). Female
breast was the cancer site with the highest cost in 2010 ($16.50
billion) followed by colorectal ($14.14 billion), lymphoma ($12.14
billien), lung {§12.12 billion), and prostate (§11.85 billion). Under
the base case scenario, costs in 2020 were estimated to be $157.77
billien, representng a 27% increase from 2010. Assuming constant
costs, the scenaric with the highest national cost estimate in 2020
was the continuing survival trend only scenario (§165.21 billion),
and the lowest national cost estimate in 2020 was the continuing
incidence trends only scenario ($147.57 billion). The contnuing
incidence trend scenario represents a smaller increase in costs
from 2010, compared with the base scenario, because incidence
trends have been decreasing for most of the cancer sites. The ex-
cepdons are cancer of the kidney and melanoma, for which inci-
dence increased. If the incidence of cervical and ovarian cancers

1
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continues to decrease, care costs for these cancer sites in 2020 will
rermain the same or decrcase compared with 2010. Under the as-
sumption of continuing survival improvement, costs will increase
compared with the base scenario. However, the impace of survival
on cancer prevalence was smaller than chac of incidence (Table 5).
[f we assume 2 2% annual increase in the average costs of care in
che inidal and last year of life phases, the cost of cancer care is
estimated to be $172.77 billion, representing 2 39% increase.
Costs of cancer care in 2020 were esdmated to be $207 billion
under the assumption of 5% increase in the costs in the initial and
last year phases of care (escaladng costs), representng a 66%
increase from 2010,

National expendiwures in 2020 by phases of care for the five
major cancer sites—breast, colorectal, prostate, lung, and
[ymphoma—were partiioned into the esdmated expenditure in
2010 and the additional expenditure under the base case scenario
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Table 2. United States cancer prevalence estimates for 2010 and 2020*

No. of people in thousands

Initial Continuing Last year All phases

Site «65 =65 <65 =65 «65 >65 <65 >65 All ages
Bladder

2010 15 29 17 312 4 38 135 379 514

2020 15 39 123 388 4 47 144 485 629
Brain and ONS

2010 7 3 103 14 g 3 118 20 139

2020 7 4 123 25 1 5 142 35 178
Fermnale breast

2010 141 g2 1320 1735 32 141 1493 1068 3481

2020 148 120 1496 2538 36 200 1680 2858 4538
Cervix

2010 7 2 140 119 5 9 152 130 281

2020 7 3 128 125 b 9 139 137 276
Colorectal

2010 41 &5 2886 724 16 84 343 873 1218

2020 48 82 338 928 19 104 405 1112 1517
Esophagus

2010 2 4 9 13 2 4 14 21 35

2020 3 5 1 22 2 8 17 33 50
Head and neck

2010 14 10 110 122 7 18 132 150 283

2020 16 12 124 156 g 23 149 191 340
Kidney

2010 14 12 123 136 5 17 142 166 308

2020 16 17 181 211 G 25 173 254 428
Leukemia

2010 10 1 148 72 8 13 166 97 263

2020 10 14 182 105 10 18 202 138 340
Lung

2010 28 52 64 i7 13 46 05 269 374

2020 K| 68 B9 217 14 53 13 343 457
Lymphama

2010 286 22 333 212 15 k]| 374 265 639

2020 27 29 369 323 17 47 413 399 812
Melanoma

2010 53 30 629 466 10 28 691 534 1225

2020 55 42 753 788 12 83 820 893 1714
Owvary

2010 g 7 108 91 7 15 124 114 238

2020 8 9 108 127 8 22 125 158 282
Pancreas

2010 5 9 7 3 3 3 15 16 30

2020 g 12 g 7 3 5 17 23 40
Prostate

2010 B7 126 387 1546 10 154 484 1827 231

2020 108 175 510 2243 13 215 631 2633 3265
Stomach

2010 4 6 18 37 2 6 24 50 74

2020 5 8 22 49 3 g 29 64 93
Uterus

2010 20 16 156 360 3 N 179 A07 588

2020 23 20 177 413 3 34 204 468 672
All sites

2010 528 552 5066 6725 178 723 5772 8000 13772

2020 583 724 5902 9645 209 1008 6694 11377 18071

* The estimated number of individuals with a previous cancer diagnosis in the initia! year atter diagnosis, continuing and last year of te phases of care by age (<65 and 265

years), and year was estimated using a method that calculates prevalence from projected incidence and sunival models (7,10). ONS = other nervous system urmors.

projected for 2020 (Figure 3). Differences were due anly to the
aging and growth of the US population. Colorcetal cancer was the
site with che highest cost in the inidal phase of care and lung can-
cer had the highest cost in the last year of lifc phase of care.

jnci.oxfordjournals.org
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Prostate and female breast cancers had the highest cost in the con-
tinuing phase. The highest increases in medical cost of care in
2020 were projected for femmale breast (32%) and prostate (42%)
cancer patients in the continuing phase (Figure 3).
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Table 3. United States cancer pravalence estimates for 2040 and projections for 2020 under different scenario assumptions*

Number of cancer survivors

2010 2020
Trend incidence, Trend survival, Trend incidence and survival,

Site Base Base, No. (% change) No. (% change) No. {% change} Na. (% change)
Bladder 514000 629000 (22) 576000 {12) 40000 (14) 587000 (14)
Brain 139000 176000 (27) 174000 (25 185000 (31) 182000 (31)
Breast 3481000 4538000 (31) 4275000 {24) 45897000 {25) 4329000 {25)
Cervix 281000 276000 (-2 245000 (-13) 277000 (=13} 245000 (-13)
Colorectal 1216000 1517000 (25) 1327000 {9) 1575000 {13) 1376000 (13)
Esophagus 35000 50000 (43) 48000 (37) 62000 (71) 60000 (71)
Head and neck 283000 340000 (20 308000 (9 346000 (111 313000 (11}
Kidney 308000 426000 (38} 487000 (58} 446000 {86) 511000 (66)
Leukemia 263000 340000 (29 328000 (25) 356000 (30) 342000 (30)
Lung 374000 457000 (22) 392000 (5 481000 {(10) 412000 (1Y
Lymphoma 639000 812000 27 803000 (26} 841000 (301 831000 {30}
Melanoma 1225000 1714000 (40} 1971000 (61} 1724000 {62) 1983000 {62}
Ovary 238000 282000 (18) 232000 (-3} 296000 (1) 241003 (1)
Pancreas 30000 40000 (33) 40000 (33) 50000 (67) 50000 (67)
Prostate 2311000 3265000 (41} 3108000 i34) 3291000 (36} 3132000 (36)
Stomach 74000 93000 (26 80000 (8} 103000 (19) 88000 18}
Uterys 586000 672000 (15) 638000 19) 667000 (8) 834007 18}
All sites 13772000 18071000 (31} 17465000 {27} 18878000 (32) 18229000 {32)

" Scenarios: base, incidance trend, survival trend, and incidence and survival trend. Percent change from 2010 base estimate, The 2020 estimatas under the base
scaenario reprasent prevalence estimates under the assumption of flat incidence and survival trends but dynamic changes in the US population, Incidence trend
and survival trend scenarios represent prevalenca projections under the assumptions that survival and incidence trends will continue as observed in the last years
of data. Ingidence trands represent changes due to prevention and risk factor prevalence. Survival trends represent changes in early detection and treatment.

Discussion

We used the most recently available cancer incidence, survival, and
medical cost of care data in the United Scates to estimate and pro-
ject the national costs of cancer care through the year 2020, In our
base casc model using constant cancer incidence, survival, and cost
of care, we cstimated that the national costs of cancer care in 2010
will be approximately $124.57 billion. We projected nadonal costs
to increasc to $157.77 billion in 2020 under the basc case scenario
{constant incidence, survival, and cost), a 27% increase. Because
we used dynamic assumpdons of aging and growing of the U§
population (3) for all projections, this increase in costs over ime in
the base case scenario reflects growth and aging in the population
only. The largest increase in cost projected for 2020 was in the
continuing care phase for female breast and prostate cancers
(Figure 3). This increase in the number of breast and prostate
cancer survivors has important implications for the demand for
medical oncologists (20), as well as the interaction between pri-
mary care and oncology for coordination of surveillance care. Qur
findings will be pardcularly useful for policy makers for planning
and allocation of resources.

We also cvaluated a variety of sensitivity analysis scenarios
reflecting different assumptdons about future trends in incidence,
survival, and costs of care. Projectons using different assumptions
of survival and incidence trends were robust and show that changes
in incidence and/or survival have a smaller impact on estdmates
compared with the aging and growth of the US population. The
2020 predicted costs of cancer care under the assumptions of 1)
continuing trends {decreasing incidence and increasing survival)
and 2) constant incidence and survival were very similar, 154.70
and 157.77 billion US 2018 dollars, respectvely. These esdmates

124 Articles | JNCI

represent increases of 27% and 24%, respectively, in cost com-
pared with 2010, In both of these scenartos, we assumed that cur-
rently developed cancer control technologies and their current
costs will continue as in the past. It is likely that new tools for
diagnosis, treatment, and follow-vp of cancer padents will be
developed and will be more expensive. Assuming recent incidence
and survival rends, a 2% increase in annual costs of care in the
inital and last year of life phases will resulc in a 39% increase in
costs over the 10 years and a cost estimate of $173 billien in 2020,
With expecred increases in usc of targeted chemotherapies, in-
creases in the cost of a course of rearment are expected to escalate
more rapidly. A 3% increase in the annual costs of care in the ini-
tal and last year of Iife phases yields a projected $207 billion in
2020, a 66% increase from 2010. However, trends in costs associ-
ated with the use of targeted chemotherapies might be mitigated
somewhat through the use of genomic based prognestic markers.

Our esumates of the national cost of cancer care in the year
2010 arc higher than those reported elsewhere (5), even after ac-
counting for differences in the base year used for inflation adjust-
ment. lmportant differences include our use of the most recent
incidence, survival, and cost of care data, identificadon of cancer
patients from registry rather than sclf-report, use of dynamic
populadon estimates and projecdons, and detailed methods for
estimadng cancer prevalence. In particular, our cost estimates were
based an Medicare claims through the year 20086, reflecting the use
of targeted therapies in this population. In a2dditon, we used a
phase of care framework to measure the wajectory of cancer care
from diagnosis to death to classify cancer survivors and estimate
the cast of carc for distinct periods. Costs of care for cancer
patients who die of their disease follows a “U-shaped” curve, with
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Attachment 37-Exhibit 3
Lincar Accelerators in HPA 05

ILLINQIS HOSPITALS DATA SUMMARY - Calendar Year 2010 Hospital Planning Area  A-05 o R
Surgery and Operating Room Utilization
Surgical Speclality Operating Rooms Surgical Cases Surgleal Hours Hours per Case
inpalient Oulpatient Combined Tolal  Inpatient Oulpatient Inpatient Qutpatient TotalHours  Inpatienl Outpatient
Cardiovascular 0 0 10 10 1.774 414 897 841 9,812 &1 2.0
Dermatology ] o 0 0 ] 0 0 0 o 0.0 0.0
General 0 0 56 56 6,085 9,124 16,935 16,361 33,266 2,8 1.8
Gastreenierology ] a 0 0 57 9 a8 17 116 1.7 1.9
Neurology 0 0 3 3 2,067 £89 8,340 1,271 9,611 40 2.2
OB/Gynecology 4] ] 6 G 3,302 5,616 7,793 9,405 17.198 2.3 1.7
Oral/Maxillofacial 0 0 0 0 89 302 308 750 1.058 3.5 2.5
Ophthalmology Q 0 1 1 38 1,897 69 2,949 3.018 1.8 1.6
Orthopedic 1] 0 5 5 7,797 7,631 23,800 16,8593 40,793 31 2.2
Otelaryngatogy 0 a 2 2 354 4,831 856 7.626 8,482 2.4 1.6
Plastic Surgery 0 0 0 0 346 2,326 1.030 5,306 6,336 3.0 2.2
Padiatry 0 0 0 0 7o 379 248 808 1,054 0.6 2.1
Thoracic 0 0 0 o 324 51 972 a0 1,062 30 1.8
Urology 0 0 8 B 1,307 2,292 3,490 3.766 7,256 2.7 16
Tolals 0 0 29 89 23,772 35,441 73,010 66,083 139,093 31 1.9
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Recovery Stations 108 Stage 2 Recovery Stations 158
Dedicated and Non-Dedicated Procedure Room Utilzation
Procedure Rooms Surgicat Cases Sur rs Hours per Case
Procedure Type Inpalient Outpatient Cambined Tatal  [npatient Oufpatient Inpatient Oufpatient Total Hours Inpatent Qutpatient
Gastrointestinal 0 0 27 27 6,295 28,680 6,031 25,093 31,124 1.0 0.8
Laser Eye Procedures 0 1 o 1 0 60 0 40 40 0.0 0.7
Pain Managcmont o] 1 3 4 20 47209 19 31613 3632 1.0 0.8
Cystoscopy 1 0 2 2 470 831 647 1111 1.758 1.4 1.3
Cardlae Catheteriza abs Cardlac Catheterlzatlon Utllizatlon
Total Cath Labs (Dedicated+Nondedicated labs): 19 Total Cardiac Cath Procedures: 14.156
Cath Labs used for Angiography procedures 4 Diagnostic Catheterizalions (0-14) o
Dedicated Diagnostic Catheterization Labs 0 Diagnostic Cathetenzations {15+) 7528
Dedicated Interventionat Catheterization Labs 0 Inlerventional Gatheterizations (0-14): 0
Dedicated EP Catheterization Labs 4 Interventional Catheterization (15+) 2,320
EP Calheterizations (154} 4,308
Emergency/Trauma Carg Cardiac ery Data
Certified for Trauma Care 5 Tolal Car.dlac Surgery Casef: 952
Operating Rooms Dedicated for Trauma Care 1 ied:al:i;[\? - 14 Yeag}, . 943
Number of Trauma Visils: 19,387 c du ::ﬂ eBars andG Icfiler)(leBG ) 9
) oronary Arlery Bypass Grafis s
Patlents Admitted from Trauma 3,397 performed of total Cardiac Cases : 664
Number of Emergency(ER) Siations; 176
gency(ER) ) Outpatlent Service Data
Persons Trea_ted by Emergency Services: 245,902 Total Outpatient Visits ¢
Patients Admitted from Emergency’ §3.5M Quipatient Visils at the Hospital/ Campus: 1,437,031
Total ED Visits {Emergency+ Trauma): 265,289 Outpatlent Visits Offsitesoff campus 642,078
Examinations Radlation Equipment Theraples!

Owned Confract inpaticnt Outpatient

Owned Contract Treatments

General Radiography/Fluoroscapy 108 o 134,515 238,660 < < 38
Nuctear Medicing 29 o 7,974 20,693 Lingar Accelaralor 7 g 6.065
Mammography 23 ] 57 93,346 - " 5976
Uttrasound a7 0 40174 128,367 Intensity Modulated Rad Therap 0 0 4429
Diagnostic Angiography 10 2 8.728 6.085 High Dose Brachylherapy 2 1} 237
Interventional Angiography 32235 31400 Proton Boam Therapy 0 o o
Pasitron Emission Temography (PET) 1 2 4 783 Gamma Knife 0 0 0
Compulenzed Axial Tomagraphy {CAT) 26 o 51,041 133,004 )

Magnetic Resonance Imaging 14 0 1M 31,987 Cyber knifo 0 2 265

Source: 2010 Annual Hospilal Questionnaire, lllinois Department of Public Health, Division of Health Systems Development.
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HOSPITAL PROFILE - CY 2010 I ngard Hosgital I Naperville
Surgory and Operating Room Utilization
Surgica! Speciaity Operating Rooms Surgical Cases Surgleal Hours Heurs pet Case
Inpatient Qutpatient Combined Total Inpatienl  Culpatieml Inpatient  Outpatient Total Hours Inpatient Qutpalient
Cardiovascular o] 0 3 3 346 76 1708 141 1848 4.9 1.9
Oermatalogy 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0
General 4 ] 16 16 1564 3704 3808 6202 1D04D 24 1.7
Gastroenterology 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .0 a0
Neurology 0 0 ] 0 700 165 2046 258 3204 4.2 16
CBIGynecclogy 0 0 4 0 365 1440 a63 2320 3283 26 16
OrallMaxiflofacial a 0 0 Q 15 413 4B 99 147 32 21
Ophthalmology ] 0 o g 5 178 1 M4 325 2.2 18
Ornthopedic 4] o G 0 1280 2089 3484 4256 7740 21 2.0
Ololaryngology o 0 0 0 19 1119 a0 1245 1275 18 141
Plastic Surgery 0 0 0 0 40 241 117 657 T4 249 2.7
Padlatry o] 1] ¢ 0 o] 0 Q 0 0 0.0 0.0
Thoracic 0 0 0 0 102 0 37 0 37 31 00
Urclogy 0 0 0 0 80 173 355 313 668 4.4 1.8
Totals 0 0 19 18 4516 9232 13787 16805 29592 31 1.7
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Recovery Stations 16 Stage 2 Recovery Stations 3
Dedicated and Non-Dedicated Procedurg Room Utlization
Progedure Rogms Surgical Cases Sumical Hourg Hours per Casg
Procedure Type Inpatient Qulpatient Combined Total Inpatie  Outpatient  Inpatient Culpalienl Total Hours Inpatient Oulpatient
Gasirointestinal 0 0 [ 8 1223 7338 a17 5504 6421 0.7 0.8
Laser Eye Procedures 0 0 0 0 0 0 4] G o] 0.0 0.0
Pain Management 0 0 0 o] 0 0 ] 0 (] 0.0 00
Cystascopy 0 [ 1 1 218 488 3586 730 1086 1.6 1.5
Multipurpose Non-Dodlcated Rooms
Minor Procedures 0 0 2 2 15 581 14 631 645 0.8 1.1
0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0
0 1] 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0 0.0 Q.0
Cardlac Cathetarlzation Labs Cardiac Catheterization Hilization
Total Cath Labs (Dedicaled+Nondedicated labs) [ Total Cardiac Cath Procedures: 3,9
Cath Labs used for Angiography procedures 1 Diagnostic Catheterizations (0-14) 0
Dedicated Diagnostic Catheterizaiion Labs 0 Diagnestic Catheterizations (15+) 2276
Dedicated Inlerventional Cathglerization Labs 0 Intervenllonat Cathelerizations (0-14); o
Dedicated EP Catheterization Labs k Interventional Cathelerization (15+) 670
Emergency/Trauma Care EP Catheterizations {15+) 965
Certified Trauma Center Yes cord Dats
ardiac Surgery Da
Level of Trauma Service Nozl::;;:c‘:—, e L,::ﬂ"z Total;:z:lr.ui:lc ?éﬂgfffase:: 23;
. edratnc - 2ars).
Operating Rooms Defd{cated for Trauma Care 1 Adult {15 Years and Older): 233
Number of Trauma Visits: 1122
Patients Admitted from Trauma 1,015 Coronary Arlery Bypass Grafis {CABGs)
] performed of 1ola! Cardlac Cases : 151
Emergency Service Type: Comprehensive
Number of Emergency Room Siations 46 . Qutpatient Service Data
Persons Trealed by Emergency Services: 63,282 Tatal Outpatient Visits ) 485,150
, . Qulpatient Visits at the Hospital! Campus: 339,805
Patients Admitted from Emergency: 9,478 Oulpatient Visits Offsite/off campus 145,545
Total EC Visils {(Emergency+Trauma): 64,408
DiagnosticAnterventional Equipment Examinations Radiatlon Ecuipment, Theraple:
Own Contract Inpatient Outpt Contract Owned Conatract Treatments
Genearal Radiograghy/Fluorascopy 40 0 29032 85364 0 guithtriosy 2 g 0
Nuclesr Medicine 10 0 1648 5339 0 | binear Accelorator 3 0 750
Mammagraphy 9 0 0 53,154 0 mag ; v U 774
Ulirasound 40 0 11,528 54,497 50288 Intensity Modulated Rad Thrpy 0 0 720
Angiography 0 2 High Dase Brachytherapy 1 0 25
Diagnostic Angiogrephy 5,582 2158 S proton Beam Therapy 0 0 0
Interventional Angiography 0 0 O Gamma Knif 0 0 0
Positron Emission Tomagraphy (PET) 1 0 4 793 0 :
Computarizad Axial Tomography (CAT) 12 0 11275 47025 550 Cyber knife 0 0 0
Magnretic Resanance Imaging 5 0 2650 11,917 0

Source: 2010 Annual Hospital Questionnaire, Ninais Depariment of Public Health, Health Syslems Development.

73

Attachment 37- Exhibit 3




HOSPITAL PROFILE - CY 2010

[Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital |

Downers Grove

Surgery and Gperating Room Utilization

Ical Special Operating Rooms Suraical Cases Surglcal Hours Hours per Case
Inpatient Oulpatient Combined  Tolal Inpaticnt  Outpatient  Inpatienl  Outpalient Totat Hours npatient Ouipatient
Cardiovascular 0 0 2 2 37a 1 1625 3 1628 4.3 3.0
Dermatology 0 o o 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 0.0 0.0
General 0 0 G 10 1122 1150 42859 2192 6481 3.8 1.9
Gastroenlerology 0 o ] 0 14 G 29 0 29 2.1 0.0
Neurology 0 g 0 0 135 12 581 35 617 4.3 3.0
OB/Gynecology 0 0 0 0 M6 653 729 1005 1734 2.3 1.5
Ora¥Manxillofacial 0 [ o 0 12 9 25 13 8 21 1.4
Ophthalmology 0 0 0 0 3 10 5 11 16 1.7 11
Orthopedic 0 ¢ 0 q 1787 1285 6149 3743 0882 34 3.0
Ololaryngology 0 1} a 1} 73 292 143 537 780 20 2.2
Plaslic Surgery 0 0 0 0 178 709 461 1436 1897 28 20
FPodialry 0 0 0 0 104 108 159 249 407 1.5 2.3
Thoracic ] 0 0 0 32 & 132 13 150 4.1 J.o
Urology 0 0 1 1 320 428 591 690 1281 1.8 1.6
Totals 1] 0 13 13 4468 4644 14998 10032 24930 13 2.2
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Recovery Stations 18 Stage 2 Recovery Stations 21
Dedlcated and Nop-Dedicated Proggdure Room Utilzation
Procedure Rogms Surgical Cases Surglcal Hours Hours per Case
Procedura Type Inpatienl Qutpatient Comblned Total  Inpatient  Qutpalient  Inpatienl Oulpatient Total Hours Inpatient  Quipatient
Gastrointestinal 0 0 6 6 1666 5075 1537 3814 5351 0.9 08
Laser Eye Procedures 4] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 6.0
Pain Management 0 0 1 1 g 660 0 330 330 0.0 a5
Cystoscopy a 0 1 1 252 342 291 351 672 1.2 1.1
Muttipurposa Non-Dedicated Rooms
a Y] 0 0 D 0 D ] 0 0.0 0.0
4] 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0.0 oo
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 [\] 0 0.0 0.0
Cardiag Catheterization Labs Cardjag Catheterization Uitilization
Tatal Cath Labs [Dedicated+Nondedicated |abs): 3 Total Cardiac Cath Proceduras: 3,362
Cath Labs used for Angiography procedures. 0 Diagnostic Catheterizations (0-14) 0
Dedicated Diagnostic Catheterizalion Labs 0 Diagnostic Catheterizations (15+) 2,049
DCedicated Interventional Catheterization Labs o Interventional Calbelarizations (0-14): 0
Dedlcated EP Catheterization Labs ¢ Interventional Calhelerization (15+} 419
Emergency/Trawma Care EP Cathelerizations {15+) 894
Cerlified Trauma Center No
Level of Trauma Service Leval 1 Lovel 2 . ) Mﬂ-ﬂﬁ
Adull Not Applicable otal Car.d|a.c Surgery Cases: 199
Operating Rooms Dedicated for Trauma Care C Pediatric (0 - 14 Years). 0
Number of Trauma Visits: 864 Adult (15 Years and Oldery: 199
Patients Admliled from Trauma 514 Coronary Arery Bypass Grafts (CABGs)
. performed af total Cardlac Cases : 116
Emergency Service Type: Comprehensive .
Number of Emergency Room Stations 29 Total Out al'ant?f—?‘jlwm 177,633
3 . L ] 151 +
Persons Trea.t ad by Emergency Selrv:r.es, 44.869 Oulpatigni Visils at lhe Hospitall Campus: 155,487
Patlenis Admitted from Emergency: 14,765 i .
N Quipatient Visils Offsitefoff campus 22,146
Total ED Visils (Emergency+ Trauma): 45,733
Examinations Radiation Equfpment Therapie:

Diagnostic/intarventional Equipment

Owned Contract Treatments

Own  Contract Inpatiet  Outp! Contract
General Radiography/Fluoroscopy 24 0 31821 43,291 0 i 4 3 2
Nuciear Medicine 3 0 1,620 3,063 0 Linear Accelerator 2 0 01
Mammography 7 0 33 18,443 s} Image Guided Rad Therapy 0 0 4067
Uitrasound 13 0 7034 14,566 0 Intensity Modulated Rad Thipy 0 0 2584
Angiography 3 G High Dose Brachylherapy 1 0 212
Diagnoslic Angiography 0 6 0 Proton Beam Therapy ] o] 0
Interventional Angiography 29149 26994 0 Gamma Kafle 0 1] 0
Positront Emission Temography (PET) 0 1 ¢ 0 456 .
Computerized Axial Tomogrephy (CAT) 6 0 14147 21,169 o  Cyberknifa 0 0 0
Magnetic Resonance imaging 3 D 2,864 5,168 0

Sourca: 2010 Annual Hospila! Questionnaire, Mlinagis Department of Public Health, Heallh Systems Development.
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HOSPITAL PROFILE - CY 2010 I Aq"eﬂliﬂ Hinsdale Hospital I Hinsdale
Surgery and Operating Room Utllization
Surgical Specially Qperating Rooms Surgical Cages Surpica) Hours Haurg per Cage
Inpatient Quipalient Combined Total inpatient  Quipatiant Inpatienl  Oulpatient Total Hours Inpalient  Oultpatient
Cardigvascular 0 0 1 1 196 22 1043 53 1085 5.3 2.4
Cermalology i} G 0 0 0 0 I} 0 0 0.0 0.0
General 0 0 2 2 593 €97 1882 1604 3486 3.2 23
Gastroenterology 0 Q 0 0 13 4 25 8 33 1.9 2.0
Neurology 0 0 o 0 38 123 1122 317 1439 a3 26
OBIGynecology 0 0 2 2 414 1044 1490 2403 893 36 2.3
OralMaxlotacial 0 1] 1 0 47 120 20 343 544 4.3 2.8
QOpnthalmology 0 0 0 0 8 68 18 156 174 23 2.3
Onhopedic 4] 0 4 4 1042 600 3490 1658 5148 3.4 2.5
Otolaryngology 0 1] 2 2 118 768 438 1954 2392 3.7 25
Flastic Surgery o 0 o 0 28 93 90 332 422 3. 38
Podiatry 0 1] 0 0 16 54 45 168 215 29 31
Thoracic [ 0 [ 0 14 1 57 3 60 4.1 3.0
Urology 0 0 1 1 240 366 889 782 1671 3.7 2.1
Jotals 0 o 12 12 3068 3980 10791 9782 20573 35 2.5
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Recovery Stations 18 Slage 2 Recovery Stations 27
Dedicated and Non-Dedicated Procedure Room Utiization
Procedure S Surgical Cases Surgical Haurs 0 er 2
Pracodure Type Inpatient Cutpatient Combined Tolal Inpatient  Quipatient Inpatient Outpatient Total Hours !npatient Oulpalient
Gastrointestinal a 1 4 4 817 38856 838 4404 5342 1.1 1.1
Laser Eye Procedures 0 0 0 o 1 0 4] 0 o] 0.0 0.0
Pain ianagement 0 0 1 1 15 696 13 633 €46 0.9 0.9
Cystoscopy 0 0 o o 0 0 0 0 o 0.0 c.0
Multlpurpose Non-Dedicated Rooms
Ambulatory Care 0 2 0 2 0 300 0 522 522 0.0 1.7
0 Q o g 0 0 0 0 1] 0.0 0.0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0
Cardjac C erjzation Labs Cardiac_Catheterization Utilization
Total Cath Labs (Dedicated+Nondedlcated labs): 3 Tolzl Cardiac Cath Procedures: 1,664
Cath Labs used for Angiography procedures ¢ Diagnestic Catheterizations {0-14) 0
Dedicated Diagnostic Catheterization Labs a Diagnostic Catheterizations {15+) 635
Oedicated Interventional Catheterization Labs 0 Interventional Cathetenzations (0-14): 0
Dedicated EP Catheterization Labs L Interventional Cathelerization (15+) 236
Emorgency/Trauma Care EP Cathelerizations {15+) 793
Certlfied Trzuma Center Yes Cardlac S Dt
. ardlac Surgery Data
Level of Trauma Service Nntﬁ;:c:able L::?:nz Tota! Cardiec Surgery Cases: 102
Operating Rooms Dedicaled for Trauma Care 0 Pedialric (0 - 14 Years): 0
Number of Trauma Visits: 403 Adult {15 Years and Otder): 103
Palients Admitied from Trauma 287 Coronary Arlery Bypass Grafls (CABGs)
. performed of {otal Cardiac Cases 79
Emergency Service Type: Comprehensive .
Number of Emergency Room Stalions 24 Qj"—‘mmw
Persons Treated by Emergancy Sarvices: 25,855 Totat 0”,"’*"“‘-‘.’“_ Visils . 262,727
Patients Admitied from Emergency: 6.113 Quipatient V!s!ts at the Hospilall Campus: 198,240
A Oulpatlent Visits Offstte/off campus 64 487
Total ED Visits (Emergenty+Travma): 26,358
Diagnostic/intervantjonal Equlpmen Examinations Radlation Equipment Tharaple:
Own Contract Inpatient Qutpt Contract Owned Contract Treatments
General Radiography/Fluoroscopy 20 0 20668 21.457 0 glthotiosy 3 2 2
Nuclear Medicine 0 1228 1977 0 I Lingar Accelerator 1 0 s.070]
Mammography 1 0 1 108 0 mage Guided Ka erapy L) 13
Ultrasound 17 0 3.845 7,794 a Intensity Modulaled Rad Thrpy 0 0 37
Angiography 2 o High Dose Brachytherapy 0 D o
Diagnastic Angiography 1856 2172 C  proton Beam Therapy 0 0 0
Interventiona! Angiography 1813 1018 0 Gemms Knife 0 0 0
Fositron Emission Tomography (PET) o [ 0 0 0 _
Computerized Axial Tomography (CAT) 2 0 6781 12225 0 Cyber knife 0 1 5
Magnetic Resonance Imaging 1 ] 1.358 2,558 0

Source: 2010 Annual Hospital Questiennaire, (linois Cepartment of Public Health, Health Systems Develapment,
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HOSPITAL PROFILE - CY 2010 IE[mhurst Memaorial Hospital | Elmhurst
Surgery and Quperating Room WHillzation
Surgical Speciaity Operatin ms Surgical Cases Surgicat Hoyrs Hourg per Case
Inpatient Cutpalienl Combined Tatal Inpatient  Outpalient Inpalient  Qutpalient Total Hours Inpatient  Outpatient
Cardlovascular 0 o] 2 i 461 9 2385 244 2629 5.2 2.7
Demmatology [¢] ] 0 4] 0 4] a 0 0 0.0 0.0
Genera) ] ] 10 10 1080 1454 3049 2903 5952 29 2.0
Gaslroenterology o 0 0 o] 25 4 40 B 48 1.6 2.0
Neurology Q ¢ 4] 0 183 19 806 49 855 4.4 2.8
0B/Gynecology 0 0 0 0 238 582 631 837 1628 2.8 1.6
OralfMaxillofacial ] 0 0 0 4 10 10 21 31 2.5 2.4
Qphlhalmology o 0 0 0 3 284 6 545 551 2.0 1.8
Crthopedic ] 1] 0 0 1005 1414 3298 2872 6170 33 20
Otolaryngology 0 0 0 0 41 T2 94 1067 1161 23 1.5
Plastic Surgery b 1] 0 0 17 529 8] 1204 1273 4.1 2.3
Podlatry 0 0 ] 0 14 4 26 B8 34 1.9 2.0
Thoracic 0 1] 0 1] 6 1 13 2 15 2.2 2.0
Urolagy 0 a 2 2 177 474 384 720 1104 2.2 1.5
Totals 0 D 14 14 3235 5578 10871 10580 21451 34 1.9
SURGICAL RECOVERY STATIONS Stage 1 Recovery Stations 20 Stage 2 Recavery Stations 23
Dedlcated and Non.Dedicated Procedurg Room Utilzation
Procedure Roomsg Surgical Cases Surgical Hourg Hours per Case
Procedurs Type Inpatfeni Qulpatient Combined Tofal Inpatient  Outpatient ‘npatient Qutpatlent Total Hours Inpatient  Qutpatient
Gastrointestinal ¢ 1] 5 5 1234 5020 1048 5117 61656 0.% 0.8
Laser Eye Procedures 0 0 0 0 Q 0 ¢ 0 Q 0.0 0.0
Pain Management [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 I} 0 0.0 0.0
Cystoscopy o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0.0 0.0
Multlpurpose Non-Dedicated Rooms
C-Section 2 0 1} 2 299 a 545 o] 545 1.8 0.0
0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0.0 0.0
Gardiac Catheterizatiop Labs Cardlag Catheterization Wtilization
Total Cath Labs (Dedicated+Nondadicaied labs): 3 Total Cartdiac Calh Procedures: 2,397
Cath Labs used for Angiography proceduras 0 Dlagnostic Cathelerlzations (0-14) 0
Dedicated Diagnoslic Catheterizalion Labs 0 Diagnostic Cathaterizations (15+) 1,105
Dedicated Intervenlional Catheterization Labs o Interventional Catheterizations (0-14); 0
Dedicated EP Calheterization Labs ! Interveniional Cathaterization {15+) 472
Emorgency/Trauma Care EP Catheterizalions (15+) B20
Cerified Trauma Center Yes
Level of Trauma Service Level 1 Lovel 2 T ] Mge_l:y_@_a_lg
Not Applicable Adult alat Cardualc Surgery Cases: 185
Qperating Rooms Dedicaled for Trauma Care i:ﬁl?::?)(‘?e-a:: :nedag:éier)' 182
Number of Trauma Visits: 5,536 :
Palients Admitted from Trauma 602 Corarary Artery By pass Grafts (CABGS)
i performed of total Cardiac Cases ; 133
Emergency Service Type: Comprahensive
Number of Emergancy Room Statlons 28 Outpatient Service Data
Persons Treated by Emergancy Services: 39,716 Total Ou} paiiept Visits 400,326
Patients Admitted from Emergency: 8.183 Oulpat{ent V{s!ts at th'e Haospitalf Campus: 225,514
. Qutpatient Visits Offsiteloff campus 174,812
Total ED Visils (Emergency+Trauma): 45,252
Examinatlonsg Radlation Equipment Therapie:

Dlagnostic/interventional Equipment

Owned Contract Treatmanta

Own Contract Inpatient Quigt Contract

General Radiography/Fluocrascopy 8 0 26847 31788 0 geiithalriosy 0 0 0
MNuctear Medicing ] o 1,436 3,356 0 Linear Accelerator 1 0 2 gl
Mammography 3 0 21 6.828 0 ma [ U T 202
Ultrasound 4 0 4,699 8,606 ¢ iniensity Modulaled Rad Thrpy 0 0 88
Angiography 1 9 High Dose Brachytherapy 0 0 o

Diagnastc Angiography 289 253 0 Proton Beem Therapy 1} 0

Interventional Angiography 568 318 0 cemma Knife 0 o 0
Pusitron Emission Tomography (PET) 0 1 0 o 37 ) 0
Computerized Axial Tomography (CAT) 2 0 9286 13428 0 Cyber knifa 0 1 260
Magnelic Resonance Imaging 0 1,872 2,412 0

Source: 2010 Annual Hospital Questionnaire, (llinois Department of Public Health, Health Systems Development,

®
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Attachment 37-Exhibit 4
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Attachment 37-Exhibit 5
Linear Accelerator Utilization Information for
Elmhurst Memorial Hospital

Dept.d Histcrical PROJECTED STATE MET
Service Utitizatlon UTILIZATION STANDARD STANDARD?
(FPatient Days)
{TREATMENTS) | YEAR1 YEAR2
ETC.
Radiation Ther. 6,502 (2011) 7,313 7.8607 7,500+ yes

Note: Eimhurst Memorial Hospital has historically provided radtation therapy utilization
data on its IDPH Annua) Hospital Questionnaires as “courses of treatment”, as
directed. The IHFSRB’s utilization standard, as identified in Appendix B to
Section 1110 refers to “ireatments”. A techmical assistance conference was held
on January 11, 2012 with IHFSRB staff, and recorded consistent with JHFSRB
requirements. During that conference, IHFSRB staft acknowledged that
“frealments” were a more accurale measurement of utilizalion than trealment

Courses.,

Note: This information is taken from Elmhurst Memorial
Hospital's CON Application (Project 12-019), submitted
March 2, 2012,
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SECTION Vill - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Availability of Funds

See Attachment 39-Exhibit 1 for the relevant sections of the loan agreement used to finance a portion of
this project. This documentation includes the loan term sheet as well as pages from the loan agreement
itself. It demonstrates the loan amount of $22,000,000. The balance of the project costs
(517,477,979.07) will be funded with cash. All financing for this project comes from DuPage Medical
Group, Ltd.

Bond Rating Information for Rush University Medical Center

Rush University Medical Center, which is a co-applicant, has not in any way participated in the financing
of this project and will merely rent out, as a tenant, a portion of the space at DMG’s Medical Office
Building. Information as to RUMC's bond rating is included in this application per the advice of the CON
staff. Please see Attachment 39-Exhibit 2, which includes:

Moody’s Investors Service rating from February 28, 2012 assigning RUMC a Bond Rating of “A2”;
Fitch Ratings from July 1, 2011 assigning RUMC a Bond Rating of “A-"; and

¢ Standard and Poor's Research rating from December 17, 2011 assigning RUMC a Bond Rating of
HA-H.
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Attachment 39-Exhibit 1

Term Sheet and Construction Loan

Note: Some portions of the Term Sheet have been redacted. The portions redacted are those
that provide specific terms regarding interest rates or fees. This information is considered
proprietary and confidential. Furthermore, this information is not necessary for the purpose
intended by inclusion of this document in the CON submission, i.e. demonstrating the loan
amount and thus confirming the availability of funds.
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Attachment 39-Exhibit 1
Term Sheet and Construction Loan

BankofAmerica 5%
Merrill Lynch

TERM SHEET PROPOSAL
DMG Real Estate, LLC
October 17, 2011

This Term Sheet Proposal Is presented for discussion purposes only, and replaces the Proposal
dated August 3, 2011. it is not a commitment to lend by Bank of America or any of its affiliates. Bank
of America may withdraw or amend it at any time in its sole discretion. i Bank of America does
extend a loan commitment, the actual terms and conditions (including pricing and financlal
covenants) will be subject to completion of due diligence, Bank of America’s credit and
documentation standards, necessary credit approval, market conditions and other considerations
determined by Bank of America in its sole discretion.

BORROWER: DMG Real Estate, LLC (the "Borrower”}.

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT Bank of America, N.A. (the "Administrative Agent,” "Arranger” or "BANA"} will

& ARRANGER: act as sole and exclusive administrative agent and arranger.

LENDERS: A syndicate of financial institutions (including BANA), arranged by the
Administrative Agent and acceptable to the Borrower and BANA.

GUARANTOR: Unlimited guaranty of payment of Du Page Medical Group, Lid. ("DMG")

CREDIT FACILITY: Construction-to-Permanent Term Loan Facility (“Credit Facility”} consisting of

an initial Construction Loan ("Construction Loan™) and a subsequent
permanent Term Loan (*Term Loan”).

CREDIT FACILITY The lesser of:
AMOUNT: ()  $22,000,000; or
(i) 70% of the Fair Market Value of the Properly, as evidenced by a
satisfactory as-completed appraisal performed by the Bank.

BANA SHARE!/ BANA will hold up to $11,220,000 or 51% of the Credit Facility.
PARTICIPATION:
On a best efforts basis, BANA will pursue a participation(s) in the facility for up
to $10,780,000 or 49% of the Credit Facility.

“BEST EFFORTS"” BANA will use its best efforts to form a syndicate of financial institutions

SYNDICATION (“Lenders”) for the Credit Facility, based on the indicative terms and conditions
contained herein. This Proposal represents our current view of where a
transaction such as this would clear the market, but are subject to change.

The Borrower agrees o actively assist BANA in achieving a successful
syndication of the Facilty, To assist BANA in its syndication efiorts, the
Borrower agrees to: (i) provide, and cause its advisors to provide, BANA and
each other Lender that becomes part of the syndicate of financial institutions
upon request with all information reasonably deemed necessary by BANA to
complele the syndicate; (il) assist BANA upon reasonable request in the
preparation of marketing materials to be used in connection with the
syndication of the Facility; and (iii) otherwise assist BANA In its syndication
efforts, Including making available officers and advisors of the
Borrower/Guarantor and its affiliales and subsidiaries from fime to time to
attend and make presentations regarding the business and prospects of the
Borrower/Guarantor and at a meeting or meetings of prospective syndicate
members,

Lisle Construction ‘3
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MARKET FLEX

CLEAR MARKET
PROVISION:

PURPOSE:

MATURITY:

CLOSING DATE:
INTEREST RATE:

INTEREST
CALCULATION

INTEREST RATE
PROTECTION

UPFRONT FEE:
ARRANGER FEE:

AGENCY FEE:

Liste Construction

BankafAmerica @

Mersill Lynch

The Borrower will cooperate with BANA's recommendations to change the
structure or terms (including pricing) of the Credit Facility, if BANA datermines
that such changes will be necessary In order 1o ensure a successful
syndication of an optimal credit structura of the Credit Facility. Such change to
struclure, terms or amount may occur before or after initial close of the Credit
Facility. I the Borrower withholds consent, BANA or the Borrower may
terminate any commitments that may have been issued and any further
discussions or efforts with respect to the Credit Facility. The Borrower shall
remain liable for all costs actually incurred during the negotiation, preparation,
execution and syndication of the Credit Facility whether or not such Credit

Facility closes.

From the date of acceptance of this Proposal and continuing until execution
and delivery of the Credit Facility, there shall be no competing offering,
placement or arrangement of any debt securities or bank financing by or on
behalf of the Borrower/Guarantor. The Borrower will immediately notify BANA
if any such transaction is contemplated.

The proceeds of the Credit Facility shall be used for the construction and
psrmanent financing of an approximate 100,000 sq. ft. medical office building

in Lisle, IL (the “Property”).

¢ Construction Loan: 12 months from Closing Date
s« Term Loan: 5 years from Term Loan Conversion.

Targeted December 31, 2011

¢ Construction Loan: _

¢ Term Loan: LIBOR
The [ < -/ bo renewed upon the expiration of the
initial interest period for a like tenor, or other tenor as agreed to by the Bank,
and the rate adjusted to the applicable ﬁin effect at the time
of such renewal.

All calculations of interest and fees shall be made on the basis of actual
number of days elapsed in a 360-day year.

The Bomower shall enter into interest protection agreements acceptabls 1o
BANA for up to 50% of the principal amount of the Credit Facility for a term no
less than 3 years, within 60 days of Term Loan Conversion. The terms of such
Interest rate swap shall be governed by the standard ISDA Master Agreement
and related documentation,

- payable at closing to Lenders based on their pro rata share.

- payable at closing to Arranger.
- payable annually to Administrative Agent.
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Bankof America %>
Merrill Lynch

CONSTRUCTION LOAN The Borrower may request disbursements up to the Credit Facility Amount.
DISBURSEMENTS: Conditions to each disbursement will be usual and customary for transactions
of this typs, including, without limitation: (i} all representations and warranties
are true and correct as of the date of each loan, and (i} no event of default has
occurred or Is continuing under the Credit Facility or would result from such

loan,

Conditions applicable to construction disbursements include, but are not
limited to, the following:

» The Credit Facility shall be subject fo the receipt, review, and
acceptance of the plans and specs of the proposed project by BANA's
Commercial Banking Construction ("CBC") Division and an outside
consultant hired by the Bank to perform a Front End Plan and Cost
Review. This cost is paid by the Borrower. The Bank shall provide a
checklist of all construction related documents and permits required for
closing.

¢ The Credit Facility shall be turther subject to approval of the contractor
and the contract for the proposed project by BANA’s CBC Division.

» Construction costs and disbursements shall be administered by BANA’s
CBC Division during the construction phass.

+ Each Construction Loan disbursement will be evidenced by a monthly
inspaction plus a cost review by BANA's construction monitaring
consultant, which will be paid for by the Borrower.

* The Borrowers equity in the construction draws shall be determined
based on formation of current equity in the Property and formal credit
approval, and either:

{iy Shared with each draw; or
(i) Lump sum upfront

TERM LOAN The Construction Loan shall convert to a Term Loan (“Term Loan
CONVERSION: Conversion™), subject to satisfaction of usual and customary conditions for
transactions of this type, including but not limited to:
* Final Construction Loan disbursemant
Constructicn completion on the Property
Canfirmation of waiver of all mechanic’s lien claims
Delivery of ALTA Loan policy
Delivery of parmanent insurance
Delivery of certificate of occupancy
Execution of all applicable Property leases
Confirmation that no judgments or tax liens exist on either the Property
or the Borrower.

REPAYMENT: The Credit Facility shall be subject to monthly interest payments.

The Term Loan shall be subject to equal monthly installments of principal
based on a 20-year amortization scheduls.

PREPAYMENTS: The Borrower may prepay any variable rate loan under the Credit Facility in
whole or in pant at any time without penalty, except for reimbursement of
BANA's breakage and redeployment costs in the case of prepayment of
LIBOR based borrowings.

Attachment 39- Exhibit 1
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Bankof America 7

Merrill Lynch
REAL ESTATE A first priority mortgage on real property commonly known as 430 Warrenville
COLLATERAL: Road located in Lisle, Du Page County, lllingis. Any existing leases on the real

property shall not contain any right to purchase the property or any right of first
refusal unless such rights are subordinated to BANA's lien In a manner
satisfactory to the Bank. At BANA's request, Borrower shall provide the Bank
with a complete copy of any existing lease on the real property.

Such lien on the real property shall be subject to such terms and conditions as
the Bank may reasonably impose including, but not imited to, a loan to value
ratio not to exceed 70%, an appraisal {to be crdered by Bank of America),
instrument survey, title insurance (with all required endorsements) and
environmental Phase | survey (to be completed by Borrower), all of which shall
be acceptable to Bank of America and its counsel,

Tha foregoing sacurity shall alse secure any liabilities of Borrower to the Bank
arising undsr any interest rate swap/oreign currency swap or other hedging

arrangement.
CONDITIONS The closing (and the inltial funding) of the Credit Facility will be subject to
PRECEDENT: satistaction of the condltions precedent deemed appropriate for transactions of

this type including, but not limited to, the following:

(i} The negotlation, execution and delivery of definitive documentation for
the Credit Facility satisfactory to Bank of America, which shall inciude,
without being limited to satisfactory opinions of counsel to the Borrower
and Guarantor and such other customary closing documents as Bank of
America shall reasonably request.

(il There shall not have occurred a material adverse change in the
business, assets, liabilities (actual or contingent), operations, condition
{financial or otherwise) or prospects of the Borrower and Guarantor
taken as a whole or in the facts and information regarding such entities
as represented to date,

{ii) The absence of any action, suit, investigation or proceeding pending or
threatenad in any court or belore any arbitrator or govemmental
authority that purporis (a) to materially and adversely aflect the
Borrower or Guarantor, or (b) to affect any transaction contemplated
hereby or the ability of the Borrower or the Guarantor to perform their
respective obligations under the documentation for the Credit Facility.

{Iv} Additional due diligence on the Property consistent with transactions of
this type, including, but not limited to, as-completed appraisal of the
Property, environmental due diligence, evidence of all required
insurance, satisfactory title insurance, and review of the construction
and architect contracts and documents by BANA's CBC Division and
the outside consultant hired by the Bank.

(v) Payment of all fees and expenses then due and payable.

(vi) Receipt of items as listed on Exhibit A.

RELATIONSHIP: DMG shall maintain BANA as its principal depository bank, including for the

maintenance of business, cash management, operating and administrative
deposit accounts.
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Bankof America 5%

Merrill Lynch
REPRESENTATIONS Usual and customary for transactions of this type, to include, without limitation:
AND WARRANTIES: () due organization, valid existence and good standing (i) due

authorization/enforceability; (ili} corractness of specifled financial statements
and no material adverse change; (iv} binding effect and enforceability of loan
documents; (v} no liens or encumbrances other than as disclosed to Bank of
America; {vi) compliance with environmental laws; {vil} no material litigation;
{viii) payment of taxes. .

COVENANTS: Usual and customary for transactions of this type, to include, without limitation:
{i) due organization, valid existence and good standing (i) due
authorization/enforceabllity; (iil) correctness of specified financial statements
and no material adverse change; (Iv) binding effect and enforceabllity of loan
documents; (v} no llens or encumbrances other than as disclosed to Bank of
America; {v]) compliance with environmental laws; (vii) no material litigation;

and {viii) payment of taxes.

The Borrower may be required to obtaln a payment and performance bond for
the general contractor, subject to BANA’s review of the contractor's AlA

Statement of Qualifications and financial statements.

FINANCIAL Financlal covenants of the Borrower will include:

COVENANTS:
s Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio (“DSCR”) of 1.20x, measured
quarterly and calculated on a threg-months basis.

DSCR shall be defined as the ratio of {a} Cash Flow to {b) the sum of
scheduled principal and interest payments on all long-term debt.

"Cash Flow™ is defined as (a) net income, after Income tax, (b} less
income or plus loss from discontinued operations and extraordinary
items, (c} plus depreciation, amortization and other non-cash charges,
(d} plus interest expense on all cbligations, and (e) minus dividends,
withdrawals, and other distributions.

Financlal covenants of the Guarantor will include:

Financial covenants and definitions for the Guarantor will be consistent with
those contained in the Loan Agreement beiween BANA and DMG dated

12/31/2010, as follows:

e Minimum Tanglble Net Worth of $40,000,000 + 50% of net income after
12/31/2009, tested quarterly on a year-to-date basis.

*  Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratic of 1.50x, tested quarterly on a
trailing 12-months basis.

* Maximum Senior DebVEBITDA of 3.50x, tested quarterly on LTM basis

» Minlmum Fixed Charge Coverage of 1.10x, tested quarterly on a trailing
12-months basis.
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¢ Maximum unfunded capital expenditures in any fiscal year, tested
quarterly on a year-to-date basis, of;
» $15,000,000 for fiscal year ended 12/31/2011
» $20,000,000 for fiscal years ended 12/31/2012 and thereafter

*» Maximum aggregate rental payments under operating leases in any
fiscal year, tested quarterly on a year-to-date basis, of:
> $25,000,000 for flscal year ended 12/31/2011
» $30,000,000 for flscal years ended 12/31/2012 and thersafter

REPORTING Financial reporting from the Borrower will Include:
REQUIREMENTS:
Prior to Term Loan Conversion:

+ Project reporting as required by BANA's CBC Division,

= Copy of any executed lease(s) on the Property, as well as any future
amendments and/or modifications

Atter Term Loan converslon:
¢ Quarterly financial statements of the Borrower within 45 days of quarter
end (including the founth fiscal quarter of each year), certified and dated
by the Borrower's authorized financial officer

» Annual rent roll for the Borrower and the Property within 45 days of year
end

Financlal re I 'om the Guaran il includa:

Financial reporting for the Guarantor will be consistent with that outlined in the
Loan Agreement between BANA and DMG dated 12/31/2010, as follows:

s Annual audited consolidated financial statements within 120 days of
FYE, certified and dated by DMG authorized financial officer

s Quarterly consolidated financial statements within 45 days of quarter end
(including the fourth fiscal quarter of each year), centitied and dated by
DMG authorized financial officer

+ Annual consolidated budget within 60 days of commencement of each
fiscal year, certified by CFO

* Quarterly compliance certificate within 45 days of each quarter end,
signed by authorized financial officer showing calculations of financial
covenants

* Monthly summary A/R aging by payor class, within 30 days of month end

In addition, reporting will include the following:
* Any other information from the Guarantor and/or Borrower as the Bank
shall reasonably request.

Attachment 39- Exhibit 1
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BankofAmerica %%
Merrill Lynch

EVENTS OF DEFAULT: Usual and customary in transactions of this type, to include without limitation:
() nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts; (i) violation ot
covenants; (iii) inaccuracy of representations and warrantios; (iv) cross-default
to other material agreements and indebtedness; (v} bankrupicy and other
insolvency events; (vi} creditor or ferleiture proceedings; (vil} actual or
asserted Invalidity of any loan documentation or security interests; (vili)
material events affecting guarantor; (ix) change in control and (x) material
adverse change.

GOVERNING State of lllinois. Any dispute arising out of or related to this letter or the final

LAW/ARBITRATION: loan documentation shall be determined by binding arbitration in accordance
with the Federal Arbitration Act. All arbitration proceedings shall be conducted
through the American Arbitration Association (an independent, aiternative
dispute resolution service}.

EXPENSES: Borrower will pay all reasonable costs and expenses associated with the
preparation, due diligence, administration and enforcement of all
documentation exscuted in connection with the Credit Facllity, whether or not
the loan closes, including, without limitation:

* BANA's atto ! (including the allocated cost of internal counsel),
estimated am

« Applicable construction-refated administration fees, including but not
limited to: appraisal(s), cost analysis, site inspection, title, environmental
roview, flood certification and, if applicable, contractor payment and

performance bond,
CREDIT PROCESS The credit process will take 15 business days from the point at which BANA is
TIMEFRAME: officially awarded the transaction and has in its possession all materials

necessary to undertake a full credit analysis.

EXPIRATION OF TERMS  Unless rescinded earlier, consideration of a financing based on the terms and
AND CONDITIONS conditions presented in this term sheet shall automatically expire 30 days from
the date hereof.

BANA reserves the right to terminate, reduce or otherwise amend its
commitmant if the subject transaction is not closed within 90 days of the
receipt of a signed term sheet

This Term Sheet Proposal contains confidential and proprietary loan structuring and pricing information.
Except for disclosure on a confidential basis to your accountants, attorneys and other professional advisors
refained by you in connection with the credit facilities conlained in this Term Sheet Proposaf or as may be
required by law, the contants of the Term Sheet Proposal may not be disclosed in whole or in part to any
other person or enlity without our prior written consent, provided that nothing herein shall restrict disclosure of
information refating to the tax structure or tax treatment of the proposed credit facilities.
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AGREEMENT BY THE
BORROWER:

Lisle Construction

BankofAmerica %2>
Merrill Lynch

The Borrower hereby agrees to engage BANA to provide the Credit Facility
which is the subject hereof, pursuant to the terms and conditions stated herein.

Please evidence your acceptance of the foregoing by signing and returning a
copy of the document to BANA.

Accepted and Agreed to:

ay;jﬁ/ %—3 | vats_(%//2/ 2 1]
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Bankof America %%
Merrill Lynch

Exhiblt A

e Satsfactory ALTA Survey — Signed, sealed and certified to Lender, Title Company and
Borrowcer

¢ Detailed project construction cost breakdown from the contractor including an itemization and
schedule of disbursements

» Sets of detailed construction plans and specifications for all architectural, structural, mechanical,
plumbing, clectrical, site development (on and off-site) and other work for or in connection with
the Improvements which have been approved by the municipality

» Fully executed copies of Borrowers’ construction, architectural and engineering contracts

regarding the Improvements

Project description of improvements

Construction schedule (provided by the contractor — usually a bar chart})

Architect and/or Engineer list of permits required and site development permit status data

Insurance ~ Fire, all-risk replacement cost coverage, builder’s risk, Contractor’s liability,

Borrower Liability and flood insurance if project is in a flood zone

Satisfactory Soil Report with recommendations

Satisfactory Environmental information

Zoning and concurrency letter

Utility availability letters (should also state that capacity is available and appropriate

for this project

Tide commitment

True and correct copies of valid building permit for the Improvements and all other

applicable permits, licenses and approvals necessary for construction.

¢ Performance and Payment bonds (Unconditional) for each original construction
contractor (and any material subcontractor as required by Lender) naming Lender as an
additional obligee and in amount, form and content, and issued by sureties, satisfactory to
Lender and in compliance with applicable law.

The above list is provided for informational purposes only.

A more detailed and all inclusive listing of the construction requirements will be included in
the Construction Loan Agreement and related loan documentation.
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Borrower Indemmification Letter

Onthis; 73y of e Foloe ~ 20/, DMGReal Estate, LLC __ (the
"Borrower") wishes to induce Bank of America, (the "Bank™) to waive its right to retain sole possession
of the appraisal report (the "Appraisal"), prepared by CB Richard Eliis (the "Appraiser") with
respect to the property consisting of ___ DuPage Medical MOB as of the date of the Appraisal, and
located at ___ 1807 S. Highland Ave., .ombard, DuPage County, IL. _ (collectively the "Property™).

In consideration of the Bank's agreement to deliver a copy of the Appraisal to the Borrower, the Borrower
hereby agrees with the Bank and acknowledges to the Bank, the following:

{a) As of the date hereof, the Bank
(i) does not represent that the presumptions or opinions in the Appraisal are relevant or accurate;
(i) does not represent that the appraisal has been or has not been approved by the Bank;

(iii) does not represent that the Bank endorses or does not endorse the opinions set forth in the
Appraisal and;
(iv) is transmitting the Appraisal to the Borrower without representation or warranty.

(b) The Borrower will hold the Appraisal in confidence and will not distribute it to any other person or
entity, except its employees, agents, attorneys, consultants, or unless compelled by law or judicial
proceedings, without the Bank's prior written consent.

(c) The Borrower will indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from and against, and reimburse it for, any
and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, causes of action, judgments, penalties, costs and
expenses of every kind, known or unknown, which may be imposed upon, asserted against, ar
incurred or paid by the Bank at any time and from time to time, resulting from, in connection with, or
arising out of any transaction, act, omission, event or circumstance in any way connected with the
content or accuracy of the Appraisal, the Borrower’ use of the Appraisal, and subsequent use of the
Appraisal by any third party to whom the Borrower provides the Appraisal.

{d) The Borrower hereby waives any and all present and future claims, actions, causes of action, defenses
and/or counterclaims which it may now or hereafter assert against the Bank in connection with the
content or accuracy of the Appraisal, the Borrower’ use of the Appraisal, and subsequent use of the
Appraisal by any third party to whom the Borrower provides the Appraisal.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Bank" shall include, without limitation, its present, former and
future officers, directors, associates, agents, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, successors and assigns.

EXECUTED this {77 day of Oc fobe ~ ,20_/1.
BORROWER:

By:
Name: ’ﬁ’f lchre ! V/ -F/o-u..-f::{:r
Title: i o
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14082565.8
03-30-12

CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGRREMENT
by and between

DMG Real Estate, LLC,
an [llinols limited Hability company,
as Borrower,

and

Bank of America, N.A.,
a nationa) banking association,
as Administrative Agent,

and

Bank of America, N.A.,
a national banking association,
as Lender,

and

Each Other Lender From Time to Time
Party Hereto

with respect to

DuPage Medical Group Oncology Institute
430 Warrenville Road, Lisle, Illinois
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Construction Loan Agreement

* This Construction Loan Agreement (this “Agrecement™) is mede as of the 30th day of
March, 2012, by and among DMG Real Estate, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company
(“Borrower”), Bank of America, N.A., a national banking essociation, as Adminigtrative Agent
(“Administrative Apent™), and Bank of America, N.A,, a national banking association, as Lender
each other Lender from time to time a party hereto (individually, a “Lender” and collectively,

*Lenders”),

Recitals

Lenders have severally agreed to make Pro Rata Shares of a loan to Borrower on the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the other documents evidencing and
securing the loan, to finance certain costs related to the construction and development of
improvements on real property in which Borrower has acquired or is acquiring an interest. Such
regl property is Jegally described in the Mortgage (as defined in Section 1.1 of this Agreement),
and is commonly known as 430 Warrenville Road, Lisle, Illinois. Such improvements consist of
an approximately 100,000 square foot medical office building,

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises, and in further consideration of the
mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth, the parties covenant and agree as follows:

Agreements

Article I
General Information.

Section 1.1  Defined Terms,

Unless the context otherwise specifies or requires, the following terms shall have the
meanings herein specified, such definitions to be applicable equally to the singular and the plural
forms of such terms and to all genders:

“Accounts Payable List” means a written summary from Borrower of ell accounts paid or
payable for soft costs associated with the applicable draw request identifying each such account
and the invoice amount due, and shall be in form and substance acceptable to Administrative
Agent. For purposes of this definition, “soft costs” includes costs and expenses of development
other than those attributable to the construction of the physical Improvements, including but not
limited to architect’s fees, consulting fees, management fees, abatement expenses, legel fees,
testing and inspection fees, connection charges, and other similar fees and expenses.

“Act” means the USA Patriot Act (Title [1I of Pub, L. 107-56 (signed-into law October
26, 2001).

“Adjusted LIBOR Rate™ means the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the applicable London
Interbank Offered Rate by (ii) 1.00 minus the LIBOR Reserve Percentage, where,
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whether or not applicable to any Lender, in respect of “Eurocurrency liabilities” (or in respect of
any other category of liabilities which includes deposits by reference to which the interest rate on
principal of the Loan and the Notes is determined), whether or not any Lender has any
Eurocurrency liabilitics. The LIBOR Rate shall be adjusted automatically as of the effective date
of each change in the LIBOR Reserve Percentage.

“Lien” means, with respect to any Covenant Party, any interest granted by such Covenant
Party in any real or personal property, asset or other right owned or being purchased or acquired
by such Covenant Party which secures payment or performence of any obligation and shall
include any mortgage, lien, encumbrance, charge or other security interest of any kind, whether
arising by contract, as a matter of law, by judicial process or otherwise.

“Loan” means the loan from Lenders to Borrower, the repayment obligations in
connection with which are cvidenced by the Notes.

“Loan Amount” means Twenty Two Million end No/100 Dollars ($22,000,000) [which

does TOT EXcEed 70% Of Whe ~as completed” appraiscd value ot ihc Property as determined in an
appraisal obtained by and acceptable to Administrative Agent).

“I0an Documents” means this Agreement, the Notes, the Mortgage, the Environmental
Agreement, the Guaranty, any Swap Contract, and any and all other documents which Borrower,
Guarantor or any other party or parties have executed and delivered, or may hereafier execute
and deliver, to evidence, secure or guarantee the Obligations, or any part thereof, as the same
may from time to time be extended, amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified.

“London Banking Day" means a day on which dealings in dollar deposits are conducted
by and between banks in the London interbank eurodollar market.

“London Interbank Offered Rate” means, with respect to any applicable Interest Period,
the rate per annum equal to the British Bankers’ Association LIBOR Rate (“BBA LIBOR™), as
published by Reuters (or other commercially available source providing quotations of BBA
LIBOR as selected by Administrative Agent from time to time) at approximately 11:00 a.m.
London time two London Business Days before the commencement of the Interest Period, for
deposits in U.S. Dollars (for delivery on the first day of such Interest Period) with a term
equivalent to such Interest Period. If such rate is not available at such time for any reason, then
the rate for that Interest Period will be determined by such altemate method as reasonably
selected by Administrative Agent.

“Long Term Debt” means any Debl that matures more than one yeer after the date of
determination or matures within one year from such date but is renewable or extendible, at the
option of the debtor, to a date more than one year after such date or arises under a revolving
credit or similar agreement that obligates the lender or lenders to extend credit during a period of
more than one yeer after such date, including the current portion of all such Debt,

“Major Lease™” means each of the Leases between Borrower as jandlord and the Major
Tenants as tenant.

1‘ Attachment 39- Exhibit 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower, Administrative Agont and the Lenders named
below bave caiised this Agresment to be executed as of the date first above written.

DMG REAL ESTATE, LLC

-

o WY Lo—

Michael Kasper, Genéral Manager

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A,, as Administrative
Apent

By
Printed Name:
Title:

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A,, as a Lender

By.

Christie Davis, Senior Vice President

WHBATON BANK & TRUST CO., an Hlinois
banking corporation, as a Lender -

By

Pamcla Sharar-Stoppel
Bxecutive Vice President

CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT
SIGNATURE FPAGE

100
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower, Administrative Agent and the Lenders named
below have causcd this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written,

DMG REAL ESTATE, LLC

By

Michael Kasper, General Manager

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as Administrative
Agent

Tide: | ' Vice Presigert

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., a5 a Lender

By,

Christie Davis, Senior Vice President

WHEATON BANK & TRUST CO., an Illinois
banking corporation, as a Lender

By,

Pamela Sharar-Stoppel
Executive Vico President

CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT
SIGNATURE PAGE

104
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IN WITNESS WHERREOQF, Borrower, Administrative Agent and the Lenders named
below bave caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written,

DMG REAL BSTATE, LLC

By

Michael Kasper, General Mannger

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., aa Administrative
Agent

By
Printed Name;
Title;

BANK OF AMHRICA, N.A., 63 a Lender

By C A he Yeoun

Christie Davis, Senior Vice President

WHBATON BANK & TRUST CO., en Tllinois
banking corporation, ag » Lender

By

Pemela Sharar-Stoppel
Bxecutive Vice President

CONETRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT
SIGNATURE PAGE
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower, Adminigtrative Agent and the Lenders named
below have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written.

" DMG REAL ESTATE, LLC

Michael Kasper, General Manager

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as Administrative
Agent

By,
Printed Name:
Title:

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., 25 a Lender

By

Christie Davis, Senior Vice President

WHEATON BANK & TRUST CO., an Ilinois
banking corporation, as 2 Lender

o S

Pémela Sharer-Stoppel '
Bxecutive Vice President

CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT
SIGNATURE PAGE

Attachment 39- Exhibit 1

165




Attachment 39-Exhibit 2
Rush University Medical Center Bond
Rating

Mooby’s
INVESTORS SERVICE

Rating Update: MOODY'S AFFIRMS RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL
CENTER OBLIGATED GROUP'S (IL) A2 LONG-TERM AND
UNENHANCED BOND RATINGS; OUTLOOK REMAINS STABLE

Global Credit Research - 28 Feb 2012
AFFIRMATION AFFECTS APPROXIMATELY $558 MILLION OF RATED DEBT QUTSTANDING

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Hospitals & Health Senvice Providers
IL

Opinion

NEW YORK, February 28, 2012 --Moody's Investors Sendce has affirmed Rush University Medical Center Obligated Group's
(RUMC Qbligated Group) AZ long-term and unenhanced bond ratings. This action affects approxmately $558 million of revenue
bonds issued through the lllinois Finance Authority {See Rated Debt section). The cutiook remains stable.

RATINGS RATIONALE

SUMMARY RATING RATIONALE: The affirmation of the A2 rating and stable cutiook reflects RUMC Obligated Group's
continued favorable operating performance in fiscal year {FY) 2011 and interim FY 2012, maintenance of adequate debt
coverage and balance sheet ratios, and the fact that RUMC is beyond construction risks after the January 2012 opening of the
new patient tower at the flagship campus. The System faces challenge with an abowe average Medicaid share of business in a
state with a challenged budget.

STRENGTHS

*Sizeable academic medical center (AMC) with broad array of tertiary and quaternary servces (the RUMC flagship had a
Medicare case mix indexof 1.93 in FY 2011).

*Impressive operating improverment since FY 2004 {11.8% operating ¢ash flow margin in FY 2011).

*Improved cash on hand with 145 days at fiscal year end (FYE) 2011. While this remains below the A2 median (188 days cash
an hand), we note that RUMC Obligated Group has significant restricted investments, which bolster the balance sheet strength
{at FYE 2011, the Systern had $488 miflion of restricted investments outstanding).

*The System is beyond most construction risks with the January 2012 opening the new patient tower at the RUMC flagship.

CHALLENGES

“Very competitive healthcare market in the Chicago area, with five AMCs (including RUMC) plus other sizeable health system
and large community hospitats.

"Medicaid as a percentage of gross revenues has increased from 15.1% in FY 2008 fo 18.5% in FY 2011, which is of
particular concern given the challenges of the State of Illincis budget {the state has been delaying Medicaid payments 1o
healthcare providers).

*Underfunded defined bensfit pension plan with an 84% pension funded ratic compared to a projected benefit obligation of
$797 mifion at FYE 2011, plus the System has operating leases outstanding. Effective December 31, 2011, the remaining
employees were moved to a cash balance pension plan {most RUMC employees were moved to the cash balance plan in 2004).

DETAILED CREDIT DISCUSSION

LEGAL SECURITY: The bonds are secured by a gross revenue piedge and a mortgage pledge of the RUMC Qbligated Group
including Rush University Medical Center {RUMC) and Rush-Copley Medical Center (Copley). Rush North Shore Medical
Center {North Shore) withdrew from the Obligated Group on December 31, 2008. Violating rate covenant of 1.1 times requires
hiring of consultant. Additional debt test: {1) debt-to-capitalization of no more than 69% in FY 2008 {decreasing by 1
percentage point each year until 85% in FY 2012); or (2) historical pro-forma debt senice coverage greater than 1.25 times; or
{3) historical debt service coverage greater than 1.1 times and projected debt senvice coverage greater than 1.1 times.

INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES: The RUMC Obligated Group entered into fixed payor swaps with Morgan Stanley Capital
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Senvices, Inc. and Citibank, N.A. with a combined notional amount of $96.8 million that expire in November 2035. Under the
agreements, the RUMC Obligated Group pays a fixed interest rate of 3.945% and receives 68% of LIBOR. $50 million of the
interest rate swaps hedge the interest rate on the Series 2008A variable rate demand honds (VRDB) issued in December 2008.
As a result of prior variable rate debt restructurings, the remaining $46.8 million notional amount is not hedging a particular
variable rate bond series. The total net termination value of the swaps at audited FYE June 30, 2011 was a negative $14.5
millian fo RUMC Obligated Group. According to management, the net termination value of the swaps as of December 31, 2011
was a negative $23.8 million. Management notes the System has a coflateral posting threshold of negative $25 million (the
swaps have bilateral posting requirements for RUMC and the counterparties, based cn the same posting scale).

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS/RESULTS

RUMC (30,259 admissiens in FY 2011) is the System's flagship hospital and is one of five AMCs in the Chicago market. ©ther
academic medical cenlers in the market include; University of llinois Health Senices (rated A1); Northwestern Memorial
Haspital (rated Aa2); Loyola University Heatth System (now a member of A22 rated Trinity Health Credit Group); and The
University of Chicago Medical Center {rated Aa3). In addition to the competing AMCs, RUMGC faces competifion from a number
of sizeable acute care systems in the market, notably market share leader Aa2 rated Advocate Health Care Network and Baa
rated Resurrection Health Care. Northwestern Memorial is the largest single hospital in the Chicago area. RUMC shares a siate-
designated medical district campus with University of lllincis Heatth Sendces, John H, Stroger Jr. Hospital of Cook County, and
Jesse Brown VA Medical Center.

In addition to the RUMC flagship hospital, the RUMC Obligated Group inctudes 12,985 admission Copley in Aurora, IL. Effective
December 31, 2008, Rush North Shore withdrew from the Obligated Group and joined Aa2 rated NorthShore University Health
System. RUMC, through a joint venture with a third-party, operates and manages 4,383 admission Rush QOak Park Hospital
{ROPH) in Oak Park, IL. Other non-obligated system affiliates include A2 rated Riverside Health System in Kankakee, IL.

The RUMC Obligated Group's operating performance generally has irmproved in recent years, which we view as a key credit
positive. In audited FY 2011 {June 30 yvear end), the RUMC Obligated Group recorded adjusted operating income of $68.3
million (3.9 % operating margin) and adjusted operating cash flow of $205.0 million (11.8% operating cash flow margin). This is
an improvement over audited FY 2010, when the RUMC Obligated Group recorded adjusted operating income of $45.0 miflion
{2.7% margin) and operating cash flow of $174.6 miflion {10.4% margin). Audited results have been adjusted to reclassify the
portion of investment income included in operating revenue 1o non-operating and to include capitalized interest as an inferest
expense. FY 2010 is adjusted further to add $18.0 million to operating expenses to account for a favorable one-time IRS
setiement related to a FICA tax refund on medical residents. Since FY 2005, RUMC Obligated Group has maintained profitable
operating resulis.

Factors confributing to continued good operating results for the RUMC Obligated Group in FY 2011 inctude: (a) focus on
productivity improvements o offset revenue pressures that included a layoft of approximatety 200 ful-time equivalents in FY
2011 (FY 2011 results include approximately $5 million of severance cosis) {management notes that labor costs as a percent of
net revenue decreased from 36.2% in FY 2010 to 35.2% in FY 2011); (b} reduced supply costs {management notes that
medical supply expenses per adjusted discharge decreased 5.2% in FY 2011); (c) reduced malpractice expenses; and (d)
favorable prior year cost report setiements and non-recurring adjustments increased from $2.2 million in FY 2010 to $12.6
million in FY 2011, although FY 201C was tower than in prior years ($7.6 milion in FY 2008 and $14.2 million in FY 2009).

Looking forward, management expects RUMGC Obligaled Group's operating cash flow margin to be in-line with or better than FY
2011. To maintain these margins despite Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement pressuraes will necessitate management o
confinue fo identify significant expense savings In the coming years. Through six months FY 2012 the System's operating
margins remain favorable (2.7% operating margin and 10.7% operating cash flow margin), athough lag results through six
months FY 2011 (4.2% operating margin and 12.1% operating cash fiow margin). Operating revenues decreased 0.1% in the
first half of FY 2012 compared to FY 2011 due to a 0.4% decline in inpatient admissicns and a 17,3% decline in observafion
stays. Management notes further that while outpatient surgeries continue fo increase, inpatient surgeries are down due to a
change in mix of services and a push to lower cost setftings, and that the System Incurred some ramp up in costs to staff up and
supply the new patient tower at the RUMC flagship leading up to the January 2012 opening. Management reports that activity at
the flagship is up since the new tower opened without a change in payor mix

The RUMC Cbligated Group's Moody's adjusted debt ratios are adequate at the A2 rating level. Based on FY 2011 resulis,
adjusted debi-to-cash flow measures 3.3 times (A2 median is 3.3 times), adjusted maximum annual debt service (MADS)
coverage measures 4.5 imes (A2 median is 4.8 times), and debt-to-total operating revenues measures 38% (A2 median is
36%).

The RUMC Obligated Group's unrestricted liquidity position improved modestly in FY 2011, Absolute unrestricted cash and
investments increased to $626 million at FYE 2011 from $605 million at FYE 2010. As a result, Moody's adjusted cash on hand
improved slightly o 145 days at FYE 2011 from 143 days at FYE 2010, but remains below the median (A2 median is 188 days).
Similarly, cash-to-debt improved to a still somewhat medest 93% at FYE 2011 from 88% at FYE 2010. Monthly cash-to-demand
debt measured a very strong 1,251% at FYE 2011 due to a very low variable debt load. According to management, at FYE 2011
RUMC Obligated Group's unrestricted cash and investments were allocated among approximately 88.3% cash and fixed income
securities, 11.4% equities, and 0.3% other investments, and 100% of unrestricted cash and investments could be liquidated
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within ong month, When we reviewed RUMC in November 2010, due to expected equity confributions to the System's capital
spending plans, management had projecied cash on hand fo decrease to approximately 120 days at FYE 2011. Due to the
equity contributions and investment losses, the RUMC's Obligated Group's adjusted cash on hand decreased to 129 days at
December 31, 2011.

In January 2012 the System opened the new patient tower at the RUMC flagship campus {on schedule). With the opening of
the new tower {as well as other key projects such as the opening of a new freestanding emergency depariment for Copley in
Yorklle, IL}, capital spending plans are manageable in the coming years. Between FY 2013 and FY 2016, the System has
approximately $394 million of capitat plans, which translates to an average capital spending ratio of approXmately 0.8 times.
Key projects in the coming years inciude modernization of the RUMC flagship's Atrium tower (floors 5, 7, 8, and ) and
construction of a new cancer center as part of a new affiliation with the DuPage Medical Group {(an investment that is expected

to open in early calendar year 2013).

In Decermber 2011, the RUMC Obligated Group refunded its Series 1998A fixed rate bonds with a $56 million variable rate
private placement with JPMorgan Chase Bank with a 14 year term. The System has n¢ material new money debt plans through

FY 2017.
Qutiook

The stable outiook reflects RUMC Obligated Group's continued favorable operating performance in FY 2011 and interim FY
2012, maintenance of adequate debt coverage and balance sheet rafios, and the fact that RUMC is beyond construction risks
after the January 2012 opening of the new patient tower at the flagship campus.

WHAT COULD MAKE THE RATING GO UP
Continued cash flow growth and significantly improved debt and balance sheet ratios
WHAT COULD MAKE THE RATING GO DOWN

Sustained weakening of operating resufts leading to thinner debt coverage and liquidity ratios; material market share loss;
unexpected increase in debt without commensurate increase in cash flow generation

KEY INDICATORS

Assumptions & Adjustrments:

-Based on Rush University Medical Center Obligated Group consclidated financial statements
-First number reflects audited FY 2010 for the year ended June 30, 2010

-Second number reflects audited FY 2011 for the year ended June 30, 2011

-Interest expense adjusted to include capitalized interest

-FY 2010 adjusted to add $18.0 million to operating expense io account for a favorable one-time IRS setiement related fo FICA
tax on medical residents

-Investment returns reclassified from operating revenue fo non-cperating revenue and smoothed at 6%
‘Inpatient admissions; 48,693; 47,627

*Total operating revenues: $1.68 billion; $1.73 bilion

*Moody's-adjusted net revenues available for debt senvce: $221.5 million; $250.5 million

*Total debt outstanding: $687 million; $674 million

*Maximum annual debt senvice (MADS): $55.1 million; $55.1 milion

*MADS Coverage with reported investment income; 3.54 times; 4.16 times

*Moody's-adjusted MADS Coverage with normalized investment income: 4,02 times; 4.54 times
‘Debt-to-cash flow: 3.86 times; 3.28 times

*Days cash on hand; 143 days; 145 days

*Cash-to-debt: 88.0%; 92.8%

*Total comprehensive debt (factoring operating leases and underfunded defined benefit pension plan): $1,026 million; $317
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million

*Adjusted cash-to-comprehensive dabt; 58.9%; 68.2%

*Operating margin: 2.7%; 3.9%

*Operating cash flow margin: 10.4%; 11.8%

RATED DEBT

Issued through lilincis Finance Authority (debt outstanding as of June 30, 2011):

-Series 2009C&0 Fixed Rate Hospital Revenue Bonds ($200.0 million outstanding), rated A2
-Series 2009A4&B Fixed Rate Hospita! Revenue Bonds ($211.6 million outstanding), rated A2

-Series 2008A VRDB Hospital Revenue Bonds ($50.0 million outstanding), supported by a direct-pay LOC from Northern Trust
Corpany and rated Aa1/VMIG1 {reflecting Moody's approach to rating jointly supported transactions) {the LOC expires in
February 2015), A2 underlying rating

-Series 2006B Fixed Rate Hospital Revenue Bends {$96.8 million outstanding), insured by National Public Finance Guarantee
Corp (MBIA), A2 unenhanced rating

CONTACTS

Cbligor: John Mordach, CFO, (312} 842-5600; Pafricia O'Neit, Chief Investment Officer, {312) 942-5647
Financial Adviser: Errol Brick, Public Financial Management, {212) 849-6656

Underwriter; Bruce Gurisy, Morgan Stanley, (312) 706-4267

PRINCIPAL METHODOLOGY USED

The principal methodology used in this rating was Not-for-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems published in January 2008.
Please see the Credit Policy page on www moodys.com for 2 copy of this methodology .

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

Although this credit rating has been issued in a non-EU country which has not been recognized as endorsatle at this date, this
credit rating is desmed "EL) qualified by extension” and may still be used by financial institutions for regulatory purposes until
30 April 2012. Further information on the EL) endorsement status and on the Moody's office that bas issued a particular Credit
Rating is available on www.moodys.com.

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides relevant regulatory disclosures
in retation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or category/class of debt or pursuant to a
program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings in accordance with Moody's rating practices. Far
ratings issued on a support provider, this announcement provides relevant requlatory disclosures in relation to the rating action
on the support provider and in relation to each particular rating action for securities that derive their credit ratings from the
support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this announcement provides relevant regulatory disclosures in relation to
the provisional rating assigned, and in relation fo a definitive rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the
debt, in each case where the fransaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in
a manner that would have affected the rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page for the
respective issuer on www. moodys.com,

Information sources used to prepare the credit rating are the following: parties involved in the ratings, parties not invotved in the
ratings, public information, confidential and proprietary Moody's Investors Senvice information, and confidential and proprietary
Moogy's Analytics information.

Moody's considers the quality of information available on the rated entity, obligation or credit satisfactory for the purposes of
issuing a rating.

Moody's adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a rating is of sufficient quality and from
sources Moody's considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, Moody's is
not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or vafidate information received in the rating process.

Please see the ratings disclosure page on www.moodys.com for general disclosure on potential conflicts of interests.

Please see the ratings disclosure page on wwwmocdys.com for information on (A) MCO's major shareholders (above 5%} and
for {B) further information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities as well as

zo 7 Attachment 39-Exhibit 2




(C) the names of entities that hold ratings from MiS that have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of
more than 5%. A member of the board of directors of this rated entity may also be a member of the board of directors of a
shareholder of Moody's Corporation; however, Moody's has not independently verified this matter.

Please see Moody's Rating Symbels and Definitions on the Rating Process page on www.moodys.com for further information
on the meaning of each rating category and the definition of defauft and recovery.

Please see ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for the last rating action and the rating history.

The date on which some ratings were first released goes back fo a time before Moody's ratings were fully digitized and
accurate data may not be available. Consequently, Mocdy's provides a date that it believes is the most reliable and accurate
based on the information that is available o it. Please see the ratings disclosure page on our website www moodys.com for
further information.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating anatyst and fo the Moody's legal entity that has
issued the rating.

Analysts

Mark Pascaris

Lead Analyst

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Lisa Goldstein

Backup Analyst

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Senvice

Contacts

Journalists: (212) 553-0376
Research Clients: {212) 553-1653

Moody's Investors Sendce, Inc.
250 Greenwich Strest

New York, NY 10007

USA

Mooby’s

INVESTORS SERVICE

© 2012 Moody's investors Service, Inc. andfor its ficensars and affiliates (collectively,
"MOODY'S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS I1SSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. {"MIS") AND ITS
AFFILIATES ARE MOODY'S CURRENT QPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT
RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT CR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND
CREDIT RATINGS AND RESEARCH PUBLICATIONS PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ("MOODY'S
PUBLICATIONS") MAY INCLUDE MOCDY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE
FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT CCMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE
SECURITIES. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT
MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY
ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT GF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT
ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK,
MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S
OPINIONS INCLUDED !N MCODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT
OR HISTORICAL FACT. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS DO NO¥
CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS
AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TC
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PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR
MOODY'S PUBLICATICNS COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY
PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES
MOCOCDY'S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH
INVESTOR WILL MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS
UNDER CONSIDERATION FCR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TG, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NGNE OF SUCH INFORMATICN MAY BE COPIED OR
OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED,
DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR
ANY SUCH PURPQOSE, (N WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY
MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.
All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be
accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical emor as well as other
factors, however, all infermation contained herein is provided "AS IS" without wamranty of any kind.
MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit
rating is of sufficient quality and from sources Moody's considers fo be reliable, including, when
appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in
every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process. Under
no circumstances shall MOQDY'S have any liability to any person or entity for (a) any loss or
damage in whole or in part caused by, resulting from, or relating to, any error (negligent or
atherwise) or other circumstance ar contingency within or outside the control of MOODY'S or any
of its directors, officers, employees or agents in connection with the procurement, collection,
cormpilation, analysis, interpretation, communicaticn, publication or delivery of any such
information, or (b) any direct, indirect, special, consequential, compensatory or incidental
damages whatsoever (including without limitation, lost profits), even if MOODY'S is advised in
advance of the possibility of such damages, resulting from the use of or inability to use, any such
information, The ratings, financial reporting analysis, projections, and other observations, if any,
constituting part of the information contained herein are, and must be construed seolely as,
statements of opinion and not statements of fact or recommendations to purchase, sell or held any
securities, Each user of the information contained herein must make its own study and evaluation
of each security it may consider purchasing, holding or selling. NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICLILAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR
INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MQODY'S (N ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.

MIS, a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Maody's Corporation {'MCQ"), hereby
discloses that mast issuers of debt securities {including corporate and municipal bonds,
debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MIS have, prior to
assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MIS for appraisal and rating services rendered by it
fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain policies and
procedures to address the independence of MIS's ratings and rating processes. Information
regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and
between entities who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an
ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www. (noodys.com under the
heading "Shareholder Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Sharehelder Affiliation
Policy."

Any publication into Australia of this docurment is by MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service
Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 857, which holds Australian Financial Services License no. 336969.
This document is intended to be provided only to "wholesale clients” within the meaning of section
761G of the Corporations Agt 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia,
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you represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a
"wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or indirectly
disseminate this document or its contents to "retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of
the Corporations Act 2001,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, credit ratings assigned on and after Oclober 1, 2010 by Moody's
Japan K.K. (*MJKK”) are MJKK’s current opinions of the relative future credit risk of entities, credit
commitments, or debt or debt-like securities. In such a case, “MIS” in the foregoing statements
shall be deemed to be replaced with “MJKK". MJKK is a wholly-owned credit rating agency
subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly owned by Moody's Overseas Holdings
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO.

This credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt ebligation of the issuer, not on
the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. it
would be dangerous for retail investors to make any investment decision based on this credit
rating. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other professionat adviser.
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FitchRatings

FITCH AFFIRMS RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
OBLIGATED GROUP (IL) REVS AT 'A-'; OUTLOOK TO
POSITIVE

Fitch Ratings-Chicago-1] July 2011: Ag part of its ongoing surveallance effors, Fitch Ratings has
affirned the "A-' rating on the following approximately $618.9 million of debt issued by the [linois
Finance Aunthority or the Hlinoik Health Facilities Authority on behalf of Rush University Medical

Center Obligated Groap (Rush):

—Series 20000 revenue bonds,

--Seqies 2009C revenue bonds;-

--Senes 20098 revenue bonds,

--Series 2009A revenue bonds,

--Series 2008A variable rate demand revenue bonds;
--Series 2006B revenue bonds,

--Scries 1998A revenue bonds.

The Rating Outlook ie revised to Positive from Stable.

RATING RATIONALE:

-The Outlook revision to Positive reflects Rush's continued strong operating performance in s
competitive market and ncar completion of itz new hospital, which is on ime and within budget.
—Rush's operating and operating EBITDA margins have exceeded Fitch's ‘A' category medizms in
each of the last four fiscal years.

--Rush’e leverage position is moderate with a conservative debt portfolio (92% fixed rate).

--Rush has strong physician alignment acroxs &n integrated platform,

--Credit concerns incdude execution risk associated with the opening of the new facility located on
Rosh's Chicago campus, an expected decline in iquidity metrics as capital epending remains high
through fiseal 2012 to finish the campus transformation project and a competitive service area.

WHAT COULD TRIGGER AN UPGRADE:
—~Sucecssful completion and transition to the new facility with minimal operational impact.
--Maintenance of strong operating cash flow to offset the expected decline in liquidity.

SECURITY:
Debt payments are secured by n pledge of the gross revenues of the obligated group and a morigage

on certain property of the obligated group.

CREDIT SUMMARY:
The mting affirmation &t 'A-' is based upon Rush's consistently strong operating performance since
fircal 2007, moderate leverage and strong slignment with physicians acrozs an tntegrated platform,

Rush's operating and operating EBITDA marging have aversged 5.3% and 11.6%, rospectivaly,
between fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2010, exceeding Fitcl's 2010 'A' category medians of 3% and 10%,
Rush's strong operating performance continued through the ninc-month interim period ending
March 31, 201} (the intenm period) with operating and operating EBITDA margine of 5.7% and
12.4%, respectively. Management's 2012 budget incdudes operating and opemating EBITDA
margine of 3.4% and 11.3%. Rush receives approximately £50 milion of supplemental funds per
year including disproportionste share payments and Medicaid provider tax funds.

Rush's moderate leverage metrics zre enhanced by a conservative debt portfolio, with 92% fixed
rate debt. Debt to camtalization increased from 35% in fiseal 2008 to 52% in fiscal 2010 but
moderated to 45.1% a5 of March 31, 2011 relative to Fiteh's 'A’ category median of 42,1%. Strong
cash flow generation further mitigates the modernte leverage levels with debt to EBTIDA of 2.4
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times (x) as of March 31, 2011 which compares favorably to Fitch's 'A' calegory median of 3.8x.
Coverape of maximum annual debt service (MADS) by EBITDA was a solid 4.3x in fiscal 2010

and 4.6x in the inerim period.

Credit concemns include execulion risk associated with the opening of the new facility located on
Rush's Chicapo campus, an expected decline in liquidily metrics and a competitive service area, Al
March 31, 2011 Rush's unrestricted cash and investments Lotaled $642.1 million reflecting a sharp
improvement from $314.4 million as of fiscal year-end 2009. Liguidity metrics have improved.
However days cash on hand (158.8). cushion ratio (11.7x) and cash to long 1erm debt {104.3%%) are
Jight relalive to the respective "A* category medians of 183.8, 14.4x and 105.5%. Morcover, Rush
projects that days cash will decrease 1o 124 davs in fiscal 2012 duc to the completion of the new

facility.

The new facility is set 10 open in January 2012 and is on time and on budget. The combination of
the strength of Rush's clinical programs with the new facility should provide a boost to operations
in the competitive Chicapo-area marketplace.

Rush spent over £729 millian hetween fiscal 2008 and March 31, 2011 on the eslimaled $1 billion
Campus Transformation Plan, Capital expenditures are forccasted 1o equal $285 million in fiscal
2011, $2t5 millien in fiscal 2042 (of which 533 million is carryover from fiscal 2011) and
subsequently decrease to $105 million per year ihereafler, Liquidily is expected o rebound after
fiscal 2012 due 1o strong aperating performance.

The Positive Outlook reflecis Fitch's expeciation of upward rating movement if Rush maintains its
sirong operating perfonmance while successfully transitioning operations 10 the new facility.

Rush consists of three acwte care hospitals mcluding Rush University Medical Center, located in
Chicago, IL; Rush Oak Park Hospital, located in Oak Park, [linois; and Rush-Copley Medical
Center, located in Aurora, Ilinois, The three hospilals operate 985 staffed beds. Rush also operates
a medical university, rescarch facilitizs, a physician group practice with over 400 employed
physicians, and n rehabilitation/skilled nussing facility. ln fiscal 2010, the Obligated Group reporied
tolal revenues of $1.69 billien. Rush’s disclosure practices are among the best in Filch's healih care
portfolic with quanetly and annual disclosure consisting of balance sheet, income stetements and
cash flow statements, utifization statistics and 2 management discussion and analysis,

Contart:

Primary Analysi

Adam Kates

Direcior
+1-312-368-3180
Fitch, Tnc.

70 West Madison Street
Chicago, 1L

Secondary Annlyst
Iim LzBuhn
Senior Dircetor
+1-312-368-2059

Committec Chairperson
Emily Wong

Seaior Director
+(-212-908.0651

Medin  Relations:  Cindy Stoller, New York, Tel: +1 212 908 0526, Email:
cindy.stoller@fitchratings.com.
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Additional information is available af 'wwiw fitchralings.cony',

Applicable Criteria and Related Research:
--'Revenue-Supported Rating Criteria. dated Oct. §, 2010;
-‘Nonprofit Hospitals and Health Systems Rating Criteria’, dated Dec. 28, 2009.

Apptlicabe Criteria and Related Rescarch:

Revenue-Supported Rating Criteria
hnp:ﬂmw.fnc}uming;.mm!creditdeskfrepoﬁs!repon_fmmc.cfm?rm_idr-ﬂ?130
Nozprofit Hospitals and Heatth Systems Rating Criteria
hﬂpu‘.ﬂ'\ww.fnclunlings.mmJ’creditdcslu‘n:poﬂskcpcﬂ_frame.cfm?rp‘l_id#?.’! 186

ALL FIICH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS. PLEASE READ THESE LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS BY
FOLLOWING THIS LINK:
HTTP/FITCHRATINGS COM/UNDERS TANDINGCREDITR ATINGS. IN  ADDITION,
RATING DEFINITIONS AND THE TERMS OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE AVAILABLE
ON THE AGENCY'S PUBLIC WEBSITE ‘WWW.FITCHRATINGS.COM'. PUBLISHED
RATINGS, CRITERIA AND METHODOLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT
ALL TIMES. FITCH'S CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF
INTEREST, AFFILIATE FIREWALL, COMPLIANCE AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE 'CODE OF CONDUCT SECTION
OF THIS STTE.
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Illinois Finance Authority
Rush University Medical Center Obligated
Group; Joint Criteria; System

Credu Pralile

[Tinois Fe Axtk, Mizcis
Rz Univ Med C1r Qbligated Gp, lineis
Wi Finance Authexity {Push Unipesity Medscal Contr Digatert Geour

Lorg Torm Fiting BPoitvn Cutheok Agwsod
TBinois Finanen Avihocity {Ruzh University Medical Cantgr Obbgated Group] iMBUA] (National}

Lineshaaced fRaing A{SPURVPgsitive Qutlook Revised
(incss Fin Auth {Rush University Medicat Centar Obligated Caoup} hasp YRDO s 2008

Long Torm Rating AAATS. [ FHED

Unarharcef Rating A{SPURYToshive Outtook Revisad

Wty imewsaos echrzed by bord esonnce

Rationale

Standarg & Poor's Ratings Services revised its outlook to positive and affirmed the 'A-' iong 1e1m rating on lllinois
Finance Authocity's $411.6 million series 20094 through 2009D fixcd-rate hospital revenve bonds. § tandard &
Poor's also revised it outlook to positive and affirmed the “A-' underlying rating (SPUR | on the authority’s $30
million series 20084 and $96.75 million serics 2006B revenue bonds, all issued for the Rush University Medical
Center Obligated Group (Rush). At the same time, Standard & Poor's alfirmed its 'AAASA-T+' dual rating on the
authoriry's series 2005 A variable-ratz demand bonds (VRDBs), also issued for Rush.

The 'AAAMA-1+" dual rating on the series 20084 VRDBs i based en our joins criteria, with the long-term
component of the rating based jointly on the Northern Trugt Bank [AA) and Ruth long-term ratings. The *A-14°
short-term component of whe rating is based on the Northern Tros short-term rating- The letter of credit expires

Drcember 2013.
The poshive outlook reflects near completion of Rush University Medical Center's (RUMC) new patient tower {to

open early in calendar 2012) and Rush's robun openating performance, whith has hefped to maintain a faidy siable
balance sheet despiie RUMC's recem period of majer consurution,

The 'A+" rating refllects 1he strength of RUMC, the obligated group's Magship hotpital, 25 an academic medical center
with welldefined macket 1ecognition despite conceens about competition. The rating also reflects RUMC's large net
patient revenue base and robust operating income during the past five years. While capival spending will eemain
steady during the nexy few years, the opening of the new patient tower, Rush's largest project, is expected t6 open in
carly calenstar 2012 and eliminates 2 major risk that has been part of Rush's profik for the past several years.

The 'A-’ and positive autlook afss reflect Rush’s:

« Cominued sirong marke! recognition 21 an scademic medicad center with broad clinical services, extensive

Standard & Poor's | Research | Dotober 17,2011 2
© Somir4 § Fax's A8 g reeneed, Noremint or dewrmen o wiehoyt Sundsed § fho's proca e Ser betn of the/Dmdime o, te bt osge RET LT R
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Nlinois Finence Awbority Rush Universiy Medical Cenier Obligoted Grong; Jotns Criteria; Sysirm

education and research capabilities, and a solid market position in several key service lines in the competitive

Chicage-area marker;
Track record of eolid financial operations and cath flow, wilh unaudited fiscal 2011 resubts showing a streng

operating margin of 5.6%, a solid EBIDA margin of 13.6%, and very good maximum annual debt service

coverape of 4.2x; and
Large net patienmt revenue baze of $1.5 billion from serving two distinet market areas with modest inpatient

growth offser by steady owtpatient growih in recent years,

*

Credit risks, in oor view, iwlede Rush's:

Final cash ourlay for RUMC's new patient tewer projea in 2012 and abikicy to absorb the higher expense base at
the same cime that inpatient valume wrowth has slowed and che stare Medicard program is expeciencing some

pressure;
Adeguate, 137 days' cash on hand as of June 30, 2011 (with a ministum threshoid of 115 during the next few

*

years); and
Locatien in the highly competitive Chicago service area, wilh RUMG in close praximity to three other hospitals
in its immediate srvice arca aod with severa! other area academic medical aenters and hosphals or health sysems

providing strong competition far key services.

The bonds secured under the master 1rust indenture are secured by Rush's gross sevenues and mortgages on the
main hospital facilities’ property, plant, snd equipment. Rush's total long-term debt, including capital leases, other
financing arrangements, and guaramees, is $658 million, with most of this debt te be secured under the manter trug

indemure,

Rush's largedt single prowea during the pay few years hat been the construction of a new patient tower at RUMC
[$637 rullion}. The new patient tower, which bas been funded through bond proceeds, capital campaign
contsibutions, governmental funding, and operating cash flow, is scheduled 10 open in mid-fiscal 2012, While
Rush's capital expenditures will terain high at $238 miflion in 2012, capital spending should desrease thercafter
bant ll remain steady at around $10¢ million annually as RUMC completes remaining tenevations ar its existing
Facilities through 2016, Moreover, ihe completion of and tuccessful move into the new patient tower will eliminate 2
significant risk thal has been part of Rush's profik for the past [ew years. [n addition, some fexibility in the folure
eapital spending plans should allow Rush to strengthen its currently light balance sheer prafife should operations
come ender any unforcseen presure away from currently sicong Jevels. In receat years, RUMC and the smaller
Rush-Copley Medical Center have generaied strong operaiions, supponed panislly by the lllinois Provider Tax
{IFT}, but also throngh 2 very stronp focus on sirengthening key secvice lines as well as on aperations and expensc

controls.

John Mordach is the new full-time Chief Financial Officer {CFQ} at Rush and filled that pasition, which has been
oapen since Jast summer, in <arly ealendar 2011, He's held zeveral sendor finance positions including CFO at several
hespitats and was mest recently the CFO at Loyola Univeesity Health System in Maywood, Iil., {3 neighboring
suburb of Chicago).

Rush is party 10 two interest-rate swaps With a toral notional amount of $96.75 million. Standard & Poor’s has
assigned Rush a Deht Derivative Profile (3P} averall score of *1.5" an 2 four-painr scale, with ‘1° representing
minimal eisk. The overall score of ‘1.5° reflecis eur view that Rush's swap portfolio posex a very low risk.

wrww standardaedpoors com
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Hriois Franes Awthority  Rmsh Universiry Medical Cemter Obligated Group; Joint Criteria; System

QOurtlook

The positive outfook reflects Rush's near completion of its major capital project at the same time that eperations
have remained strong and Rush has maintained its solid market position. 1f Rush is able to grow its balance sheet
afrer final payments have been made fot the new patient tower and absorb the higher expense base while cominuing
te make operating improvements 3 plsoned, Standard & Poor's could raise the ratings in the next year or two.
Standard & Poor's cauld revise the outlook back to crable if the balsnce sheet shows limited growth with liquidity
remaining at o7 near cucrent fevely, However, il operations experience sustained declines after the epening of the
patient tower and marging remain below median levels, or opecational liquidity levels decline and remain below
Rush's floor of 115 days, the rating could be revised downward. Rush docs not expect to issue amy new-money debt

during the next rwo years,

Operational Profile

The Rush health syutem consists of two medical centers in dintinet service areas in the Chicago area:

e RUMC: A §64-nafled bad facility jugt west of downiown Chicago that also oprrates the 125-staffed-bed Rush
Oak Park Hospicat (ROPH) in the neighboring subwb of Oak Park; and

o Rush-Copley Medical Center (RCMC): Located in Aurora, 1., a far-southwest suburb of Chicago, it secves as the
parent holding company for Copley Memorial Hosptal Inc. {a 210-staffed bed facilny), Copley Venturer Inc.,
Rush-Copley Foundation, and Rush-Copley Medical Growp NFPR, all of which are Rush members.

Rush's operations include employed physicians as well as significan research and educational components nach as
Rush University, a health stiences nniversity that includes Rush Medical Cellege, College of Nursing, Callege of
Realth Sciences, and the Graduate College. Rush was created to diversify the revenue base that supports debt
service, maximize debt capacity for the system, and generally strengthen overall creditworthiness. Although Rush is
involred in some joint activities, the entities operare independently in terms of day-to-day activities and service
delivery, However, management is focusing on how te strengihen collabetation dinically across its organizations
and affiliates. RUMC's board exerts cenain governance controls on the other enuities' boards, which beld cengin
reserve pawers through majotity board represemation. In 2011, Rush's admissions were down 2.5% relative 1o the
prior year to 43,885; however, year-over-year outpatient volumes increased dightty by 0.5% o 442,088 and
outpaticnt surgerics increased 6% to 29,664,

While RCMC generates positive operating inceme, RUMC — Rush's largest component — hae helped Rush generate
its strong financizl performance in recent years. RUMC, which accounted for 83% of Rush’s cotal assets, B3 % of
to1al revenues, and B5% of operating income a3 of fiscal year-end June 30, 2011, is in the Iinois Medical District
with three other hospitals, It comprtcs with four Chicego-eeca academic medical centers: Northwestern Memorial
Hospital (AA+}; University of Chicago Hospitals and Heakh System {AA-); Loyola Univeraity Heahb System; and
University of Illinols Medical Center (&}, 43 well a2 other suburban hospieals and sysiems. RUMC bas well-known
programy in orthopedics, netirology, neurosurgery, geriatrics, and kidney di 5 and has g [ly maintained ita
2.7% market share. The imenediate zervice ares and larger Chicago area remain competitive,

Admissions have Mactened, similas to ather marketa and hosphals, although RUMC has continued to experience
good outpatient growth through focus on certain key service lines and physician recruitment, Fiscal 2011 inpatient

4
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SECTION IX ~ FINANCIAL VIABILITY

Financial Viability Waiver for Rush University Medical Center

As detailed on page 50 of the application and in Attachment 39, this project is being wholly financed by
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. through cash and debt. Rush University Medical Center, which is a co-
applicant, has not in any way participated in the financing of this project and will merely rent out, as a

tenant, a portion of the space at DMG's Medical Office Building.

Information as to RUMC’s bond rating is included in this application per the advice of the CON staff.
Please see Attachment 40-Exhibit 1.
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Attachment 40-Exhibit 1
Rush University Medical Center Bond
Rating

b
Mooby’s
INVESTORS SERVICE
Rating Update: MOODY'S AFFIRMS RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL

CENTER OBLIGATED GROUP'S (IL) A2 LONG-TERM AND
UNENHANCED BOND RATINGS; OUTLOOK REMAINS STABLE

Global Credit Research - 28 Feb 2012
AFFIRMATION AFFECTS APPROXIMATELY $558 MILLION OF RATED DEBT OUTSTANDING

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Hespitals & Health Sendce Providers
IiL

Opinlon

NEW YORK, February 28, 2012 --Moody's Investors Service has affirmed Rush University Medical Center Obligated Group's
(RUMC Obligated Group) A2 long-term and unenhanced bond ratings. This action affects approximately $558 million of revenue
bonds issued through the linois Finance Authority {see Rated Debt section). The cutiook remains stable.

RATINGS RATIONALE

SUMMARY RATING RATIONALE: The affirmation of the A2 rating and stable outiook reflects RUMC Obligated Group's
continued favorable operating performance in fiscal year {FY) 2011 and interim FY 2012, maintenance of adeguate debt
coverage and balance sheet ratios, and the fact that RUMC is beyond consiruction risks after the January 2012 opening of the
new patient lower at the flagship campus. The System faces challenge with an above awerage Medicaid share of business in a
state with a chaflenged budget.

STRENGTHS

*Sizeable academic medical center (AMC) with broad array of terliary and quaternary senices (the RUMC flagship had a
Medicare case mix index of 1.93 in FY 2011).

“‘Impressive cperating improvement since FY 2004 (11.8% operating cash flow margin in FY 2011).

*Improved cash on hand with 145 days at fiscal year end (FYE} 2011. While this remains below the A2 median (188 days cash
on hand), we note that RUMC Obligated Group has significant restricted investrments, which bolster the balance sheet strength
{at FYE 2011, the Systern had $488 million of restricted investments outstanding}.

“The System is beyond most construction risks with the January 2012 opening the new pattent tower at the RUMC flagship.

CHALLENGES

“Very competifive heatthcare market in the Chicago area, with five AMCs {including RUMC) plus other sizeable health system
and large community hospitals.

*Medicaid as a percentage of gross revenues has increased from 15.1% in FY 2008 1o 18.5% in FY 2011, which is of
particular concern given the challenges of the State of lllinois budget (the state has been delaying Medicaid payments to
haatthcare providers).

*Underfunded defined benefit pension plan with an 84% pension funded ratic compared to a projected benefit obligation of
$797 million at FYE 2011, plus the System has operating leases outstanding. Effective December 31, 2011, the remaining
employees were moved io a cash balance pension plan {most RUMC employees were moved to the cash balance plan in 2004).

DETAILED CREDIT DISCUSSION

LEGAL SECURITY: The bonds are secured by a gross revenue pledge and a morigage pledge of the RUMC Obligated Group
including Rush University Medical Center (RUMC) and Rush-Copley Medica! Center (Copley). Rush North Shore Medical
Center {MNorth Shore) withdrew from the Obligated Group on Decernber 31, 2008. Violating rate covenant of 1.1 times requires
hiring of consultant. Additional debt test: {1} debt-to-capitalization of no more than 89% in FY 2008 (decreasing by 1
percentage point each year until 5% in FY 2012); or {2) historical pro-forma debt senvice coverage greater than 1.25 times; or
(3) historical debt senice coverage greater than 1.1 times and projected debt sendce coverage greater than 1.1 times.

INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES: The RUMC Obligated Group entered into fixed payor swaps with Morgan Stanley Capital

zz. Attachment 40-Exhibit 1




Services, Inc. and Citibank, N.A, with a combined notional amount of $96.8 million that expire in Novermber 2035, Under the
agreements, the RUMC Obligated Group pays a fixed interest rate of 3.945% and receives 68% of LIBOR. $50 million of the
interest rate swaps hedge the interest rate on the Series 2008A variable rate demand bonds (VRDB) issued in December 2008.
As a result of prior variable rate debt restructurings, the remaining $46.8 million notional amount is not hedging a particular
variable rate bond series. The total net termination value of the swaps at audited FYE June 30, 2011 was a negative $14.5
millign to RUMC Obligated Group. According to management, the net terminafion value of the swaps as of December 31, 2019
was a negative $23.8 million. Management notes the System has a collateral posting threshold of negative $25 million (the
swaps have bilateral posting requirements for RUMC and the counterparties, based on the same posting scale).

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS/RESULTS

RUMC (30,259 admissions in FY 2011) is the Systern's flagship hospital and is one of five AMCs in the Chicago market. Other
academic rmedical centers in the market include; University of llinois Health Sendces {rated A1), Northwestern Memorial
Hospital (rated Aa2); Loyola University Health System (now & member of AaZ rated Trinity Health Credit Group); and The
University of Chicago Medical Center (rated Aa3). In addition to the competing AMCs, RUMC faces competition from a number
of sizeable acute care systems in the market, notably market share leader Aa2 rated Advocate Health Care Network and Baat
rated Resurrection Heafth Care. Northwestern Memorial is the largest single hospital in the Chicago area. RUMC shares a slate-
designated medical district campus with University of Ilinois Health Services, John H, Stroger Jr. Hospital of Cook County, and
Jesse Brown VA Medical Center.

In addition to the RUMC flagship hospital, the RUMC Obligated Group includes 12,985 admission Copley in Aurora, IL. Effective
December 31, 2008, Rush North Shore withdrew from the Obligated Group and joined Aa2 rated NorthShore University Health
System. RUMC, through a joint venture with a third-party, operates and manages 4,383 admission Rush Oak Park Hospital
{ROPH) in Cak Park, IL. Other non-obligated system affiliates include A2 rated Riverside Health System in Kankakes, IL.

The RUMC Cbligated Group's operating performance generally has inproved in recent years, which we view as a key credit
positive. In audited FY 2011 (June 30 year end), the RUMC Ubligated Group recorded adjusted operating income of $68.3
million (3.8 % operating margin) and adjusted operating cash fiow of $205.0 million {11.8% operating cash flow margin}, This is
an improvement over audited FY 2010, when the RUMC Obligated Group recorded adjusted operating income of $45.0 million
(2.7% margin) and operating cash flow of $174.6 million {10.4% margin}. Audited resutts have been adjusted to reclassify the
portion of investment income included in operating revenue to non-operating and to include capitalized interest as an interest
expense. FY 2010 is adjusted further to add $18.0 million to operafing expenses to account for a favorable one-time IRS
sefilement related to a FICA tax refund on medical residents. Since FY 2005, RUMC Obligated Group has maintained profitable
operating resufts.

Factors contributing to continued good operating results for the RUMC Obligated Group in FY 2011 include: (a) focus on
productvity improvements to offsef revenue pressures that included a layoff of approxmatety 200 ful-time equivalents in FY
2011 {FY 2011 results include approximately $5 million of severance costs) (management notes that labor costs as a percent of
net revenue decreased from 36.2% in FY 2010 to 35.3% in FY 2011}; (b} reduced supply costs {management notes that
medical supply expenses per adjusted discharge decreased 5.2% in FY 2011}; {¢) reduced malpractice expenses; and (d)
favorable prior year cost report setlements and non-recurring adjustments increased from $2.2 million in FY 2010 to $12.6
million in FY 2011, atthough FY 2010 was lower than in prior years ($7.6 million in FY 2008 and $14.2 mifiion in FY 2009).

Looking forward, management expects RUMC Obligated Group's operating cash flow margin to be in-line with or better than FY
2011. To maintain these margins despite Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement pressures will necessitate management to
continue to identify significant expense savings in the coming years. Through six months FY 2012 the Systen's operating
margins remain favorable (2.7% operating margin and 10.7% operating cash flow margin), afthough lag results through six
months FY 2011 (4.2% operating margin and 12.1% operating cash flow margin). Operating revenues decreased 0.1% in the
first half of FY 2012 compared to FY 2011 due ‘o a 0.4% decline in inpatient admissicns and a 17.3% decline in observation
stays. Management notes further that while outpatient surgeries continue lo increase, inpatient surgeries are down due o a
change in mix of services and a push to lower cost setlings, and that the System incurred some ramp up in costs to staff up and
supply the new patient tower at the RUMC flagship leading up to the January 2012 opening. Management reports that activity at
the flagship is up since the new tower opened without a change in payor mix.

The RUMC Obligated Group's Moody's adjusted debt ratios are adequate at the A2 rating level. Based on FY 2011 results,
adjusted debt-to-cash flow measures 3.3 imes (A2 median is 3.3 times), adjusted maximum annual debt service (MADS)
coverage measures 4.5 times (A2 median is 4.8 times), and debt-to-fotal cperating revenues measures 39% (A2 median is
36%).

The RUMC Obligated Group's unrestricted liquidity position improved modestly in FY 2011. Absolute unrestricted cash and
investments increased to $626 million at FYE 2011 from $605 million at FYE 2010. As a resutt, Moody's adjusted cash on hand
improved slightly to 145 days at FYE 2011 from 143 days at FYE 2010, but remains below the median (A2 median is 188 days).
Similarly, casb-to-debt improved to a still somewhat modest 93% at FYE 2011 from 88% at FYE 2010. Monthly cash-to-demand
debt measured a very strong 1,.251% at FYE 2011 due to a very low varizable debt load. According to management, at FYE 2011
RUMC Obligated Group's unrestricted cash and investments were allocated among approximately 88.3% cash and fixed income
securities, 11.4% equities, and 0.3% other investments, and 100% of unrestricted cash and investments could be liquidated
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within one month. When we revewed RUMC in November 2010, due to expected equily confributions to the Syslem’s capital
spending plans, managernent had projected cash on hand to decrease to approximately 120 days at FYE 2011. Due fo the
equity contributions ard investment losses, the RUMC's Obligated Group's adjusted cash on hand decreased to 129 days at

December 31, 2011,

In January 2012 the System opened the new patient fower at the RUMC flagship campus (on schedule). With the opening of
the new tower {as well as other key projects such as the apening of a new freestanding emergency department for Copley in
Yorkodlle, IL), capital spending plans are manageable in the coming years. Between FY 2013 and FY 2016, the System has
approximately $394 million of capital plans, which translates to an average capital spending ratic of approximatety 0.8 times.
Key projects in the coming years include modernization of the RUMC flagship's Afrium tower {floors 5, 7, 8, and 9) and
construction of a new cancer center as part of a new affiliation with the DuPage Medical Group {an investment that is expected
to open in early calendar year 2013).

In December 2011, tha RUMC Obligated Group refunded its Series 19984 fixed rate bonds with a $56 million variable rate
private placernent with JPMorgan Chase Bank with a 14 year term. The System has no material new money debt plans through
FY 2017,

Qutiook

The stable outlook reflects RUMC Obligated Group's continued favorable operating performance in FY 2011 and interim FY
2012, maintenance of adequate debt coverage and balance sheet ratios, and the fact that RUMC is beyond construction risks
after the January 2012 opening of the new patient tower at the flagship campus.

WHAT COULD MAKE THE RATING GO UP
Continued cash fow growth and significantly improved debt and batance sheet ratics
WHAT COULD MAKE THE RATING GO DOWN

Sustained weakening of operating results leading to thinner debt coverage and liquidity ratios; material market share loss;
unexpected increase in debt without commensurate increase in cash flow generation

KEY INDICATORS

Assumptions & Adjustments:

-Based on Rush University Medical Center Obligated Group consolidated financial statements
-First number reflects audited FY 2010 for the year ended June 30, 2010

-Second number reflects audited FY 2011 for the year ended June 30, 2011

-Interest expense adjusied to include capitalized interest

-FY 2010 adjusted to add $18.0 million o operating expense to account for a favorable one-fime IRS settlernent related to FICA
tax on medical residents

-Investment returns reclassified from operating revenue to non-operating revenue and smoothed at 6%
*Inpatient admissions: 48,693; 47,627

*Total operating revenues: $1.68 billion; $1.73 billion

*Moody's-adjusted net revenues available for debt sendce: $221.5 million; $250.5 million

*Tatal debt outstanding: $687 million; $674 million

*Maximum annual debt service (MADS); $55.1 million; $55.1 millicn

“‘MADS Cowerage with reported investment income: 3.54 times; 4,16 times

*Moody's-adjusted MADS Coverage with normalized investment income: 4.02 times; 4.54 times
“‘Debt-to-cash flow: 3.86 times; 3.28 times

“Days cash on hand: 143 days; 145 days

“Cash-to~debt: 88.0%; 92.8%

“Total comprehensive debt (factoring operating leases and underfunded defined benefit pension plan): $1,026 million; $917
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million

“Adjusted cash-to-comprehensive debt: 58.9%; 68.2%

“Cperating margin: 2.7%; 3.9%

*Operating cash flow margin: 10.4%; 11.8%

RATED DEBT

Issued through llinois Finance Authority (debt outstanding as of June 30, 2011):

-Series 2009C&D Fixed Rate Hospital Revenue Bonds ($200.0 million outstanding), rated A2
-Series 2009A&B Fixed Rate Hospital Revenue Bonds ($211.6 million outstanding}, rated A2

-Series 2008A VRDB Hospital Revenue Bonds ($50.0 million outstanding}, supported by a direct-pay LOC from Northern Trust
Company and rated Aa1/VMIG1 (reflecting Moody's approach to rating jointly supported transactions) (the LOC expires in
February 2015), A2 underlying rating

-Series 2006B Fixed Rate Hospital Revenue Bonds {$56.8 million outstanding), insured by National Public Finance Guaraniee
Corp {(MBIA), A2 unenhanced rating

CONTACTS

Obliger: John Mordach, CFO, (312) 842-5600; Patricia O'Neil, Chief Investment Officer, {312) 942-5647
Financial Advisor; Errol Brick, Public Financial Management, (212) 949-6656

Underwriter: Bruce Gurley, Morgan Stanley, (312) 706-4267

PRINCIPAL METHODOLOGY USED

The principal methodology used in this rating was Not-for-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems published in January 2008,
Please see the Credit Policy page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology .

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

Although this credit rating has been issued in a non-EU country which has not been recognized as endorsable at this date, this
credit rating is deemed "EU qualified by extension™ and may still be used by financial institutions for regulatory purposes until
30 April 2012. Further information on the EU endorsement status and on the Moody's office that has issued a particular Credit
Rating is available on www.moodys.com,

Far ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides relevant requlatory disclosures
in relation to each rating of a subseguently issued bond or note of the same series or category/class of debt or pursuant to &
program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings in accordance with Moody's rating practices. For
ratings issued an a support provider, this announcement provides relevant regulatory disclosures in relation to the rating action
on the support provider and in relation to each particular rating action for securities that derive their credit ratings from the
support provider's credit rating. For provsional ratings, this announcement provides relevant regulatory disclosures in relation to
the provisicnal rating assigned, and in relation to a definitive rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the
debt, in each case where the transaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in
& manner that would have affected the rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entily page for the
respective issuer on www moodys.com,

Information sources used to prepare the credit rating are the following: parties inwolved in the ratings, parties not invohed in the
ratings, public information, confidential and proprietary Moody's nvestors Sendce information, and confidential and proprietary
Maoody's Analytics information.

Moody's considers the quality of information available on the rated entity, obligation or credit satisfactory for the purposes of
issuing a rating.

Moody's adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a rating is of sufficient quality and from
sources Moody's considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, Moody's is
not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process.

Please see the ratings disclosure page on www.moodys.com for general disclosure on potential conflicts of interests.

Please see the ratings disclosure page on www.moodys.com for information on (A) MCC's major shareholders {above 5%) and
for (B) further information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated enities as well as
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{C) the names of entities that hold ratings from MIS that have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of
more than 5%. A member of the board of directors of this rated entity may also be a member of the board of directors of a
sharehclder of Moody's Corporation; however, Meody's has not independently verified this matter.

Please see Moody's Rating Symbols and Definitions on the Rating Process page on www.moodys.com for further information
on the meaning of each rating category and the definition of default and recovery.

Please see ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for the last rating action and the rating history.

The date on which some ratings were first released goes back fo a time before Moody's ratings were fully digitized and
accurate data may not be available. Consequently, Moody's provides a date that it believes is the most reliable and accurate
based on the information that is available to it. Please see the ratings disclosure page on our website www. moodys.com for
further inforrmation.

Please see www moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's legal entity that has
tssued the rating.

Analysts

Mark Pascaris

Lead Analyst

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Senvice

Lisa Goldstein

Backup Analyst

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Contacts

Journalists: (212) 553-0376
Research Clients: (212} 553-1653

Moody's Investors Senvice, Inc.
250 Greenwich Street

New York, NY 10007

USA

Moobpy’s
INVESTORS SERVICE

© 2012 Moody's Investors Service, Inc. andfor its licensors and affiliates (collectively,
"MOODY'S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS {SSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. ("MIS™} AND ITS
AFFILIATES ARE MOODY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT
RISK QF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND
CREDIT RATINGS AND RESEARCH PUBLICATIONS PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ("MOODY'S
PUBLICATIONS"} MAY INCLUDE MOODY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE
FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE
SECURITIES. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT
MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY
ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT
ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK,
MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S
OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT
OR HISTORICAL FACT. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS DO NOT
CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT CR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS
AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO
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PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR
MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY
PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MCODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES
MCODY'S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH
INVESTOR WILL MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS
UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN S PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR
OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REFACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED,
DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR
ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY
MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.
All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be
accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical emor as well as other
factors, however, all information contained herein is provided "AS IS" without warranty of any kind.
MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit
rating is of sufficient quality and from sources Moody's considers to be reliable, including, when
appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in
every instance independently verify or validate information received in the rating process. Under
no circumstances shall MOODY'S have any liability to any person or entity for (a) any loss or
damage in whole or in part caused by, resulting from, or relating to, any error {negligent or
olherwise) or other circumstance or contingency within or outside the control of MOODY'S or any
of its directors, officers, employess er agents in connection with the procurement, collection,
compilation, analysis, interpretation, commmunication, publication or delivery of any such
information, or {b) any direct, indirect, special, consequential, compensatory or incidental
damages whatsoever {including without limitation, lost profits), even if MOODY'S is advised in
advance of the possibility of such damages, resulting from the use of or inability to use, any such
information. The ratings, financial reporting analysis, projections, and other observations, if any,
constituting part of the information contained herein are, and must be construed solely as,
staterents of apinion and not staterments of fact or recommendations to purchase, sell or hold any
securities. Each user of the information contained herein must make its own study and evaluation
of each security it may consider purchasing, holding or selting. NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY CR
FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPQSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR
INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHAT SOEVER.

MIS, a wholly-owned credit raling agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation ("MCQO"), hereby
discloses that most issuers of debt securities {inciuding corporate and municipal bonds,
debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MIS have, prior to
assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MIS for appraisal and rating services rendered by it
fees ranging from $1,500C to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain policies and
procedures to address the independence of MIS's ratings and rating processes. Information
regarding certain affifiations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and
between entities who hold ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an
ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www,moodvs.com under the
heading "Shareholder Relations — Corporate Govermnance — Director and Shareholder Affiliation
Policy.”

Any publication into Australia of this document is by MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service
Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657, which holds Australian Financial Services License no. 336968,
This document is intended to be provided only to "wholesale clients” within the meaning of section
761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By conlinuing o access this document from within Australia,
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you represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a
"wholesale client" and that neither you nor the entity you represent wilt directly or indirectly
disseminate this document or its contents to “retai! clients" within the meaning of section 761G of
the Corporations Act 2001.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, credit ratings assigned on and after Qctober 1, 2010 by Moody's
Japan K.K. ("MJKK”") are MJKK's current opinions of the relative future credit risk of entities, credit
commitments, or debt or debt-like securities. In such a case, "MIS” in the foregoing statements
shall be deemed to be replaced with "*MJKK", MJKK is a wholly-owned credit rating agency
subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly owned by Moody's Overseas Holdings
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO.

This credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on
the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. It
would be dangerous for retail investors to make any investment decision based on this credit
rating. f in doubt you should contact your financial or other professional adviser.
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FitchRatings

FITCH AFFIRMS RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
OBLIGATED GROUP (IL) REVS AT 'A-'; OUTLOOK TO
POSITIVE

Fitch Ratings-Chicago-11 July 2011: Ag part of its ongoing surveillance efforts, Fitch Ratings has
affinned the *A-' rating on the following approximately $618.9 million of debt issued by the Illinois
Finance Authority or the llinois Health Faciliies Authority on behalf of Rush University Medical

Center Obligsted Group (Rush);

--Senies 2009D revetue bonds;
--Sertes 2009C revenue bonds,
--Series 20098 revenue bonds,
--Serics 20094 revenue bonds;
--Series 2008A variable rate demand revenue bonds;
--Series 2006B revenue bonds;
--Scrics 1998A revenue bonds,

The Rating Qutlook is revised to Positive from Stable.

RATING RATIONALE:

--The Outfook revision to Positive reflects Rush's continued sirong operating performance in »
competitive market and ncar completion of it new hospital, which is on time and within budget
~-Rush’s operating and operating EBITDA margins have exceeded Fitch's ‘A’ category medians in
cech of the last four fiscal years,

—Rush's leverage position is moderate with 8 conservative debt portfolio (929 fixed rute).

--Rush has strong physicizn alignment across &n integrated platform,

--Credit concermns include execution risk aseociated with the opening of the new fecility Jocated on
Rush's Chicage campus, an expected dedine in hquidity metrics as capital spending remains high
through fiscal 2012 to finish the campus transformation project and a competitive service area.

WHAT COULD TRIGGER AN UPGRADE:
—~Successful oompletion and transition to the new facility with minimal operational impact.
—-Maintenance of streng opereting cash flow to offset the expected decline in liquidity.

SECURITY:
Debt payments are secured by a pledge of the gross revenuers of the obligated group and a morigage

on certain property of the obligated group.

CREDIT SUMMARY:
The rating affirmation &t A~ is based upon Rush's consigtently strong operating perfommance since
fiscal 2007, moderate leverage amd strong alignment with physicians acrose an integrated platform.

Rush's operating and operating EBITDA marging have averaged 5.3% and 11.6%, respectively,
between fiscal 2G07 and fiscal 2010, exceeding Fitch's 2010 'A’ category medians of 3% and 10%,
Rush's strong operating performance continued through the minc-month interim period ending
March 31, 2011 (the interim period) with operating and operating EBITDA marging of 5.7% and
12.4%, respectively. Management's 2012 budget incdudes opermting and operating EBITDA
margins of 3.4% and 11.3%6. Rush rccaves epproximately $50 million of supplemental finds per
year including disproportionate shere payments and Medicaid provider tax funds.

Rush's moderate leverage metrics are enhanced by a conservative debt portfolio, with 92% fixed
rate debt Debt to capitalization increased from 35% in fiscal 2008 to 52% in fiscal 2010 bmt
moderated to 45.1% &s of March 31, 2011 relative to Fitch's A’ category median of 42.1%. Strong
cash flow generation firther mitigates the moderate leverege levels with debt to EBTIDA of 2.4
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times {x} as of March 31. 2011 which compares favorably 1o Fitch's "A' category median of 3.8x.
Coverage of maximum annual debl service (MADS) by EBITDA was a solid 4.3x in fiscal 2010

and 4.6x in the inlerim period.

Credit concerns include execution risk associated with the apening of the new facility located on
Rush's Chicage campus, an expected decline in liquidity metrics and a competitive service area, At
March 31, 2017 Rush's uurestricted cash and investments totaled $642.1 million refletting a sharp
improvement from $314.4 million as of fiscal yeer-end 2009. Liguidity metrics have improved.
However days cash on hand (158.8), cushion ratio (11.7x) and cash to long term debt {104,3%) are
light relative to the respective "A’ category medians of 183.8. 14.4x and ]103.5%. Morcover, Rush
projects that days cash will decrease 10 124 davs in fiscal 2012 duc to the completion of the new

facility.

The new facility is sel 16 open in January 2012 and s on time and on budget. The combination of
the strenpth of Rush's clinical programs with the new facility shoutd provide a boosi to operations
in the competitive Chicapo-areas markeiplace.

Rush speni aver $729 million hatween fiscal 2008 and March 31, 2011 on the estimated 51 billion
Campus Transformation Plan. Capitat cxpenditures are forecasted jo equal £285 million in fiscal
2011, 5215 million in fiscal 2002 {of which 553 million s carryover from fiscal 2011) and
subsequently decrease 1o $105 million per year thereafier. Liguidity is expected to rebound after

fiscal 2012 due to strong operating performance.

The Positive Outlook reflects Filch's expeciation of upward rating movement i’ Rush maintains its
sirong operating perfonnance while successfully transitioning cperations to the new facility.

Rush consists of three acuwle care hosphals including Rush University Medical Centes, located in
Chicago, IL; Rush Oak Park Hospital, located in Oak Park, lllinois; and Rush-Copley Medical
Center, located in Aurors, Hlinois, The three hospitals operate 985 stafled beds, Rush also operates
& medical umiversity. research facilities, a physician group proactice with over 400 employed
physicians, and n rehabilitation/skilled nursing facility. In fiscal 2010, the Obligated Group reported
total revenues of $1.69 billien. Rush’s disclosurc practices are among the best in Filch's health care
portfolio with quanterly and annual disclosure consisting of balance sheet, income statements and
cash flow stalernents, utilization statistics and a managernen! discussion and analysis.

Cantact:

Primary Analyst

Adam Kates

Direciar
+1-312-368-3180
Fitch, Inc.

70 West Madison Street
Chicago, 1L

Secondary Analyst
Jimn LaBuhn
Semar Director
+1-312-368-2059

Committee Cheirperson
Emily Wong

Senior Director
+1-212-908-0651

Media  Relations:  Cindy  Stolier, New York, Tel: +1 212 908 0526, Email:
cindy. stoller@fitchratings.com.
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Additional information is available at 'www fifchralings.com’,

Applicable Criteria and Related Resesrch:
--'Revenue-Supported Rating Criteria’, dated Oct. 8, 2010;
--'Nonprefil Hospitals and Heatth Systems Rating Critenia’, dated Dec. 29, 2009,

Applicahle Criteria and Related Research:

Revenue-Supported Rating Criteria

hap:fwww. firchralings.com/creditdesk/reportsireport_frame.cfmMrpl_id—637130
Nognprofil Hospitals and Health $ysiems Rating Criteria

http/aww fichratings.com/ereditdesk/reports/report_frame.cfm?rpt_id=453186

ALL FITCH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS. PLEASE READ THESE LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS BY
FOLLOWING THIS LINK:
HTTPLFITCHRATINGS. COM/UNDERSTANDINGCREDITRATINGS. N ADDITION,
RATING DEFINITIONS AND THE TERMS OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE AVAILABLE
ON THE AGENCY'S PUBLIC WEBSITE ‘WWW FITCHRATINGS.COM'. PUBLISHED
RATINGS, CRITERIA AND METHODOLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT
ALL TIMES. FITCH'S CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF
INTEREST, AFFILIATE FIREWALL, COMPLIANCE AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES ARF ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE ‘CODE OF CONDUCT SECTION
OF THIS STTE.
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Rationale

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services revised its outlook to potitive and affirmed the ‘A" long 1t mting on linois
Finance Authority's $411.6 miflion scrics 2009A through 2009D fixed-rate hopital revenue bonds. § 1andard &
Poor's also revised it oullook 16 potitive and affirmed the “A-" underlying rating (SPUR} on the avthority’s $30
million series 20084 and $96.75 million teries 20068 reveave bonds, all issued for the Rush University Medical
Center Obligated Group {Rush), At the same time, Stzodacd & Poor's alfirmed its 'AAA/A-F+" dual mating on the
arthority's series 20084 variable-rate demand bonds (VRDBs), also issued for Ruth.

The ‘AANA-1+" dual raring oo the series 2008A VRDBs is baswed an our poins critesia, with the loog-term
component of the rating based jointly on the Northern Trust Bank [AA) and Rush lang-term catings. The 'A-1+°
shortterm component of the rating is based on the Northern Trust short-term rating. The letter of credit expires

December 2013.

The positive outlock reflects near completion of Rush University Medica! Centes's {(RUMC) new patiem tower {to
open early in calendar 2012) and Rush's robust opemting pecfermance, which has helped to maintain a feidy sinble
balance sheet despite RUMC's recem period of majer construction.

The 'A-' rating reflects the sirength of RUMC, the obligated group's flagship hospital, as an scademic medical center
with well-defined market recognition despitc concerns abowt competition. The rating alse reflects RUMC's large na
patient revenue base and robust operating incom during 1he past frve years. While capiral epending will remain
steady durirg the next few years, the opening of the new patient tower, Rush's largen preject, 1 expecied te open in
carly cabendar 2012 and climinates & major risk that has boen part of Rush's profik for the pan scveral years.

The 'A-" and pasitive outlook also reflect Rush's:

« Continued strong market secognition at an academic medical center with broad clinical services, extensive

Standard & Poor’s | Research | October 17, 2011
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educalion and research capatulities, and a solid market position in several ey serviee linet in the competitive

Chicago-area marker;
o Temek record of solid financial operations and cash Mlow, with unaudited fiscal 2011 results thowing 2 seong

operating margin of 5.6%, a solid EBIDA marpin of 13.6%, and very good maximum annuai debt service

coverage of 4.2x; and
Large net paticnt revenve base of $1.5 billion from serving 1wo dininct macket arcas with modest inpatient

growth offsct by sieady owrpartient growth in recent years.

Credit risks. in our virw, jnchade Rush's:

» Final cash antlay for RUMC's new patient tower projet in 2002 and ability to absorb the higher expense base at
the same time that inpatient volume yrowth has slowed and the sune Medicaid progeam is expeciencing some
pressune;

¢ Adequate, 137 days’ cash on hand as of June 30, 2011 (with 2 minknum threshold of 115 during the next few

venrs); and

Lecation in the highly competitive Chicago serviee aren, with RUMC in close proximity to three other hospitals

in its immediate service area apd with several other area academic tnedical centers and hospitals or health systems

providing strong competition for key servioes.

The bonds secured under the imaster ¢rust indenture are secured by Rush's grois revenues and mortgages on the
main hospital facilities' property, plant, and equipment_ Rush's total long-term debt, inclhuding capital keases, other
fimincing arrangements, and guaramess, is $65§ million, with most of this debt to be secured under the master teus
indenture,

Rush's largest single profect during the past few years has been the construction of 2 new patient tower at RUMC
($637 million). The aew patient tower, which has been funded through bond proceeds, capital campaign
contzibutions, govemmental fimding, and operating cash flow, is scheduled to open in mid-fiscal 2012, While
Rush's caphal expenditures will remain high a1 $238 million in 2012, capital spending should decrease thercafter
but gtill remain steady at arcund $ 130 million annually 3s RUMC completes remaining renovations 3t ite existing
facilities through 2016. Moreover, the completion of and tuccessful move into the new patient tower will eliminate a
significant risk 1that has been pan of Rush's profile for thr past fow vears. In addition, some Nexibility in she future
eapizal spending plans shauld allow Rush to strenpthen its currently light balance sheer profile should operations
corne under any unforeseen pressure away from currently strong levels. in recent years, RUMC and the smaflee
Rush-Copley Medical Ceater have generated strong operations, supperted panially by the tlinois Provider Tax
{171}, but also through a very strong focus on strengthening key service lines as well a3 on operations and expense

controls.

John Motdach is the pew full-iime Chief Financial Officer (CFO} at Rush and filled 1hat pesition, which has been
open since last summer, in carly eaxlendar 2011, He's held several senior linance positions inclediag CFO at several
hapicals and was most cecently the CFO at Loyala Univeraity Health System in Maywood. [il., {2 neighboring
swburb of Chicage).

Rush is party (o two interest-cate swaps with a total notioral amount of $96.75 million. Standard & Peor’s has

auigned Rush 3 Deht Derivative Profile {DDP) overall scorc of '1.5" on 2 four-point scale, with '1* representing
minimal risk. The overall score of "L.35" reflects our view that Rush's sivap portfolio poses a very low risk.

www standardazdpoon. com
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Outlook

The positive outlook reflects Rush's near completion of its major capital project at the same time that operations
have remained strong and Rush has maintained its solid market pasition. if Rush is able to grow its balance sheet
after final payments have been made for the new patient tower and absorb the higher expense base while continuing
to make operating improvements 8s plannsd. Standard 8 Poor’s could caise the ratings in the next year or two,
Siandard & Poor's could reviee the outlook back to siable if the balance sheet shows limired growth with liquidity
remaining al o7 near current levels, However, if operatians expetience srstained declines alter the opening of the
paticnt tower and marging remain below medizn levels, or operational liquidity levels decline and remain below
Rush's floor of 115 days, the rating could be revised downward, Rush does not expect 10 issue any new-money debt
during the next two years.

Operational Profile
The Rush health eystem contists of twe medical centers in distinet service areas in the Chicago srea:

e RUMC: A 664-gtafled bed facility just west af downiown Chicage that also sperates the 128-stalfed-bed Rush
Qak Park Hospital (ROPH) in the neighboring subueb of Oak Park; and

» Rush-Copley Medical Center {(RCMC): Located in Aurora, Hl., a far-sonthwest suburb of Chicago, ir serves as the
parent holding company for Copley Memorial Hospital Inc. [a 210-saffed bed facilty), Copley Venturesine.,
Rush-Coplcy Foundation, and Rush-Copley Medical Group NFP, all of which are Rush members.

Rush's aperations include employzd physicians az well as significam research and educational components ruch as
Ruth University, a heakh sciences universicy that includes Rush Medical College, CoMege of Nursing, College of
Health Sciences, and the Graduate College. Rush was created to diversify the cevenue base that supperts debt
servioe, maxiguze debt capacity for the system, and generally rengthen overall creditworthiness. Adthough Rush is
imvolred in some joint activirics, the entities oparare independently in tarms of day<to-day activities and service
delivery. However, management is focusing on how to strengihen collaberation dmically across ity ofganizations
and affilates RUMC's board exerts certain governance controls on the other entities” boards, which boM certain
reserve powers through majority board represemation. In 2011, Rush’s admissions were down 2.5% relative 1o the
ptiot year to 43,885; however, yearover-year outpatient volumes increased sighity by 0.3% to 442 088 and
ocutpatitnt surgeries increased 2.6% to 29 664.

While RCMC generates positive operating income, RUMC — Rush's lorgest componen — has helped Rush generate
its strony financial performance in recemt years. RUMC, which accounted for 89% of Rush's total atsets, B3% of
tolal revenues, and 85% of operating income as of fiscal year<erd June 30, 2011, 35 in the [linois Medical Distric
with threg other hospitaly. It competes with four Chicsgo-area acad=mic medical centers; Northwestern Memorial
Hespital [AA+} University of Chicago Hospitals and Health System (AA-); Loyola University Heahb System; and
University of [linois Medical Center {A), as well as other suburban hospitals and sysiems. RUMC has well-known
program in orthopedics, neuralogy, neurosurgery, geriatrica, and kidney disease; and hat generally maintained irs
2.7% marker share. The immediate sepvice area and lirger Chicage area remain competitice,

Admistions have flanened, similar to other markets and hospitals, although RUMC has continued to experience
good outpatient growth through focus on cenain key seevice lines and physician recruitement, Fiscal 2011 inpatient

Standard & Poor's | Research | October 17, 2011 4
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acute care admitsions were down 1.4% frow the prior year 10 27,568, However, in fiscal 2011 adjusted admissions
at RUMC to3¢ 1.6% to 49,143 with total surgeries gable at 26,329, RUMC has made slight gains mese 1han the
past fow yeaes in it market share to 2.7% in 2 very fragmented maskst. ROPH, which operstes in a service area
near RUMG, has becorne more closely integrated with RUMC's strategy and Rush hes focused on strengthening
certain key service finea across RUMC and ROPH. Afier 2 ftrong upnick in 2010, admissions at ROPH decreassd
slightly by 1% 10 3,740 in 2011 but arc siill higher than 2009 |eveks.

RCMC i in a far-southwest Chicago cubueh thar has experienced favorablk population geowth, 2khough recent
economic challenges have negatively affected volumes in that market in addicion to slewing growth. RCMC
admissions were down 5.2% from che prior year to 11,577 in 2011. RCMC, bowever, maintains the (eading market
share, which has been growing, but deercascd shightly in 2011 and is at 38.8%. Tetal adjusted discharged are up
3%, and curgerics increased about 1%, in fiscal 2011,

Finances: Positive Operating Income Trends In Recent Years

During the past five years, Rush has generated solid operating performance, with operating marging avernging 5.0%
and operating cash flow margine averaging a healthy 11.9%, More specifically, unaudited fiscal 2031 generated
$98.1 million [5.6% wmargin} of operating income, as compared with $89.4 million (5.3% margio) ie fiscal 2010
{inchuded in fiscals 2010-201) operating income is the $23.0 miltion annual nty payment from the {PT program that
is approved thraugh June 36, 2014). In addition to the solid outpatient yolumes and the pat payart from the 1PT,
managemert has made a concersed cffort 1o manage its expenses and will continue efforts to do so dufing the mext
several years. Unandired excess income of $114.4 million (6.5% margin) in fescal 2011 was on par with the audited
$101.6 million {6.0% margin) penerated in fiscal 2010 due 1o the improvements {ram the investment markets. (We
note that excess mcome excludes any gaing or realized losses on discontinued operations, unrealized gains and losses
on investments, changes in the (air value of interesterate swaps as well as any gainsflosaes on sakes, and losaes on the
extinguishment of debr.} Rush generated heakthy 4.2x and 3.9x MADS coverage in fiscals 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

According to its cros cecent plan from 2010, future operating and excess income morgins should remain close o
2% and mere than $3%. respectively, with EB(DA at 109-12% 10 fund capital plans and begin 10 m-strengthen the
balance sheet. Although managemeot has operated within these targets for the past few years, the larger expense
base, the general softness of the ovevall cconomy, and potentially Lghter investment income required Rush 16 focus
on core operations and key service-line cohancemenms. Mansgement is updating, its Jong-range financing plan to
identify sdditionat apportunilies 10 strengthen its finances beyond current forecasts. Manzgement i targeting an
oprrating incame of about $61.6 million in fiscal 2012, down from fiscal 2011 a5 the new paticot 1ower it
scheduled to apen in mid-fiscal 2012,

Rush's balance sheet has remained relatively sable during the pas year, despite increased spending for capital
propcs out of cash [low. Howerer, balance sheet metrics could ease during the next yoar as managemem relies
entirely on its own aperating cash flow Lo complete and open its parient tawer in 2012. Additionalty, the state is
expesiencing some pressire and may delyy payments vo Rush us the year continues; Rush has a1otal of $150 millioa
in owo fines of credits as a back up to help manage any excess pressure related 10 receivables. As mentioned atove,
the lacgest-cingle project in Rush's capital plans is the new patient towee, which to1als $637 million; to date, Rush
has spent about $437 million on that project. There are other smaller projects scheduled 1o be completed during the

3
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SECTION IX — FINANCIAL VIABILITY
Criterion 1120.130 — Financial Viability

Please find in the tables below viability ratios for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. The ratios contained
therein are calculated in accordance with the requirements of Section 1120, Appendix A and are based
on the information contained in DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.’s consolidated financial statements for the
years 2009-2011. The relevant portions of which are included at Attachment 41-Exhibit 1.

Choice of Standards

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding the project must provide viability ratios. The
standards for these ratios are contained in Section 1120. APPENDIX A, This appendix lists the standards
for the various viability ratios based on type of provider. Thus, hospitals, long-term care facilities, ESRD
facilities, and ASTCs all have different standards that take into account the type of provider they are.
There are, however, no standards that directly applicable to this project.

This project involves a Medical Office Building owned and operated by a physician group. It is clearly not
a long-term care or ESRD facility, nor is it an ASTC. it is equally clear that the applicant responsible for
funding the project, DuPage Medical Group, Ltd., is not a hospital, nor is the MO8 itself a hospital. Rush
University Medical Center is a hospital, but, as is clearly documented throughout this application, it will
not provide or guarantee any funding for this project.

The applicants wish to note that they were advised by CON staff to apply the viability ratio standards for
hospitals to this project, which are stricter than the standards for other types of facilities. Applying
hospital standards would seem particularly onerous in this case given the difference in financial goals
and structures between a hospital and a physician group.

For example, hospitals attempt to generate large amounts of net income, often to pay for large capital
costs. Physician groups, on the other hand, try to generate income for the individual physician members,
rather than the group itself. Indeed, if the group (as distinct from the physicians) holds a large amount of
cash, it can be seen as deviating from its business model. Furthermore, all of the provider types for
which standards are available (hospital, ESRD, long-term care, and ASTC) are those that generate facility
fees. The services provided under this project, however, will by and large generate professional fees for
physician services,

Therefore, applying hospital standards for viahility ratios to a physician group means applying standards
that appear not to be for their intended purposes.

Meeting the Standards

Despite their apparent inapplicability, the applicants used, per the direction of the Board staff, the
hospital viability ratio standards for this application. To judge whether or not those standards have been
met, the applicants used the viability ratios not only for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. but also for DMG
Real Estate, LLC {the LLC}. The LLC is fully owned by DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.," which is an applicant
for this submission. This was done because the building will be owned and operated by the LLC, and the

! seq Attachment 4,
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construction loan agreement was entered into by the LLC, with DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. acting as
guarantor.? Therefore, it was deemed proper and in keeping with the relevant instructions on page 51 of
the application to include both organizations in these calculations.

Viabifity Ratio Calculations: Current Ratio

Organization Standard 2009 2010 2011 Met

Standard?
DMG Real Estate, LLC 22.0 11.48 1.60 8.47 Yes
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. 22.0 | 0.896827 | 0.872956 | 0.959426 No

As this table demonstrates DMG Real Estate, LLC is able to meet the hospital standard for the Current Ratio.

Viability Ratio Calcuiations: Net Margin Percentoge

Qrganization Standard 2009 2010 2011 Met

Standard?
DMG Real Estate, LLE 5% 46.3% 47.8% 50.5% Yes
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. 25% 3.8% 4.1% 31.4% No

As this table demonstrates DMG Real Estate, LLC is able to meet the hospital standard for Net Margin Percentage

Viability Ratio Calculations: Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Organization Standard 2009 2010 2011 Met

Standard?
DMG Real Estate, LLC <50% 79.8% 66.7% 67.3% No
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. <50% 41.3% 28.5% 31.5% Yes

As this table demonstrates DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. is abie to meet the hospital standard for Percent Debt to
Total Capitalization.

Viability Rotio Calculations: Projected Debt Service Coveraqe

Organization Standard 2009 2010 2011 Met

Standard?
DMG Real Estate, LLC 22.5 1.8 1.9 1.3 No
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. z22.5 3.1 6.2 5.2 Yes

As this table demonstrates DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. is able to meet the hospital standard for Projected Debt
Service Coverage.

% see Attachment 39-Exhibit 1.
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Vigbility Ratio Calculations: Days Cash on Hand

Qrganization Standard 2009 2010 2011 Met

Standard?
DMG Real Estate, LLC 275 days 18.99 28.17 38.16 No
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. 275 days 4.60 11.27 18.78 No

Although neither DMG organization meets this particular standard it should be noted that Days Cash on
Hand is a particularly poor measure of the financial viability of a physician practice group, such as
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. This is because DMG’s business mode] is designed to generate income for
its physician members through professional fees, rather than itself. Therefore, there is little comparison
with providers that generate a facility fee. Also, DMG’s business model requires it to apportion excess
cash to physician shareholders after necessary expenses have been paid.

Viability Ratio Calculations: Cushion Ratio

Organization Standard 2009 2010 2011 Met

Standard?
DMG Real Estate, LLC 2.0 4.64 7.89 7.14 Yes
PuPage Medical Group, Ltd. 27.0 0.63 3.07 5.12 No

As this table demonstrates DMG Real Estate, LLC is able to meet the hospital standard for the Cushion Ratio.

Note: Rush University Medical Center has an A Bond Rating. See Attachment 40. Therefore, it is not
necessary o include any viability ratios for RUMC here.
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Attachment 41-Exhibitl
Consolidated Financial Statements of

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. from
2009-2011 4/18/2012 1:16 PM

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
With Report of Independent Auditors

PRELIMINARY AND TENTATIVE FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.
and Subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Group’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2011, the Group adopted

authoritative guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board related to accounting
for medical malpractice and similar Liabilities and their related anticipated insurance recoveries.

April 19, 2012
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assels
Current assets:
Cash
Patient accounts receivnble, less allowances for uncollectible
nccounts of $3,966,000 in 2011 and $3,188,000 in 2010
Reinsurence receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other
Current portion of professional liabilities insurance receivabls
Deferred income tax, net
Totai cutreni assets

Property and equipment, net

Goodwill

Professional liabilities insurance receivable
Deferred income tax, net

Deferred compensation and other

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Curren! liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payrolt and benefits
Duge to third-party payor
Medical claims payable
Current portion of professional liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Payable to physicians
Total current liabilitice

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rale swaps
Deferrad compensation
Deferrad income tax, net
Professional liahilities

Tota) liabilitics

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock (§1 par value; 500,000 shares anthorized
250,000 and 235,000 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital

Noncontrolling interest

Retained earnings

Total stockholders’ equity
Totat liabilitics and stockholders” equity

See notes o consofidated financiol statements.

December 21

2011 2010
5 18,725,173 § 10,407,596
28,468,250 25,150,256
2,056,736 3,502,124
2,291,613 2,442,106
5394,210 6,651,700
6,236,864 5,516,002
618,284 444,700
63,791,130 54,314,484
113,796,778 107,551,607
3,606,430 3,606,430
16,763,136 16,483,998
2455323 -
1,539,722 1,557,070

3 201,952,516 $ 183,513,589

$ 7,518,207 § 6,719,754
9,532,954 2,673,294
15,894,429 14,896,588
7,343,714 5,474,271
3,140,021 3,000,000
6,236,864 5,516,002
1,702,203 12,525,093
15,120,490 11,411,217
66,488,382 62,216,219
32,471,163 25,305,413
2,003,772 1,618,937

934,987 1,018,804

- 991,274

19.563,136 28,983,998
131,461,940 120,134,645
250,000 235,000

2,900,000 2,750,000
1,089,208 1,018,149
66,251,368 59,375,795
70,490,576 63,378,944

$ _ 201952516_§ 183,513,589
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues:
Net patient service revenue
Capitation revenue
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Physician salaries, wages, and benefits
Nonphysician salaries, wages, and benefits
Medical claims
Rent and utilities
Medical supplies and other
Professional fees and purchased services
Insurance
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Interest
Depreciation

Total expenses

QOther losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Consolidated net income

Less net income attributed to noncontrolling interest
Net income attributed to the Group

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010

$ 287,258,730 § 261,579,606
93,978,264 94,433,682
7,991,503 6,981,588
389,228,497 362,994,876

129,289,535 117,921,844
102,307,769 98,150,032
18,393,298 16,801,585
34,399,757 32,782,908
47,696,034 41,891,170
16,285,377 14,558,706
5,358,758 5,309,406
8,732,156 8,010,157
1,385,414 1,545,488
11,961,358 11,174,309
375,809,456 348,145,605

(384,835) (537,367)

13,034,206 14,311,904
5,585,706 4,106,439
7,448,500 10,205,465

(572,927) (501,868)
S 6875573 § 0.703.507_
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Additional Total
Common Paid-In Retained Noncontrolling Stockholders'
Stock Capital Earpings Interest Equity
Balance at January 1, 2010 $ 217,000 $2,570,000 $49,672,198 § 943272 $53,402,470
Net income - - 9,703,597 - 9,703,597
Noncontrolling interest net income - - - 501,868 501,868
Partnership distribution - - ~ (426,991} (426,991)
Purchase of common stock (5,000) {50,000} - - {55,000)
Issuance of common stock 23,000 230,000 ~ - 253,000
Balance at December 31, 2010 235000 2,750,000 59,375,795 1,018,149 63,378,944
Net income - - 6,875,573 - 6,875,573
Noncontrolling interest net income - - - 572,927 572,927
Partnership distribution - B - (501,868) (501,868)
Purchase of common stock {8,000) {80,000) ~ - (88,000)
Issuance of common stock 23,000 230,000 — — 253,000
Balance at December 31, 2011 50,000 _$2.900.000  $ 66,251.36 089,208 _§ 70,490,576

See notes o consolidated financial statements,
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating activities
Nzt income attributed to the Group
Net income aftributed to the noncontrolling interest
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Net (gain) loss on sales of property and equipment
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Deferred income taxes
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable
Reinsurance receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Inventory
Due to third-party payor
Accounts payable, accrued expenses,
and other current liabilities
Medical claims payable
Payable to physicians
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities
Cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Distributions to noncontrolling interest
Payments of debt and capital lease obligations
Purchase of common stock

Proceeds from issuance of stock

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010
5 6,875,573 $§ 9,703,597
572,927 501,868
11,961,358 11,174,309
(2,123) 27,507
384,835 537,367
(3,620,181) (1,488,060)
8,732,156 8,010,157
(11,850,150) (8,830,752)
1,445,388 (2,5731,389)
1,257,490 (36,192)
150,493 (731,065)
1,869,443 84,062
8,655,954 3,459,300
140,021 (623,000)
3,709,273 2,725,949
233,531 67,836
30,515,988 22,010,394
(18,204,403) (11,777.583)
(18,204,403) (11,777,583)
(501,868) (426,991)
(3,657,140) (3,394,052)
(88,000) (55,000)
253.000 253,000
(3.994,008) (3,623,043)
8,317,577 6,609,768
10,407,596 3,797,828

§ 18725173 § 407,
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2011

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. (the Group) is a multi-specialty physician practice that provides a
broad range of outpatient services. The main office is in Glen Ellyn, Illinois, with 42 satellite
offices throughout the western suburbs of Chicago, predominantly DuPage County, Illinois. The
Group was incorporated as a medical corporation in the state of Illinois in July 1968 and is a for-
profit, taxable corporation. The Group has 321 physicians, of which 250 are shareholders, at
December 31, 2011,

Included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are all wholly owned and controlled
subsidiaries. The Group’s subsidiary corporations are DMG Real Estate, LLC (LLC); DMG Real

Estate Holdings, LL.C (REH), DMG Surgery Center, LLC (Surgery Center); and DMG Pain
Management Surgery Center, LLC (Pain ASC).

LLC owns and operates medical office buildings in DuPage County.

The Surgery Center was formed in 2002 as a surgery center operation. Effective December 1,
2005, the Surgery Center amended and restated its operating agreement and sold a 12.5%
ownership interest to a minority shareholder,

REH was formed in 2004 to acquire land and construct a surgery center facility.

Pain ASC was formed in 2009 as a pain management surgery center. Operations began
October 2011.

Illinois Health Partners (THP), a joint venture owed 50% by the Group and 50% by Edward
Health Ventures, was formed in 2011. Operations began January 2012 by combining managed
care operations for the Group and Naperville Health Care Association, Edward Health Ventures,
previously PHO.

All significant intercompany balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continuned)

Goodwill

Goodwill is assessed for impairment on an annual basis through the comparison of the fair value
of the respective reporting unit with its carrying value. Fair value is determined primarily based
upon valuation studies performed by the Group, which consider discounted cash flows, physician
compensation, and future earnings, Valuation analysis requires significant judgments and
estimates to be made by management. Changes in market conditions, among other factors, may
have an impact on these estimates, which may require future adjustments to the carrying value of
goodwill.

Due to Third-Party Payor

Due to third-party payor represents the liability for funds received by the Surgery Center that are
to be paid back to Blue Cross/Blue Shield as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. Blue Cross/Blue
Shield pays the Surgery Center invoices at gross amounts and invoices the Surgery Center for the
difference between the gross charges and the contracted rate.

Medical Claims Payable

Medical claims payable represents the estimated liability for claims expenses reported but not
paid and for claims incurred but not reported to the Group for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010. Liabilities for unpaid claims and claims incurred but not reported are actuarially
determined. The estimates used in determining the liabilities are subject to the effects of trends in
claim severity and frequency, Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates,
management believes that the liabilities for unpaid claims are adequate. The estimates are
continually reviewed and adjusted as nccessary as experience develops or new information
becomes known; such adjustments are included in current operations.

Noncontrolling Interest

The Group’s noncontrolling interest in the consolidated stateraents of operations represents the
noncontrolling shareholder’s share of the Surgery Center’s operations. The noncontrolling
interest in the consolidated balance sheets reflects the original investment by a noncontrolling
shareholder in the Surgery Center subsidiary, along with the noncontrolling interest’s share of
the Surgery Center’s subsequent operations.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Asset Impairment

The Group considers whether indicators of impairment are present and performs the necessary
tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is appropriate. Impairment write-downs are
recognized in operating expenscs at the time the impairment is identified. There was no
impairment of long-lived assets in 2011 and 2010.

Payable to Physicians

Payable to physicians represents the amount of calculated compensation based upon the
shareholder compensation formula that has not been paid as of the end of a given reporting
period. These amounts are catculated and distributed to individual physicians on a monthly basis.

General and Professional Liability

The provision for self-insured general and professional liability claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The estimated
insurance receivable for professional liability claims represents the receivable for reported claims
that are at or below the insurance coverage limits.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Group has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Group at
amounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated adjustments under reimbursement agreements. Those adjustments
are accrued on an estimated basis and are adjusted in future periods.

Capitation Revenue

The Group has agreements with various health maintenance organizations (HMOs) under which
the Group provides or arranges for medical care to members of HMOs in return for a monthly
payment per member (capitation revenue).
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reinsurance

The Group’s capitation agreements include reinsurance arrangements, which limit the Group’s
expenses on individual patients. Under the terms of the agreements, the Group will be
reimbursed a portion of the cost incurred for each patient’s annual physician services in excess of
a deductible outlined in each agreement. Amounts reimbursable from reinsurance contracts are
recorded as reinsurance receivable as outlined in each agreement. Amounts received under
reinsurance agreements related to claims paid to external parties are included as a reduction in
medical claims expense. Amounts reimbursed related to services provided by the Group are
reflected in capitation revenue.

Community Services Provided

The Group provides care to patients who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less
than established rates. Community services provided by the Group are excluded from net patient
service revenue.

The forgone charges related to community services provided by the Group to the DuPage
Community Clinic amounted to approximately $2,843,000 and $2,442,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments, specifically interest rate swaps, are reported in the consolidated balance
sheets at their respective fair values. The change in the fair value of those derivative instruments
is reflected in net income. '

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2010 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to the 2011 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on stockholders’ equity or net
income.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2010-24, Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries.
The provisions of ASU 2010-24 are intended to address the current diversity in practice related
to health care entities for medical malpractice claims and similar liabilities and their related
anticipated insurance recoveries. ASU 2010-24 clarifies that a health care entity should not net
insurance rccoveries against a related claim liability. Additionally, the amount of the claim
liability should be determined without consideration of insurance recoveries. This new guidarnce
was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, with early application
permitted. The Group adopted ASU 2010-24 for year ended December 31, 2011 (see Note 11).

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, Presentation and Disclosure for Bad Debts, and
the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities. The guidance requires
certain health care entities to reclassify in the statement of operations the provision for bad debts
associated with patient service revenue from an operating expense to a deduction from patient
service revenues (net of contractual allowances and discounts). Additionally, the guidance
requires enhanced disclosures about policies for recognizing revenue, assessing bad debts, and
qualitative and quantitative information about the changes in the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. The guidance is effective for the Group for the reporting period beginning on
January 1, 2012, with early adoption permitted. The Group is evaluating the impact of this
guidance on the consolidated financial statements.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Net Patient Service and Capitation Revenue

Net patient service and capitation revenue represents amounts received and the estimated net
realizable amounts due from patients and third-party payors for services rendered. The Group
provides certain medical care services to members of various HMOs. For these patients, the
Group recognizes prepaid capitation revenue each month during the period in which the Group is
obligated to provide medical care services, which is typically one year. Under the terms of these
capitation agreements, the Group is obligated to provide specified medically necessary services
to covered HMO members without regard to the underlying standard charges or actual costs of
such services. These arrangements include the Group’s assumption of financial responsibility for
the appropriate and effective utilization of hospital and other health care resources. Capitation
received under these agreements was approximately $94,000,000 and $94,400,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Estimates for incurred but not reported claims
expenses, included in medical claims payable, have been provided for based upon the Group’s
historical claims experience. During 2011 and 2010, changes in estimates relating to prior years’
medical claims payable liability increased net income by approximately $442,000 and
$1,348,000, respectively.

The Group has entered into reinsurance arrangements to provide reinsurance coverage for
patients in which the Group received capitation. The agreements provide protection to the Group
for a percentage of losses that exceed the $15,000 and $14,000 deductible per member per year
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Provisions have been made in the consolidated financial statements for contractual adjustments,
representing the difference between the standard charges for services and estimated payments to
be received from third-party payors. The Group’s concentration of credit risk related to the
accounts receivable is limited due to the diversity of patients and payors.

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at December 31 consisted of the
following:

2011 2010
Medicare 11% 16%
Medicaid 2 2
Marnaged care 27 24
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 24 22
Private pay and other 36 36

100% 100%
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Net Patient Service and Capitation Revenue (continucd)

The Group grants credit without collateral from its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payor agreements, The mix of net patient service revenue from
patients and third-party payors at December 31 was as follows:

2011 2010
Medicare 22% 20%
Medicaid 1 1
Managed care 31 31
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 41 42
Private pay and other 5 6

100% 100%

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex
and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

2011 2010

Land § 13,140,482 $ 13,140,482
Land improvements 5,434,067 5,434,067
Buildings 58,878,167 58,505,937
Equipment 108,027,187 95,512,247

185,479,903 172,592,733
Accumulated depreciation (78,798,205)  (66,982,521)

106,681,698 105,610,212
Construction-in-process 7,115,077 1,941,395

§$ 113,796,775 $ 107,551,607
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

5. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31:

2011 2010

Stratford mortgage payable to bank $ - $ 1,906,884
Lombard mortgage payable to bank 8,867,952 9,358,346
Rickert mortgage payable to bank — purchase 4,141,200 4,338,400
Rickert mortgage payable to bank — construction 3,016,872 3,157,737
430 Pennsylvania mortgage payable to bank 18,017,109 18,836,068
Capital lease obligations 130,233 233,071

34,173,366 37,830,506
Current maturities (1,702,203) (12,525,093)

$ 32,471,163 § 25,305,413

The carrying value of the debt approximates the fair value of the debt at December 31, 2011.

Proceeds from the Stratford mortgage loan were used to finance the purchase of DMG-RE
properties during 1999, pay certain fees and expenses associated with the acquisition, and retain
sufficient working capital. The mortgage loan was due in monthly principal payments of $11,713
plus interest. The balance of $1,801,470 was paid in full on October 4, 2011. The interest rate
was variable with an average rate of 1.84% for 2011 and 2.05% for 2010.

Proceeds from the Lombard mortgage loan werc used to finance the construction of the building
at 1801 S. Highland Ave. in Lombard. The mortgage loan is collateralized with the building,
which has a net book value of $16,900,000. The mortgage loan is due in monthly principal
payments of $40,866 plus interest with a maturity date of October 2016. The original maturity
date for this loan was October 2011. The mortgage loan was refinanced during 2011 to extend
the maturity date. The interest rate is variable with an average rate of 1.90% for 2011 and 2.07%
for 2010.

Procceds from the Rickert morigage loan were used to purchase the land at 808 Rickert in
Naperville. The mortgage loan is collateralized with the property, which has a net book value of
$9,600,000. The mortgage is due in monthly principal payments of $16,433 plus interest with a
maturity date of July 2017. The interest rate is variable with an average rate of 1.40% for 2011
and 1.44% for 2010.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

5. Long-Term Dcbt (continued)

Proceeds from the Rickert mortgage loan were used to finance the construction and build-out of
the building at 808 Rickert in Naperville. The mortgage loan is collateralized with the building,
which has a net book value of $9,600,000. The mortgage loan is due in monthly principal
payments of $11,739 plus interest with a maturity date of May 2018. The interest rate is variable
with an average rate of 1.40% for 2011 and 1.44% for 2010.

Proceeds from the 430 Pennsylvania mortgage loan were used to finance the construction of the
building at 430 Pennsylvania Avenue. in Glen Ellyn. The construction loan outstanding at
December 31, 2007, was converted into this mortgage loan during 2008. The mortgage loan is
collateralized with the building, which has a net book value of $24,500,000. The mortgage loan
is due in monthly principal payments of $§68,247 plus interest with a maturity date of June 2015.
The interest rate is variable with an average rate of 1.75% for 2011 and 1.79% for 2010.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group had a line of credit with a bank totaling
$10,500,000. The Group may advance from the line of credit at a rate equal to 61.35% of the
Group’s eligible accounts receivable balances. The Group repaid the outstanding balance on the
line of credit in 2010, There was no amount outstanding on the line of credit at December 31,
2011 and 20610, The line of credit’s maturity is December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2011, the Group had one letter of credit in the amount of $2,431,762 related to
the construction of the medical building, which reduces the amount available for borrowing on
the line of credit to $8,068,238. At December 31, 2011, none of the amount appropriated for
letter of credit was withdrawn, At December 31, 2010, the Group did not have a letter of credit.

Maturities of long-term debt, excluding capital lease obligations, for each of the next five years
ending December 31 are as follows:

2012 $ 1,647,419
2013 1,647,419
2014 1,647,419
2015 16,388,690
2016 7,244,443

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, amounted to approximately
$633,000 and $735,000, respectively.
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DuPage Medical Group, I.td. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Interest Rate and Basis Swaps

The Group has various derivative instruments to manage the exposure on interest rates and the
Group’s interest expense. Through the use of derivative financial instruments, the Group is
exposed to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform
under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of the derivative contract is
positive, the counterparty owes the Group, which creates credit risk to the Group. When the fair
value of the derivative contract is negative, the Group owes the counterparty, and there is no
credit risk to the Group at that point in time. The Group minimizes the credit risk in derivative
instruments by entering into transactions that require the counterparty to post collateral for the
benefit of the fair value of the derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value
of the financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. Swap management is
meant to be long term in nature, and any modifications to the program are reviewed for the long-
term costs and benefits. Management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of its
derivative position in the context of its total blended cost of capital.

The Group entered into an interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to make variable
payments based upon a market interest rate. The interest rate swap effectively fixed the total
interest rate paid on the DMG-RE mortgage of $5,417,190 at 6.07%. The swap ended in
October 2011, The fair valuc of the interest rate swap was $(128,384) at December 31, 2010, and
was reported in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The
change in the fair value of the interest rate swap is included in the consolidated statement of
operations,

In 2007, the Group entered into a second interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to
make variable payments based upon a market interest rate. The interest rate swap effectively
fixed the total interest rate paid on the DMG LLC mortgage of $4,930,000 at 6.785%. The fair
value of the interest ratc swap was $(862,892) and $(717,823) at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and is reported in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets, and the change in the fair value of the interest rate swap is included in the consolidated
statements of operations.

In 2008, the Group entered into a third interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to make
variable payments based upon a market interest rate. The interest rate swap effectively fixed the
total interest rate paid on the DMG LLC mortgage of $3,521,640 at 6.03%. The fair value of the
interest rate swap was $(558,982) and $(403,767) at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
and is reported in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, and the
change in the fair value of the interest rate swap is included in the consolidated statements of
operations.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Interest Rate and Basis Swaps (continued)

In 2009, the Group entered into a fourth interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to
make variable payments based upon a market interest rate. The intercst rate swap effectively
fixed the total interest rate paid on the DMG LLC mortgage of $10,202,870 at 4.30%. The fair
value of the interest rate swap was $(581,898) and $(368,963) at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and is reported in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets, and the change in the fair value of the interest rate swap is included in the consolidated
statements of operations.

The following is a summary of the outstanding interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2011:

Naotional
Origination Date Amounts Swap Position Maturity Date
07/25/07 $ 4,141,200 Pay fixed 07/13/17
06/20/08 3,016,872 Pay fixed 05/31/18
01/05/09 9,008,560 Pay fixed 06/30/15
Net position $ 16,166,632

The fair value of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments at December 31 is
as follows:

Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet
Type of Derivative Location 2011 2010
Interest rate contracts Noncurrent liabilities $ 2,003,772 § 1,618,937
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Interest Rate and Basis Swaps (continued)

The effects of the derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments on the
consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Classification of Amount of Loss Recognized in
Loss Recognized in Consolidated Net Income

Type of Derivative Consolidated Net Income 2011 2010

Interest expense $ 752,467 § 810,409
Interest rate contracts

Change in fair value of

interest ratc swaps § 384,835 § 537367
7. Leases

The Group leases certain office space and equipment under various noncancelable operating
leases. These leases contain various terms and typically provide for renewal at prevailing market
rates. Rental expense for operating leases amounted to approximately $13,198,000 and
$12,160,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable capital and operating leases, having an
initial term of more than one year at December 31, 2011, are as follows:

Capital Operating

Leases Lcases
2012 $ 57,409 § 5,588,087
2013 26,916 3,202,841
2014 26,916 993,976
2015 24,672 207,780
Total minimum lease payments 135,913 9,992,684
Interest (5419) —
Present value of minimum lease payments 3 130,494 § 9,992,684
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued})

7. Leases (continued)

Included in equipment are assets under capital leases, which aggregated $6,632,600 with
accumulated depreciation of $6,255,900 at December 31, 2011. The Group entered into three
new capital lease arrangements for 2010, totaling $158,175. There were no capital lease
arrangements entered into for 2011.

8. Employee Benefit and Retirement Plans

The Group maintains and contributes to a defined-contribution plan covering substantially all
employees and physicians. The employer contributions under the plan consist of an elective
profit-sharing contribution and a 401(k) matching contribution. Contribution expense under this
plan, which is included in both physician salaries, wages, and benefits and nonphysician salaries,
wages, and benefits, was approximately $8,715,000 and $8,353,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

9. Related-Party Transactions

During 2011 and 2010, the Group purchased and retired the stock of certain physicians who
departed from the organization in the amount of $88,000 and $55,000, respectively.

The Group leases medical office space from two different physician-owned partnerships or
trusts. The total rental expense related to these leases amounted to approximately $269,500 and
$237,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

PRELIMINARY AND TENTATIVE FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. Income Taxes

As a personal service corporation, the Group uses the cash basis method of accounting to prepare
its income tax filings. The use of the cash basis methed of accounting for tax return reporting
purposes results in a difference between financial statement accrual basis income and the
Group’s cash basis taxable income as reported on its tax returns.

The Group has deferred income taxes due to temporary differences between financial reporting
and tax reporting for certain assets and liabilities. Significant components of the Group’s
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010

Deferred tax assets:

Difference in accrual and cash basis book income $ 8415990 $ 4,917,850

Professional liability 515,189 534,615

Deferred compensation 384,981 404,923

Accrued expenses 270,176 63,782
Total deferred tax assets 9,586,336 5,921,210
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation (5,207,434)  (5,234,328)

Amortization (1,268,422) (1,209,451)

Prepaid expenses (9,438) (11,200)

Other liabilities (27,435) {12,805)
Total deferred tax liabilities (6,512,729)  (6,467,784)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ 3,073,607 $ (546,574)

Provisions for income taxes for the years ended December 31 consist of the following:

2011 2010
Current:
Federal $ 7,165,660 $ 4,541,550
State 2,040,227 1,052,949
9,205,887 5,594,499
Deferred (3,620,181) (1,488.060)
Total provision for income taxes $ 5,585,706 $ 4,106,439

PRELIMINARY AND TENTATIVE FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
1202-1328218 ‘i
Attechment 41-Exhibit 1

166




DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. Income Taxes (continued)

The effective income tax rate varies from the prevailing corporate income tax rate of 35%
primarily due to state taxes. The Group paid approximately $4,750,000 and $3,950,000 of
income taxes during 2011 and 2010, respectively.

11. Professional Liability Insurance

Effective August 15, 2011, the Group purchased professional liability insurance, on a claims-
made basis, with annual limits of $2,000,000 for three orthopedic spine surgeons, $1,000,000 for
all other physicians per occurrence, and $250,000,000 in the aggregate for the Group.

Effective August 15, 2010, the Group purchased professional liability insurance, on a claims-
made basis, with annual limits of $2,000,000 for three orthopedic spine surgeons, $1,000,000 for
all other physicians per occurrence, and $235,000,000 in the aggregate for the Group.

Effective August 15, 2009, the Group purchased professional liability insurance, on a claims-
made basis, with annual limits of $2,000,000 for three orthopedic spine surgeons, $1,000,000 for
all other physicians per occurrence, and $235,000,000 in the aggregate for the Group.

The Group has provided for losses in excess of insurance coverage. Estimated liabilities related
to losses in excess of insurance coverage amounted to approximately $3,800,000 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Management is not aware of any factors that would cause insurance expense to vary materially
from the amounts provided. Should the claims-made policy not be renewed or replaced with
equivalent insurance, claims based on occurrences during 2011 and prior, but reported
subsequently, may not be insured. Estimated reserves for incurred but not reported claims
expenses have been provided for based on the Group’s historical claims experience and
amounted to approximately $9,000,000 and $8,700,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Group adopted ASU 2010-24. As a result of this adoption, the
Group recognized professional liabilities insurance receivable and increased its professional
liabilities by $23,000,000 as of December 31, 2011. The guidance allows for but does not require
retrospective adoption of the amendment; however, management opted to adopt retrospectively
resulting to the recognition of professional liabilities insurance receivable and increase in
professional liabilities amounting to $22,000,000 as of December 31, 2010. This represents the
liability for known claims within the insurance coverage limits.

PRELIMINARY AND TENTATIVE FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

26

1202-1328218
Attachment 41-Exhibit 1




DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. Fair Valne Disclosures

The Group evaluates the carrying amounts of significant classes of financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets for disclosure of fair values for which it is practicable. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of thosc
instruments.

The Group adopted Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurement,
which establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements.
The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or
liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

» Level 1 —Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

+ Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instruments.

* Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement of the assets or liabilities.

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2011, by ASC 820 valuation hicrarchy.

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Assefs
Investments held for
deferred compensation $ 934987 § -~ 8 - § 934987
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ ~ § 2,003,772 § - § 2,003,772
PRELIMINARY AND TENTATIVE FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

12, Fair Value Disclosures (continued)

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2010, by ASC 820 valuation hierarchy,

Total
Level l Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Assets
Investments held for
deferred compensation $ 1018804 § - § - § 1,018,804
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ - $ 1,618,937 § - $ 1,618,937

Investments held for deferred compensation— The investments in deferred compensation
primarily consist of mutual fund investments and common stock for which identical quotes exist
on active exchanges. These securities are classified as Level 1,

Interest rate swaps— Derivative financial instruments consist solely of interest rate swap
agreements with interest rate terms that are observable based upon forward interest rate curves
and are therefore considered Level 2 inputs.

The credit risk adjustment related to the fair value of the swap agreements was an increase in
value in total of $55,324 and $46,197 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Group is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. Although
the outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes the
ultimate disposition of such matters will not have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial condition or operations.

In 2011, the Group entered into a construction contact related to the Lisle medical building. A
construction contract was signed on June 1, 2011 in the amount of $28,000,000. As of

December 31, 2011, $3,400,000 of construction had been completed on this contract, leaving a
remaining commitment of $24,600,000.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. Subsequent Events

The Group evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring subsequent to December 31,
2011 through April 19, 2012, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued. On March 30, 2012, the Group entered into a construction loan agreement with Bank of
America and Win Trust Bank to provide financing for the Lisle medical building.

The amount of the construction loan is $22,000,000 with an expiration date of March 30, 2013,
at which time the construction lean will convert to a permanent loan. The permanent loan will
mature on March 30, 2018. The interest rate on the loan is equal to the LIBOR rate. To date, no

draws have been requested on this loan,
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Chlcago, IL 60606-1787

Tel; +1 312 879 2000
Fax: +1 312 879 4000
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directars
DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DuPage Medical Group, Lid.
and Subsidiaries {Group) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements arc the responsibility of the Group’s management, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducled our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Group’s internal control over financial reporting, Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such apinion. An audit aiso includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasenable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Sanet + LLP

April 21, 2011
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assels
Current assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents

Patient accounts receivable, less allowances for uncollectible
accounts of §3,183,000 in 2010 and $3,241,000 in 2009

Reinsurance receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other
Tatal current assets

Property and equipment, net
Coodwill

Deferred compensation and other
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders® equity
Current liabilities;
Accounts payable
Accrued expenscs
Accrued payroll and benefits
Due to third-party payor
Medicat claims payable
Borrowings under line-of-credit agreement
Current maturities of long-term debt
Payable to physicians
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term deby, less current maturitics
Fair value of interest rate swaps
Deferred compensation
Deferred income 1ax, net
Professicnal liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ cquity:

Commaon stock {31 par value; $500,000 and $230,000 authorized shares at
Dececember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively; 235,000 and 217,000 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively)

Additional paid-in capital
Noncontrelling interest
Retained eamnings

Totnl stockholders’ equity

Total Habilitics and stockholders® cquity

See notes to consclidated financial statements.

1011-1210429
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December 31

2010 2009
5 10,407,596 % 3,797,828
25,350,256 24,529,661
3,502,124 928,735
2,442,106 1,711,041
6,651,700 6,615,508
48,353,782 37,582,773
107,551,607 106,817,665
3,606,430 3,606,430
1,557,070 1,574.890
§ 161,068,889 % 149}581!758
s 6,719,754 % 4,451,703
2,673,294 3,231,860
14,896,588 13,146,773
5,474,271 5,389,309
3,000,600 3,623,000
- 1,500,000
12,525,093 1,878,454
11,411,217 8,685,268
56,700,217 41,906,367
215,305,413 37,687,929
1,618,937 1,081,570
1,018,804 1,193,464
546,574 2,034,634
§2.500.000 12,275,324
97,689,945 96,179,288
235,000 217,000
2,750,000 2,570,000
1,018,149 943,272
59,375,795 49,672,198
63,378,944 53,402,470

$ 161068889 § 149581753
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues:
Net patient service revenue
Capitation revenue
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Physician salaries, wages, and benefits
Nonphysician salaries, wages, and benefits
Medical claims
Rent and utilities
Medical supplies and other
Professional fees and purchased services
Insurance
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Interest
Depreciation

Total expenses

Other gains and (losses):
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Total other gains and losses
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Consolidated net income

Less net income attributed to noncontrolling interest

Nct income attributed to the Group

See notes ta consolidated financial statements.

1011-1210429
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Year Ended December 31

2010 2009
$ 261,579,606 $ 236,316,995
94,433,682 86,300,394
6,981,588 5,267,362
362,994,876 327,884,751
117,921,844 102,660,582
98,150,032 91,200,096
16,801,585 17,513,646
32,782,908 31,140,075
41,891,170 36,302,002
14,558,706 12,607,305
5,309,406 5,178,579
8,010,157 6,360,749
1,545,488 1,743,557
11,174,309 10,785,110
348,145,605 315,491,701
(537,367) 741,153
(537367) 741,153
14,311,904 13,134,203
4,106,439 5,080,943
10,205,465 8,053,260
(501,868)  (345,033)
S 9703597 § 17.708.227
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Balance at Janovary 1, 2009
Net income
Noncontrolling intercst net income
Partnership distribution
Purchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock
Balance at Deccmber 31, 2009
Net income
Noncontrolling interest net income
Parinership distribution
Purchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock
Balance at December 31, 2010

Addilional Total
Common Paid-In Retained  Noncontrolling Stockholders®
Stock Capital Eavuings Interest Equity
$ 195000 $2350,000 $41963971 § 681,958 § 45,190,929
- - 7,708,227 - 7,708,227
- - - 345,033 345,033
- - - (83,719) {83,719)
(2,000) (24,000) - - {22,000)
24,000 240,000 - - 264,000
217,000 2,570,000 49,672,198 943,272 53,402,470
- - 9,703,597 - 9,703,597
- - - 501,868 501,868
- - - {426,991) (426,991)
{5.000) (50,000} - - (55,000)
23,000 230,000 - - 253,000

$§ 235000 $£2.750,000 $59.375795 %

See notes to consolidated financial sratements.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating activities
Net income attributed to the Group
Net income attributed to the noncontrolling interest
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Net loss on sales of property and equipment
Change in fair valuec of intcrest rate swap
Deferred income taxes
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Changes in opcrating asscts and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable
Reinsurance receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Inventory
Dueg to third-party payors
Accounts payable, accrued, and other current liabilities
Medical claims payable
Payable to physicians
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities
Cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Distributions to noncontrolling interest
Payments of debt and capital fease obligations
Purchase of common stock

Proceeds from issuance of stock

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See nofey fo consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31

2010

2009

$ 9,703,597 § 7,708,227

501,868 345,033
11,174,309 10,785,110
27,507 77,540
537,367 (741,153)
(1,488,060) 3,618,994
8,010,157 6,360,749
(8,830,752)  (7,582,368)
(2,573,389) 87,808
(36,192)  (2,082,482)
(731,065) 129,701
84,962 984,224
3459300  (1,689,810)
(623,000)  (287,843)
2,725,949 1,484,858
67,836 355,609
22,010,394 19,554,197

(11,777,583)

(11,716,741)

(11,777,583)  (11,716,741)
(426,991) (83,719)
(3,394,052)  (5,987,710)
(55,000) (22,000)
253,000 264,000
(3,623,043)  (5,829,429)
6,609,768 2,008,027
3,797,828 1,789,801

$ 10,407,596 § 3.797828
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. (the Group) is a multi-specialty physician practice that provides a
broad range of outpatient services. The main office is in Glen Ellyn, llinois, with 41 sateliite
offices throughout the western suburbs of Chicago, predominantly DuPage County, Hlinois. The
Group was incorporated as a medical corporation in the state of lllinois in July 1968 and is a for-
profit, taxable corparation. The Group has 301 physicians, of which 235 are sharcholders, at
December 31, 2010.

Included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are all wholly owned and controlled
subsidiaries. The Group’s subsidiary corporations arc DMG Real Estate, LLC (LLC), DMG Real
Estate Holdings, LLC (REH), DMG Surgery Center, LLC (Surgery Center), and DMG Pain
Management Surgery Center, LLC (Pain ASC).

LLC owns and operates medical office buildings in DuPage County.

The Surgery Center was formed in 2002 as a surgery center operation. Effective December 1,
2005, the Surgery Center amended and restated its operating agreement and sold a 12.5%
ownership interest to a minority shareholder.

REH was formed in 2004 to acquire land and construct a surgery center facility.

Pain ASC was formed in 2009 as a pain management surgery cenler. Operations will begin in
2011.

All significant intercompany balances have been eliminated in conselidation.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) rcquires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although
estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time that the cstimates are made, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

101)-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and Cash Eguivalcnts

Cash and cash equivalents include currency on-hand, demand deposits with banks or other
financial institutions, and short-term investments with maturitics of 90 days or less from the date

of purchase.
Patient Accounts Receivahle

Patient accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. The Group maintains allowances
for uncollectible accounts for cstimated losses resulting from a payor’s inability to make
payments on accounts. The Group evaluates the collectibility of its accounts rcceivable based
upon the length of time the receivable is outstanding and the anticipated future uncollcctible
amounts based on historical experience. Accounts are wriiten off when collection efforts have

been exhausted.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of pharmaceuticals, are valued at the lower of cost or market,
with cost determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Provisions for depreciation of property and equipment
are computed using the straight-line method based vpon the estimated vseful lives of the related
assets, ranging from 10 1o 40 years for land improvements and buildings and two to seven years
for equipment. Equipment under capital lease obligations is amortized on the straight-line
method over the shorter period of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment.
Such amortization is included in depreciation expense in thc accompanying consolidated
financial statements. Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction
of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continved)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill is assessed for impairment on an annual basis through the comparison of the fair value
of the respective reporting unit with its carrying value. Fair value is determined primarily based
upon valuation studies performed by the Group, which consider discounted cash flows, physician
compensation, and future earnings. Valuation analysis requires significant judgments and
estimates to be made by management. Changes in market conditions, among other factors, may
have an impact on these estimates, which may require future adjustments to the carrying value of

goodwill.
Due to Third-Party Payor

Due to third-party payor represents the liability for funds received by the Surgery Center that are
to be paid back to Blue Cross/Blue Shield as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. Blue Cross/Blue
Shield pays the Surgery Center invoiccs at gross amounts and invoices the Surgery Center for the
difference between the gross charges and the contracted rate,

Medical Claims Payable

Medical claims payable represents the estimated liability for claims expenses reported but not
paid and for claims incurred but not reported to the Group for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009. Liabilities for unpaid claims and claims incurred but not reported are actuarially
determined. The estimates used in determining the Habilities are subject to the effects of trends in
claim severity and frequency. Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates,
management believes that the liabilities for unpaid claims are adequate. The esiimates are
continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information
becomes known; such adjustments are included in current operations.

Noncontrolling [nterest

The Group's noncontrolling interest in the consolidated statements of operations represents the
noncontrolling sharcholder’s share of the Surgery Center’s operations., The noncontrolling
interest in the consolidated balance sheets reflects the original investment by a noncontrolling
shareholder in the Surgery Center subsidiary, along with the noncontrolling interest’s sharc of
the Surgery Center’s subsequent operations,

1011-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Asset Impairment

The Group considers whether indicators of impairment are present and performs the necessary
tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is appropriate. Impairment write-downs are
recognized in operating expenses at the lime the impairment is identified. There was no
impairment of long-lived assets in 2010 and 2009.

Payable to Physicians

Payable to physicians represents the amount of calculated compensation based upon the
shareholder compensation formula that has not been paid as of the end of a given reporting
period. These amounts are calculated and distributed 1o individual physicians on a monthly basis.

General and Professional Liability

The provision for self-insured general and professional liabifity claims includes estimates of the
vltimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Group has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Group at
amounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated adjustments under reimbursement agreements. Those adjustments
are accrued on an estimated basis, and are adjusted in future periods,

Capitation Revenue

The Group has agreements with various health maintenance organizations (HMO) under which
the Group provides or arranges for medical care to members of the organizations in return for a
monthly payment per member (capitation revenue).

101 1-3210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Rcinsurance

The Group’s capitation agreements include reinsurance arrangements, which limit the Group’s
expenscs on individual patients. Under the terms of the agreements, the Group will be
reimbursed a portion of the cost incurred for each patient’s annual physician services in excess of
a deductible outlined in each agreement. Amounts reimbursable from reinsurance contracts are
recorded as reinsurance receivable as outlined in cach agreement. Amounts received under
reinsurance agreements related to claims paid to external parties arc included as a reduction in
medical claims expense. Amounts reimbursed related to services provided by the Group are
reflected in capitation revenue,

Community Services Provided

The Group provides care to patients who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less
than established rates. Community services provided by the Group are excluded from nct paticnt
scrvice revenue,

The forgone charges related to community services provided by the Group to the DuPage
Community Clinic amounted to $2,442,000 and $2,302,000 for the vears ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments, specifically interest rate swaps, are reported in the consolidated balance
sheets at their respective fair values. The change in the fair value of those derivative instruments
is reflected in net income.

1011-12) 0429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2010-24,
Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries. The provisions of ASU
2010-24 are intended to address the current diversity in practice related to health care entities for
medical malpractice claims and similar liabilities and their related anticipated insurance
recoveries. ASU 2010-24 clarifies that a health care entity should not net insurance recoveries
against a related claim liability. Additionally, the amount of the claim liability should be
determined without consideration of insurance recoveries. This new guidance is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, with early application permitted. The Group is
currently evaluating the impact to the consolidated financial statement disclosures.

3. Net Patient Service and Capitation Revenue

Net patient service and capitation revenue regpresents amounts received and the estimated nct
realizable amounts due from patients and third-party payors for scrvices rendered. The Group
provides certain medical care services to members of various HMOs. For these patients, the
Group recognizes prepaid capitation revenue each month during the period in which the Group is
obligated to provide medical care services, which is typically one year. Under the terms of these
capitation agreements, the Group is obligated to provide specified medically necessary services
to covered HMO members without regard to the underlying standard charges or actual costs of
such services. These arrangements include the Group's assumption of financial responsibility for
the appropriate and effective utilization of hospital and other healthcare resources, Capitation
received under these agreements was $94,400,000 and $86,300,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, Estimates for incurred but not reported claims
expenses, inciuded in medical claims payable, have been provided for based upon the Group’s
historical claims experience. During 2010 and 2009, changes in estimates relating to prior years’
medical claims payable liability increased net income by approximately $1,348,000 and
$944,000, respectively,

The Group has entered into reinsurance arrangements to provide reinsurance coverage for
patients in which the Group received capitation. The agreements provide protection to the Group
for a percentage of losses that exceed the $14,000 and $13,000 deductible per member per year
for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

1011-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

3. Net Patient Service and Capitation Revenue (continved)

Provisions have been made in the consolidated financial statements for contractual adjustments,
representing the difference between the standard charges for services and estimated payments to
be received from third-party payors. The Group’s concentration of credit risk related to the
accounts receivable is fimited due to the diversity of patients and payors.

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at December 31 consisted of the
following:

2010 2009
Medicare 16% 12%
Medicaid 2 2
Managed care 24 29
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 22 20
Private pay and other 36 37

100% 100%

The Group grants credit without collateral from its paticnts, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of net patient service revenue from
patients and third-party payors at December 31 was as follows:

2010 2009
Medicare 20% 18%
Medicaid 1 1
Managed care 31 34
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 42 40
Private pay and other 6 )

100% 100%

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex
and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.

1011-121042¢
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

4. Property and Equipmcnt

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

Land

Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Construction-in-process

5. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 3):

Stratford mortgage payable to bank

Lombard martgage payable to bank

Rickert mortgage payable to bank — purchase
Rickert mortgage payable to bank — construction
430 Pennsylvania mortgage payablc to bank
Capital lease obligations

Current maturities

10111210429
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

2010 2009
$ 13,140,482 $ 13,140,482
5,434,067 5424302
58,505,937 58,328,848
95,512,247 85,261,286
172,592,733 162,154,918
(66,982,521)  (55,979,884)
105,610,212 106,175,034
1,941,395 642,631
$ 107,551,607 $ 106,817,665

2010 2009
$ 1,906,384 § 2,047,436
9,358,346 9,848,740
4,338,400 4,535,600
3,157,737 3,298,603
18,836,068 19,655,028
233,071 180,976
37,830,506 39,566,383
(12,525,093)  (1,878,454)
$ 25305413 § 37,687,929

The carrying value of the debt approximates the fair value of the debt at December 31, 2010.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Proceeds from the Stratford mortgage loan were used to finance the purchase of DMG-RE
properties during 1999, pay certain fees and expenses associated with the acquisition, and retain
sufficient working capital. The mortgage loan is due in monthly principal payments of $11,713
plus interest with a maturity date of October 2011, The interest rate is variable with an average
rate of 2.05% for 2010, and 2.42% for 2009.

Proceeds from the Lombard mortgage loan were used to finance the construction of the building
at 1801 S. Highland Ave. in Lombard. The mortgage loan is collateralized with the building,
which has a net book value of §16,900,000. The mortgage loan is duc in monthly principal
payments of $40,866 plus interest with a maturity date of October 2011). The intercst rate is
variable with an average rate of 2.07% for 2010, and 2.13% for 2009.

Proceeds from the Rickert mortgage loan were used to purchase the land at 808 Rickert in
Naperville. The mortgage loan is collateralized with the property, which has a net book value of
$9,600,000. The mortgage is due in monthly principal payments of $16,433 plus interest with a
maturity datc of July 2017. Payments commenced in January 2008. The interest rate is variable
with an average rate of |,44% for 2010, and 1.53% for 2009.

Proceeds from the Rickert mortgage loan were used to finance the construction and buildout of
the building at 808 Rickert in Naperville. The mortgage loan is collateralized with the building,
which has a nct book value of $9,600,000. The mortgage loan is due in monthly principal
payments of $11,739 plus interest with a maturity date of May 2018. The interest rate is variable
with an average rate of 1,44% for 2010, and 2.64% for 2009.

Proceeds from the 430 Pennsylvania mortgage loan were used to finance the construction of the
building at 430 Pennsylvania Ave. in Glen Ellyn. The construction loan outstanding at
December 31, 2007, was converted into this mortgage loan during 2008. The mortgage loan is
collateralized with the building, which has a net book value of $24,500,000. The mortgage loan
is due in monthly principal payments of $68,247 plus interest, which started in January 2009
with a maturity date of June 2015, The interest rate is variable with an average rate of 1.79% for
2010, and 2.04% for 2009,

IN]1-1210420
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

§. Long-Term Debt (continued)

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Group had a line of crcdit with a bank totaling
$10,500,000. The Group may advance from the linc of credit at a rate equal to 61.35% of the
Group’s eligible accounts reccivable balances. The Group repaid the outstanding balance on the
line of credit in 2010. There was no amount cutstanding on the line of credit at December 31,
2010. The amount outstanding on the line of credit as of December 31, 2009 was $1,500,000.
The interest rate is variable with an average rate of 4.01% paid monthly. The line of credit
cxpired on November 30, 2010, On April 21, 2011, the Group signed a loan agreement with the
bank to extend the line of credit through December 31, 2012. The loan agreement was dated
effective December 31, 2010, but will be executed on April 29, 2011,

At December 31, 2010, the Group did not have a letter of credit. At December 31, 2009, the
Group had one letter of credit in the amount of $280,000. No amounts were drawn on the letter
of credit.

Maturities of long-term debt, excluding capital lease obligations, for each of the next five years
ending December 31 are as follows:

2011 $ 12,422,255
2012 1,157,025
2013 1,157,025
2014 1,157,025
2015 15,898,296

Interest paid during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, amounted to $735,000 and
$909,000, respectively.

1017-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Interest Rate and Basis Swaps

The Group has various derivative instruments to manage the exposure on intcrest rates and the
Group's interest expense. Through the use of derivative financial instruments, the Group is
exposed to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform
under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of the derivative contract is
positive, the counterparty owes the Group, which creates credit risk to the Group. When the fair
value of the derivative contract is negative, the Group owes the counterparty, and there is no
credit risk to the Group at that point in time. The Group minimizes the credit risk in derivative
instruments by entering into transactions that require the counterparty to post collateral for the
benefit of the fair value of the derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value
of the financial instrument that results from a change in interest rates. Swap management is
meant to be long-term in nature, and any modifications to the program are reviewed for the long-
term costs and bencfits. Management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of its
derivative position in the context of its total blended cost of capital,

The Group entercd into an inlerest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to make variable
payments based upon a market interest rate. The interest rate swap effectively fixed the total
interest rate paid on the DMG-RE mortgage of $5,417,190 at 6.07%. The fair value of the
interest rate swap was $(128,384) and $(227,815) at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and is reported in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The
change in the fair value of the interest ratc swap is included in the consolidated stalements of

operations,

In 2007, the Group entered into a second interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to
make variable payments based upon a market interest rate. The interest rate swap effectively
fixed the total interest rate paid on the DMG LLC mortgage of $4,930,000 at 6.785%. The fair
value of the interest rate swap was $(717,823) and $(585,087) at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and is reported in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets, and the change in the fair value of the interest ratc swap is included in the consolidated
statements of operations.

In 2008, the Group cntered into a third interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to make
variable payments based upon a market interest rate, The interest rate swap cffectively fixed the
tolal interest rale paid on the DMG LLC mortgage of $3,521,640 at 6.03%. The fair value of the
interest rate swap was $(403,767) and $(284,656) at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivcly,
and is reported in noncurrent liabilitics in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, and the
change in the fair value of the interest rate swap is included in the consolidated statements of

operations.

1011-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Interest Rate and Basis Swaps (continued)

In 2009, the Group entcred into a fourth interest rate swap in which a counterparty agreed to
make variable payments based upon a market interest rate, The interest rate swap effectively
fixed the total interest rate paid on the DMG LLC mortgage of $10,202,870 at 4.30%. The (air
value of the intercst rate swap was $(368,963) and $15,988 at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and is reported net in noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheel, and the change in the fair value of the interest rate swap is included in the
consolidated statement of operations.

The following is a summary of the outstanding interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2010:

Origination Date  Notional Amounts

Swap Position

Maturity Date

11/23/04 $ 3,995,503 Pay Fixed
07725107 4,338,400 Pay Fixed
06/20/08 3,157,737 Pay Fixed
01/05/09 9,418,034 Pay Fixed

Net position $ 20,909,674

10/31/11
07/13/17
05/31/18
06/30/15

The fair value of derivative instroments not designated as hedging instruments at December 31 is

as follows:

Type of Derivative

Liability Derivatives

Balance Sheet
Location

2010

2009

Interest rate condracts

10111210429

Noncurrent liabilities $ 1,618,937  $ 1,081,570
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Interest Rate and Basis Swaps (continued)

The effects of the derivative instruments not designaled as hedging instruments on the
consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Amount of Loss (Gain)

Classification of (Gain) Recognized in
Loss Recognized in Consolidated Net Income
Type of Derivative Consolidated Net Income 2010 2049
Interest expensc $ 810,409 § 834,865

Intercst rate contracts
Change in fair value of
interest rate swaps $ 537367 $ (741,153)

7. Leases

The Group leases certain office space and equipment under various noncancelable operating
leases. These leases contain various terms and typically provide for rencwal at prevailing market
rates. Rental expense for operating leases amounted to $12,160,000 and $11,506,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable capital and operating leases, having an
initiat term of more than one year at December 31, 2010, are as follows:

Capital Operating

L.eases Leases
2011 $ 109,213 § 6,487,353
2012 57,409 4,819,103
2013 26,916 2,725,682
2014 26,916 907,584
2015 24,672 1,115,363
Total minimum lease payments 245,126 16,055,085
Interest (12,056) -
Present value of minimum fease payments $ 233,070 § 16,055,085

1G11-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. Leases (continued)

Included in equipment are assets under capital leases, which aggregated $6,751,982 with
accumulated deprecciation of $6,194,023 at December 31, 2010. The Group entered into three
new capital lease arrangements for 2010, totaling $158,175. There were capital Icase
arrangements cntered into 2009, totaling $186,776.

8. Employee Benefit and Retirement Plans

The Group maintains and contributes to a defined-contribution plan covering substantially all
employees and physicians. The employer contributions under the plan are comprised of an
elective profit sharing contribution and a 401(k) matching contribution. Contribution expense
under this plan, which is included in both physician salaries, wages, and benefits, and
nonphysician salaries, wages, and benefits was approximately $8,353,000 and $7,723,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

9. Related-Party Transactions

During 2010 and 2009, the Group purchascd and retired the stock of certain physicians who
departed from the organization in the amount of $55,000 and $22,000, respectively.

The Group Icases medical office space from two different physician-owned partnerships or
trusts. The total rental expense related to these leases amounted to approximately $237,000 and
$225,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

10. Income Taxes

As a personal service corporation, the Group uses the cash basis method of accounting to prepare
its income tax filings. The use of the cash basis method of accounting for tax return reporting
purposes results in a difference between financial statement accrual basis incomc and the
Group’s cash basis laxable income as reported on its tax returns.
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. Income Taxcs (continued)

The Group has deferred income taxes due to temporary differences between financial reporting
and tax reporting for certain assets and liabilities. Significant components of the Group's
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets:

Difference in accrual and cash basis book income $ 4917890 § 3,684,760

Professional liability 534,615 546,173

Deferred compensation 404,923 474,342

Accrued expenses 63,782 (164,480)
Total deferred tax assets 5,921,210 4,540,795
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation (5,234,328)  (5,344,346)

Amortization (1,209,451)  (1,194,533)

Prepaid expenses (11,200) 10,723)

Other Nabiltties (12,805) (25,827)
Total deferred tax liabilities (6,467,784) (6.575,429)
Net deferred tax liability $ (546,574) § (2,034,634)

Provisions for income taxes consist of the following:
2010 2009

Current:

Federal § 4,541,550 $ 1,030,927

State 1,052,949 431,022

5,594,499 1,461,949

Deferred (1,488,060) 3,618,994
Total provision for income taxes $ 4,106439 § 5,080,543

The effective income tax rate varies from the prevailing corporate income tax ratc of 35%
primarily due to state taxes. The Group paid $3,950,000 and $2,000,000 of income taxes during

2010 and 2009, respectively.

1011-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

11. Professional Liability Insurance

Effective August 15, 2010, the Group purchased professional liability insurance, ont a claims-
madc basis, with annual limits of $2,000,000 for three orthopedic spine surgeons, $1,000,000 for
all other physicians per occurrence, and $235,000,000 in the aggregate for the Group.

Effective August 15, 2009, the Group purchased professional liability insurance, on a claims-
made basis, with annual limits of $2,000,000 for three orthopedic spine surgeons, $1,000,000 for
all other physicians per occurrence, and $235,000,000 in the aggregate for the Group.

Effective August 15, 2008, the Group purchased professional liability insurance, on a claims-
made basis, with annual limits of $2,000,000 for three orthopedic spine surgeons, $1,000,000 for
all other physicians per occurrence, and $190,000,000 in the aggregate for the Group.

The Group has provided for losses in excess of insurance coverage and for losses resulting from
the liquidation of the Group’s previous insurance carrier. Estimated liabilities related to losses in
excess of insurance coverage amounted to approximately $3,800,000 at December 31, 2010 and

2009.

Management is not aware of any factors that would cause insurance expense to vary matcrially
from the amounts provided. Should the claims-made policy not be renewed or replaced with
equivalent insurance, claims based on occurrences during 2010 and prior, but reported
subsequently, may not be insured. Estimated reserves for incurred but not reported claims
expenses have been provided for based on the Group’s historical claims experience and
amounted to approximately $8,700,000 and $8,475,000 at December 31, 2010 and 2009,

respeclively,

1011-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. Fair Value Disclosures

The Group evaluates the carrying amounts of significant classes of financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets for disclosure of fair values for which it is practicable. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of those

tnstruments.

The Group adopted Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements, which establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation
of an assct or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

* Level | —Inputs to the valvation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

» Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, cither
directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instruments.

e Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement of the asscts or liabilities. '

The following table presents financial assets and iabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2010, by ASC Topic 820 valuation hierarchy.

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Assefs
Investment held for deferred
compensation $ 1,018,804 § - % - $ 1,018,804
Liabilities
Intercst ratc swaps h) - $1,618937 3 — S 1,618,937
1011-1210429
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DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. Fair Value Disclosures (continued)

The following table presents financial assets and Habilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2009, by ASC Topic 820 valuation hierarchy.

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Assets
Investment held for deferred
compensation $1,193464 § - 3 - $1,193,464
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps Y — $ 1,081,570 % - $ 1,081,570

Investments held for deferred compensation — The investments in deferred compensation are
comprised of mutual fund investments for which identical quotes exist on active exchanges.
These securities are classified as Level 1.

interest rate swaps— Derivative financial instruments consist solely of interest rate swap
agreements with interest rate terms that are observable based upon forward interest rate curves
and are therefore considered Level 2 inputs.

The credit risk adjustment related to the fair vatue of the four swap agreements was an increase
in value in total of $46,197 and $12,305 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Group is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. Although
the outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, management belicves the
ultimate disposition of such matters will not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial condition or operations.

14. Subsequent Events

The Group cvaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring subscquent to December 31,
2010 through April 21, 2011, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
During this period, there were no subsequent events requiring recognition or disciosure in the
consolidated financial statements.

10E1-1210429
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Attachment 41-Exhibit 2
Consolidated Financial Statements of
DMG Real Estate, LLC
From 2009 — 2011

Please Note: The consolidated financial statements included in Attachment 41-Exhibit 2 are those for
both DMG Real Estate, LLC and DMG Real Estate Holdings, LLC. They are the figures upon which the
viability ratios, discussed in Attachment 41, are based.
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DuPage Medical Group
Consolidated Income Statement (LLC & REH)
For Fiscal Years 2009-2011

2009 2010 2011
Revenues
Property Rental Revenue 6,302,872 6,293,240 6,135,170
Operating Revenue - 27,717 126,674
Total Revenua 6,302,872 6,320,957 6,261,844
Operating Expenses
Depreciation Expense 1,714,812 1,731,431 1,739,775
Consulting Expense 30,045 30,207 -
Legal Expense 5,700 28,837 -
Licensing 809 1,184 -
Interest Expense - Loans 797,242 696,332 807,517
Interest Expense - Swap 834,865 810,409 752,467
Total Operating Expenses 3,383,273 3,298,400 3,099,760
Net Operating Income 2,919,599 3,022,657 3,162,084
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DuPage Medical Group

Consolidated Balance Sheet (LLC & REH)

For Fiscal Years 2009-2011

Asseots

Current Assets:
Notes Recslvable - Current Portion

Other Assets:
Property & Equipment

Total Assets

Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity

Current Liabllities
Accrued Expenses
Debts Payable - Current Portion

Non-Current Liabilities
Debts Payable - LT Portion

Total Liabilities
Shareholder's Equity

Partner's Equity
Investor investment
Retained Earnings

Total Shareholder's Equity

Total Llabilities & Shareholders Equity

2009 2010 2011
{22,331,508) (20,072,936} (23,385,212)
71,401,543 70,318,325 74,252,108
49,070,035 50,243,389 50,866,896

158,011 96,779 1,112,504
1,787,971 12,422,255 1,647,419
37,597,436 25,175,181 32,385,714
39,543,417 37,694,215 35,155,637
1,700,000 1,700,000 4,700,000
(68,000) {68,000) (68,000)
7,894,617 10,817,174 14,079,258
9,626,617 12,549,174 15,711,258
—_— ]
49,070,035 50,243,389 50,866,896
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SECTION X = ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY
Criterion 1110.140 - Economi¢ Feasibility
A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash and
equivalents, including investrment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and
funded depreciation; or
2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:
A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for hospitals and
1.5 times for all other facilities; or
B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the existing
investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-
day period.

See Attachment 42-Exhibit 1 for a signed, notarized statement from a representative of DMG
that {1) borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments and the existing
investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day
period and (2} that the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no reguired mortgage, access
to additional indebtedness, term {years), financing costs and other factors;

3} That the project involves {in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that the
expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing a new
facility or purchasing new equipment.

See Attachment 42-Exhibit 1 for a signed, notarized statement from a representative of DMG
that {1) borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments and the existing
investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day
period and (2} that the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net

cost available.
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C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost and
square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the following format

(insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B c [ o E | F G H Total Cost
Department Cost/Square Foot Gross 5q. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft, Const. 5 Mod. § (G+H)
New Maod. New  Circ. Mod. Circ. (AxC) (BxE)
Imaging $291 | N/A | 14,138 N/A N/A $4,114,158 | N/A $4,114,158
Primary $291 N/A 13,329 N/A N/A $3,878,739 N/A $3,878,739
Care, ete.*
Phys. Off. 5291 N/A 15,593 N/A N/A $4,537,563 N/A $4,537,563
{Gen.) *
Rad. Onc. $291 | N/A 5,655 N/A N/A $1,645,605 N/A 51,645,605
Linear 5524 | N/A 965 N/A N/A $505,660 N/A $505,660
Accelerator
Chemo & $291 | N/A 12,927 N/A N/A $3,761,757 N/A 43,761,757
Infusion
Phys. Off, $291 | N/A | 11,728 N/A N/A 93,412,848 | N/A 53,412,848
(Onc.} *
Contingency Included N/A N/A N/A N/A Included in N/A Included in
above Total Total
TOTALS N/A 74,335 N/A N/A 521,856,330 N/A $21,856,330

*Considered non-clinical

See Attachment 42-Exhibit 2 for documentation as to the cost/square foot for the building as a whole

and the premium cost/square foot for the buildout necessary to house the linear accelerator.

D. Projected Operating Costs

The projected direct annual operating costs are delineated in the table below:

OPERATING COSTS

Annual Principal Payments (25 Years) $911,173.12
Average Interest at 7% $797,276.48
Estimated Real Estate Taxes $500,000.00
Building Operating Expenses $918,750.00
TOTAL $3,127,200.58
Total Patient Visits = 86,700
Operating Cost/Visit = $36.07

ATTACHMENT 42
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E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

CAPITAL COSTS
Furniture & Fixtures $700,000
IT, Phones & Infrastructure $400,000
TOTAL 51,100,000
Total Patient Visits = 86,700
Capital Cost/Visit = $12.69
ATTACHMENT 42
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DuPage Medical Group

TADMINISTRA‘T‘IVE OFFICE HOONE 3o Sircer, Swrte 300, Dowmers Grow, ILGOSIS + o (30 469 9200

May 25, 2012

Dale Galassie, Chairman

Ilinois Health Facilities and
Service Review Board

525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor
Springfield, Illinois 62761

Dear Chairman Galassie,

I hereby attest that, for the DuPage Medical Group Medical Office Building project, borrowing is
less costly than the liquidation of existing investments and that the existing investments being
retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day pertod.

Furthermore, 1 certify that, as this project will require debt financing, the selected form of debt
financing will be at the lowest net cost available.

Respectfully,

Dennis Fine, COO
DuPage Mexdical Group

Notarization: 2t
Subscribed-and-swomn to before me this ﬁ? =" dayof ]\’7’0‘ y , 2012,

7 / S
<__-=_ /

Signature of Notary
STATE S SrLiandots

CounTy. DUPARE.

SEAL

CFFICIAL SEAL

Notary Public - State of linols
My Commission Expires Aug 30, 2014

ﬁ 1 Attachment 42-Exhibit 1




Attachment 42-Exhibit 2
Cost/Square Foot Documentation

E] Leopardo CONSTRUCTION DesicN - Buitp DEevELOPMENT

Januvary 25, 2012

Mr. Dennis Fine

DuPage Medical Group

I 100G West 31st Street

Suite 300

Downers Grove, llinois 60515

RE: LCI#11-3423
DuPage Medieal Group Oncology Institute
Linear Accelerator Premium Cost

Dear Dennis:

As you have requested, we have analyzed the cost to build Lincar Accelerator room #W121 and compared this
cost against the average construction cost for the rest of the building.

There is a premium of approximately $225,319 to build Linear Accelerator room #W121 as compared to the
average cost of building other spaces within the building,

A cost summary is attached for your reference.

Please call with any questions.
Respectfully,
Leopardo Construction

Michael Mastin
Project Manager

Attachment 42-Exhibit 2

5200 Prairie Stone Parkway « Holman Estates, IL 6Tﬂ§47‘783.3000 * www,leopardo.com v GREEN




Unear

Accelerator

Wizl

965 s.f,
DIVISION 1 - il 1
GCIGR ‘ 512,750
DIVISION 2 : Earthwork — i
22000 Excavatlon/Backfill ‘ 316,402 I
DIVISION 3 = Concrete .
03300 Concrete Placement | $245, 520
DIVISION & - Wood 8 Plastl ST -
DE100 Carpentry 52,855
06400 MlllworldPIastl.c Laminates $21,905
DIVISION T - Thermal & Molsture Protection
07111 Waterproofing $12,995
DIVISION 8 - Deors S Windews  ~ 7~ - N
0B110 Metal Doors & Frames MNfA
08311 Miscell Glazing NIA
08300 LINAC Doors $33.947
DIVISION 9 - Finish _' —
02006 Plaster $15,300
05252 Metal Stud & Drywsll $25,124
09310 Hard Tile WA
09560 Resllient Tlle Flooring & Base $6,038
09695 Flocr Preparation - Misc. 5481
Q9510 Acoustical Ceilings $2,752
09900 Painting & Wal's i sihnent42-Fahibin 2 $5432
DIVISION 10 -‘S%Iaii F - B .
10180 Hospital Cubicle YA
10250 Watl & Comer Guards N/A
1080¢0 Toltet Accessaries P&
DIVISION 12 - Furnishings
12530 Window Treatment MNA
DIVISION 15 - Mechanical ™~ = - T T 1
153¢0 Fire Pr $2.550
45400 Plumbing $5,457
15500 H.VAC, $34.680
DIVISION 16 - Elactrical " ” |
16001 Electrical-Bullding $32,032
TRADE SUB-TQTAL $480,247 _
Liability [nsurance $4,620
Contingency 510,360
Contracior's Fes 510,567
Linac #W121 SUB-TOTAL 505,795
Cost!SF for Linac #W121 _ . I ____ $524 .
Average Cost/SF for Remainder of Bullding $291
Premium Cost/SF for Linac #AW121 §$223
Total Premium for Linac #W121 o $225,318

q

Atiachoocn 42-Exhibil 2




SECTION XIl = CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

The tables below contain the relevant charity care information for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Rush
University Medical Center, respectively.
Charity Care Information for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. reports charity care on a consolidated basis. Therefore, the information in
the table below is for DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. as a whole.

CONSOLIDATED CHARITY CARE INFORMATION FOR DMG

FY 2009 FY 2010 Fy 2011
(in thousands) (in thousands) {in thousands)

Net Patient Revenue $236,317 $261,580 $287,259
Amount of Charity Care 52,302 $2,442 52,843
(charges)

Cost of Charity Care $1,236 51,368 $1,461
Ratio of Charity Care to 0.005 0.005 0.005
Net Patient Revenue

For documentation as to DMG's charity care, please see Attachment 44-Exhibit 1 which comes from
DMG’s consolidated financial statements for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
respectively. Note these financial statements contain only the amount of charity care charges. The cost
of charity care was for 2009 - $1,236,000; 2010 - $1,368,000; and 2011 - $1,461,000, respectively.

Charity Care Information for Rush University Medical Center

Information pertaining to Rush University Medical Center’s charity care is included here as RUMC is
considered a co-applicant. To fulfill this requirement, the applicants have included information
pertaining to RUMC’s charity care as submitted in a CON application earlier this year." This is allowed
under 77 Ill. Adm. Code §1110.230(a)(4), which states:

“If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for
permit, the documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the
information requirements of this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the
information has been previously provided, cite the project number of the prior application,
and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has been
previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously submitted
information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.”

Included below is all charity care information as submitted in that previous application, including for {1)
Rush University Medical Center; {2) Rush Qak Park Hospital and (3} the consolidated statements for Rush
University Medical Center and Rush Qak Park Hospital. However, only Rush University Medical Center is
considered a co-applicant for this project.

! project 12-011 the application for which was received by the Board on January 31, 2012,

o
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CHARITY CARE INFORMATION FOR RUMC

FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
{in thousands) {in thousands) (in thousands)
Net Patient Revenue $1,038,134 $1,079,553 51,118,958
Amount of Charity Care 553,737 559,180 $65,788
{charges)
Cost of Charity Care $15,339 $16,756 $18,124
Ratio of Charity Care to 1.5% 1.67% 1.67%
Net Patient Revenue
CHARITY CARE INFORMATION FOR RUSH OAK PARK HOSPITAL
FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011
{in thousands) (in thousands} {in thousands)
Net Patient Revenue $98,827 $103,511 $102,497
Amount of Charity Care 53,393 $3,264 $3,684
{charges)
Cost of Charity Care $705 $889 $1,000
Ratio of Charity Care to 0.77% 0.97% 1.0%
Net Patient Revenue
CONSOLIDATED CHARITY CARE INFORMATION FOR RUSH SYSTEM FOR HEALTH
FY 2009 FY 2010 Fy 2011
(in thousands) (in thousands) {in thousands)
Amount of Charity Care $57.130 $62,444 569,472
Charges
Cost of Charity Care 516,044 $17,645 $19,124
Net Patient Revenue $1,136,961 51,183,464 $1,221,455
Ratio of Charity Care to 1.4% 1.5% 1.6%

Net Patient Revenue

For documentation that this data has been previously submitted to the Board, please see Attachment
44-Exhibit 2, which comes from the application for Project 12-011, submitted January 31, 2012.

0\
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ATTACHMENT 44-EXHIBIT |
Note: From the 2011 and 2010 Consolidated Financial
Statments of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reinsurance

The Group’s capitation agreements include reinsurance arrangements, which lmit the Group’s
expenses on individual patients. Under the terms of the agreements, the Group will be
reimbursed a portion of the cost incurred for each patient’s annual physician services in excess of
a deductible outlined in each agreement. Amounts reimbursable from reinsurance contracts are
recorded as reinsurance reccivable as outlined in each agreement. Amounts received under
reinsurance agreements related to claims paid to external partics are included as a reduction in
medical claims expense. Amounts reimbursed related to services provided by the Group are

reflected in capitation revenue.

Community Services Provided

The Group provides care to patients who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less
than established rates. Community services provided by the Group are excluded from net patient

service revenue,

The forgone charges related to community services provided by the Group to the DuPage

Community Clinic amounted to approximately $2,843,000 and $2,442,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments, specifically interest rale swaps, are reported in the consolidated balance
sheets at their respective fair values. The change in the fair value of those derivative instruments

is reflected in net income.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2010 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform
to the 2011 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on stockholders’ equity or net

income,

PRELIMINARY AND TENTATIVE FOR DISCUSSION ONLY Attachment 44-Exhibit 1
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ATTACHMENT 44-EXHIBIT 1
Note: From the 2010 and 2009 Consolidated Financial
Statments of DuPage Medical Group, Ltd.

DuPage Medical Group, Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reinsurance

The Group’s capitation agreements include reinsurance arrangements. which limit the Group's
expenses on individual patients. Under the terms of the agreements, the Group wiil be
reimbursed a portion of the cost incurred for each patient’s annual physician services in excess of
a deductible outlined in cach agreement. Amounts reimbursable from reinsurance contracts are
recorded as reinsurance rcccivable as outlined in each agreement. Amounts received under
reinsurance agreements related 1o claims paid to exiernal parties arc included as a reduction in
medical claims cxpense. Amounts reimbursed related to services provided by the Group are
reflected in capitation revenue.

Community Services Provided

The Group provides care to patients who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less
than established rates. Community services provided by the Group are excluded from net patient

The forgone charges related to community services provided by the Group to the DuPage

Community Cl1mc amoumed to $2,442,000 and $§2,302,000 for the years ended December 31,

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments, specifically interest rate swaps, are reported in the consolidated balance
sheets at their respective fair values, The change in the fair value of those derivative instruments
is reflected in net income.

1011-1210429 Attachment 44-Exhibit 1
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ATTACHMENT 44-EXHIBIT 2
Note: From RUMC's CON Application for
Project 12-011, Received 1/31/2012 (page 270)

Rush University Medical Center
RUMC CHARITY CARE
FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009
(in thousands) | (in thousands) | (in thousands)
Net Patient Revenue 1,118,958 1,079,553 1,038,134
Amount of Charity Care
(charpes) 65,788 59,180 53,737
Cost of Charity Care 18,124 16,756 15,3319
Ratio of Charity Care to
Net Patient Revenue 1.67% 1.67% 1.5%
Saurce: RUMC Records
Rush Oak Park Hospital
ROPH CHARITY CARE
Fy 201 FY 2010 FY 2009
(in thousands) | (in thousands) [ (in thousands
Net Patient Revenue 102,497 103,911 98,827
Amount of Charity Care
(charges) 3,684 3,264 3,393
Cost of Charity Care 1,000 889 705
Ratio of Charity Care to
Net Patient Revenue 1.0% 0.97% 0.77%
Source: RUMC Records
Consolidated
CONSOLIDATED CHARITY CARE
FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009
{in thousands) (in thousands) {in hoasands)
CONSOLIDATED
Amount of Charity Care
Charges 69,472 62,444 57,130
Cost of Charity Care 19,124 17.645 16,044
Net Patient Revenue 1,221,455 1,183,464 1,136,961
Ratio 1.6% 1.5% 1.4%

Source: RUMC Audited Financial Statements

Attachment 44-Exhibit 2
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good 26-28
Standing
2 | Site Ownership 29-63

Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be

identified with the % of ownership. 64-66
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 67-70
Good Standing Etc.
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 71-73
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 74-75
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ktemization 76-78
8 | Obligation Document if required 79-82
9 | Cost Space Requirements 83
10 | Discontinuation -
11 | Background of the Applicant 84-103
12 | Purpose of the Project 104-149
13 | Alternatives to the Project 150-152
14 | Size of the Project 153-154
15 | Project Service Utilization 155-157
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space 158
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space 159
18 | Master Design Project -

19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions

Service Specific:
20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU -
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation -
22 | Acute Mental lliness -
23 | Neonatal Intensive Care
24 | Open Heart Surgery -
25 | Cardiac Catheterization -
26 | In-Center Hemodialysis -
27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery -
28 | General Long Term Care -
29 | Specialized Long Term Care -
30 | Selected Organ Transplantation -
31 | Kidney Transplantation -
32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center
34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center -

35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center -

36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital -

37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 160-180
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services -

Financial and Economic Feasibility:

39 | Availability of Funds 181-219
40 | Financial Waiver 220-236
41 | Financial Viability 237-293
42 | Economic Feasibility 294-299

43 | Safety Net Impact Statement -
44 | Charity Care Information 300-304 |




